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Warrant and Certificate Programme

This document (the "Base Prospectus") (together with supplements to this Base Prospectus from time to time
(each a "Supplement" and together the "Supplements™)) constitutes a base prospectus in respect of the
Programme (as defined below). Any Securities (as defined below) issued on or after the date of this Base
Prospectus are issued subject to the provisions herein.

This Base Prospectus has not been approved as a prospectus for the purposes of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of
14 June 2017 (the "Prospectus Regulation™) and/or Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 of 14 June 2017 as it forms part
of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the "EUWA") (the "UK Prospectus
Regulation™). This Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus for the purpose of the Luxembourg Act dated
16 July 2019 relating to prospectuses for securities, (Loi relative aux prospectus pour valeurs mobilieres) (the
"Prospectus Act").

For the purpose of the issuance of any Securities that will be listed or admitted to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange
Ltd ("SIX Swiss Exchange™") or another Swiss trading venue as such term is used in the Swiss Financial
Infrastructure Act ("FMIA") and/or publicly offered, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland as defined under the
Swiss Financial Services Act ("FinSA"), the Base Prospectus has been approved by SIX Exchange Regulation
AG ("SIX Exchange Regulation") in its capacity as Swiss Prospectus Office (the "Swiss Prospectus Office")
on 4 June 2021, and constitutes a base prospectus pursuant to article 45 of FinSA.

The Securities do not constitute collective investment schemes as such term is used in the Swiss Federal Act
on Collective Investment Schemes (*'CISA™). Accordingly, holders of the Securities do not benefit from
protection under the CISA or supervision by FINMA. Further, investors are exposed to the Issuer's and
(in the case of Securities issued by BNPP B.V.) the Guarantor's insolvency risk. The Securities constitute
unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and/or the Guarantor and rank pari passu with
each and all other current and future unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the Issuer and/or the
Guarantor (if applicable). The insolvency of each of the Issuer and the Guarantor (if applicable) may lead
to a partial or total loss of the invested capital.
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Under the terms of the Warrant and Certificate Programme (the "Programme”), each of BNP Paribas Issuance
B.V. ("BNPP B.V.") and BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Bank™ and, together with BNPP B.V., the "Issuers" and
each an "Issuer™) may from time to time issue warrants ("Warrants") or certificates ("Certificates" and, together
with the Warrants, "Securities™) of any kind including, but not limited to, Warrants or Certificates relating to a
specified index or a basket of indices, a specified share (including two or more shares which are attached to each
other so that they trade as a single unit ("Stapled Shares")), global depositary receipt ("GDR") or American
depositary receipt ("ADR") or a basket of shares (including Stapled Shares), ADRs and/or GDRs, a specified
interest in an exchange traded fund, an exchange traded note, an exchange traded commodity or other exchange
traded product (each an "exchange traded instrument™) or a basket of interests in exchange traded instruments,
a specified debt instrument or a basket of debt instruments, a specified currency or a basket of currencies, a
specified commodity or commodity index, or a basket of commodities and/or commodity indices, a specified
inflation index or a basket of inflation indices, a specified fund share or unit or basket of fund shares or units, a
specified futures contract or basket of futures contracts, a specified listed option contract or basket of listed option
contracts, or the credit of a specified entity or entities, open end Certificates ("Open End Certificates") and open
end turbo Certificates ("OET Certificates") and any other types of Securities including hybrid Securities whereby
the underlying asset(s) may be any combination of such indices, shares, interests in exchange traded instruments,
debt, currency, commaodities, inflation indices, fund shares or units, future contracts, listed option contracts, credit
of specified entities, or other asset classes or types. Each issue of Securities will be issued on the terms set out
herein which are relevant to such Securities under "Terms and Conditions of the Securities" (the "Conditions™)
and, in each case, on such final terms as will be set out in the final terms to be issued in respect of such Securities
(the "Final Terms"), a form of which is contained in this Base Prospectus. References herein to the Final Terms
may include, in the case of U.S. Securities (as defined below), (x) a supplement to the Base Prospectus prepared
under Part 2/Chapter 2/point 206 of the rules and regulations of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or (y) a
prospectus.

The Securities shall be governed by English law ("English Law Securities"), Dutch law ("Dutch Law
Warrants") or French law ("French Law Securities"), as specified in the relevant Final Terms, and the
corresponding provisions in the Conditions will apply to such Securities. Only English Law Securities will be
U.S. Securities.

Securities issued by BNPP B.V. may be secured ("Secured Securities") or unsecured ("Unsecured Securities")
and will be guaranteed by BNPP (in such capacity, the "BNPP Guarantor"” or the "Guarantor™) pursuant to
either (a) in respect of the Secured Securities, (i) a Deed of Guarantee for Secured Securities, in respect of English
Law Securities (the "Secured Securities English Law Guarantee") or (ii) a garantie, in respect of Secured
Securities, which are French Law Securities (the "Secured Securities French Law Guarantee" and, together
with the "Secured Securities English Law Guarantee", the "Secured Securities Guarantees"), the forms of
which are set out herein or (b) in respect of the unsecured Securities, (i) a Deed of Guarantee for Unsecured
Securities, in respect of English Law Securities (the "English Law Guarantee") or (ii) a Guarantee for Unsecured
Securities, in respect of Dutch Law Warrants (the "Dutch Law Guarantee™) or (iii) a garantie, in respect of
unsecured Securities, which are French Law Securities (the "French Law Guarantee" and, together with the
"English Law Guarantee", and the "Dutch Law Guarantee", the "Unsecured Securities Guarantees"), the
forms of which are set out herein. The Secured Securities Guarantees and the Unsecured Securities Guarantees
together, the "Guarantees".

Except in the case of U.S. Securities, each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP has a right of substitution as set out herein.

A description of the Final Terms (which for the avoidance of doubt may be issued in respect of more than one
series of Securities) is set out herein on pages 131 to 206 and will specify with respect to each issue of Securities
to which it relates, inter alia, the specific designation of the Securities, the aggregate number and type of the
Securities, the date of issue of the Securities, the issue price, the underlying asset, index, fund, reference entity or
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other item(s) to which the Securities relate, the exercise period or date (in the case of Warrants), the redemption
date, whether they are interest bearing, partly paid, redeemable in instalments, exercisable (on one or more
exercise dates) (in the case of Certificates), the governing law of the Securities, whether the Securities are eligible
for sale in the United States and certain other terms relating to the offering and sale of the Securities. With respect
to issues of English Law Securities, the Final Terms relating to such issue of Securities will be attached to the
Global Security, Rule 144A Global Security, Private Placement Definitive Security, Regulation S Global Security
or Permanent Global Security (each as defined below).

Each issue of Securities will entitle the holder thereof on due exercise (in the case of Warrants) or on the Instalment
Date(s) and/or the Redemption Date (in the case of Certificates) (or, in the case of Multiple Exercise Certificates,
each Exercise Settlement Date) either to receive a cash amount (if any) calculated in accordance with the relevant
terms or to receive physical delivery of the underlying assets (against payment of a specified sum in the case of
Warrants), all as set forth herein and in the applicable Final Terms.

Any terms and conditions not contained herein which are applicable to each Series (as defined in the Conditions)
of Securities will be set out in the applicable Final Terms which, with respect to Securities to be listed on the Euro
MTF Market (as defined below), will be delivered to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange on or before the date of
issue of the Securities of such series and published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange
(www.bourse.lu).

Prospective purchasers of Securities should ensure that they understand the nature of the relevant
Securities and the extent of their exposure to risks and that they consider the suitability of the relevant
Securities as an investment in the light of their own circumstances and financial condition. Securities are
complex financial instruments and involve a high degree of risk and potential investors should be prepared
to sustain a total loss of the purchase price of their Securities. There are significant risks inherent in the
holding of the Securities, including the risks in relation to their subordination, the circumstances in which
the Securities may be written down or converted to ordinary shares and the implications on prospective
purchasers of Securities (such as a substantial loss), the circumstances in which such prospective
purchasers may suffer loss as a result of holding the Securities are difficult to predict and the quantum of
any loss incurred by investors in the Securities in such circumstances is also highly uncertain. For more
information, see "'Risks" as set out in the Base Prospectus.

Investors in Hong Kong should not purchase the Securities in the primary or secondary markets unless
they are professional investors (as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong
Kong) and its subsidiary legislation, ""Professional Investors'') only and understand the risks involved. The
Securities are generally not suitable for retail investors.

In particular, the Securities and the Guarantees and, in the case of Physical Delivery Warrants or Physical
Delivery Certificates (each as defined below) (together, the **Physical Delivery Securities'), the Entitlement
(as defined herein) to be delivered upon the exercise (in the case of Physical Delivery Warrants) or the
redemption (in the case of Physical Delivery Certificates) of such Securities have not been, and will not be,
registered under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the "*Securities Act™), or under the
securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction of the United States. Furthermore, neither the sale of nor
trading in the Securities has been approved by the Commodity Futures Trading Commission (*"CFTC")
under the United States Commodity Exchange Act, as amended (""CEA™) and no U.S. person (as defined
herein) may at any time purchase, trade, exercise or maintain a position in the Securities unless otherwise
specified in the relevant Final Terms for the Securities. Neither Issuer has registered as an investment
company pursuant to the United States Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment
Company Act").



Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Securities are being offered and sold outside
the United States to persons that are not U.S. persons (as defined herein) in reliance on Regulation S under
the Securities Act, pursuant to CFTC regulations and guidance and subject to the following additional
offering and transfer restrictions. No Securities of such series, or interests therein, may at any time be
offered, sold, resold, held, traded, pledged, exercised, redeemed, transferred or delivered, directly or
indirectly, in the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person (as defined herein) and
any offer, sale, resale, trade, pledge, exercise, redemption, transfer or delivery made, directly or indirectly,
within the United States or to, or for the account or benefit of, a U.S. person (as defined herein) will not be
recognised. The Securities of such series may not be legally or beneficially owned at any time by any U.S.
person (as defined herein).

Notwithstanding the provisions of this Base Prospectus to the contrary, neither this Base Prospectus nor
any copy hereof may be sent, taken into or distributed in the United States or to any U.S. person (as defined
herein) or in any other jurisdiction except under circumstances that will result in compliance with the
applicable laws thereof. This Base Prospectus may not be reproduced either in whole or in part, without
the written permission of the Issuer.

As used herein, ""U.S. person™ means a person that is (i) a "U.S. person™ as defined in Regulation S under the
Securities Act ("Regulation S"); or (ii) a person other than a "Non-United States person" as defined in Rule 4.7
under the CEA,; or (iii) a "U.S. person™ as defined in (a) the Interpretive Guidance and Policy Statement Regarding
Compliance with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by the CFTC or (b) the final rule relating to Cross-
Border Application of the Registration Thresholds and Certain Requirements Applicable to Swap Dealers and
Major Swap Participants promulgated by the CFTC, in each case as amended, modified or supplemented from
time to time, pursuant to the Commaodity Exchange Act; or (iv) any other "U.S. Person" as such term may be
defined in Regulation S or in regulations or guidance adopted under the CEA.

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, certain issues of Securities of BNPP eligible for sale in the United
States ("'U.S. Warrants' or U.S. Certificates™, as the case may be, and together, the ""U.S. Securities') may
also be offered and sold in the United States to (i) persons reasonably believed to be qualified institutional
buyers (""QIBs") as defined in Rule 144A under the Securities Act (""Rule 144A™) and (ii) certain
institutional accredited investors (*"Als™) as defined in Rule 501(a)(1), (2), (3), (7), (8) or (9) of Regulation
D under the Securities Act. Certain issues of U.S. Securities of BNPP B.V. may be offered and sold in the
United States to persons reasonably believed to be both QIBs and qualified purchasers (*'QPs") as defined
under the Investment Company Act of 1940.

Each purchaser of U.S. Securities within the United States is hereby notified that the offer and sale of such U.S.
Securities is being made in reliance upon an exemption from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
For a description of certain further restrictions on offers and sales of the Securities and on the distribution of this
Base Prospectus, see "Offering and Sale" below.

U.S. Securities will, unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms, be sold through BNP Paribas Securities Corp.,
a registered broker-dealer. Hedging transactions involving Physical Delivery Securities may not be conducted
unless in compliance with the Securities Act. See "Terms and Conditions of the Securities" below.

Application has been made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange in its capacity as competent authority (the
"Competent Authority™) under the Prospectus Act for the approval of this Base Prospectus as a prospectus and
application may be made to the Luxembourg Stock Exchange for Securities issued under the Programme to be
listed on the Euro MTF Market (as defined below) operated by the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (the Euro MTF
Market is not a regulated market pursuant to the provisions of Directive 2014/65/EU (the "Markets in Financial
Instruments Directive") and/or a UK regulated market as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 on markets
in financial instruments or it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA but is subject to the supervision



of the financial sector and exchange regulator, the Commission de Surveillance du Secteur Financier ("CSSF"))
and listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange during the 12-month period after the date of
approval of this Base Prospectus. References in this Base Prospectus to Securities being "listed" (and all related
references) shall mean that such Securities have been listed and admitted to trading on the Euro MTF exchange
regulated market of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange (including the professional segment of the Euro MTF
Market) (the "Euro MTF Market"). The Programme provides that Securities may be listed on such further or
other stock exchange(s) as the relevant Issuer may decide. The applicable Final Terms will specify whether or
not Securities are to be listed on the Official List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on
the Euro MTF Market or any other stock exchange(s) and, if relevant, will include information on the relevant
market segment of the stock exchange on which the securities are to be listed. However, this Base Prospectus has
not been approved as a base prospectus for the purposes of the Prospectus Regulation and, accordingly, no offer
to the public may be made and no admission to trading may be applied for on any market in the European
Economic Area (the "EEA") or the United Kingdom designated as a regulated market, for the purposes of the
Prospectus Regulation or the UK Prospectus Regulation, respectively.

Securities may only be issued under this Programme in circumstances where no prospectus is required to be
published under the Prospectus Regulation (see "Offering and Sale" below). Each Issuer may also issue unlisted
Securities. Registered Warrants will be unlisted.

English Law Securities which are issued and transferred through Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream,
Luxembourg") and/or Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. ("Euroclear™), Euroclear France SA ("Euroclear France"),
Sociedad de Gestidn de los Sistemas de Registro, Compensacion y Liquidacion de Valores S.A., Unipersonal
("Iberclear"”), Monte Titoli S.p.A ("Monte Titoli") and/or any other relevant clearing system (*Clearing System
Securities™) will be represented by a global security (each a "Clearing System Global Security™), which will be
issued and deposited with a common depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg, Euroclear, Iberclear,
Monte Titoli and/or any other relevant clearing system or, as the case may be, Euroclear France on the date of
issue of the relevant Securities in accordance with the rules and regulations of the relevant clearing system.
Registered English Law Warrants ("Registered Warrants") will be represented by a registered global warrant
(each a "Registered Global Warrant™), which will be issued and deposited with the Registrar. Registered English
Law Certificates ("Registered Certificates") will be represented by a registered global certificate (each a
"Registered Global Certificate" and together with a Registered Global Warrant, a "Registered Global
Security") held on behalf of Euroclear and/or Clearstream Luxembourg and/or any other relevant clearing system.
Clearing System Securities and Securities in definitive registered form ("Private Placement Definitive
Securities") will not be exchangeable for Registered Securities and Registered Securities will not be exchangeable
for Clearing System Securities and Private Placement Definitive Securities. Each Clearing System Global Security
and Registered Global Security are each referred to as a "Global Security". Swedish Dematerialised Securities
(as defined herein) will be issued in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance
with the SFIA Act (as defined herein). Finnish Dematerialised Securities (as defined herein) will be issued in
registered, uncertified and dematerialised book-entry form in accordance with the provisions of Regulation (EU)
No 909/2014 (the "Central Securities Depositories Regulation™), Finnish Act on the Book-Entry System and
Clearing and the Finnish Act on Book-Entry Accounts (as specified herein). Italian Dematerialised Securities (as
defined herein) will be issued in registered, uncertificated and dematerialised book-entry form into Monte Titoli.
Swiss Securities (as defined herein) may be issued as Swiss Materialised Securities (as defined herein) or as Swiss
Dematerialised Securities (as defined herein). Swiss Materialised Securities will be represented by a global
security. Swiss Dematerialised Securities will be issued in uncertified and dematerialised form. In each case,
Swiss Materialised Securities or Swiss Dematerialised Securities will be held as intermediated securities
(Bucheffekten) in accordance with the Swiss Federal Intermediated Securities Act ("FISA") (Bucheffektengesetz).
Except as described herein, no definitive Securities will be issued.



French Law Securities will be in bearer dematerialised form (au porteur) and will be inscribed (inscription en
compte) in the books of Euroclear France or Nederlands Centraal Instituut voor Giraal Effectenverkeer B.V.
("Euroclear Netherlands™) which shall credit the accounts of the Holders (as defined in "Terms and Conditions
of the Securities™). No physical document of title will be issued in respect of French Law Securities. French Law
Securities have been accepted for clearance through Euroclear France, Euroclear Netherlands, Euroclear and/or
Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or any other relevant clearing system.

The Securities to the extent they constitute *"Secured Securities' may not be sold to, or for the account or
benefit of, U.S. persons as defined in the U.S. Risk Retention Rules ("'Risk Retention U.S. Persons'") except
to the extent such Risk Retention U.S. Persons have received a waiver from the applicable Sponsor and
except as permitted under an exemption to the U.S. Risk Retention Rules as described under ""Risks" on
page 82 and ""Offering and Sale™ on pages 695 to 696. ""U.S. Risk Retention Rules" means Regulation RR
(17 C.F.R Part 246) implementing the risk retention requirements of Section 15G of the U.S. Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended.

In the event that the Final Terms specify that the Securities are U.S. Securities, (A) the U.S. Securities sold in the
United States by BNPP to QIBs within the meaning of Rule 144A will be represented by one or more global
Securities (each, a "Rule 144A Global Security™) issued and deposited with (1) a custodian for, and registered in
the name of a nominee of, The Depository Trust Company ("DTC") or (2) a common depositary on behalf of
Clearstream Banking, S.A. ("Clearstream, Luxembourg™) or Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V. ("Euroclear") and/or
any other relevant clearing system, (B) the U.S. Securities sold in the United States by BNPP to Als will be issued
and registered in definitive form (each, a "Private Placement Definitive Security") (C) U.S. the Securities sold
in the United States by BNPP B.V. to QIBs who are QPs will be represented by a Rule 144A Global Security or
in the form of Private Placement Definitive Securities if sold to Als who are QPs, as may be indicated in any
applicable U.S. wrapper to the Base Prospectus and (D) in any such case, U.S. Securities sold outside the United
States to persons that are not U.S. persons will be represented by a one or more global Securities (each, a
"Regulation S Global Security") issued and deposited with a common depositary on behalf of Clearstream,
Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any other relevant clearing system and may not be legally or beneficially owned
at any time by any U.S. person. In the event that the Final Terms does not specify that Securities are eligible for
sale within the United States or to U.S. persons, the Securities offered and sold outside the United States to non-
U.S. persons may not be legally or beneficially owned at any time by any U.S. person and will be represented by
a Clearing System Global Security or a Registered Global Security, as the case may be.

The rating of certain series of Securities to be issued under the Programme may be specified in the applicable
Final Terms. Whether or not each credit rating applied for in relation to relevant series of Securities will be issued
by a credit rating agency established in the European Union and registered under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009
(as amended) ("CRA Regulation™) or in the United Kingdom and registered in accordance with Regulation (EC)
No. 1060/2009 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the EUWA (the "UK CRA Regulation™) will be
disclosed in the applicable Final Terms.

If and to the extent FinSA Securities (as defined below) will be listed or admitted to trading on SIX Swiss
Exchange or another Swiss trading venue as such term is used in FMIA and/or publicly offered, directly or
indirectly, in Switzerland as defined under FinSA, a prospectus pursuant to the requirements of Article 40 et seq.
FinSA is required since 1 December 2020. Such requirement will be met by (i) the publication of Final Terms
prepared on the basis of the Form of Final Terms set out in the Base Prospectus, and (ii) registering the applicable
Final Terms with the Swiss Prospectus Office and publishing the applicable Final Terms in accordance with the
rules of FinSA. Any Securities that fall within the scope of the requirement to publish a prospectus pursuant to
FinSA shall be "FinSA Securities" and any Securities that do not fall within the scope of the requirement to
publish a prospectus pursuant to FinSA shall be "FinSA Exempt Securities".



IMPORTANT NOTICE
Disclaimer statement for structured products (Securities)

In relation to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain, Securities issued in connection with this Base Prospectus and
related offering documents must be in registered form and must only be marketed to existing account holders and
accredited investors as defined by the Central Bank of Bahrain (the "CBB") in the Kingdom of Bahrain where
such investors make a minimum investment of at least U.S.$ 100,000 or any equivalent amount in other currency
or such other amount as the CBB may determine.

This offer does not constitute an offer of Securities in the Kingdom of Bahrain in terms of Article (81) of the
Central Bank and Financial Institutions Law 2006 (decree Law No. 64 of 2006). This Base Prospectus and related
offering documents have not been and will not be registered as a prospectus with the CBB. Accordingly, no
Securities may be offered, sold or made the subject of an invitation for subscription or purchase nor will this Base
Prospectus or any other related document or material be used in connection with any offer, sale or invitation to
subscribe or purchase Securities, whether directly or indirectly, to persons in the Kingdom of Bahrain, other than
as marketing to accredited investors for an offer outside Bahrain.

The CBB has not reviewed, approved or registered this Base Prospectus or related offering documents and it has
not in any way considered the merits of the Securities to be marketed for investment, whether in or outside the
Kingdom of Bahrain. Therefore, the CBB assumes no responsibility for the accuracy and completeness of the
statements and information contained in this document and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this document.

No offer of Securities will be made to the public in the Kingdom of Bahrain and this prospectus must be read by
the addressee only and must not be issued, passed to, or made available to the public generally.

All offers of Securities to investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain will be made by way of private placement and may
only be offered to accredited investors in the Kingdom of Bahrain in minimum subscriptions of U.S. $100,000 (or
equivalent in other countries).

Notification under Section 309B(1)(c) of the Securities and Futures Act (Chapter 289) of Singapore, as
modified or amended from time to time (the SFA) — Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms
in respect of any Securities, all Securities issued or to be issued under the Programme shall be capital markets
products other than prescribed capital markets products (as defined in the Securities and Futures (Capital Markets
Products) Regulations 2018 of Singapore) and Specified Investment Products (as defined in MAS Notice SFA
04-N12: Notice on the Sale of Investment Products and MAS Notice FAA-N16: Notice on Recommendations on
Investment Products).

Guidance under the Hong Kong Monetary Authority (the ""HKMA'™) circular - In October 2018, the HKMA
issued a circular regarding enhanced investor protection measures on the sale and distribution of debt instruments
with loss-absorption features and related products (the "HKMA Circular"). Under the HKMA Circular, debt
instruments with loss-absorption features, being subject to the risk of being written-down or converted to ordinary
shares, and investment products that invest mainly in, or whose returns are closely linked to the performance of
such instruments (together, "Loss-Absorption Products"), are to be targeted in Hong Kong at professional
investors (as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary
legislation, "Professional Investors") only. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final Terms in respect
of any Securities, all Securities issued or to be issued under the Programme contain loss-absorption features and
may be considered Loss-Absorption Products under the HKMA Circular. Investors in Hong Kong should not
purchase such Securities with loss-absorption features unless they are Professional Investors and
understand the risks involved. Such Securities are generally not suitable for retail investors in Hong Kong
in either the primary or the secondary markets.



IMPORTANT - EEA AND UK RETAIL INVESTORS — Where a key information document is required
pursuant to Regulation (EU) No 1286/2014 (the “PRI1Ps Regulation™) or Regulation (EU) No. 1286/2014 as it
forms part of UK domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the "EUWA") (the "UK
PRIIPs Regulation™), as the case may be, the Securities are not intended to be offered, sold or otherwise made
available to and should not be offered, sold or otherwise made available to any retail investor in (i) the EEA,
unless a key information document will be made available (if required) in the EEA jurisdiction(s) in which the
Securities are offered, sold or otherwise made available to such retail investor(s) or (ii) the United Kingdom
("UK™) unless a key information document will be made available (if required) in the UK. For these purposes, a
retail investor means a person who is one (or more) of:

@ in the case of retail investors in the EEA:

M a retail client as defined in point (11) of Article 4(1) of Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended,
"MIFID "),

(i) a customer within the meaning of Directive (EU) 2016/97 (the "Insurance Distribution
Directive"), where that customer would not qualify as a professional client as defined in point
(10) of Article 4(1) of MIFID II; or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Regulation; or
(b) in the case of retail investors in the UK:

0] a retail client, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation (EU) No 2017/565 as it forms
part of UK domestic law by virtue of the EUWA,;

(i) a customer within the meaning of the provisions of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000
("FSMA") and any rules or regulations made under the FSMA to implement Directive (EU)
2016/97, where that customer would not qualify as a professional client, as defined in point (8)
of Article 2(1) of Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of
the EUWA, or

(iii) not a qualified investor as defined in Article 2 of Regulation (EU) 2017/1129 as it forms part of
domestic law by virtue of the EUWA.

Consequently, no key information document required by:

€)] the PRIIPs Regulation for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to retail
investors in the EEA has been prepared, other than in respect of the jurisdiction(s) for which a key
information document will be made available, and therefore offering or selling the Securities or otherwise
making them available to any retail investor in the EEA may be unlawful under the PRIIPs Regulation;
and

(b) the UK PRIIPs Regulation for offering or selling the Securities or otherwise making them available to
retail investors in the UK has been prepared, and therefore, offering or selling the Securities or otherwise
making them available to any retail investor in the UK may be unlawful under the UK PRIIPs Regulation.

MiFID Il product governance / target market — The Final Terms in respect of any Securities may include a
legend entitled "MIFID Il product governance/target market assessment" which will outline the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities and which channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate. Any
person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor”) should take into
consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to MiFID Il is responsible for



undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the target
market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

UK MIFIR product governance / target market — The Final Terms in respect of any Securities may include a
legend entitled "UK MiFIR product governance/target market assessment” which will outline the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities and which channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate. Any
person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a "distributor”) should take into
consideration the target market assessment; however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product
Intervention and Product Governance Sourcebook (the "UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible
for undertaking its own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the
target market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels.

In relation to each separate issue of Securities, the final offer price and the amount of such Securities will be
determined by the Issuer and the relevant manager in accordance with prevailing market conditions at the time of
the issue of the Securities and will be set out in the relevant Final Terms.

No person is authorised to give any information or to make any representation not contained in or not consistent
with this document or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme and, if given or made,
such information or representation must not be relied upon as having been authorised by BNPP B.V., BNPP or
any manager of an issue of Securities, including BNPP Securities Corp. (as applicable to such issue of Securities,
each a "Manager"). This document does not constitute, and may not be used for the purposes of, an offer or
solicitation by anyone in any jurisdiction in which such offer or solicitation is not authorised or to any person to
whom it is unlawful to make such offer or solicitation and no action is being taken to permit an offering of the
Securities or the distribution of this document in any jurisdiction where any such action is required.

This document is to be read and construed in conjunction with any Final Terms and with all documents which are
deemed to be incorporated herein by reference (see "Documents Incorporated by Reference” below).

Warrants create options exercisable by the relevant holder or which will be automatically exercised as provided
herein. There is no obligation on the Issuer to pay any amount or deliver any asset to any holder of a Warrant
unless the relevant holder duly exercises such Warrant or such Warrants are automatically exercised and, where
applicable, an Exercise Notice is duly delivered. The Warrants will be exercisable in the manner set forth herein
and in the applicable Final Terms. In certain instances, the holder of a Warrant will be required to certify, inter
alia (in accordance with the provisions outlined in "Offering and Sale" below), that it is not a U.S. person (as
defined above) or exercising such Warrant on behalf of a U.S. person. Upon transfer, exchange or exercise of a
U.S. Warrant (as defined above), the holder will, in certain circumstances, be required to certify that the transfer,
exchange or exercise, as the case may be, is being made to, or on behalf of, a person whom the holder reasonably
believes is not a U.S. person or is a QIB or an Al, as applicable, who acquired the right to such transfer, exchange
or the benefit of such exercise in a transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act.
The proposed transferee may also be required to deliver an investment letter as a condition precedent to such
proposed transfer or exchange (in accordance with the provisions outlined in Condition 2.4 of "Terms and
Conditions of the Securities" below).

Certificates shall be redeemed on each instalment date and/or the redemption date by payment of one or more
Cash Settlement Amount(s) (in the case of Cash Settled Certificates) and/or by delivery of the Entitlement (in the
case of Physical Delivery Certificates). In order to receive the Entitlement, the holder of a Certificate will be
required to submit an Asset Transfer Notice and in certain circumstances to certify, inter alia (in accordance with
the provisions outlined in Condition 35.2(a) of "Terms and Conditions of the Securities"), that it is not a U.S.
person or acting on behalf of a U.S. person. Upon transfer or exchange of a U.S. Certificate, the holder will, in
certain circumstances, be required to certify that the transfer or exchange, as the case may be, is being made to a
person whom the transferor or exchange or reasonably believes is not a U.S. person or is a QIB or an Al, as



applicable, who acquired the right to such transfer or exchange in a transaction exempt from the registration
requirements of the Securities Act. The proposed transferee may also be required to deliver an investment letter
as a condition precedent to such proposed transfer or exchange (in accordance with the provisions outlined in
Condition 2.4 of "Terms and Conditions of the Securities” below). Where Certificates are Exercisable
Certificates, such Certificates will be automatically exercised on one or more dates as provided herein.
Exercisable Certificates are Cash Settled Certificates.

The Securities of each issue may be sold by the relevant Issuer and/or any Manager at such time and at such prices
as the Issuer and/or the Manager(s) may select. There is no obligation upon the Issuer or any Manager to sell all
of the Securities of any issue. The Securities of any issue may be offered or sold from time to time in one or more
transactions in the over-the-counter market or otherwise at prevailing market prices or in negotiated transactions,
at the discretion of the Issuer.

Subject to the restrictions set forth herein, each Issuer shall have complete discretion as to what type of Securities
it issues and when.

No Manager has separately verified the information contained herein. Accordingly, no representation, warranty
or undertaking, express or implied, is made and no responsibility is accepted by any Manager as to the accuracy
or completeness of the information contained in this Base Prospectus or any other information provided by BNPP
B.V. and/or BNPP. The Manager(s) accept no liability in relation to the information contained in this Base
Prospectus or any other information provided by BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP in connection with the Programme.

BNPP B.V. and BNPP have not investigated, and do not have access to information that would permit them to
ascertain, whether any company that has issued equity, debt or other instruments to which any U.S. Securities
relate is a passive foreign investment company for U.S. tax purposes. Prospective investors in any U.S. Securities
that are U.S. taxpayers should consult their own advisers concerning U.S. tax considerations relevant to an
investment in such U.S. Securities.

Neither this Base Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme should be
considered as a recommendation by BNPP B.V., BNPP or any Manager that any recipient of this Base Prospectus
or any other information supplied in connection with the Programme should purchase any Securities. Each
investor contemplating purchasing any Securities should make its own independent investigation of the financial
condition and affairs, and its own appraisal of the creditworthiness, of BNPP B.V. and/or BNPP. Neither this Base
Prospectus nor any other information supplied in connection with the Programme constitutes an offer or an
invitation by or on behalf of BNPP B.V. or BNPP or the Managers or any other person to subscribe for or to
purchase any Securities.

This Base Prospectus may only be used for the purposes for which it has been published.

This Base Prospectus does not constitute an offer of, or an invitation by or on behalf of BNPP B.V., BNPP or any
Manager to subscribe for or purchase any securities. The delivery of this Base Prospectus does not at any time
imply that the information contained herein concerning BNPP B.V. or BNPP is correct at any time subsequent to
the date hereof or that any other information supplied in connection with the Programme is correct as of any time
subsequent to the date indicated in the document containing the same. No Manager undertakes to review the
financial condition or affairs of BNPP B.V. or BNPP during the life of the Programme. Investors should review,
inter alia, the most recently published audited annual non-consolidated financial statements and interim financial
statements of BNPP B.V. and/or the most recently published audited annual consolidated financial statements,
unaudited semi-annual interim consolidated financial statements and quarterly results of BNPP, when deciding
whether or not to purchase any Securities.

10



The distribution of this Base Prospectus and the offering of Securities in certain jurisdictions may be restricted by
law. Persons into whose possession this Base Prospectus comes are required by BNPP B.V., BNPP and each
Manager to inform themselves about and to observe any such restrictions.

In this Base Prospectus references to U.S.$ and U.S. dollars are to United States dollars, references to euro, € and
EUR are to the currency introduced at the start of the third stage of European economic and monetary union
pursuant to the Treaty on the Functioning of the European Union, as amended and references to "Renminbi",
"RMB" and "CNY" are to the lawful currency of the People's Republic of China (excluding the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China ("Hong Kong"), the Macau Special
Administrative Region of the People's Republic of China ("Macau") and Taiwan).

In this Base Prospectus, unless the contrary intention appears, a reference to a law or a provision of a law is a
reference to that law or provision as extended, amended or re-enacted.

FinSA Exempt Securities — Other than in respect of FinSA Securities, neither the Base Prospectus (including
any supplement thereto) nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the Securities constitutes a
prospectus pursuant to FinSA, and neither the Base Prospectus (including any supplement thereto) nor any other
offering or marketing material relating to the Securities may be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly
available in Switzerland, unless the requirements of FinSA for such public distribution are complied with. FinSA
Exempt Securities may only be offered, sold or advertised, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland if the Securities:
(a) are addressed solely at investors classified as Professional or Institutional Clients (as defined below); (b) are
addressed at fewer than 500 Retail Clients (as defined below); (c) are addressed at investors acquiring securities
to the value of at least CHF 100,000; (d) have a minimum denomination per unit of CHF 100,000; or (e) do not
exceed a total value of CHF 8 million over a 12-month period.

All clients other than professional clients (professionelle Kunden) and institutional clients (institutionelle
Kunden), as defined in Article 4 para. 3, 4 and 5 and Article 5 para. 1 and 2 FinSA ("Professional or Institutional
Clients"), are retail clients ("Retail Clients"). Professional or Institutional Clients include: (a) financial
intermediaries regulated pursuant to the Swiss Federal Banking Act, the Swiss Federal Financial Institutions Act
or CISA; (b) regulated insurance undertakings pursuant to the Swiss Federal Insurance Supervision Act; (c)
foreign financial intermediaries or insurance undertakings subject to a similar prudential supervision as the
financial intermediaries or insurance undertakings pursuant to (a) and (b); (d) central banks; (e) public entities
with professional treasury operations; (f) pension funds and occupational pension schemes with professional
treasury operations; (g) undertakings with professional treasury operations; (h) large companies that exceed two
of the following thresholds: (i) a balance sheet total of CHF 20 million, (ii) turnover of CHF 40 million, and/or
(iii) own capital of CHF 2 million; (i) private investment structures for high-net worth individuals with
professional treasury operations; and (j) Opting-out Clients (as defined below).

An "Opting-out Client" (vermdgende Privatkundinnen und -kunden) is a Retail Client who confirms (i) that,
based on the education/professional experience or based on comparable experience in the financial sector, they
have the necessary knowledge to understand the risks resulting from an investment in the Securities and who
owns, directly or indirectly, eligible financial assets of at least CHF 500,000, or (ii) that they own, directly or
indirectly, eligible financial assets worth at least CHF 2 million.

Swiss Retail Clients — FinSA Securities are only intended to be publicly offered, directly or indirectly, in
Switzerland within the meaning of FinSA or admitted to trading in Switzerland in accordance with FinSA if the
applicable Final Terms specify that the Securities are FInSA Securities, are registered with the Swiss Prospectus
Office and are published in accordance with FinSA. Furthermore, FinSA Securities may only be offered to Retail
Clients in Switzerland if a key investor document (Basisinformationsblatt) as such term is used in Article 58 et
seq. of FinSA relating to the Securities (a "FinSA-KID") or a key information document pursuant to the PRIIPs
Regulation has been prepared and provided to the relevant Retail Client. Prior to 1 January 2022, the relevant
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Issuer may prepare and provide a Swiss simplified prospectus as such term is used in CISA ("Swiss Simplified
Prospectus") instead of a FinSA-KID or a key information document pursuant to the PRIIPs Regulation.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

So long as any of the U.S. Securities are "restricted securities" within the meaning of Rule 144(a)(3) under the
Securities Act, and neither BNPP nor BNPP B.V. is subject to and in compliance with Section 13 or 15(d) of the
U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act"), nor exempt from reporting pursuant to
Rule 12g3-2(b) thereunder, BNPP has undertaken to furnish to each Holder or beneficial owner of U.S. Securities,
whether issued by BNPP or issued by BNPP B.V. and guaranteed by BNPP, and to any prospective purchaser,
any information required to be delivered under Rule 144A(d)(4) under the Securities Act.

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

The documents incorporated by reference (such sections being the "BNP Paribas Disclosure™) contain forward-
looking statements. BNP Paribas, BNPP B.V. and the BNP Paribas Group (being BNP Paribas together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group") may also make forward-looking statements in their offering circulars, in
press releases and other written materials and in oral statements made by their officers, directors or employees to
third parties. Statements that are not historical facts, including statements about BNPP, BNPP B.V. or the Group's
beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements. These statements are based on current plans, estimates
and projections, and therefore undue reliance should not be placed on them. Forward-looking statements speak
only as of the date they are made, and BNPP, BNPP B.V. and the Group undertake no obligation to update publicly
any of them in light of new information or future events.

PRESENTATION OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Most of the financial data presented, or incorporated by reference, in this Base Prospectus are presented in euros.

The audited consolidated financial statements of BNPP for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020 have been prepared in accordance with international financial reporting standards ("1FRS") as adopted by
the European Union. IFRS differs in certain significant respects from generally accepted accounting principles in
the United States ("U.S. GAAP"). The Group has made no attempt to quantify the impact of those differences. In
making an investment decision, investors must rely upon their own examination of the BNP Paribas Group, the
terms of an offering and the financial information. Potential investors should consult their own professional
advisors for an understanding of the differences between IFRS and U.S. GAAP, and how those differences might
affect the information herein. The Group's fiscal year ends on 31 December and references in the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English) and the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
and any amendment to the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English) (in each case, as defined in
"Documents Incorporated by Reference" below and incorporated by reference herein) to any specific fiscal year
are to the 12-month period ended 31 December of such year.

Due to rounding, the numbers presented throughout the BNP Paribas Disclosure and in the table under the heading
"Capitalisation of BNPP and the BNP Paribas Group" in the "General Information” section below may not add
up precisely, and percentages may not reflect precisely absolute figures.
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SUMMARY OF THE BASE PROSPECTUS

This summary must be read as an introduction to this Base Prospectus. Any decision to invest in any Securities
should be based on a consideration of this Base Prospectus as a whole, including any documents incorporated by
reference. The Issuer does not accept any liability whatsoever solely on the basis of this summary unless the
information of this summary is misleading, inaccurate or inconsistent when read together with the other parts of

the Base Prospectus or the Final Terms.

Words and expressions defined in "Risks", in the applicable Conditions and in the applicable Final Terms shall

have the same meanings in this summary.

Issuers

Guarantor

Description of BNPP B.V.

BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V."), a limited liability
company under Dutch law ("besloten vennootschap met beperkte
aansprakelijkheid™), having its registered office at Herengracht
595, 1017 CE Amsterdam, The Netherlands

Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI): 7245009UXRIGIRYOBRA48.

BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Bank"), a French société anonyme,
having its registered office at 16 boulevard des Italiens, 75009
Paris, France

Issuer Legal Entity Identifier (LEI):
ROMUWSFPUBMPROB8K5P83.

BNP Paribas
1. Key information on BNPP B.V.:

BNPP B.V. is a private company with limited liability under Dutch
law whose purpose and principal objectives are to issue and/or
acquire financial instruments of any nature and to enter into related
agreements for the account of various entities within the Group (as
defined below).

2. Share capital as of 31 December 2020:

Its authorised share capital as of 31 December 2020 amounts to
EUR 225,000 divided into 225,000 shares of EUR 1 each. Its fully
paid-up and issued share capital as of 31 December 2020 amounts
to EUR 45,379 divided into 45,379 shares of EUR 1 each.

3. Selected key financial information:

Income statement

Year Year -1
In EUR 31/12/2020 31/12/2019
Operating profit/loss 54,758 47,976
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Description of BNPP

Balance Sheet

In EUR

Net financial debt (long
term debt plus short term
debt minus cash)

Current  ratio  (current
assets/current liabilities)

Debt to equity ratio (total
liabilities/total shareholder

equity)

Interest cover ratio
(operating income/interest
expense)

Cash flow statement

In EUR

Net Cash flows from
operating activities

Net Cash flows from
financing activities

Net Cash flow from
investing activities

Year
31/12/2020

69,621,531,827

1.0

112,649

No interest
expenses

Year
31/12/2020

-563,228

1. Key information on BNPP:

Year-1
31/12/2019

64,938,742,676

1.0

112,828

No interest
expenses

Year-1
31/12/2019

661,222

BNPP is a European leading provider of banking and financial
services and has four domestic retail banking markets in Europe,
namely in France, Belgium, Italy and Luxembourg. It is present in
68 countries and has more than 193,000 employees, including
nearly 148,000 in Europe. BNPP is the parent company of the BNP
Paribas Group (together the "Group").

2. Share capital as of 31 December 2020:

EUR 2,499,597,122 divided into 1,249,798,561 fully paid-up
shares with a par of EUR 2 each.

3. Main activities and markets:

BNPP holds key positions in its two main businesses:
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(i) Retail Banking and Services, which includes:

e  Domestic Markets, comprising:

French Retail Banking (FRB),

BNL banca commerciale (BNL bc), Italian
retail banking,

Belgian Retail Banking (BRB),

Other Domestic Markets activities, including
Arval, BNP Paribas Leasing Solutions, Personal
Investors, Nickel and Luxembourg Retail
Banking (LRB);

e International Financial Services, comprising:

Europe-Mediterranean,
BancWest,

Personal Finance,
Insurance,

Wealth and Asset Management;

(i) Corporate and Institutional Banking ("CIB") which

includes:

e  Corporate Banking,

. Global Markets,

. Securities Services.

4. Selected key financial information:

Year

Income statement

Year -1 Year-2 Interim Comparative
financial interim
data financial data
from same
period in
prior year

In millions of 31/12/2020 31/12/2019 31/12/2018 31/03/2021 31/03/2020

euros (unless
otherwise

stated)
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Net interest

income

Net fee and
commission

income

Net gain on
financial

instruments

Revenues

Cost of risk

Operating

income

Net income
attributable to

equity holders

Earnings per
share (in

euros)

In millions of
euros (unless
otherwise

stated)

Total assets

Debt

securities

Of which mid
long term
Senior

Preferred

Subordinated

debt

18

21,312

9,862

7,146

44,275

(5,717)

8,364

7,067

5.31

Year

31/12/2020

2,488,491

212,351

82,086(*)

23,325

21,127

9,365

7,464

44,597

(3.203)

10,057

8,173

21,062

9,207

6,118

42,516

(2,764)

9,169

7,526

5.73

Balance sheet

Year -1

31/12/2019

2,164,713

221,336

88,466(*)

20,896

Year-2

31/12/2018

2,040,836

206,359

88,381(*)

18,414

n.a

n.a

n.a

11,829

(896)

2,336

1,768

131

Interim

financial

data

31/03/2021

2,660,266

236,942

n.a

n.a

n.a

na

n.a

10,888

(1,426)

1,305

1,282

Comparative
interim
financial data
from same
period in

prior year

31/03/2020

2,673,276

223,387

n.a

n.a



Loans and 809,533 805,777 765,871 821,991 841,099
receivables

from
customers

(net)

Deposits from 940,991 834,667 796,548 974,083 907,662

customers

Shareholders’ 112,799 107,453 101,467 113,788 109,037
equity (Group

share)

Doubtful 2.1% 2.2% 2.6% 2.1% 2.1%
loans/ gross

outstandings(

*)

Common 12.8% 12.1% 11.8% 12.8% 12.0%
Equity Tier 1
capital

(CET1) ratio

Total Capital 16.4% 15.5% 15.0% 16.2% 15.5%
Ratio
Leverage 4.9% 4.6% 4.5% 4.3% 3.9%
Ratio(***)

(*) Regulatory scope.

(**) Impaired loans (stage 3) to customers and credit institutions, not netted of guarantees,
including on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet and debt securities measured at amortized
costs or at fair value through shareholders’ equity reported on gross outstanding loans to
customers and credit institutions, on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet and including debt
securities measured at amortized costs or at fair value through shareholders’ equity (excluding

insurance).

(***) Taking into account the temporary exemption related to deposits with Eurosytem central
banks (calculated in accordance with Regulation (EU) No. 2020/873, Article 500b). It amounts
to 4.4% as at 31.12.20 excluding this effect.

Statements of no significant or material adverse change

There has been no significant change in the financial performance
or position of BNPP or the BNPP Group since 31 March 2021
(being the end of the last financial period for which interim
financial statements have been published). There has been no
material adverse change in the financial position or prospects of
BNPP or the Group since 31 December 2020 (being the end of the
last financial period for which audited financial statements have
been published).
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Description
Programme

Risks Factors

Securities

of

the

There has been no significant change in the financial performance
or position of BNPP B.V. since 31 December 2020 (being the end
of the last financial period for which audited financial statements
have been published). There has been no material adverse change
in the financial position or prospects of BNPP B.V. since 31
December 2020 (being the end of the last financial period for which
audited financial statements have been published).

To the best of the relevant Issuer’s knowledge, there have not been
any recent events which are to a material extent relevant to the
evaluation of the relevant Issuer’s solvency since (in the case of
BNPP B.V.) 31 December 2020 or (in the case of BNPP) 31 March
2021.

Warrant and Certificate Programme

There are certain factors that may affect the relevant Issuer's ability
to fulfil its obligations under this Base Prospectus. In the case of
Securities issued by BNPP B.V., there are also certain factors that
may affect the Guarantor's ability to fulfil its obligations under the
Guarantee. In addition, there are certain factors which are material
for the purpose of assessing the market risks and legal risks
associated with Securities issued under the Programme, risks
relating to the structure of a particular Series of Securities and risks
relating to the Underlying Reference or the disruption and
adjustment provisions of a particular Series of Securities issued
under the Programme. All of these are set out under "Risks".
Additional considerations associated with an investment in the
Securities are also set out under "Investment Considerations".

Securities may be issued as index Securities ("Index Securities"),
share, GDR or ADR Securities ("Share Securities"), exchange
traded instrument Securities ("ET1 Securities™), debt Securities
("Debt Securities™), commodity Securities ("Commodity
Securities"), inflation index Securities ("Inflation Index
Securities™), currency Securities ("Currency Securities"), fund
Securities ("Fund Securities"), futures contracts Securities
("Futures Securities"), listed option securities ("Listed Option
Securities"), credit Securities ("Credit Securities™) or open end
turbo Certificates ("OET Certificates™) which will be redeemed
on a date determined by the Issuer, in its sole and absolute
discretion, subject as provided herein or preference share
Certificates linked to a specified preference share issued by BNP
Paribas Synergy Limited ("Preference Share Certificates") or
any other or further type of warrants or certificates including as
hybrid Securities ("Hybrid Securities") whereby the Underlying
Reference may be any combination of such indices, shares, GDRSs,
ADRs, interests in exchange traded instruments, debt instruments,
currencies, commodities, inflation indices, currency, fund shares or
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Settlement

Index Securities

Share Securities

ETI Securities

units, futures contracts, listed option contracts, the credit of
specified reference entities or other asset classes or types.

Securities may be cash or physically settled.

In certain circumstances the Issuer or the Holder or (if applicable)
the Guarantor may vary settlement in respect of the Securities.

Payments in respect of Index Securities will be calculated by
reference to one or more indices as set out in the applicable Final
Terms. Index Securities may be linked to an index or indices
comprising, inter alia, reference equities, bonds, property and/or
other assets or bases of reference (including one or more custom
indices established, calculated and/or sponsored by BNPP and/or
its affiliates).

Index Securities may be subject to cancellation or early redemption
or adjustment if an Index is modified or cancelled and there is no
successor index acceptable to the Calculation Agent, if the Index's
sponsor fails to calculate and announce the Index, or certain events
(such as illegality, disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect
to the Issuer’s or any of its affiliates' hedging arrangements.

If certain disruption events occur with respect to valuation of an
Index such valuation will be postponed and may be made by the
Calculation Agent. Payments may also be postponed.

Payments in respect of Share Securities will be calculated by
reference to one or more shares, ADRs and/or GDRs (together
referred to herein as "Shares" and each a "Share") as set out in the
applicable Final Terms. Share Securities may also provide for
settlement by physical delivery of the Entitlement.

Share Securities may be subject to cancellation or early redemption
or adjustment (including as to valuation and in certain
circumstances share substitutions) if certain corporate events (such
as events affecting the value of a Share (including Share, or in the
case of GDRs and ADRs, Underlying Share, divisions or
consolidations, extraordinary dividends, redenomination of a Share
and capital calls); de-listing of a Share or Underlying Share;
insolvency, merger or nationalisation of a Share or Underlying
Share issuer; a tender offer or redenomination of a Share or
Underlying Share occur, if certain events (such as illegality,
disruptions or cost increases) occur with respect to the Issuer's or
any of its affiliates' hedging arrangements, or if insolvency filings
are made with respect to a Share or Underlying Share issuer.

Payments in respect of ETI Securities will be calculated by
reference to interests in one or more exchange traded instruments
as set out in the applicable Final Terms. ETI Securities may also
provide for settlement by physical delivery of the Entitlement.
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Debt Securities

Commodity Securities

Inflation Index Securities

Currency Securities

Fund Securities

Payments in respect of Debt Securities will be calculated by
reference to one or more debt instruments as set out in the
applicable Final Terms. Debt Securities may also provide for
settlement by physical delivery of the Entitlement.

Payments in respect of Commaodity Securities will be calculated by
reference to one or more commodities and/or commodity indices
as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Commodity Securities may be subject to adjustment (including as
to valuations) if certain events occur with respect to a Commaodity,
Commodity Index or Index Component (such as a trading
disruption, the disappearance of, or disruption in publication of, a
reference price; and in certain circumstances a change in the
formula for calculating a reference price; or a change in the content
of a Commaodity, an index component disruption event or an index
disruption event in respect of a Commodity Index.

Commodity Securities may be subject to cancellation or early
redemption or adjustment if a Commaodity Index is modified or
cancelled and there is no successor index acceptable to the
Calculation Agent, if the Commodity Index's sponsor fails to
calculate and announce the Commodity Index, or certain events
(such as illegality or disruptions) occur with respect to the Issuer's
or any of its affiliates' hedging arrangements).

Payments in respect of Inflation Index Securities will be calculated
by reference to one or more inflation indices as set out in the
applicable Final Terms.

Payments in respect of Currency Securities will be calculated by
reference to one or more foreign exchange rates as set out in the
applicable Final Terms.

In the case of Dual Currency Certificates, the Settlement Currency
for any amount calculated to be payable in respect of interest (if
any) or premium amount (if any) and/or any amount calculated to
be payable on redemption of the Certificates will depend on the
performance of the exchange rate on the relevant Dual Currency
Determination Date compared to the initial exchange rate specified
in the applicable Final Terms.

Payments in respect of Fund Securities will be calculated by
reference to units, interests or shares in a single fund or basket of
funds on such terms as set out in the applicable Final Terms. Fund
Securities may also provide for settlement by physical delivery of
the Entitlement.

Fund Securities may be subject to cancellation or early redemption
or adjustment (including as to valuation and fund substitutions) if
certain corporate events (such as insolvency (or analogous event)

22



Futures Securities

Listed Option Securities

Credit Securities

OET Certificates

occurring with respect to a fund; litigation against, or regulatory
events occurring with respect to a fund; suspensions of fund
subscriptions or redemptions; certain changes in net asset value of
a Fund; or modifications to the investment objectives or changes in
the nature or administration of a Fund occur, if certain valuation or
settlement disruption events occur with respect to a fund, or if
certain events (such as illegality, disruptions or cost increases)
occur with respect to the Issuer's or any affiliate’s hedging
arrangements.

Payments in respect of Futures Securities will be calculated by
reference to one or more futures contract as set out in the applicable
Final Terms.

Payments in respect of Listed Option Securities will be calculated
by reference to one or more listed option contracts as set out in the
applicable Final Terms.

Securities with respect to which payments are linked to the credit
of a specified entity or entities will be issued on such terms as are
specified in the applicable Final Terms.

If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied, each Security will be
redeemed by the payment of (i) the Auction Settlement Amount if
Auction Settlement applies as the applicable Settlement Method
(unless a Fallback Settlement Event occurs, in which event the
applicable Fallback Settlement Method shall apply), (ii) the Cash
Settlement Amount, if Cash Settlement applies as the applicable
Settlement Method, or (iii) by Delivery of the Deliverable
Obligations specified in the Notice of Physical Settlement and
payment of any Physical Settlement Adjustment Rounding
Amount, if Physical Delivery applies as the applicable Settlement
Method, as more fully set out under "Terms and Conditions of the
Securities".

Certain Certificates may be linked to the credit of a financial
institution with which a deposit is made by an affiliate of the Issuer.
If Conditions to Settlement are satisfied in respect of such
Certificates, each Certificate will be redeemed at its Credit Event
Settlement Amount.

OET Certificates will be redeemed on a date determined by the
Issuer, in its sole and absolute discretion, subject as provided in the
"Terms and Conditions of the Securities" and the applicable Final
Terms.

Payment in respect of OET Certificates will be calculated by
reference to a share, interest in an exchange traded instrument,
index, currency, futures contract or commodity, as set out in the
applicable Final Terms.

23



Preference
Certificates

Hybrid Securities

Warrants

Certificates

Interest

Physical Settlement

Share

OET Certificates may be subject to early redemption or adjustment
if certain events (such as events affecting the relevant shares,
interest in an exchange traded instrument, index, currency, futures
contract or commodity) occur with respect to the underlying asset.

Payments in respect of Preference Share Certificates will be
calculated by reference to the performance of a single specified
preference share of BNP Paribas Synergy Limited (the
"Preference Share Issuer").

Preference Share Certificates will be subject to early redemption if
certain corporate events (such as insolvency, merger or
nationalisation of the Preference Share Issuer or a tender offer)
occur, or if certain events (such as illegality disruptions or cost
increases) occur with respect to the Issuer's or any affiliate's
hedging arrangements, or if insolvency filings are made with
respect to the Preference Share Issuer or if the Issuer, or any of its
affiliates, receives notice from the Preference Share Issuer that the
relevant preference shares are to be redeemed prior to the
Redemption Date.

Payments in respect of Hybrid Securities will be calculated by
reference to any combination of Underlying References as set out
in the applicable Final Terms.

Warrants may be American Style Warrants or European Style
Warrants. American Style Warrants are exercisable in the manner
set out in the Terms and Conditions of the Securities on any
Exercise Business Day during the Exercise Period. European Style
Warrants are exercisable in the manner set out in the "Terms and
Conditions of the Securities" on the Exercise Date. Cash Settled
Warrants may be automatically exercised.

Certificates (other than Exercisable Certificates) will be redeemed
on the Redemption Date, subject as provided in the "Terms and
Conditions of the Securities" as amended and/or supplemented by
the applicable Final Terms. Exercisable Certificates will be
automatically exercised on the Exercise Date.

Certificates may pay interest on the basis of a fixed or floating rate
of interest or by reference to the performance of one or more
Underlying Reference.

In order to receive the Entitlement, a Holder must, in the case of
Certificates, deliver a duly completed asset transfer notice on the
specified cut-off date and, in the case of all Securities, pay all Taxes
and Expenses and, in the case of Warrants, the relevant Exercise
Price.

If certain events or circumstances occur on settlement, the date of
settlement may be postponed and in certain circumstances the
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Status of the Securities

Issuer will be entitled to pay a cash amount in lieu of physical
delivery.

Securities may be secured or unsecured. The status of the
Securities will be as set out in the applicable Final Terms.

Securities (other than Secured Securities) are unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations of the Issuer and rank pari passu among
themselves.

Secured Securities are unsubordinated and secured obligations of
BNPP B.V. and rank pari passu amongst themselves. In respect of
Secured Securities, BNPP B.V. will grant a security interest in
favour of the Collateral Agent on behalf of itself and the relevant
Holders over assets (such assets, the "Collateral Assets™) held in
accounts with a custodian or bank (each a "Collateral Account™).
One or more series of Secured Securities may be secured by the
same pool of Collateral Assets (each a "Collateral Pool"). The
Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool must consist of Eligible
Collateral and may be comprised of a cash deposit, any debt
securities, equity securities and/or shares, units or other interests in
a Collective Investment Scheme, or other assets as specified in the
applicable Final Terms. The applicable Final Terms will specify
the Collateral Assets which comprise the Collateral Pool(s) for the
series of Secured Securities and whether or not the Issuer will
provide collateral in respect of the nominal value of the relevant
Secured Securities ("Nominal Value Collateralisation™) or in
respect of part of the nominal value of the relevant Secured
Securities ("Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation™) or in
respect of the marked to market value of the Secured Securities
("MTM Collateralisation™) or in respect of part of the marked to
market value of the Secured Securities ("Partial MTM
Collateralisation"). The Issuer will not hold Collateral Assets in
respect of Secured Securities where it or one of its affiliates is the
beneficial owner of such Secured Securities. In addition, where the
Secured Securities are Collateral Asset Linked Securities, the
Issuer will provide Nominal Value Collateralisation in respect of
the nominal value of the Collateral Asset Linked Securities and
marked to market collateralisation in respect of the value of an
Option into which the Issuer has entered in connection with the
Collateral Asset Linked Securities, as set out in the "Terms and
Conditions of the Securities".

Following the realisation, or enforcement, of the security with
respect to a Collateral Pool if the amount paid to Holders in respect
of a series of Secured Securities is less than the amount payable in
respect of such Secured Securities following such realisation or
enforcement, such shortfall shall be irrevocably guaranteed by
BNPP. Certain series of Secured Securities may provide that on
enforcement of the security interest with respect to a Collateral
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Guarantee

Taxes and Expenses

Rating

Pool, the Collateral Assets or the value realised for the Collateral
Assets will be delivered to the Holders rather than sold and no
shortfall will be calculated. Where Collateral Asset Default is an
applicable Optional Additional Disruption Event, the Holders of
such Secured Securities will be exposed to the credit of the
Reference Collateral Asset Issuer (in the case of Collateral Asset
Linked Securities) or the credit of the issuer of Collateral Assets
(in respect of other Secured Securities where Collateral Asset
Default is an applicable Optional Additional Disruption Event).
Following the occurrence of a Collateral Asset Default, the Secured
Securities will be redeemed by delivery of all or certain of the
Collateral Assets and/or payment of an amount linked to the
proceeds of sale of such Collateral Assets, in the manner set out in
the "Terms and Conditions of the Securities"” together with, in the
case of Collateral Asset Linked Securities, an amount linked to the
marked to market value of an Option into which the Issuer has
entered in connection with the Secured Securities, as set out in the
"Terms and Conditions of the Securities".

Where the Issuer is BNPP B.V., the relevant Guarantee is an
unsubordinated and unsecured obligation of BNPP and will rank
pari passu with all its other present and future unsubordinated and
unsecured obligations subject to such exceptions as may from time
to time be mandatory under French law. In the event of a bail-in
of BNPP B.V. but not BNPP, the obligations and/or amounts owed
by BNPP under the guarantee shall be reduced to reflect any such
reduction or modification resulting from the application of a bail-
in of BNPP B.V. by a relevant regulator. In the event of a bail-in
of BNPP but not BNPP B.V., the obligations and/or amounts owed
by BNPP under the guarantee shall be reduced to reflect any such
modification or reduction applied to securities issued by BNPP
resulting from the application of a bail-in of BNPP by any relevant
regulator.

Holders of Securities must pay all specified taxes and expenses
relating to the Securities.

The Issuer shall deduct from amounts payable or from assets
deliverable to Holders all Related Expenses not previously
deducted from amounts paid or Assets delivered to Holders.

Investors should carefully review the "Taxation" section.

The rating of certain series of Securities to be issued under the
Programme may be specified in the applicable Final Terms.
Whether or not each credit rating applied for in relation to relevant
series of Securities will be issued by a credit rating agency
established in the European Union and registered under Regulation
(EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) ("CRA Regulation™) or in the
United Kingdom and registered in accordance with Regulation
(EC) No. 1060/2009 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of
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Listing and Admission to
Trading

Selling Restrictions

Governing Law

Approval by the Swiss
Prospectus Office

FinSA Exempt Securities

Swiss Structured Products
Association Swiss
Derivatives Map
Categorisation

the European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the "UK CRA
Regulation™) will be disclosed in the applicable Final Terms.

Securities of a particular Series may be listed on the Official List
of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and admitted to trading on the
Euro MTF Market (the Euro MTF Market is not a regulated market
pursuant to the provisions of the Markets in Financial Instruments
Directive) or on such other or additional stock exchanges (other
than in respect of an admission to trading on any market in the EEA
which has been designated as a regulated market for the purposes
of the Prospectus Regulation) as may be specified in the applicable
Final Terms, and references to listing shall be construed
accordingly. The applicable Final Terms will, if relevant, include
information on the relevant market segment of the stock exchange
on which the Securities are to be listed.

There are restrictions on the offer and sale of Securities and the
distribution of offering material — see "Offering and Sale" below.

The Securities, any related Guarantee and (in the case of English
Law Securities only) any non-contractual obligations arising out of
or in connection therewith will be governed by English, Dutch or
French Law, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Base Prospectus has been approved by SIX Exchange
Regulation in its capacity as Swiss Prospectus Office as of 4 June
2021, and constitutes a base prospectus pursuant to article 45 of the
FinSA for the purposes of the issuance of FinSA Securities.

If specified as such in the applicable Final Terms, the Securities
will be FinSA Exempt Securities.

The FinSA Securities are comprised of the following categories as
defined in the SSPA Swiss Derivatives Map 2021 listed below
issued by the Swiss Structured Products Association (the "SSPA™)
(see https://www.sspa.ch/en). Investors should refer to the section
entitled "Description of the Swiss Structured Products Association
Swiss Derivatives Map Categorisation” below for a more detailed
description of the product type.

The key information relating to the FinSA Securities and specific
terms and conditions of the FinSA Securities as well as information
regarding the public offer and admission to trading of the FinSA
Securities are set out in the applicable Final Terms, which
supplement the information contained in the Base Prospectus.

The Issuer undertakes to register the applicable Final Terms in
respect of a Series of FinSA Securities with the Swiss Prospectus
Office in accordance with the requirements of the FinSA as soon
as they are in final form and in any case prior to any public offering
in Switzerland or admission to trading in Switzerland of such
securities.
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Capital Protection Products

Yield Enhancement Products

Participation Products

Products with Additional
Credit Risk

The category of "Capital Protection Products" (SSPA Category 11)
includes the following product types:

Capital Protection Note with Participation (SSPA
Category 1100)

Capital Protection Note with Barrier (SSPA Category
1130)

Capital Protection Note with Twin Win (SSPA Category
1135)

Capital Protection Note with Coupon (SSPA Category
1140)

The category of "Yield Enhancement Products” (SSPA Category
12) includes the following product types:

Discount Certificate (SSPA Category 1200)
Barrier Discount Certificate (SSPA Category 1210)
Reverse Convertible (SSPA Category 1220)
Barrier Reverse Convertible (SSPA Category 1230)

- Conditional Coupon Reverse Convertible (SSPA
Category 1255)

- Conditional Coupon Barrier Reverse
Convertible (SSPA Category 1260)

The category of "Participation Products” (SSPA Category 13)
includes the following product types:

Tracker Certificate (SSPA Category 1300)
Outperformance Certificate (SSPA Category 1310)
Bonus Certificate (SSPA Category 1320)

Bonus Outperformance Certificate (SSPA Category
1330)

Twin Win Certificate (SSPA Category 1340)

The category "Products with Additional Credit Risk" (SSPA
Category 14) includes the following product types:

Credit Linked Notes (SSPA Category 1400)

Conditional Capital Protection Note with Additional
Credit Risk (SSPA Category 1410)
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Leverage Products

Further Products

Yield Enhancement Certificate with Additional Credit
Risk (SSPA Category 1420)

Participation Certificate with Additional Credit Risk
(SSPA Category 1430)

The category of "Leverage Products” (SSPA Category 21) includes
the following product types:

Warrant (SSPA Category 2100)

Spread Warrant (SSPA Category 2110)

Warrant with Knock-Out (SSPA Category 2200)
Mini-Future (SSPA Category 2210)

Constant Leverage Certificate (SSPA Category 2300)

In addition, "Actively Managed Certificates" may be issued on the
terms set out in the applicable Final Terms.
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RISKS

Prospective purchasers of the Securities offered hereby should consider carefully, among other things and in light
of their financial circumstances and investment objectives, all of the information in this Base Prospectus and, in
particular, the risks set forth below (which each Issuer, in its reasonable opinion, believes represents or may
represent the risks known to it which may affect such Issuer's ability to fulfil its obligations under the Securities)
in making an investment decision. Investors may lose the value of their entire investment in certain circumstances.

Terms used in this section and not otherwise defined have the meanings given to them in the relevant Conditions.
Risks relating to the Bank and its Industry

See "Risk Factors" under Chapter 5 on pages 290 to 304 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English) and pages 77 to 79 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English) (each as defined below), each of which is incorporated by reference in this document.

Risk Factors

The main categories of risk inherent in BNPP's business are presented below. They may be measured through
risk-weighted assets or other quantitative or qualitative indicators, to the extent risk-weighted assets are not
relevant (for example, for liquidity and funding risk).

Risk-weighted assets in billions of euros 31.12.20 31.12.19
Credit risk 527 524
Counterparty credit risk 41 30
Securitisation risk in the banking book 14 11
Operational risk 71 69
Market risk 25 19
Amounts below the thresholds for deduction 17 16
(subject to 250% risk weight)

Total Basel 3 risk-weighted assets 696 669

More generally, the risks to which BNPP is exposed may arise from a number of factors related, among others, to
changes in its macroeconomic or regulatory environment or factors related to the implementation of its strategy
and its business.

The risks specific to BNPP's business are presented below under seven main categories: credit risk, counterparty
risk and securitisation risk in the banking book; operational risk; market risk; liquidity and funding risk; risks
related to the macroeconomic and market environment; regulatory risks; and risks related to BNPP's growth in its
current environment.

BNPP's risk management policies have been taken into account in assessing the materiality of these risks; in
particular, risk-weighted assets factor in risk mitigation elements to the extent eligible in accordance with
applicable banking regulations.

These risk factors are described in detail below.
1. Credit risk, counterparty risk and securitisation risk in the banking book
BNPP's credit risk is defined as the probability of a borrower or counterparty defaulting on its obligations to

BNPP. Probability of default along with the recovery rate of the loan or debt in the event of default are essential
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elements in assessing credit quality. In accordance with the European Banking Authority recommendations, this
category of risk also includes risks on equity investments, as well as those related to insurance activities. As of 31
December 2020, BNPP's credit risk exposure broke down as follows: corporates (41%), central governments and
central banks (26%), retail customers (25%), credit institutions (5%), other items (2%) and equities (1%). As of
31 December 2020, 34% of BNPP's credit exposure was comprised of exposures in France, 15% in Belgium and
Luxembourg, 10% in Italy, 19% in other European countries, 12% in North America, 5% in Asia and 5% in the
rest of the world. BNPP's risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €527 billion at 31 December
2020, or 76% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP's counterparty risk arises from its credit risk in the specific context of market transactions, investments,
and/or settlements. BNPP's exposure to counterparty risk, excluding Credit Valuation Adjustment ("CVA") risk
as of 31 December 2020, was comprised of: 42% in the corporate sector, 27% in governments and central banks,
12% in credit institutions and investment firms, and 19% in clearing houses. By product, BNPP's exposure,
excluding CVA risk, as of 31 December 2020 was comprised of: 53% in over-the-counter ("OTC") derivatives,
34% in repurchase transactions and securities lending/borrowing, 11% in listed derivatives and 2% in
contributions to the clearing houses' default funds. The amount of this risk varies over time, depending on
fluctuations in market parameters affecting the potential future value of the covered transactions. In addition, CVA
risk measures the risk of losses related to CVA volatility resulting from fluctuations in credit spreads associated
with the counterparties in respect of which BNPP is subject to risk. The risk-weighted assets subject to
counterparty risk amounted to €41 billion at 31 December 2020, representing 6% of the Group's total risk-
weighted assets.

Securitisation risk in the banking book: Securitisation is a transaction or arrangement by which the credit risk
associated with a liability or set of liabilities is subdivided into tranches. Any commitment made by BNPP under
a securitisation structure (including derivatives and liquidity lines) is considered to be a securitisation. The bulk
of BNPP's commitments are in the prudential banking portfolio. Securitised exposures are essentially those
generated by BNPP. The securitisation positions held or acquired by BNPP may also be categorized by its role:
of the positions as at 31 December 2020, BNPP was originator of 52%, was sponsor of 34% and was investor of
14%. The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €14 billion at 31 December 2020 for BNPP,
or 2% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

1.1 A substantial increase in new provisions or a shortfall in the level of previously recorded provisions
exposed to credit risk and counterparty risk could adversely affect BNPP's results of operations and
financial condition.

Credit risk and counterparty risk impact BNPP's consolidated financial statements when a customer or
counterparty is unable to honour its obligations and when the book value of these obligations in BNPP's
records is positive. The customer or counterparty may be a bank, a financial institution, an industrial or
commercial enterprise, a government or a government entity, an investment fund, or a natural person. If
the level of irrecoverable or doubtful loans (Stage 3) increases or provisions on performing loans (Stages
1 and 2) increase in response to a deterioration in economic conditions or other factors, BNPP’s
profitability may be affected.

As a result, in connection with its lending activities, BNPP regularly establishes provisions, which are
recorded on its income statement in the line item Cost of Risk. These provisions amounted to €5.717
billion at 31 December 2020, representing 66 basis points of outstanding customer loans (compared with
39 basis points at 31 December 2019). The significant increase is the result of taking into account the
economic consequences of the implementation of the health crisis. The provisioning of performing loans
(stages 1 and 2) increased significantly by €1.4 billion as of 31 December 2020, compared to 31
December 2019, and is an example of the materialisation of this risk.
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1.2

BNPP's overall level of provisions is based on its assessment of prior loss experience, the volume and
type of lending being conducted, industry standards, past due loans, economic conditions and other
factors related to the recoverability of various loans or statistical analysis based on scenarios applicable
to asset classes.

Although BNPP seeks to establish an appropriate level of provisions, its lending businesses may have to
increase their provisions for loan losses or sound receivables substantially in the future as a result of
deteriorating economic conditions or other causes. Any significant increase in provisions for loan losses
or a significant change in BNPP's estimate of the risk of loss inherent in its portfolio of non impaired
loans, as well as the occurrence of loan losses in excess of the related provisions, could have a material
adverse effect on BNPP's results of operations and financial condition.

For reference, as at 31 December 2020, the ratio of doubtful loans to total loans outstanding was 2.1%
and the coverage ratio of these loans (net of guarantees received) by provisions was 71.5%, compared to
2.2% and 74%, respectively, as at 31 December 2019.

While BNPP seeks to reduce its exposure to credit risk and counterparty risk by using risk mitigation
techniques such as collateralization, obtaining guarantees, entering into credit derivatives and entering
into netting agreements, it cannot be certain that these techniques will be effective to offset losses
resulting from counterparty defaults that are covered by these techniques. Moreover, BNPP is also
exposed to the risk of default by the party providing the credit risk coverage (such as a counterparty in a
derivative or a loan insurance contract) or to the risk of loss of value of any collateral. In addition, only
a portion of BNPP's overall credit risk and counterparty risk is covered by these techniques. Accordingly,
BNPP has very significant exposure to these risks.

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market participants could adversely affect
BNPP.

BNPP's ability to engage in financing, investment and derivative transactions could be adversely affected
by the soundness of other financial institutions or market participants. Financial institutions are
interrelated as a result of trading, clearing, counterparty, funding or other relationships. As a result,
defaults of one or more states or financial institutions, or even rumours or questions about, one or more
financial institutions, or the financial services industry generally, may lead to market wide liquidity
problems and could lead to further losses or defaults. BNPP has exposure to many counterparties in the
financial industry, directly and indirectly, including clearing houses, brokers and dealers, commercial
banks, investment banks, mutual and alternative investment funds, and other institutional clients with
which it regularly executes transactions. BNPP may also be exposed to risks related to the increasing
involvement in the financial sector of players and the introduction of new types of transactions subject
to little or no regulation (e.g., unregulated funds, trading venues or crowdfunding platforms). Credit and
counterparty risks could be exacerbated if the collateral held by BNPP cannot be realized or is liquidated
at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of the loan or derivative exposure due to BNPP or in
case of a failure of a significant financial market participant such as a central counterparty.

For reference, counterparty risk exposure related to financial institutions was €25 billion at 31 December
2020, or 12% of BNPP's total counterparty risk exposure, and counterparty risk exposure related to
clearing houses was €42 billion, or 19% of BNPP's total counterparty risk exposure.

In addition, fraud or misconduct by financial market participants can have a material adverse effect on
financial institutions due in particular to the interrelated nature of the financial markets. An example is
the fraud perpetrated by Bernard Madoff that came to light in 2008, as a result of which numerous
financial institutions globally, including BNPP, announced losses or exposure to losses in substantial
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amounts. BNPP remains the subject of various claims in connection with the Madoff matter; see Note
7.b "Contingent liabilities: legal proceedings and arbitration" to the consolidated financial statements for
the period ended 31 December 2020, which are set out in the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English).

Losses resulting from the risks summarised above could materially and adversely affect BNPP's results
of operations.

2. Operational Risk

BNPP's operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from failed or inadequate internal processes (particularly those
involving personnel and information systems) or external events, whether deliberate, accidental or natural (floods,
fires, earthquakes, terrorist attacks, etc.). BNPP's operational risks cover fraud, human resources risks, legal and
reputational risks, non-compliance risks, tax risks, information systems risks, risk of providing inadequate
financial services (conduct risk), risk of failure of operational processes including credit processes, or from the
use of a model (model risk), as well as potential financial consequences related to reputation risk management.
From 2012-2020, BNPP's main type of incidents involving operational risk were in "Clients, products and business
practices", which represents 62% of the total financial impact, largely as a result of BNPP's agreement with US
authorities regarding its review of certain dollar transactions concluded in June 2014. The next largest category
of incident for BNPP in operational risk was in "Execution, delivery and process management”, accounting for
17% of the financial impact. Between 2012 and 2020, other types of risk in operational risk consisted of external
fraud (14%), business disruption and systems failure (3%), employment practices and workplace safety (2%),
internal fraud (1%) and damage to physical assets (1%).

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €71 billion at 31 December 2020, or 10% of the
total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

2.1 BNPP's risk management policies, procedures and methods may leave it exposed to unidentified or
unanticipated risks, which could lead to material losses.

BNPP has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies, procedures and
assessment methods and intends to continue to do so in the future. Nonetheless, BNPP's risk management
techniques and strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposure in all economic and
market environments or against all types of risk, particularly risks that BNPP may have failed to identify
or anticipate. BNPP's ability to assess the creditworthiness of its customers or to estimate the values of
its assets may be impaired if, as a result of market turmoil such as that experienced in recent years, the
models and approaches it uses become less predictive of future behaviour, valuations, assumptions or
estimates. Some of BNPP's qualitative tools and metrics for managing risk are based on its use of
observed historical market behaviour. BNPP applies statistical and other tools to these observations to
arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures. The process BNPP uses to estimate losses inherent in its
credit exposure or estimate the value of certain assets requires difficult, subjective, and complex
judgments, including forecasts of economic conditions and how these economic predictions might impair
the ability of its borrowers to repay their loans or impact the value of assets, which may, during periods
of market disruption, be incapable of accurate estimation and, in turn, impact the reliability of the process.
These tools and metrics may fail to predict future risk exposures, e.g., if BNPP does not anticipate or
correctly evaluate certain factors in its statistical models, or upon the occurrence of an event deemed
extremely unlikely by the tools and metrics. This would limit BNPP's ability to manage its risks. BNPP's
losses could therefore be significantly greater than the historical measures indicate. In addition, BNPP's
quantified modelling does not take all risks into account. Its more qualitative approach to managing
certain risks could prove insufficient, exposing it to material unanticipated losses.
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An interruption in or a breach of BNPP's information systems may cause substantial losses of client or
customer information, damage to BNPP's reputation and result in financial losses.

As with most other banks, BNPP relies heavily on communications and information systems to conduct
its business. This dependency has increased with the spread of mobile and online banking services, and
the development of cloud computing. Any failure or interruption or breach in security of these systems
could result in failures or interruptions in BNPP's customer relationship management, general ledger,
deposit, servicing and/or loan organization systems or could cause BNPP to incur significant costs in
recovering and verifying lost data. BNPP cannot provide assurances that such failures or interruptions
will not occur or, if they do occur, that they will be adequately addressed.

In addition, BNPP is subject to cybersecurity risk, or risk caused by a malicious and/or fraudulent act,
committed virtually, with the intention of manipulating information (confidential data, bank/insurance,
technical or strategic), processes and users, in order to cause material losses to BNPP's subsidiaries,
employees, partners and clients and/or for the purpose of extortion (ransomware). An increasing humber
of companies (including financial institutions) have in recent years experienced intrusion attempts or
even breaches of their information technology security, some of which have involved sophisticated and
highly targeted attacks on their computer networks. Because the techniques used to obtain unauthorized
access, disable or degrade service, steal confidential data or sabotage information systems have become
more sophisticated, change frequently and often are not recognized until launched against a target, BNPP
and its third party service providers may be unable to anticipate these techniques or to implement in a
timely manner effective and efficient countermeasures.

Any failures of or interruptions in BNPP's information systems or those of its providers and any
subsequent disclosure of confidential information related to any client, counterparty or employee of
BNPP (or any other person) or any intrusion or attack against its communication system could cause
significant losses and have an adverse effect on BNPP's reputation, financial condition and results of
operations.

Regulatory authorities now consider cybersecurity as a growing systemic risk for the financial sector.
They have stressed the need for financial institutions to improve their resilience to cyber-attacks by
strengthening internal 1T monitoring and control procedures. A successful cyber-attack could therefore
expose BNPP to a regulatory fine, especially should any personal data from customers be lost.

Moreover, BNPP is exposed to the risk of operational failure or interruption of a clearing agent, foreign
markets, clearing houses, custodian banks or any other financial intermediary or external service provider
used by BNPP to execute or facilitate financial transactions. Due to its increased interaction with clients,
BNPP is also exposed to the risk of operational malfunction of the latter's information systems. BNPP's
communications and data systems and those of its clients, service providers and counterparties may also
be subject to malfunctions or interruptions as a result of cyber-crime or cyber-terrorism. BNPP cannot
guarantee that these malfunctions or interruptions in its own systems or those of other parties will not
occur or that in the event of a cyberattack, these malfunctions or interruptions will be adequately
resolved. These operational malfunctions or interruptions accounted for an average of 3% of operational
risk losses over the 2012-2020 period.

Reputational risk could weigh on BNPP's financial strength and diminish the confidence of clients and
counterparties in it.

Considering the highly competitive environment in the financial services industry, a reputation for
financial strength and integrity is critical to BNPP's ability to attract and retain customers. BNPP's
reputation could be harmed if it cannot adequately promote and market its products and services. BNPP's
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reputation could also be damaged if, as it increases its client base and the scale of its businesses, BNPP's
comprehensive procedures and controls dealing with conflicts of interest fail, or appear to fail, to address
them properly. At the same time, BNPP's reputation could be damaged by employee misconduct, fraud
or misconduct by financial industry participants to which BNPP is exposed, a decline in, a restatement
of, or corrections to, its financial results, as well as any adverse legal or regulatory action, such as the
settlement BNPP entered into with the U.S. authorities in 2014 for violations of U.S. laws and regulations
regarding economic sanctions. The loss of business that could result from damage to BNPP's reputation
could have an adverse effect on its results of operations and financial position.

3. Market risk

BNPP's market risk is the risk of loss of value caused by an unfavourable trend in prices or market parameters.
The parameters affecting BNPP's market risk include, but are not limited to, exchange rates, prices of securities
and commodities (whether the price is directly quoted or obtained by reference to a comparable asset), the price
of derivatives on an established market and all benchmarks that can be derived from market quotations such as
interest rates, credit spreads, volatility or implicit correlations or other similar parameters.

BNPP is exposed to market risk mainly through trading activities carried out by the business lines of its Corporate
& Institutional Banking ("CIB™) operating division, primarily in Global Markets, which represented 15.4% of
BNPP's revenue in 2020. BNPP’s trading activities are directly linked to economic relations with clients of these
business lines, or indirectly as part of its market making activity.

In addition, the market risk relating to BNPP's banking activities covers its interest rate and foreign exchange rate
risk in connection with its activities as a banking intermediary. The "operating” foreign exchange risk exposure
relates to net earnings generated by activities conducted in currencies other than the functional currency of the
entity concerned. The "structural” foreign exchange risk position of an entity relates to investments in currencies
other than the functional currency. In measuring interest rate risk, BNPP defines the concepts of standard rate risk
and structural rate risk as the following: the standard rate risk corresponds to the general case, namely when it is
possible to define the most appropriate hedging strategy for a given transaction, and the structural rate risk is the
interest rate risk for equity and non-interest-bearing current accounts.

BNP Paribas' market risk based on its activities is measured by Value at Risk ("VaR"), or the maximum potential
loss over one year, at a 99.9% confidence level to calculate regulatory capital requirements, and various other
market indicators (stressed VaR, Incremental Risk Charge, Comprehensive Risk Measure for credit correlation
portfolio) as well as by stress tests and sensitivity analysis compared with market limits.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €25 billion at 31 December 2020, or nearly 4%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

3.1 BNPP may incur significant losses on its trading and investment activities due to market fluctuations and
volatility.

BNPP maintains trading and investment positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets
and in unlisted securities, real estate and other asset classes, including through derivative contracts. These
positions could be adversely affected by extreme volatility in these markets, i.e., the degree to which
prices fluctuate over a particular period in a particular market, regardless of market levels. Moreover,
volatility trends that prove substantially different from BNPP's expectations may lead to losses relating
to a broad range of other products that BNPP uses, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options
and structured products.

To the extent that BNPP owns assets, or has net long positions, in any of those markets, a market
downturn could result in losses from a decline in the value of its positions. Conversely, to the extent that
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BNPP has sold assets that it does not own, or has net short positions in any of those markets, a market
upturn could, in spite of the existing limitation of risks and control systems, expose BNPP to potentially
substantial losses as it attempts to cover its net short positions by acquiring assets in a rising market.
BNPP may from time to time hold a long position in one asset and a short position in another, in order
to hedge transactions with clients and/or from which it expects to gain based on changes in the relative
value of the two assets. If, however, the relative value of the two assets changes in a direction or manner
that BNPP did not anticipate or against which it is not hedged, it might realise a loss on those paired
positions. Such losses, if significant, could adversely affect BNPP's results and financial condition. In
addition, BNPP's hedging strategies may not be suitable for certain market conditions.

If any of the variety of instruments and strategies that the Group uses to hedge its exposure to various
types of risk in its businesses is not effective, BNPP may incur losses. Many of its strategies are based
on historical trading patterns and correlations. For example, if BNPP holds a long position in an asset, it
may hedge that position by taking a short position in another asset where the short position has
historically moved in a direction that would offset a change in the value of the long position. However,
the hedge may only be partial, or the strategies used may not protect against all future risks or may not
be fully effective in mitigating BNPP’s risk exposure in all market environments or against all types of
risk in the future. Unexpected market developments may also reduce the effectiveness of BNPP's hedging
strategies, as shown by the losses incurred by BNPP's equity derivatives activities in the first quarter of
2020, due in particular to the market environment. In addition, the manner in which gains and losses
resulting from certain ineffective hedges are recorded may result in additional volatility in BNPP’s
reported earnings.

BNPP uses a VaR model to quantify its exposure to potential losses from market risks, and also performs
stress testing with a view to quantifying its potential exposure in extreme scenarios. However, these
techniques rely on statistical methodologies based on historical observations, which may turn out to be
unreliable predictors of future market conditions. Accordingly, BNPP's exposure to market risk in
extreme scenarios could be greater than the exposures predicted by its quantification techniques.

The Global Markets business line in particular had €24 billion in risk-weighted assets subject to market
risk at 31 December 2020, or 3% of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

BNPP may generate lower revenues from commission and fee-based businesses during market
downturns and declines in market activity.

Commissions represented 22% of BNPP's total revenues in 2020. Financial and economic conditions
affect the number and size of transactions for which BNPP provides securities underwriting, financial
advisory and other investment banking services. These revenues, which include fees from these services,
are directly related to the number and size of the transactions in which BNPP participates and can thus
be significantly affected by economic or financial changes that are unfavourable to its Investment
Banking business and clients. In addition, because the fees that BNPP charges for managing its clients'
portfolios are in many cases based on the value or performance of those portfolios, a market downturn
that reduces the value of its clients' portfolios or increases the amount of withdrawals would reduce the
revenues it receives from its asset management, equity derivatives and private banking businesses.
Independently of market changes, below market performance by BNPP's mutual funds may result in
increased withdrawals and reduced inflows, which would reduce the revenues BNPP receives from its
asset management business.

Adjustments to the carrying value of BNPP's securities and derivatives portfolios and BNPP's own debt
could have an adverse effect on its net income and shareholders' equity.
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The carrying value of BNPP's securities and derivatives portfolios and certain other assets, as well as its
own debt, in its balance sheet is adjusted as of each financial statement date. As at 31 December 2020,
on the assets side of BNPP's balance sheet, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss,
derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes and financial assets at fair value through
shareholders' equity amounted to €689.6 billion, €15.6 billion and €58.2 billion respectively. In the
liabilities column, financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss and derivative financial
instruments used for hedging purposes amounted to €729.5 billion and €13.3 billion, respectively, at 31
December 2020. Most of the adjustments are made on the basis of changes in fair value of BNPP's assets
or debt during an accounting period, with the changes recorded either in the income statement or directly
in shareholders' equity. Changes that are recorded in the income statement, to the extent not offset by
opposite changes in the value of other assets, affect BNPP's consolidated revenues and, as a result, its
net income. All fair value adjustments affect shareholders' equity and, as a result, BNPP's capital
adequacy ratios. The fact that fair value adjustments are recorded in one accounting period does not mean
that further adjustments will not be needed in subsequent periods.

4, Liquidity and funding risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that BNPP will not be able to honour its commitments or unwind or offset a position due
to market conditions or specific factors within a specified period of time and at a reasonable cost. It reflects the
risk of not being able to cope with net cash outflows, including collateral requirements, over short-term to long-
term horizons. The Group's specific risk can be assessed through its short-term liquidity ratio ("Liquidity
Coverage Ratio" or "LCR"), which analyses the hedging of net cash outflows during a thirty-day stress period.
The monthly average in 2020 of the Group's LCR was 154%. The liquidity reserve was €432 billion at the end of
2020.

4.1 BNPP's access to and cost of funding could be adversely affected by a resurgence of financial crises,
worsening economic conditions, rating downgrades, increases in sovereign credit spreads or other
factors.

The financial crisis, the euro zone sovereign debt crisis as well as the general macroeconomic
environment have at times adversely affected the availability and cost of funding for European banks in
recent years. This was due to several factors, including a sharp increase in the perception of bank credit
risk due to exposure to sovereign debt in particular, credit rating downgrades of sovereigns and of banks,
and debt market speculation. Many European banks, including BNPP, at various points experienced
restricted access to wholesale debt markets and to the interbank market, as well as a general increase in
their cost of funding. Accordingly, reliance on direct borrowing from the European Central Bank
("ECB™) at times increased substantially. If such adverse credit market conditions were to reappear in
the event of prolonged stagnation of growth, deflation, resurgence of the financial crisis, another
sovereign debt crisis or new forms of financial crises, factors relating to the financial industry or the
economy in general (including the economic consequences of the health crisis) or to BNPP in particular,
the effect on the liquidity of the European financial sector in general and BNPP in particular could be
materially adverse and have a negative impact on BNPP's results of operations and financial condition.

4.2 Protracted market declines can reduce BNPP's liquidity, making it harder to sell assets and possibly
leading to material losses. Accordingly, BNPP must ensure that its assets and liabilities properly match
in order to avoid exposure to losses.

In some of BNPP's businesses, particularly Global Markets (which represented 15.4% of BNPP's revenue
in 2020) and Asset/Liability Management, protracted market movements, particularly asset price
declines, can reduce the level of activity in the market or reduce market liquidity. These developments
can lead to material losses if BNPP cannot close out deteriorating positions in a timely way. This is
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particularly true for assets that are intrinsically illiquid. Assets that are not traded on stock exchanges or
other public trading markets, such as certain derivative contracts between financial institutions, may have
values that BNPP calculates using models rather than publicly quoted prices. Monitoring the
deterioration of prices of assets like these is difficult and could lead to significant unanticipated losses.

BNPP is exposed to the risk that the maturity, interest rate or currencies of its assets might not match
those of its liabilities. The timing of payments on certain of BNPP's assets is uncertain, and if BNPP
receives lower revenues than expected at a given time, it might require additional market funding in order
to meet its obligations on its liabilities. While BNPP imposes strict limits on the gaps between its assets
and its liabilities as part of its risk management procedures, it cannot be certain that these limits will be
fully effective to eliminate potential losses arising from asset and liability mismatches.

Any downgrade of BNPP's credit ratings could weigh heavily on the profitability of BNPP.

Credit ratings have a significant impact on BNPP's liquidity. On 23 April 2020, Standard & Poor's
confirmed the long-term rating of BNPP's deposits and senior preferred debt rating as A+, and confirmed
its short-term rating as A-1, and revised the outlook from stable to negative. On 12 October 2020, Fitch
maintained its long-term deposits and senior preferred debt rating for BNPP, at AA- and F1+ and
withdrew its Negative Rating Watch and revised its outlook to negative. On 4 December 2020, Moody's
confirmed its long-term deposits and senior preferred debt rating as Aa3, and confirmed its short-term
rating as P-1, with a stable outlook. On 10 July 2020, DBRS confirmed BNPP's senior preferred debt
rating as AA (low), as well as its short-term rating as R-1(middle) with a stable outlook. A downgrade
in BNPP's credit rating could affect the liquidity and competitive position of BNPP. It could also increase
BNPP's borrowing costs, limit access to the capital markets or trigger additional obligations under its
covered bonds or under certain bilateral provisions in some trading, derivative or collateralised financing
contacts.

In addition, BNPP's cost of obtaining long term unsecured funding from market investors is also directly
related to its credit spreads, which in turn depend to a certain extent on its credit ratings. Increases in
credit spreads can significantly increase BNPP's cost of funding. Changes in credit spreads are
continuous, market driven, and subject at times to unpredictable and highly volatile movements. Credit
spreads are also influenced by market perceptions of BNPP's creditworthiness. Furthermore, credit
spreads may be influenced by movements in the cost to purchasers of credit default swaps referenced to
BNPP's debt obligations, which are influenced both by the credit quality of those obligations, and by a
number of market factors that are beyond the control of BNPP.

Risks related to the macroeconomic and market environment

Adverse economic and financial conditions have in the past had and may in the future have an impact
on BNPP and the markets in which it operates.

BNPP's business is sensitive to changes in the financial markets and more generally to economic
conditions in France (28% of BNPP's revenues at 31 December 2020), other countries in Europe (47%
of BNPP's revenues at 31 December 2020) and the rest of the world (25% of BNPP's revenues at 31
December 2020). The sharp deterioration in economic conditions in BNPP's principal geographic
markets as a result of the health crisis weighed on its results in 2020. The deterioration in economic
conditions in the markets where BNPP operates and in the economic environment has had in 2020, and
could in the future have, some or all of the following impacts:

adverse economic conditions affect the business and operations of BNPP's customers, reducing credit
demand and trading volume and resulting in an increased rate of default on loans and other receivables,
in part as a result of the deterioration of the financial capacity of companies and households;
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a decline in market prices of bonds, equities and commodities could affect the businesses of BNPP,
including in particular trading, investment banking and asset management revenues;

macroeconomic policies adopted in response to actual or anticipated economic conditions can have
unintended effects, and are likely to impact market parameters such as interest rates and foreign exchange
rates, which in turn can affect BNPP’s businesses that are most exposed to market risk;

perceived favourable economic conditions generally or in specific business sectors can result in asset
price bubbles, which could in turn exacerbate the impact of corrections when conditions become less
favourable;

a significant economic disruption (such as the global financial crisis of 2008, the European sovereign
debt crisis of 2011 or the COVID-19 pandemic since 2020) can have a severe impact on all of BNPP's
activities, particularly if the disruption is characterized by an absence of market liquidity that makes it
difficult to sell certain categories of assets at their estimated market value or at all and these disruptions,
including those related to the measures taken in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, could also lead to
a decline in transaction commissions and consumer loans; and

a significant deterioration of market and economic conditions resulting from, among other things,
adverse political and geopolitical events such as natural disasters, geopolitical tensions (in particular
protectionist measures), health risks such as the COVID-19 health crisis, the fear or recurrence of new
epidemics or pandemics, acts of terrorism, societal unrest, cyber attacks, military conflicts or threats
thereof and related risks can affect the operating environment for BNPP episodically or for extended
periods.

In 2021, economies and financial markets will be particularly sensitive to a number of factors, including
the evolution of the COVID-19 pandemic and its economic consequences, in particular, the increase in
sovereign and corporate debt that was often high before the health crisis and has been aggravated by it,
and the gradual and uneven recovery that is expected following the recession in the first half of 2020.
The risks associated with the COVID-19 pandemic, in particular, are described in risk factor 7.1
"Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their
economic consequences may adversely affect the Group's business, operations, results and financial
condition™ below.

In addition, tensions around international trade (protectionist measures, such as customs duties, in
addition to the restrictions adopted in response to the COVID-19 pandemic), geopolitical tensions,
political risks directly affecting Europe (including the consequences of the implementation of Brexit), a
recessionary economic environment, the volatility in commaodity prices (itself affected by the above-
mentioned factors) and, as discussed below, the evolution of monetary policy are factors that may impact
the economy and financial markets in the coming months or years.

More generally, the volatility of financial markets could adversely affect BNPP's trading and investment
positions in the debt, currency, commodity and equity markets, as well as its positions in other
investments. For reference, Global Markets accounted for 15.4% of BNPP's revenues in 2020. Severe
market disruptions and extreme market volatility have occurred often in recent years and may occur again
in the future, which could result in significant losses for BNPP. Such losses may extend to a broad range
of trading and hedging products, including swaps, forward and future contracts, options and structured
products. The volatility of financial markets makes it difficult to predict trends and implement effective
trading strategies.

It is difficult to predict when economic or market downturns or other market disruptions will occur, and
which markets will be most significantly impacted. If economic or market conditions in France or
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elsewhere in Europe, or global markets more generally, were to deteriorate, not improve as quickly as
expected or become more volatile, BNPP's operations could be disrupted, and its business, results of
operations and financial condition could be adversely affected.

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect BNPP’s revenues or profitability. The prolonged
low interest rate environment carries inherent systemic risks, which could impact BNPP’s income or
profitability, and any exit from such environment would also carry risks.

The net interest income recorded by BNPP during any given period significantly affects its overall
revenues and profitability for that period. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors beyond
BNPP's control, such as the rate of inflation, country- specific monetary policies and certain decisions
concerning regulatory capital. Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on
interest-earning assets differently than the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities. Any adverse
change in the yield curve could cause a decline in net interest income generated by BNPP's lending
activities. In addition, increases in the interest rates at which BNPP's short-term funding is available and
maturity mismatches may adversely affect its profitability.

Since the 2008-2009 financial crisis, global markets have been characterized by an extended period of
low interest rates. This low interest rate environment has weighed significantly on banks' profitability,
including that of BNPP, for a number of years. The relative impact on banks depends, in particular, on
the proportion of their revenues represented by net interest income; this proportion was 48% for BNPP
in 2020 (see Note 2.a "Net interest income" to the consolidated financial statements for the period ended
31 December 2020, which are set out in the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)).
The situation worsened in 2019 and 2020, in particular with the emergence and increasing prevalence of
loans at negative interest rates, including placements by European banks with the ECB. If the low, and
even negative, interest rate environment continues, as a result, for example, of continued monetary
loosening, which was increased to support the economy in the context of the coronavirus pandemic
(COVID-19), low growth or other factors, BNPP's profitability could be impacted or even decline. In
this respect, central banks have increased their monetary support in the face of the recession caused by
the health crisis. The ECB has in particular extended its targeted longer-term financing operations
("TLTROSs") until June 2022, under more favourable conditions, and maintained its quantitative easing
policy, which was reactivated in September 2019. In addition, given the change in the economic
environment, monetary policies may not be sufficient to offset the negative impacts of the COVID-19
pandemic or other crises that may emerge.

During periods of low interest rates, interest rate spreads tend to tighten, and BNPP may be unable to
lower interest rates on deposits sufficiently to offset reduced income from lending at lower interest rates.
Net interest income amounted to €21,127 million in 2019 and €21,312 million in 2020, respectively. On
an indicative basis, over one-, two- and three-year timeframes, the sensitivity of revenues at 31 December
2020 to a parallel, instantaneous and definitive increase in market rates of +50 basis points (+0.5%)
across all currencies had an impact of +€125 million, +€309 million and +€600 million, respectively, or
+0.3%, +0.7% and +1.4% of BNPP's net banking income. The negative interest rate environment in
which banks are charged for cash deposited with central banks, whereas banks typically do not charge
clients for deposits, weighs significantly on banks' margins. In addition, BNPP has been facing and may
continue to face an increase in early repayment and refinancing of mortgages and other fixed rate
consumer and corporate loans as clients take advantage of lower borrowing costs. This, along with the
issuance of new loans at the low prevailing market interest rates, has resulted and may continue to result
in a decrease in the average interest rate of BNPP's portfolio of loans thereby causing a decline in its net
interest income from lending activities. Moreover, an environment of persistently low interest rates can
also have the effect of flattening the yield curve in the market more generally, which could reduce the
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premium generated by BNPP from its funding activities. A flattening yield curve can also influence
financial institutions to engage in riskier activities in an effort to earn the desired level of returns, which
can increase overall market risk and volatility. Low interest rates may also affect the profitability and
even the solvency of the insurance activities of French banks, including BNPP, particularly due to the
prevalence in the market of life insurance contracts backed by euro-denominated funds, which may not
be able to generate sufficient returns to be competitive with other investment products. Low interest rates
may also adversely affect commissions charged by BNPP's asset management subsidiaries on money
market and other fixed income products. A reduction in credit spreads and decline in retail banking
income resulting from lower portfolio interest rates may adversely affect the profitability of BNPP's retail
banking operations.

However, the end of a period of prolonged low interest rates, in particular due to tightening monetary
policy, itself triggered in particular by an economic recovery or by inflation at rates higher than expected
by central banks (which cannot be ruled out in the medium term) would also carry risks. If market interest
rates were to rise, a portfolio featuring significant amounts of lower interest loans and fixed income assets
would be expected to decline in value. If BNPP's hedging strategies are ineffective or provide only a
partial hedge against such a change in value, BNPP could incur losses. Any sharper or more rapid than
expected tightening could have a negative impact on the economic recovery. On the lending side, it could
in particular cause stress in loan and bond portfolios, possibly leading to an increase in non-performing
exposures and defaults. More generally, the ending of accommodative monetary policies (including
liquidity infusions from central bank asset purchases) may lead to severe corrections in certain markets
or asset classes (e.g., non-investment grade corporate and sovereign borrowers, certain sectors of equities
and real estate) that particularly benefitted (including from very low risk premia as compared to historical
averages) from the prolonged low interest rate and high liquidity environment, and such corrections could
potentially be contagious to financial markets generally, including through substantially increased
volatility.

Given the global scope of its activities, BNPP may be vulnerable to risk in certain countries where it
operates and may be vulnerable to political, macroeconomic or financial changes in the countries and
regions where it operates.

BNPP is subject to country risk, meaning the risk that economic, financial, political or social conditions
in a given foreign country in which it operates could affect its business and results. BNPP monitors
country risk and takes it into account in the fair value adjustments and cost of risk recorded in its financial
statements. However, a significant change in political or macroeconomic environments, particularly as
evidenced by the coronavirus crisis (COVID-19), the severity of which varies from one country or
geographic area to another, may require it to record additional charges or to incur losses beyond the
amounts previously written down in its financial statements. In addition, factors specific to a country or
region in which BNPP operates could make it difficult for it to carry out its business and lead to losses
or impairment of assets.

At 31 December 2020, BNPP’s loan portfolio consisted of receivables from borrowers located in France
(34%), Belgium and Luxembourg (15%), Italy (10%), other European countries (19%), North America
(12%), Asia (5%) and the rest of the world (5%). Adverse conditions that particularly affect these
countries and regions would have a particularly significant impact on BNPP. In addition, BNPP has
significant exposures in countries outside the OECD, which are subject to risks that include political
instability, unpredictable regulation and taxation, expropriation and other risks that are less present in
more developed economies.
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Regulatory Risks

Laws and regulations adopted in recent years, particularly in response to the global financial crisis, as
well as new legislative proposals, may materially impact BNPP and the financial and economic
environment in which it operates.

Laws and regulations have been enacted in the past few years, in particular in France, Europe and the
United States, with a view to introducing a number of changes, some permanent, in the financial
environment. The impact of the measures has changed substantially the environment in which BNPP and
other financial institutions operate.

The measures that have been adopted include:

more stringent capital and liquidity requirements (particularly for global systemically important banks
such as BNPP), as well as changes to the risk-weighting methodologies and the methods of using internal
models that could lead to increased capital requirements;

restrictions on certain types of activities considered as speculative undertaken by commercial banks that
are prohibited or need to be ring fenced in subsidiaries (particularly proprietary trading) and are subject
to prudential requirements and autonomous funding;

prohibitions or restrictions on fees for certain types of financial products or activities;

enhanced recovery and resolution regimes, in particular the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive of
15 May 2014 (the "BRRD™), as amended from time to time which strengthens powers to prevent and
resolve banking crises in order to ensure that losses are borne largely by the creditors and shareholders
of the banks and in order to keep the costs incurred by taxpayers to a minimum;

the establishment of the national resolution funds by the BRRD and the creation of the Single Resolution
Board (the "SRB") by the European Parliament and Council of the European Union in a resolution dated
15 July 2014 (the "SRM Regulation™), as amended from time to time, which can initiate resolution
proceedings for banking institutions such as BNPP, and the Single Resolution Fund (the "SRF"), the
financing of which by BNPP (up to its annual contribution) can be significant;

the establishment of national deposit guarantee schemes and a proposed European deposit guarantee
scheme or deposit insurance which will gradually cover all or part of the guarantee schemes of
participating countries;

increased internal control and reporting requirements with respect to certain activities;
greater powers granted to the relevant authorities to combat money laundering and terrorism financing;

more stringent governance and conduct of business rules and restrictions and increased taxes on
employee compensation over specified levels;

measures to improve the transparency, efficiency and integrity of financial markets and in particular the
regulation of high frequency trading, more extensive market abuse regulations, increased regulation of
certain types of financial products including mandatory reporting of derivative and securities financing
transactions, requirements either to mandatorily clear, or otherwise mitigate risks in relation to, OTC
derivative transactions (including through posting of collateral in respect of non-centrally cleared
derivatives);

the taxation of financial transactions;
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. enhanced protection of personal data and cybersecurity requirements;
. enhanced disclosure requirements, for instance in the area of sustainable finance;

. increased vigilance of supervisory authorities with respect to climate risks and the emergence of new
expectations regarding their inclusion in risk measurement and management systems, which could lead
to new capital requirements; and

o strengthening the powers of supervisory bodies, such as the French Prudential Supervision and
Resolution Authority (the "ACPR") and the creation of new authorities, including the adoption of the
Single Resolution Mechanism (the "SRM™) in October 2013, which placed BNPP under the direct
supervision of the ECB as of November 2014.

These measures may have a significant adverse impact. For example, the introduction of a required contribution
to the SRF resulted in a substantial additional expense for BNPP (BNPP made a €0.8 billion contribution to the
SRF in 2020).

Measures relating to the banking sector could be further amended, expanded or strengthened. Moreover,
additional measures could be adopted in other areas. It is impossible to predict what additional measures will be
adopted and, given the complexity and continuing uncertainty of a certain number of these measures, to determine
their impact on BNPP. The effect of these measures, whether already adopted or that may be adopted in the future,
has been and could continue to be a decrease in BNPP's ability to allocate its capital and capital resources to
financing, limit its ability to diversify risks, reduce the availability of certain financing and liquidity resources,
increase the cost of financing, increase the cost of compliance, increase the cost or reduce the demand for the
products and services offered by BNPP, require BNPP to proceed with internal reorganisations, structural changes
or reallocations, affect the ability of BNPP to carry on certain activities or to attract and/or retain talent and, more
generally, affect its competitiveness and profitability, which could have an impact on its profitability, financial
condition and operating results. For example, the European Banking Authority estimated, in a report published on
15 December 2020, that the implementation of the final Basel 111 agreement adopted by the Group of Central
Bank Governors and Heads of Supervision ("GHOS") on 7 December 2017 may result, according to the approach
adopted to transcribe the final Basel 111 agreement into European law, in an increase of the minimum required
amount of Tier 1 capital between 13.1% and 18.5% with respect to the December 2019 baseline, reflecting, for
the 99 banks in the sample, a shortfall in total capital between €33 billion and €52 billion, including between €17
billion and €30 billion of common equity Tier 1. To this end, the European Commission is due to adopt draft texts
in the first quarter of 2021, which should come into force by 1 January 2023 (i.e. one year after the date initially
planned due to the COVID-19 pandemic).

BNPP is subject to extensive and evolving regulatory regimes in the jurisdictions in which it operates.

BNPP faces the risk of changes in legislation or regulation in all of the countries in which it operates, including,
but not limited to, the following:

) monetary, liquidity, interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities;

. changes in government or regulatory policy that may significantly influence investor decisions, in
particular in the markets in which BNPP operates;

. changes in regulatory requirements applicable to the financial industry, such as rules relating to
applicable governance, remunerations, capital adequacy and liquidity frameworks, restrictions on
activities considered as speculative and recovery and resolution frameworks;
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changes in securities regulations as well as in financial reporting, disclosure and market abuse
regulations;

changes in the regulation of certain types of transactions and investments, such as derivatives and
securities financing transactions and money market funds;

changes in the regulation of market infrastructures, such as trading venues, central counterparties, central
securities depositories, and payment and settlement systems;

changes in the regulation of payment services, crowdfunding and fintech;

changes in the regulation of protection of personal data and cyber security;

changes in tax legislation or the application thereof;

changes in accounting norms;

changes in rules and procedures relating to internal controls, risk management and compliance; and

expropriation, nationalisation, price controls, exchange controls, confiscation of assets and changes in
legislation relating to foreign ownership.

These changes, the scope and implications of which are highly unpredictable, could substantially affect
BNPP and have an adverse effect on its business, financial condition and results of operations. Some
reforms not aimed specifically at financial institutions, such as measures relating to the funds industry or
promoting technological innovation (such as open data projects), could facilitate the entry of new players
in the financial services sector or otherwise affect BNPP's business model, competitiveness and
profitability, which could in turn affect its financial condition and results of operations.

BNPP may incur substantial fines and other administrative and criminal penalties for non-compliance
with applicable laws and regulations, and may also incur losses in related (or unrelated) litigation with
private parties.

BNPP is exposed to regulatory compliance risk, i.e. the failure to comply fully with the laws, regulations,
codes of conduct, professional norms or recommendations applicable to the financial services industry.
This risk is exacerbated by the adoption by different countries of multiple and occasionally diverging
and even conflicting legal or regulatory requirements. Besides damage to BNPP's reputation and private
rights of action (including class actions), non-compliance could lead to material legal proceedings, fines
and expenses (including fines and expenses in excess of recorded provisions), public reprimand, enforced
suspension of operations or, in extreme cases, withdrawal by the authorities of operating licenses. This
risk is further exacerbated by continuously increasing regulatory scrutiny of financial institutions, as well
as substantial increases in the quantum of applicable fines and penalties. Moreover, litigation by private
parties against financial institutions has substantially increased in recent years. Accordingly, BNPP faces
significant legal risk in its operations, and the volume and amount of damages claimed in litigation,
regulatory proceedings and other adversarial proceedings against financial services firms have
substantially increased in recent years and may increase further. BNPP may record provisions in this
respect as indicated in Note 4.p "Provisions for contingencies and charges" to the consolidated financial
statements for the period ended 31 December 2020, which are set out in the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English).

In this respect, on 30 June 2014 BNPP entered into a series of agreements with, and was the subject of
several orders issued by, U.S. federal and New York state government agencies and regulatory authorities
in settlement of investigations into violations of U.S. laws and regulations regarding economic sanctions.
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The fines and penalties imposed on BNPP as part of this settlement included, among other things, the
payment of monetary penalties amounting in the aggregate to $8.97 billion (€6.6 billion) and guilty pleas
by BNP Paribas S.A., the parent company of BNPP, to charges of having violated U.S. federal criminal
law and New York State criminal law. Following this settlement, BNPP remains subject to increased
scrutiny by regulatory authorities (including via the presence of an independent consultant within BNPP)
who are monitoring its compliance with a remediation plan agreed with them.

BNPP is currently involved in various litigations and investigations as summarised in Note 7.b
"Contingent liabilities: legal proceedings and arbitration" to the consolidated financial statements for the
period ended 31 December 2020, which are set out in the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English). It may become involved in further such matters at any point. No assurance can be given
that an adverse outcome in one or more of such matters would not have a material adverse effect on
BNPP's operating results for any particular period.

BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to a
resolution proceeding: holders of securities of BNPP could suffer losses as a result.

The BRRD, the SRM Regulation and the Ordinance of 20 August 2015, each as amended from time to
time confer upon the ACPR or the SRB the power to commence resolution proceedings for a banking
institution, such as BNPP, with a view to ensuring the continuity of critical functions, avoiding the risks
of contagion and recapitalising or restoring the viability of the institution. These powers are to be
implemented so that, subject to certain exceptions, losses are borne first by shareholders, then by holders
of additional capital instruments qualifying as tier 1 and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), then by the
holders of non-preferred senior debt and finally by the holders of senior preferred debt, all in accordance
with the order of their claims in normal insolvency proceedings. For reference, BNPP's medium- to long-
term wholesale financing at 31 December 2020 consisted of the following: €11 billion of hybrid Tier 1
debt, €21 billion of Tier 2 subordinated debt, €55 billion of senior unsecured non-preferred debt, €73
billion of senior unsecured preferred debt and €22 billion of senior secured debt.

Resolution authorities have broad powers to implement resolution measures with respect to institutions
and groups subject to resolution proceedings, which may include (without limitation): the total or partial
sale of the institution's business to a third party or a bridge institution, the separation of assets, the
replacement or substitution of the institution as obligor in respect of debt instruments, the full or partial
write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital instruments through the issuance of new equity,
the full or partial write down or conversion into equity of debt instruments, modifications to the terms of
debt instruments (including altering the maturity and/or the amount of interest payable and/or imposing
a temporary suspension on payments), discontinuing the listing and admission to trading of financial
instruments, the dismissal of managers or the appointment of a special manager (administrateur spécial).

Certain powers, including the full or partial write down of capital instruments, the dilution of capital
instruments through the issuance of new equity, the full or partial write down or conversion into equity
of additional capital instruments qualifying as tier 1 and tier 2 (such as subordinated bonds), can also be
exercised as a precautionary measure, outside of resolution proceedings and/or pursuant to the European
Commission's State Aid framework if the institution requires exceptional public financial support.

The implementation of these tools and powers with respect to BNPP may result in significant structural
changes to BNPP (including as a result of asset or business sales or the creation of bridge institutions)
and in a partial or total write down, modification or variation of claims of shareholders and creditors.
Such powers may also result, after any transfer of all or part of BNPP's business or separation of any of
its assets, in the holders of securities (even in the absence of any such write down or conversion) being
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left as the creditors of BNPP whose remaining business or assets are insufficient to support the claims of
all or any of the creditors of BNPP.

Risks related to BNPP's growth in its current environment

Epidemics and pandemics, including the ongoing coronavirus (COVID-19) pandemic and their economic
consequences may adversely affect BNPP's business, operations, results and financial condition.

A novel strain of the coronavirus (COVID-19) appeared in December 2019 and has since become a global
pandemic, with a high concentration of cases in several countries in which the Group operates. This
pandemic has had, and is expected to continue to have, a significant adverse impact on economies and
financial markets worldwide. In particular, the severe economic downturns in many regions as well as
the reduction in global trade and commerce more generally have had and are likely to continue to have
negative effects on global economic conditions as global production, investment, supply chains and/or
consumer spending have been and will continue to be affected.

In response to the adverse economic and market consequences of the pandemic, various governments
and central banks took measures to support the economy (including, loan guarantee schemes, tax
payment deferrals and expanded unemployment coverage) or to improve liquidity in the financial
markets (such as, increased asset purchases and credit facilities) and extended or renewed many such
measures as the pandemic and its adverse economic consequences continued. For example, the House of
Representatives in the United States approved President Biden's economic stimulus plan in March 2021,
which includes aid totalling $1.9 trillion. In Europe, all 27 member states have approved an economic
stimulus package of EUR 750 billion. As of April 2021, 17 out of 27 member states had ratified the
stimulus package. As an actor in the economy, the Group has been channeling and continues to channel
these measures to support customers, in particular, in the Group’s retail banking networks, through active
participation in state guaranteed loans, for example, in France, Italy and the United States (120,000 loans
granted in 2020, with the Group retaining 10%-30% of the risk, depending on the borrower’s size). There
can be no assurance, however, that such measures will suffice to offset the negative effects of the
pandemic on the economy regionally or globally, to mitigate regional or global recessions (which are
currently occurring or may occur) or to prevent possible disruptions to financial markets fully and on a
sustained basis.

The ending of these support measures could also lead to a deterioration in the financial condition of some
economic actors. As a result, although immunisation campaigns are accelerating globally, albeit with
disparities across geographic regions, the COVID incidence rate remains high, as does uncertainty over
the pandemic’s remaining course. The Group is exposed to risks from the pandemic and its economic
and market consequences both due to its inherent general sensitivity, as a global financial institution, to
macroeconomic and market conditions, as well as to specific implications, as described below.

The Group’s results and financial condition has been and could continue to be adversely affected by
reduced economic activity (including recessions) in its principal markets. The containment measures and
other restrictions imposed at various times since the onset of the health crisis in several of the Group’s
principal markets, in particular its domestic markets (France, Italy, Belgium and Luxembourg, which
collectively represent 59% of its total gross credit exposures as at 31 December 2020), have significantly
reduced economic activity to recessionary levels when they were in effect, and the reinstatement or
continuation of these measures could have a similar effect. Thus, even if the Group’s net banking income
was almost stable (at -0.7%) driven by the very strong growth in its CIB division, the revenues of
Domestic Markets and International Financial Services divisions were down by 2.1% and 7.2%
respectively in 2020 compared to 2019. In addition, the health crisis has affected the cost of risk
(+EUR 2.5 billion to EUR 5.7 billion). Thus, the net income attributable to equity holders totalled
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EUR 7.1 billion, down by 13.5% compared to 2019, in connection with the sharp increase in the cost of
risk.

The health crisis had a major impact on the Group’s cost of risk in 2020, and could continue to have such
an impact in the coming quarters, reflecting macroeconomic expectations based on several scenarios, in
accordance with the framework existing prior to the health crisis. In application of this framework,
macroeconomic scenarios and in particular GDP assumptions and forecasts are a key input in the
calculation of the cost of risk, and the health crisis has led, among other things, to a weakening in GDP
assumptions in many of the Group’s markets. The cost of risk calculations also incorporate the specific
features of the dynamics of the health crisis on credit and counterparty risk and in particular the impact
of lockdown measures on economic activity and the effects of government support measures and
authorities’ decisions. It also includes an ex-ante sector component based on a review of several sensitive
sectors (in particular hotels, tourism and leisure; non-food retail (excluding home furnishings and e-
commerce), transportation and logistics, and oil and gas). All of these elements contributed to the
substantial increase in the Group’s cost of risk in 2020 (66 basis points), and could continue to contribute
to a high cost of risk in the coming quarters, depending on macroeconomic scenarios and, in particular,
the current uncertainties related to the evolution of the pandemic and its future economic consequences.
Specifically, the Group’s cost of risk increased by EUR 2.5 billion between 2019 and 2020, of which
EUR 1.4 billion in provisions for performing loans (stages 1 and 2). This provisioning takes into account
in particular updated macroeconomic scenarios, in accordance with IFRS 9 principles.

The base case scenario used assumes (a) a return to 2019 GDP levels on average in Europe expected by
mid-2022, (b) different paces of recovery across geographic regions and sectors and (c) the effects and
continuation of government support, particularly to the sectors most affected by the pandemic, and plans
and measures to support the economy. The impact of the pandemic on the long-term prospects of
businesses in the affected sectors and more generally is uncertain and may lead to significant charges on
specific exposures, which may not be fully captured by modelling techniques. Finally, the Group’s
exposure to increased cost of risk could result from its participation in state guaranteed loan programmes
(given its residual exposure), with more than 120,000 state guaranteed loans granted as at 31 December
2020 and the existence (as well as the potential extension or renewal) of forbearance periods limiting
credit-protection measures (such as payment acceleration) under health emergency legislation in various
markets. The sectors most adversely affected to date include the travel and tourism sectors; the Group’s
exposure to the aircraft sector (such as, airlines and lessors) and to the tourism sector each represented
approximately 1% of its total gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2020. The non-food retail sector
has been affected by the lockdown measures; this sector represented less than 1% of the Group’s total
gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2020. The transportation and storage (excluding shipping)
sector, which represented approximately 3% of the Group’s total gross credit exposures as of 31
December 2020, has been affected by the lockdown measures and the disruption in global trade. The oil
and gas sector has been affected by a decrease in demand resulting from the pandemic concomitant, in
the early stages of the health crisis, with an increase in supply due to the temporary unravelling of the
OPEC/Russia production cooperation; this sector represented approximately 2% of the Group’s total
gross credit exposures as of 31 December 2020. The Group’s results and financial condition could be
adversely affected to the extent that the counterparties to which it has exposure in these sectors (and more
generally, to the extent the negative effect on credit quality is more widespread) could be materially and
adversely affected, resulting in particular in an increase in the Group’s cost of risk.

The Group’s results and financial condition could also be negatively affected by adverse trends in
financial markets to the extent that the pandemic initially led to extreme market conditions (including
market volatility spikes, sharp drop in equity markets, tension on spreads and specific asset markets on
hold), along with market volatility. This situation had, and could again before the end of the crisis have,
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an adverse impact on the Group’s market activities, which accounted for 15.4% of its consolidated
revenues in 2020, in particular trading or other market-related losses resulting, among other reasons,
from restrictions implemented in response to the health crisis such as on short-selling and dividend
distributions (notably EUR 184 million of losses in the first quarter of 2020 related to the European
authorities’ restrictions on payment of dividends in respect of the 2019 fiscal year). Moreover, certain of
the Group’s investment portfolios (e.g. in its insurance subsidiaries) are accounted for on a mark-to-
market basis and thus were impacted by adverse market conditions in the second quarter of 2020 and
could be impacted again in the future.

The current health crisis could increase the probability and magnitude of various existing risks faced by
the Group such as: (i) pressure on revenues due in particular to (a) a further reduction in market interest
rates and a likely prolongation of the low interest rate environment and (b) lower asset management
inflows and hence revenues from fees and commissions; (ii) an increased risk of a ratings downgrade
following sector reviews by rating agencies; (iii) a deterioration in the Group’s liquidity due to various
factors including increased customer drawdowns and/or lower deposit balances and (iv) higher risk-
weighted assets due to the deterioration of risk parameters, which would affect the Group’s capital
position.

Uncertainty as to the duration and extent of the course of the pandemic makes the overall impact on the
economies of the Group’s principal markets as well as the world economy difficult to predict. The extent
to which the economic consequences of the pandemic will continue to affect the Group’s results and
financial condition will depend largely on (i) periodic and local re-impositions of lockdowns, as well as
various restrictive measures that have been put in place and that could be renewed or reintroduced, as
has been done in Europe, (ii) the timing and extent of a return to pre-pandemic lifestyles, business
operations and economic interactions, (iii) the effects of the measures taken to date or future measures
that may be taken by governments and central banks to attenuate the economic fallout of the pandemic
and (iv) the duration and extent of the pandemic, including the prospect of new waves or the appearance
of new strains of the virus and, consequently, a reinstatement of lockdown measures or other restrictions
in the Group’s various markets, as well as the pace of deployment of vaccines and their effectiveness
against all new strains of the coronavirus. Although immunisations are increasing globally at an
accelerating rate, disparities remain between geographic regions (particularly between North America,
Europe and Asia), which could lead to differences in economic recovery between these geographic
regions. In addition, while central bank and government actions and support measures taken in response
to the pandemic have to date attenuated, and may well continue to help attenuate, the adverse economic
and market consequences of the pandemic, central banks and regulators have also issued and may issue
additional restrictions or recommendations in respect of banks’ actions. In particular, they have limited
and may continue to limit or seek to limit banks’ flexibility in managing their business and taking action
in relation to capital distribution, capital allocation and remuneration policies. In this respect, on
27 March 2020, the ECB issued a temporary and exceptional recommendation to banks not to pay
dividends. The period covered by this recommendation was extended to 1January 2021 by an
announcement on 28 July 2020. In a press release dated 15 December 2020, the ECB called on banks not
to distribute dividends, or to limit them to 15% of cumulative profits for the 2019 and 2020 fiscal years
and 20 basis points of the CET1 ratio until 30 September 2021, as well as to show "extreme moderation
regarding variable remuneration”.

Should BNPP fail to implement its strategic objectives or to achieve its published financial objectives or
should its results not follow stated expected trends, the trading price of its securities could be adversely
affected.
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In February 2017, BNPP announced a strategic plan for the 2017-2020 period and updated it in respect
of 2020 upon announcing its first quarter 2020 results to reflect the economic impact of the COVID-19
pandemic. Due to the pandemic, the preparation of BNPP's next strategic plan was postponed to 2021.
BNPP is preparing a strategic plan for the 2022-2025 period, which it expects to announce in early 2022.
As a result, BNPP has not set any new targets for 2021. In connection with announcing its full-year 2020
results on 5 February 2021, BNPP announced a number of trends for 2021. The financial objectives of
strategic plans are established primarily for purposes of internal planning and allocation of resources,
and are based on a number of assumptions with regard to business and economic conditions. BNPP's
actual results could vary significantly from these trends for a number of reasons, including the occurrence
of one or more of the risk factors described elsewhere in this section, in particular, as a result of the
consequences of the COVID- 19 health crisis which have had and could continue to have major
repercussions on the economic outlook and cause financial market disruptions. If BNPP's results do not
follow these trends, its financial condition and the value of its securities, as well as its financing costs,
could be affected.

Additionally, BNPP is pursuing an ambitious Corporate Social Responsibility ("CSR") policy and is
committed to making a positive impact on society with concrete achievements. At the end of 2019, BNPP
reaffirmed its ambition to be a global leader in sustainable finance. BNPP is thus taking strong positions,
as a founding member of the United Nations Principles for Responsible Banking, which commits it to
align its strategy with the Paris Agreement and the Sustainable Development Goals ("SDGs"). Its
objective in 2022 is to provide €210 billion in financing to sectors contributing to the SDGs. It is
enhancing its support for the energy and environmental transition by deciding, for example, to reduce its
outstanding loans to companies whose main business is related to the non-conventional hydrocarbons
sector or thermal coal companies to zero by 2030 in the European Union (this criterion was extended to
the OECD in 2020) and 2040 in the rest of the world, and by raising its target for supporting renewable
energy development by €18 billion by 2021. These measures (and any future ones along similar lines)
may in certain cases adversely affect BNPP’s results in the relevant sectors.

BNPP may experience difficulties integrating businesses following acquisition transactions and may be
unable to realise the benefits expected from such transactions.

BNPP engages in acquisition and combination transactions on a regular basis. BNPP's most recent major
such transactions were the acquisition of substantially all of the activities of Raiffeisen Bank Polska in
Poland, which was completed on 31 October 2018 (its activities having been subsequently merged with
BGZ BNP Paribas) and an agreement to integrate BNPP’s Prime Services and Electronic Equities
platform with Deutsche Bank in 2019. The integration of acquired businesses and the discontinuation or
restructuring of certain businesses (in particular, BNP Paribas Suisse in 2019) resulted in restructuring
costs of €211 million in 2020. Successful integration and the realisation of synergies require, among
other things, proper coordination of business development and marketing efforts, retention of key
members of management, policies for effective recruitment and training as well as the ability to adapt
information and computer systems. Any difficulties encountered in combining operations could result in
higher integration costs and lower savings or revenues than expected. There will accordingly be
uncertainty as to the extent to which anticipated synergies will be achieved and the timing of their
realisation. Moreover, the integration of BNPP's existing operations with those of the acquired operations
could interfere with its respective businesses and divert management's attention from other aspects of
BNPP's business, which could have a negative impact on BNPP's business and results. In some cases,
moreover, disputes relating to acquisitions may have an adverse impact on the integration process or
have other adverse consequences, including financial ones.
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7.5

Although BNPP undertakes an in depth analysis of the companies it plans to acquire, such analyses often
cannot be complete or exhaustive. As a result, BNPP may increase its exposure to doubtful or troubled
assets and incur greater risks as a result of its acquisitions, particularly in cases in which it was unable to
conduct comprehensive due diligence prior to the acquisition.

BNPP's current environment may be affected by the intense competition amongst banking and
non-banking operators, which could adversely affect BNPP's revenues and profitability.

Competition is intense in all of BNPP's primary business areas in France and the other countries in which
it conducts a substantial portion of its business, including other European countries and the United States.
Competition in the banking industry could intensify as a result of consolidation in the financial services
area or as a result of the presence of new players in the payment and the financing services area, the
development of crowdfunding platforms, as well as the continuing evolution of consumer habits in the
banking sector. While BNPP has launched initiatives in these areas, such as the debut of Hello Bank!
and its acquisition of Nickel, competitors subject to less extensive regulatory requirements or to less
strict capital requirements (e.g., debt funds, shadow banks), or benefiting from economies of scale, data
synergies or technological innovation (e.g., internet and mobile operators, digital platforms, fintechs) or
free access to customer financial data could be more competitive by offering lower prices and more
innovative services to address the new needs of consumers. In addition, new payment systems and crypto-
currencies, such as Bitcoin, and new technologies that facilitate transaction processes, such as
blockchain, have developed in recent years. While it is difficult to predict the effects of these emerging
technologies as well as any applicable regulations, their use could nevertheless reduce BNPP's market
share or secure investments that otherwise would have used technology used by more established
financial institutions, such as BNPP. If BNPP is unable to respond to the competitive environment in
France or in its other major markets by offering more attractive, innovative and profitable product and
service solutions than those offered by current competitors or new entrants, it may lose market share in
key areas of its business or incur losses on some or all of its activities. In addition, downturns in the
economies of its principal markets could add to the competitive pressure, through, for example, increased
price pressure and lower business volumes for BNPP and its competitors. It is also possible that the
imposition of more stringent requirements (particularly capital requirements and business restrictions)
on large or systemically significant financial institutions, could lead to distortions in competition in a
manner adverse to large private sector institutions such as BNPP.

BNPP could experience business disruption and losses due to climate change risks such as transition
risks, physical risks or liability risks.

BNPP is exposed to risks related to climate change, either directly through its own operations or
indirectly through its financing and investment activities. There are two main types of risks related to
climate change: (i) transition risks, which result from changes in the behaviour of economic and financial
actors in response to the implementation of energy policies or technological changes; (ii) physical risks,
which result from the direct impact of climate change on people and property through extreme weather
events or long-term risks such as rising water levels or increasing temperatures. In addition, liability risks
may arise from both categories of risk. They correspond to the damages that a legal entity would have to
pay if it were found to be responsible for global warming. BNPP is progressively integrating the
assessment of these risks into its risk management system. BNPP monitors these risks in the conduct of
its business, in the conduct of its counterparties' business, and in its investments on its own behalf and
on behalf of third parties. In this respect, the specific credit policies and the General Credit Policy have
been enhanced since 2012 and 2014, respectively, with the addition of relevant clauses in terms of social
and environmental responsibility. In addition, sector-specific policies and policies excluding certain
environmental, social and governance ("ESG") sectors from financing have also been put in place. In
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2019, as part of the fight against climate change, BNPP made new commitments to reduce its exposure
to thermal coal to zero by 2030 in the European Union and by 2040 for the rest of the world. BNPP has
also provided financing dedicated to renewable energy in the amounts of €15.4 billion and €15.9 billion
in 2018 and 2019, respectively. By the end of 2015, BNPP had already significantly strengthened its
criteria for financing and investing in the coal sector, and in 2017, it was the first bank to announce the
cessation of its financing activities for companies that derive most of their revenues from non-
conventional hydrocarbons, measures that remain to date among the most advanced in the sector. These
decisions are also reflected in the energy mix that BNPP finances. BNPP also supports its clients, both
individuals and businesses, in their transition to a low-carbon economy. BNPP also aims to reduce the
environmental footprint of its own operations. Despite the actions taken by BNPP to monitor risks and
combat climate change, physical, transition or liability risks related to climate change could disrupt
business or lead to losses.

7.6 Changes in certain holdings in credit or financial institutions could have an impact on BNPP's financial
position.

Amounts below the thresholds for prudential capital deduction are assets subject to a risk-weight of
250%. These assets include: credit or financial institutions consolidated under the equity method; within
the prudential scope (excluding insurance); significant financial interest in credit or financial institutions
in which BNPP holds a stake of more than 10%; and deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability
and arise from temporary differences.

The risk-weighted assets subject to this type of risk amounted to €17 billion at 31 December 2020, or 2%
of the total risk-weighted assets of BNPP.

Risk Factors Relating to BNPP B.V.

The main risks described above in relation to BNPP also represent the main risks for BNPP B.V., either as an
individual entity or a company of the BNPP Group.

Dependency Risk

BNPP B.V. is an operating company. The assets of BNPP B.V. consist of the obligations of other BNPP Group
entities. In respect of securities it issues, the ability of BNPP B.V. to meet its obligations under such securities
depends on the receipt by it of payments under certain hedging agreements that it enters with other BNPP Group
entities. Consequently, a Holder of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will, subject to the provisions of the Guarantee
issued by BNPP, be exposed to the ability of BNPP Group entities to perform their obligations under such hedging
agreements and may suffer losses should these entities fail to satisfy their obligations.

More generally, the creditworthiness of BNPP B.V. depends on the creditworthiness of BNPP. In the case of
bankruptcy proceedings of BNPP B.V. or any other similar proceedings affecting the Issuer, a Holder of securities
will become a creditor of BNPP pursuant to the relevant guarantee granted by BNPP. A Holder should also refer
to risk factor "BNPP could experience an unfavourable change in circumstances, causing it to become subject to
a resolution proceeding: holders of securities of BNPP could suffer losses as a result” above for a description of
the impact of resolution on the BNPP Group.

Credit risk

BNPP B.V. has significant concentration of credit risks, as its issuances are hedged through OTC transactions
with its parent company, BNPP, and other BNPP Group entities. Such credit risks amount to the total size of its
balance sheet (EUR 69.6 billion as at 31 December 2020). Therefore, if BNPP or any other BNPP Group entity
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fails to satisfy its obligations in respect of any such transaction, Holders of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. may
suffer losses.

RISK FACTORS RELATING TO SECURITIES

A number of the risks described below may be relevant to a specific Series of Securities, depending on the terms
of those Securities. The effect of this compounding of risks is likely to increase the volatility of the Securities and
increase the possibility that a Holder loses some or all of their investment or does not receive the anticipated
return.

Risks relating to the Structure of the Securities

Securities Subject to Optional Redemption, Cancellation, Early Exercise by the Relevant Issuer or Other Early
Redemption (including Automatic Early Redemption) or Cancellation and Consequences of Early Redemption

An optional, other early redemption (including Automatic Early Redemption) (or cancellation) or early exercise
feature is likely to limit the market value of the Securities. In the case of Securities with an optional redemption
(or cancellation) feature, during any period when the relevant Issuer may elect to redeem (or cancel) the relevant
Securities, the market value of those Securities generally will not rise substantially above the price at which they
can be redeemed (or cancelled). This also may be true prior to any redemption (or cancellation) period. In
addition, the Final Terms may provide that the relevant Securities will be redeemed (or cancelled) early in
specified circumstances, such as the occurrence of an Additional Disruption Event, (as defined in Security
Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)). Optional Additional
Disruption Event, (as defined in Security Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional
Disruption Events)) and/or an Automatic Early Redemption Event (as defined in Security Condition 34.9
(Automatic Early Redemption (Certificates))). Following an optional or early redemption (including Automatic
Early Redemption) (or cancellation), a Holder generally would not be able to reinvest the redemption (or
cancellation) proceeds (if any) at an effective interest rate as high as the interest rate on the relevant Securities
being redeemed (or cancelled), and may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate. As a consequence the
Holder may lose some or all of their investment. Potential investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of
other investments available at that time. In addition, in the case of Securities with an Automatic Early Redemption
or early exercise feature, the value of the Securities and the amount that the Holder receives upon an Automatic
Early Redemption or an early exercise may not correlate with the value of the Underlying Reference, which may
trigger such Automatic Early Redemption or early exercise.

Cost of borrowing

A Holder of Securities that are "short" (or "put") Securities should note that the price of such Securities may
include a premium charged to the Holder which reflects the cost to the Issuer or its Affiliates of borrowing the
Underlying Reference(s). A Holder will not receive a refund of this premium if an Automatic Early Redemption
Event occurs or upon the exercise of an Issuer Call Option or a Holder Put Option, and consequently may
significantly reduce the return the Holder stands to receive on its investment.

Minimum trading amount may affect a Holder's ability to transfer their Securities

If Securities have a minimum trading amount and a Holder holds fewer Securities than the specified minimum
trading amount, such Holder will not be permitted to transfer its Securities prior to expiration or redemption, as
applicable, without purchasing enough additional Securities to hold the minimum trading amount. The Holder
may not be able to purchase additional Securities, in which case they will have to wait until redemption or exercise
of the Securities to realise any value. If they are able to purchase additional Securities, this may be at a price
higher than their original investment and is likely to adversely affect the overall return they achieve on their
investment.
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Risk of leveraged exposure

Securities including a leverage feature (such as OET Certificates, the terms of which are described in "Annex 14
- Additional Terms and Conditions for OET Certificates" (see "Risks associated with Open End Certificates and
OET Certificates™ below)) magnify gains and losses. If the Underlying Reference moves against expectations, a
Holder risks losing a greater proportion of their investment than if they had invested in a Security that is not
leveraged.

Risks associated with Open End Certificates and OET Certificates

Open End Certificates and OET Certificates do not have a pre-determined maturity and may be redeemed on a
date determined by the relevant Issuer, in accordance with the Terms and Conditions or following a request by
the Holder for a buy back of the Certificates. Investment in Open End Certificates and OET Certificates will entail
additional risks compared with other Certificates, due to the fact that they do not have a prescribed tenor and the
Holder may receive a lower return than expected and depending on when the Open End Certificate and OET
Certificates are redeemed or bought back. Open End Certificates will be subject to the provisions set out in
Security Condition 34.8 (Open End Certificates) and OET Certificates will be subject to the provisions set out in
"Annex 14 — Additional Terms and Conditions for OET Certificates".

Additional risks associated with Preference Share Certificates

The following risks are applicable in respect of Preference Share Certificates issued in accordance with the
provisions set out in "Annex 13 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Preference Share Certificates".

€)] Risks associated with the Preference Share Underlying

Each Issuer may issue Preference Share Certificates, as more fully described in the "Annex 13 —
Additional Terms and Conditions for Preference Share Certificates”. If as a result of the performance
of the Preference Share Underlying, the performance of the preference shares is negative, the value of
the Preference Share Certificates will be adversely affected. Purchasers of Preference Share Certificates
risk losing all or a part of their investment if the value of the preference shares does not move in the
anticipated direction.

(b) Risks relating to an early redemption of the Preference Share Certificates

The Issuer will redeem the Preference Share Certificate in whole at the Early Redemption Amount if, in
the determination of the Calculation Agent, an illegality, force majeure, Potential Adjustment Event,
Additional Disruption Event, Optional Additional Disruption Event or Extraordinary Event occurs or if
the Preference Share Issuer delivers a notice to the Issuer in respect of early redemption of the preference
shares. The Early Redemption Amount may be less (and in certain circumstances, significantly less) than
investors' initial investment and a Holder will not benefit from any appreciation of the preference shares
that may occur following such redemption. A Holder will also face this risk if the Preference Share
Certificates include an auto-call feature which triggers an automatic early redemption of the Preference
Share Certificates if the performance of the Preference Share Underlying satisfies certain conditions.

(c) Risks relating to the Preference Share Issuer and the Preference Shares

A Holder of Preference Share Certificates are exposed to the credit risk of the Preference Share Issuer,
as Preference Share Certificates are linked to the performance of the relevant preference shares issued
by the Preference Share Issuer. The Preference Share Issuer is not an operating company whose sole
business activity is the issue of redeemable preference shares and does not otherwise have any cashflows.
As its funds are limited, a deterioration in the creditworthiness of or any misappropriation of funds or
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other fraudulent action by the Preference Share Issuer (or person acting on its behalf) would have a
significant adverse effect on the value of the preference shares, and thus, a significant adverse effect on
the value of the Preference Share Certificates.

Risks associated with certain Dynamic Securities

Securities linked to a portfolio or strategy that comprises assets with a greater potential for return and consequently
greater risk (such as, a hedge fund) and assets with a lower return and consequently lesser risk (such as, a zero
coupon debt security issued by an issuer with a high credit rating) are described by the relevant Issuer as "Dynamic
Securities”. The impact of any rebalancing of the portfolio or strategy and any leverage features will affect the
value of the portfolio or strategy and, in turn the value of the Dynamic Securities. If the portfolio or strategy does
not perform as expected, the value of the Dynamic Securities and the return an investor can expect will be
adversely affected.

There are no events of default under the Securities

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities (other than Secured Securities) do not include events of default
allowing for the acceleration of the Securities if certain events occur. Accordingly, if the Issuer or the Guarantor
fail to meet any obligations under the Securities, including the payment of any interest or bankruptcy proceedings
are instituted, a Holder will not be able to accelerate the payment of principal. Upon a payment default, the sole
remedy available to a Holder for recovery of amounts owing in respect of any payment of principal or interest on
their Securities will be the institution of proceedings to enforce such payment. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
Issuer or the Guarantor will not, by virtue of the institution of any such proceedings, be obliged to pay any sum
or sums sooner than the same would otherwise have been payable by it, meaning investors could lost all or part
of their investment. As a result, the value of the Securities and/or their liquidity in the secondary market could be
negatively affected.

The terms of the Securities do not contain a negative pledge and the Issuer is entitled to incur additional debt

There is no negative pledge in respect of the Securities and the Terms and Conditions of the Securities place no
restrictions on the incurrence by the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) of additional obligations that rank pari
passu with, or senior to, the Securities. In addition, the Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) may pledge assets
to secure other notes or debt instruments without granting an equivalent pledge or security interest and status to
the Securities. An increase of the outstanding amount of such securities or other liabilities could reduce the amount
(if any) recoverable by the Holder on a winding-up of the Issuer, if the amount outstanding exceeds the assets of
the Issuer, the Holder could suffer a loss of their entire investment if the Issuer becomes insolvent (whether
voluntarily or otherwise).

Risks relating to the Underlying Reference(s) and Disruption and/or Adjustment Mechanism
Risks associated with Underlying Reference Securities

Securities issued under this Base Prospectus may be linked to the performance of one or more Underlying
Reference(s) (as further described in the "Investment Considerations" section below) (such Securities,
"Underlying Reference Securities"). Depending on the terms of the Underlying Reference Securities, the amount
payable on redemption or exercise or in interest will be determined by reference to the value of one or more
Underlying References specified in the applicable Final Terms. If an Underlying Reference does not perform as
expected, this will have a material adverse impact on the amounts (if any) that a Holder will receive in respect of
the Securities and may also negatively affect the value of the Securities.
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Absence of Rights in respect of the Underlying Reference

The Securities do not represent a claim against any Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or
other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference) and a Holder will not have any right of recourse
under the Securities to any such Underlying Reference (or any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person
in respect of an Underlying Reference). The Securities are not in any way sponsored, endorsed or promoted by
any issuer, sponsor, manager or other connected person in respect of an Underlying Reference and such entities
have no obligation to take into account the consequences of their actions on any Holder and such consequences
may have a negative impact on a Holder. Investors in Physical Delivery Securities should also refer to "Risks
associated with Physical Delivery Securities" below and Security Condition 35.2 (Physical Delivery).

Risks associated with Physical Delivery Securities

If the Securities are Physical Delivery Securities, Holders will only obtain a direct investment in the Underlying
Reference and have a right to participate in any voting, dividends, distributions or other rights of the Underlying
Reference, as the case may be, upon delivery of the Entitlement. Holders of Physical Delivery Securities are
exposed to the risk that the market value of the Entitlement is less than the market value of the Securities and
Holders may not subsequently be able to realise any cash value from the assets comprising the Entitlement. This
risk is increased if the assets comprising the Entitlement have a nexus with an emerging market (see "Risks
associated with Securities with a nexus to emerging markets™ below).

In the case of Physical Delivery Securities, if a Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists on the Settlement
Date or the Delivery Date, as the case may be, settlement will be postponed until the next Settlement Business
Day in respect of which there is no Settlement Disruption Event. The relevant Issuer in these circumstances also
has the right to pay the Disruption Cash Settlement Price (as defined below in Security Condition 5.1 (Settlement
Disruption)) in lieu of delivering the Entitlement. The Disruption Cash Settlement Price may be less than the fair
market value of the Entitlement and could be less than the return that the investor had anticipated.

The value of Underlying References may be subject to market fluctuations

Depending on the Underlying Reference, the value of a Holder's investment in Underlying Reference Securities,
may be significantly adversely affected by the negative impact of market fluctuations caused by economic and
political developments, changes in interest rates and perceived trends in the prices of securities.

Interest linked to an Underlying Reference

In the case of Linked Interest Securities (see Security Condition 32(d) (Interest on Linked Interest Certificates),
where the amount of interest payable is determined by reference to the performance of an Underlying Reference
or a basket of Underlying References, a Holder is subject to the following risks:

@ the market price of such Securities may be volatile, and so a Holder may only be able to sell their
Securities in the secondary market at a loss (if they are able to sell at all);

(b) they may receive no interest;

(© payment of interest may occur at a different time or in a different currency than expected, which could
negatively affect the value of the Securities;

(d) an Underlying Reference may be subject to significant fluctuations that may not correlate with changes
in interest rates, currencies or other indices and the yield may be less than other comparable investments;

(e) if an Underlying Reference in a basket has a disproportionately greater weighting compared to other
basket components or a weighting greater than one or contains some other leverage factor, the effect of
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changes in the value of such Underlying Reference on interest payable will be magnified and could
magnify any loss of interest that a Holder would experience compared to an investment in Securities
without such features; and

)] interest may only be payable and/or calculated in respect of certain specified days and/or periods on or
during which the Underlying Reference or its value equals, exceeds and/or is less than certain specified
thresholds and if such conditions are not satisfied, a Holder may not receive any interest, thus negatively
affecting the Holder's overall yield.

Risks associated with the occurrence of Additional Disruption Events and/or Optional Additional Disruption
Events

If an Additional Disruption Event occurs, or any Optional Additional Disruption Event specified in the applicable
Final Terms occurs (other than in respect of a Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity), (each as defined in Security
Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption Events)), the Securities may be
subject to adjustment (including, in the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to the
Basket of Shares), cancellation (in the case of Warrants) or early redemption (in the case of Certificates) or the
amount payable on scheduled redemption (in the case of Certificates) may be different from the amount expected
to be paid at scheduled redemption. In the case of Index Securities linked to a Custom Index the occurrence of an
Additional Disruption Event or Optional Redemption Event specified in the applicable Final Terms may lead to
the selection of a successor Index. Any of these consequences is likely to have a material adverse effect on the
value and liquidity of the Securities and/or the return a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the Index Securities,
Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities

If, in the determination of the Calculation Agent, a Market Disruption Event (as described in the Index Security
Conditions, Share Conditions, ETI Security Conditions, Debt Security Conditions or Futures Security Conditions
as the case may be) has occurred or the relevant exchange has not opened on a date for valuation in respect of an
issue of Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities, Debt Securities or Futures Securities (a "Disrupted
Day"), any consequential postponement of the valuation date, or any alternative provisions for valuation provided
in any Securities in respect of an Underlying Reference (including any Underlying Reference comprising a basket)
may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities, particularly if the Redemption Date or
Settlement Date of the Securities is postponed as a consequence.

Additional risks associated with Index Securities

Index Securities are linked to the performance of an underlying index (an "Index"), which may reference various
asset classes such as, equities, bonds, currency exchange rates or property price data, or could reference a mixture
of asset classes. Investors in Index Securities face the risk of a broader set of circumstances that mean that the
assets underlying the Index do not perform as expected compared to an investment in conventional debt securities.
Accordingly, the return on an investment in Index Securities is more likely to be adversely affected than an
investment in conventional debt securities. The terms and conditions relevant to Index Securities are set out in
"Annex 1 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Index Securities".

In the case of Index Securities that are linked to the performance of a proprietary index (a "Custom Index"), if
the components of the Custom Index are subject to regular rebalancing in accordance with the methodology of
the Custom Index, this may be determined (in whole or in part) by reference to criteria specified in the index
and/or one or more lists of assets compiled by an independent third party (such as research lists, analytical reports
or "top picks" guides). Such third parties have no regard to the interests of a Holder and any such rebalancing
could negatively affect the performance of a Custom Index and the value of the Index Securities.
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The occurrence of an Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact a Holder of Index Securities

The occurrence of an Index Modification, an Index Cancellation or an Index Disruption (each being an "Index
Adjustment Event", as more fully described in Index Security Condition 3.2 (Modification and Cessation of
Calculation of an Index)) may (except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities) lead to (i) changes in the
calculation of the relevant value or price (if the Calculation Agent determines such Index Adjustment Event has
a material effect on the Securities), (ii) early redemption or cancellation of the Securities or (iii) in the case of
Certificates, the amount payable on scheduled redemption of the Securities being different from the amount
expected to be paid at scheduled redemption. Any such adjustment or cancellation or early redemption of the
Index Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the
amount Holders can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with Index Securities where Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable.

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms in respect of Index Securities,
the value of the Securities will be dependent on the performance of a futures or options contract relating to an
index (see Index Security Condition 9 (Futures Price Valuation)). If such underlying futures or options contract
does not perform as expected, an investor in such types of Securities may receive a lower return (and could receive
a significantly lower return) than anticipated.

The performance of futures and options contracts can be affected by, among other things, the liquidity of the
futures or options exchange and events beyond the control of the futures or options exchange. There may be
significant differences between the value of spot markets and the futures or options markets for the underlying
index. Accordingly, an investment in Securities referencing such futures contracts may perform worse than a
comparable investment in Index Securities that do not reference a futures or options contract or even a direct
investment in the relevant underlying commodity or index.

Additional risks associated with Share Securities

Unlike a direct investment in any Share(s), Stapled Share(s), GDR(s) and/or ADR(s) comprising the Underlying
Reference(s) (together the "Share(s)"), an investment in Share Securities does not entitle a Holder to vote or
receive dividends or distributions (unless otherwise specified in the Final Terms). Accordingly, the return on Share
Securities will not be the same as a direct investment in the relevant Share(s) and a Holder could receive less than
they would have done on a direct investment. The terms and conditions relevant to Share Securities are set out in
"Annex 2 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Share Securities".

An adjustment to Share Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact a Holder

In the case of Share Securities, except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities, following the declaration
by the Basket Company or Share Company, as the case may be (or, in the case of Stapled Shares, an issuer of each
constituent share comprising the Stapled Shares), of the occurrence of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more
fully described in Share Security Condition 3 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the Calculation Agent will, in its
sole and absolute discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative
effect on the theoretical value of the Shares (or the Stapled Shares, as the case may be) and, if so, will make the
corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms of the Securities as the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute
discretion determines appropriate to account for that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments
will be made to account solely for changes in volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to
the relevant Share (or the relevant Stapled Shares, as the case may be)). Such adjustment may have an adverse
effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share Securities and accordingly the amount a Holder can expect
to receive on their investment.
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Extraordinary Events relating to Share Securities

Following the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event (as defined in Share Security Condition 4 (Extraordinary
Events)) in relation to a Share, the terms of the Share Securities may be adjusted (including, in the case of Share
Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent shares of the Basket of
Shares), the Share Securities may be redeemed or cancelled in whole or in part or the Calculation Agent may
make an adjustment corresponding to adjustments made by an Options Exchange.

An adjustment to the Share Securities may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected Share
Securities and accordingly the amount a Holder can expect to receive on their investment. If the Share Securities
are early redeemed or cancelled, an investor generally would not be able to reinvest the relevant proceeds at an
effective interest rate as high as the effective return on the relevant Securities being cancelled or redeemed and
may only be able to do so at a significantly lower rate, and investors should consider reinvestment risk in light of
other investments available at that time. Consequently the occurrence of an Extraordinary Event in relation to a
Share may have an adverse effect on the value or liquidity of the Securities and accordingly the amount a Holder
can expect to receive on their investment.

Additional risks associated with ETI Securities

An investment in ETI Securities carries similar risks to an investment in Share Securities or Fund Securities. An
exchange traded instrument (an "ETI™) may invest using sophisticated techniques, such as leverage or short selling
or in complex financial instruments such as derivatives (swaps, options, futures), securities lending transactions,
repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements or foreign exchange instruments. If the investment strategy of the
ETI is not successful it will have a negative impact upon the performance of the ETI, and consequently, could
have a negative impact on the value of the ETI Securities and the return a Holder may receive. Holders of ETI
Securities have no right to participate in the ETI, whether by voting or in any distributions. Accordingly, the return
a Holder of ETI Securities receives could be less (and could be significantly less) than a direct investment in an
ETI. This effect could be amplified if the ETI Share Provisions (as set out in ETI Security Conditions 9 to 14) are
specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms and the value of the ETI is linked to the NAV per ETI
Interest, the trading price of the ETI or the actual redemption proceeds the Hedge Provider or a hypothetical
investor in the relevant ETI(s) would receive. The terms and conditions relevant to ETI Securities are set out in
"Annex 3 — Additional Terms and Conditions for ETI Securities".

An adjustment to ETI Securities following a Potential Adjustment Event may adversely impact a Holder

In the case of ETI Securities, except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities, following the declaration by
the relevant ETI any person appointed to provide services directly or indirectly in respect of such ETI, as the case
may be, of the terms of any Potential Adjustment Event (as more fully described in ETI Security Condition 3
(Potential Adjustment Events) or (if the ETI Share Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Final
Terms) ETI Security Condition 11 (Potential Adjustment Events)), the Calculation Agent will, in its sole and
absolute discretion, determine whether such Potential Adjustment Event has a diluting or concentrative effect on
the theoretical value of the ETI Interests and, if so, will make the corresponding adjustment, if any, to any terms
of the Securities as the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion determines appropriate to account for
that diluting or concentrative effect (provided that no adjustments will be made to account solely for changes in
volatility, expected dividends, stock loan rate or liquidity relative to the relevant ETI Interest). Such adjustment
may have an adverse effect on the value and liquidity of the affected ET1 Securities, and accordingly, the amount
a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.
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The Occurrence of an Extraordinary ETI Event (where ETI Share Provisions is not applicable) or Extraordinary
Event (where ETI Share Provisions is applicable) may have an adverse impact on a Holder

If an Extraordinary ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event (each as further described in the "Investment
Considerations" section below and ETI Security Condition 4 (Extraordinary ETI Events) or (if the ETI Share
Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms) ETI Security Condition 12 (Extraordinary
Events))) occurs, the Issuer may (i) adjust the terms of the ETI Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the
relevant ETI Interests, or (iii) cancel or early redeem the ETI Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an
Extraordinary ETI Event or an Extraordinary Event, as the case may be, may have an adverse effect on the value
or liquidity of the Securities and the amount a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

The occurrence of a Market Disruption Event relating to Commodity Securities may have an adverse impact on
a Holder

If a Market Disruption Event (as defined in Commodity Security Condition 2 (Market Disruption)) occurs or is
continuing on a date for valuation in respect of Commaodity Securities, then the Calculation Agent may make any
relevant calculation in respect of the Commodity Securities using an alternative value in lieu of the published
price), the affected Commaodity or Commodity Index may be substituted or the Issuer will cancel or early redeem
the Securities. Any such adjustment or cancellation or early redemption of the Securities may have an adverse
effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount a Holder can expect to receive on
their investment.

The occurrence of a Commodity Index Adjustment Event may adversely impact a Holder of Commodity Securities
that reference a Commodity Index

The occurrence of a Commodity Index Modification, Commodity Index Cancellation or Commodity Index
Disruption (each being a "Commodity Index Adjustment Event"”, as more fully described in Commodity
Security Condition 4(b) (Modification and Cessation of Calculation of a Commodity Index)) may lead to (i) the
Calculation Agent determining the Relevant Price using, in lieu of a published level, the Commaodity Fallback
Value (if the Calculation Agent determines such Commodity Index Adjustment Event has a material effect on the
Securities) or (ii) cancellation or early redemption of the Securities. Any such adjustment or cancellation or early
redemption of the Commaodity Securities and accordingly the amount a Holder can expect to receive on their
investment.

Additional risks associated with Commaodity Securities referencing a proprietary commodity index

If the Commodity Securities reference the performance of a proprietary commodity index, the operational rules
of the commodity index (which may not be publicly available) will affect how the level of the commaodity index
is determined in the event of a disruption. A delay in the publication of the commodity index could adversely
affect the commaodity index and consequently, the value of the Commodity Securities. The terms and conditions
relevant to Commodity Securities are set out in "Annex 5 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Commodity
Securities".

Additional risks associated with Currency Securities

Fluctuations in exchange rates are affected by complex political and economic factors, including governmental
action to fix or support the value of a currency, regardless of other market forces. If the rate of issuance of
exchange rate instruments (such as warrants, securities or options relating to particular currencies or currency
indices) increases, the value of Currency Securities in the secondary market will decline. A Holder of Currency
Securities risk losing some or all of their investment if exchange rates of the relevant currency (or basket of
currencies) do not move in the direction they had anticipated. Additionally, if Currency Securities are settled in a
currency other than the Holder's home currency, the negative effects of exchange rate fluctuations will be greater

59



(see also "Exchange control risks" below). The terms and conditions relevant to Currency Securities are set out in
"Annex 7 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Currency Securities".

Risks associated with Dual Currency Certificates

The Issuers may issue Certificates where the Cash Settlement Amount and/or Interest Amount or Principal
Amount (see Currency Security Condition 7 (Settlement Currency)) may be payable in either the Base Currency
or the Subject Currency depending on the performance of a specified exchange rate ("Dual Currency
Certificates"). The Settlement Currency will be determined based upon how the rate of exchange to convert one
unit of the Base Currency into the Subject Currency on the relevant Dual Currency Determination Date performs
compared to the initial exchange rate specified in the applicable Final Terms. The risks associated with Dual
Currency Certificates are similar to those associated with Currency Securities (described in "Additional risks
associated with Currency Securities” above) and the risks associated with the Settlement Currency (described in
"Exchange control risks" below). In addition, investors will not benefit from favourable changes in exchange rates
during the term of the Dual Currency Certificates where only the rate of exchange on the relevant Dual Currency
Determination Date affects the Settlement Currency and as a consequence the market price of such Certificates
may be volatile.

Additional risks associated with Fund Securities

The value of underlying fund shares or units or the level of an underlying fund index in respect of Fund Securities
will be affected by the investment strategy of the relevant fund. The investment strategy can be opague and may
not be publicly available. In addition, funds could be illiquid and/or unregulated. If the investment strategy does
not perform as expected, there are limited methods by which direct investments in fund shares or units can be
exited. The value of the fund shares or units or the level of a fund index is also exposed to the performance of
various fund service providers, in particular, the investment adviser. Taking these circumstances into account,
compared to other types of investment, there is a greater risk associated with an investment in Fund Securities that
the value of the Securities may be adversely affected (and could fall to zero) and the return an investor can expect
to receive may be less (and could be significantly less) than expected. The terms and conditions relevant to Fund
Securities are set out in "Annex 8 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Fund Securities™.

The occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse impact on a Holder

If an Extraordinary Fund Event (as further described in the "Investment Considerations™ section below and Fund
Security Condition 2 (Extraordinary Fund Events)) occurs, the Issuer may, (i) adjust the terms of the Fund
Securities to reflect such event, (ii) substitute the relevant Fund Shares, or (iii) cancel or early redeem the Fund
Securities. Consequently, the occurrence of an Extraordinary Fund Event may have an adverse effect on the value
or liquidity of the Securities and the amount a Holder can expect to receive on their investment.

Date for redemption or settlement may be postponed if Hedge Provider does not receive redemption proceeds
from Fund Shares

In the event that redemption proceeds in respect of the underlying Fund Shares are not received by the Hedge
Provider on or prior to the scheduled date for redemption or settlement, as the case may be, such redemption or
settlement date may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be specified
in the applicable Final Terms) in accordance with Fund Security Condition 5 (Settlement Date/Redemption
Date/Termination Date Extension) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay. Such delay
could have a significant adverse impact on the amount that the Holder would have otherwise received had such
date for redemption or settlement not been postponed.
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Additional risks associated with Rolling Futures Contract Securities

If the terms of the Index Securities or Commodity Securities contemplate that the underlying futures contract will
roll to maintain ongoing exposure to such underlying futures contract throughout the term of the Securities, the
value of the Securities and an investor's expected return on the Securities will depend on the performance of the
futures market. If the market is in backwardation (where the price of the near-dated futures contract is greater than
the longer-dated futures contract), any loss in value that the Holder experiences in respect of Securities will be
increased, as the Holder's synthetic exposure to the longer-dated futures contract is greater. However, if the market
is in contango (where the price of the near-dated futures contract is less than the longer-dated futures contract),
any gain in value that the Holder experiences in respect of the Securities will be reduced, as the Holder's synthetic
exposure to the longer-dated futures contract is lower. The relevant provisions for Rolling Futures Contract
Securities will depend on the relevant Underlying Reference and are more fully described in Index Security
Condition 9.2 (Rolling Futures Contract Securities), or Commodity Security Condition 6 (Rolling Futures
Contract Securities), as applicable.

Futures contracts will roll on a specified date (the "Futures Rollover Date"). At each Futures Rollover Date there
may be expenses incurred in replacing the futures contract which may have an adverse effect on the return on the
Securities. Investors should be aware that in respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities, the price difference
between the futures contracts involved on each Futures Rollover Date may have a negative effect on the value of
the securities and in the long term be higher than the positive performance of the underlying and result in a total
loss of a Holder’s investment in the Securities. The effect of this will be greater the longer the term of a Holder’s
investment in Rolling Futures Contract Securities.

Additional risks associated with Listed Option Securities

An investment in Listed Option Securities will entail significant risks not associated with an investment in a
conventional debt security. On redemption or exercise, as the case may be, of Listed Option Securities, a Holder
will receive an amount (if any) determined by reference to the value of the listed option contract or basket of listed
option contracts. Accordingly, the return on Listed Option Securities will not be the same as a direct investment
in the relevant listed option contract, and could be less than a direct investment. The terms and conditions relevant
to Listed Option Securities are set out in "Annex 15— Additional Terms and Conditions for Listed Option
Securities".

Additional Risk Factors for Credit Securities
General

The Issuers may issue Certificates or Warrants where the amount payable is dependent upon whether certain
events ("Credit Events") have occurred in respect of one or more Reference Entities and, if so, on the value of
certain specified assets of such Reference Entity/Entities or (in the case of Certificates only) where, if such events
have occurred, such Issuer's obligation is to deliver certain specified assets.

Volatility

The price of such Securities may be volatile and will be affected by, amongst other things, the time remaining to
the maturity date, redemption date or expiration date and the creditworthiness of the Reference Entities, which in
turn may be affected by the economic, financial and political events in one or more jurisdictions.

Correlated Credit Risks

In purchasing Credit Securities, investors assume credit exposure to both the specified Reference Entity or
Reference Entities and the Issuer (and the Guarantor, if applicable) of the Credit Securities. The credit risk to
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investors may further be increased if the specified Reference Entity or Reference Entities are concentrated in the
same industry sector or geographic area as the Issuer (or the Guarantor, if applicable). In the case of Credit
Securities linked to more than one Reference Entity, the risks of default of such Reference Entities may be highly
correlated.

The relevant Issuer's obligations in respect of Credit Securities are irrespective of the existence or amount of the
relevant Issuer's and/or any affiliates' credit exposure to a Reference Entity, and the Issuer and/or any affiliate
need not suffer any loss nor provide evidence of any loss as a result of the occurrence of a Credit Event.

Holders are exposed to risk on Reference Entities

The holders of Credit Securities will be exposed to the credit risk of one or more Reference Entities, which
exposure shall be to the full extent of their investment in such Credit Securities. Upon the occurrence of any of
the default events comprising a Credit Event with respect to any Reference Entity, the Holders may suffer
significant losses at a time when losses may be suffered by a direct investor in obligations of such Reference
Entity. However, the holding of a Credit Security is unlikely to lead to outcomes which exactly reflect the impact
of investing in an obligation of a Reference Entity, and losses could be considerably greater than would be suffered
by a direct investor in the obligations of a Reference Entity and/or could arise for reasons unrelated to such
Reference Entity. Holders should also note that a Credit Event may occur even if the obligations of a Reference
Entity are unenforceable or their performance is prohibited by any applicable law or exchange controls.

Where Cash Settlement or Auction Settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to any
Reference Entity from time to time may result in a redemption of the Certificates in a reduced redemption amount
or at zero, and, (if applicable) in a reduction of the amount on which interest is calculated. Where Physical
Settlement applies, the occurrence of a Credit Event may result in the redemption of the Certificates based on the
valuation (or by delivery) of certain direct or indirect obligations of the affected Reference Entity, which
obligations are likely to have a market value which is substantially less than their par amount.

The holders of Warrants are exposed to the risk that an Event Determination Date does not occur during the term
of the Warrants, in which case, the Warrants may expire without payment.

Investors in the Securities are accordingly exposed, as to the redemption amount, their initial investment and
interest (if applicable), to the credit risk of the Reference Entity. The maximum loss to an investor in the Securities
is 100 per cent. of their initial investment, together with (if applicable) any interest amounts.

A Credit Event may occur prior to the Trade Date

Holders of Credit Certificates may suffer a loss of some or all of the redemption amount of the Certificates in
respect of one or more Credit Events that occur prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date. Accordingly, the Holder
of Credit Certificates will be exposed to the risk of the occurrence of any Credit Event after the applicable Credit
Event Backstop Date even if it occurs prior to the Issue Date, which may be several weeks after the Trade Date.
If the Reference Entity suffers a Credit Event prior to the Issue Date, and a Credit Event Notice, and a Notice of
Publicly Available Information (if applicable) are properly delivered, which may occur on or shortly after the
Issue Date of the Certificates, such Certificates will be subject to exercise, at or shortly after the Issue Date. No
interest will accrue on such Certificates. Neither the Calculation Agent or the relevant Issuer nor any of their
respective affiliates has any responsibility to inform any Holder, or avoid or mitigate the effects of a Credit Event
that has taken place prior to the Trade Date or the Issue Date.

Increased credit risks associated with Nth-to-Default Credit Certificates

Where the Certificates are Nth-to-Default Credit Certificates, the Certificates will be subject to redemption in full
as described above upon the occurrence of a Credit Event in relation to the nth Reference Entity. The credit risk
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to Holders may therefore be increased as a result of the concentration of Reference Entities in a particular industry
sector or geographic area or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar financial or other risks.

Credit risk may be increased where Reference Entities are concentrated in a particular Sector or region

Where the Certificates are Nth-to-Default Credit Certificates or Linear Basket Credit Certificates, the credit risk
to investors in the Certificates may be increased, amongst other things, as a result of the concentration of Reference
Entities in a particular industry sector or geographic area, or the exposure of the Reference Entities to similar
financial or other risks as other Reference Entities.

Issuer and Calculation Agent will act in their own interests

Each of the Issuer and the Calculation Agent will exercise its rights under the terms of the Securities, including in
particular the right to designate a Credit Event and the right to select obligations of the affected Reference Entity
for valuation or in respect of the Certificates, delivery, in its own interests and those of its affiliates, and not in the
interests of investors in the Securities. The exercise of such rights in such manner, for example by the selection
of the eligible obligations of the Reference Entity having (i) in the case of Certificates, the lowest possible market
value for valuation or delivery, as applicable, may result in an increased credit loss for holders of the Certificates;
or (ii) in the case of Warrants, the highest possible market value for valuation in respect of Warrants, may result
in an lower amount payable to the holder of the Warrants. The exercise of such discretion by the Issuer or
Calculation Agent could adversely affect (i) the value of the amount in cash, if any, which will be paid in respect
of any Securities on the applicable redemption date or expiration date, if any, or (ii) in the case of Certificates, the
market value of the portfolio of obligations the relevant Issuer will Deliver.

The determination by the Calculation Agent of any amount or of any state of affairs, circumstance, event or other
matter, or the formation of any opinion or the exercise of any discretion required or permitted to be determined,
formed or exercised by the Calculation Agent shall (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding on the
Holders. In performing its duties pursuant to the Securities and making any determinations expressed to be made
by it, for example, as to substitute Reference Obligations or Successors, the Calculation Agent shall act in its sole
and absolute discretion and is under no obligation to act in the interests of the Holders, nor will it be liable to
account for any profit or other benefit which may accrue to it as a result of such determinations. The Calculation
Agent is not bound to follow, or act in accordance with, any determination of the relevant Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee.

Actions of Reference Entities may affect the value of the Credit Securities

Actions of Reference Entities (for example, merger or demerger or the repayment or transfer of indebtedness)
may adversely affect the value of the Securities. Such actions may include, without limitation, a failure to make
payment in respect of outstanding indebtedness, which failure arises at the request of or by agreement with a third
party. Holders of the Securities should be aware that the Reference Entities to which the value of the Securities
is exposed, and the terms of such exposure, may change over the term of the Securities.

Payments in the Credit Securities may be deferred or suspended

In certain circumstances, for example where (a) a Credit Event has occurred and the related credit loss has not
been determined as at the relevant date for payment, (b) where a potential Credit Event exists as at the Redemption
Date of the Certificates or as at the Expiration Date of the Warrants, or (c) pending a resolution of a Credit
Derivatives Determinations Committee, payment of the redemption amount or settlement amount of the Securities
and/or interest on the Certificates may be deferred for a material period in whole or part without compensation to
the holders of the Certificates.
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Suspension of Obligations will suspend payment of principal and interest

If the Calculation Agent determines that, under the terms of the Credit Securities, the obligations of the parties
would be suspended pending a resolution of a Credit Derivatives Determination Committee all of the obligations
of the relevant Issuer under each Credit Security (including any obligation to deliver any notices, pay any interest,
principal or settlement amount or to make any delivery) shall, be and remain suspended until ISDA publicly
announces that the relevant Credit Derivatives Determination Committee has resolved the matter in question or
not to determine such matters. The Calculation Agent will provide notice of such suspension as soon as reasonably
practicable; however, any failure or delay by the Calculation Agent in providing such notice will not affect the
validity or effect of such suspension. No interest shall accrue on any payments which are suspended in accordance
with the above.

Use of Auction Settlement may adversely affect returns to Holders

Where the Credit Securities are redeemed following the occurrence of a Credit Event by reference to an auction
sponsored by ISDA, the relevant Issuer or its affiliates may act as a participating bidder in any such auction and,
in such capacity, may take certain actions which may influence the Auction Final Price including (without
limitation) submitting bids, offers and physical settlement requests with respect to the obligations of the Reference
Entity. If the relevant Issuer or its affiliates participate in an Auction, then they will do so without regard to the
interests of Holders, and such participation may have a material adverse effect on the outcome of the relevant
Auction and/or on the Credit Securities. Holders will have no right to submit bids and/or offers in an Auction.

The Auction Final Price determined pursuant to an auction may be less than the market value that would otherwise
have been determined in respect of the specified Reference Entity or its obligations. In particular, the Auction
process may be affected by technical factors or operational errors which would not otherwise apply or may be the
subject of actual or attempted manipulation. Auctions may be conducted by ISDA or by a relevant third party.
Neither the Calculation Agent, the relevant Issuer nor any of their respective affiliates has any responsibility for
verifying that any auction price is reflective of current market values, for establishing any auction methodology
or for verifying that any auction has been conducted in accordance with its rules. The relevant Issuer will have
no responsibility to dispute any determination of an Auction Final Price or to verify that any Auction has been
conducted in accordance with its rules.

Following a Restructuring Credit Event in relation to which ISDA sponsors multiple concurrent auctions, but
where there is no auction relating to credit derivative transactions with a maturity of the Credit Securities, if the
Calculation Agent exercises the right of the buyer of credit risk protection under the Credit Securities to elect that
the Auction Final Price is determined by reference to an alternative Auction, the Auction Final Price so determined
may be lower than the amount which would have been determined based on quotations sought from third party
dealers

Use of Cash Settlement may adversely affect returns to Holders

If the Securities are cash settled, then, following the occurrence of a Credit Event, the Calculation Agent will be
required to seek quotations in respect of selected obligations of the affected Reference Entity. Quotations obtained
will be (i) in the case of Certificates, "bid-side" - that is, they will be reduced to take account of a bid-offer spread
charged by the relevant dealer; or (ii) in the case of Warrants, "offer-side™. Such quotations may not be available,
or the level of such quotations may be substantially reduced or may vary substantially as a result of illiquidity in
the relevant markets or as a result of factors other than the credit risk of the affected Reference Entity (for example,
liquidity constraints affecting market dealers). Accordingly, any quotations so obtained may be significantly
different from the value of the relevant obligation which would be determined by reference to (for example) the
present value of related cash flows. Quotations will be deemed to be zero in the event that no such quotations are
available.
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"Cheapest-to-Deliver" risk for Certificates and conversely for Warrants

Since the Issuer, as buyer of protection in respect of the Certificates has discretion to choose the portfolio of
obligations to be valued or delivered following a Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity, it is likely that the
portfolio of obligations selected will be obligations of the Reference Entity with the lowest market value that are
permitted to be selected pursuant to the terms of the Securities. This could result in a lower recovery value and
hence greater losses for investors in the Certificates.

Conversely, the Issuer as seller of protection in respect of the Warrants has discretion to choose the portfolio of
obligations to be valued following a Credit Event in respect of a Reference Entity, and it is likely that the portfolio
of obligations selected will be obligations of the Reference Entity with the highest market value that are permitted
to be selected pursuant to the terms of the Warrants. This could result in a higher recovery value and hence a
lower settlement amount for investors in the Warrants.

Illegality, impossibility or impracticability of physical settlement

Where the Credit Securities provide for physical delivery, the relevant Issuer may determine that the specified
assets to be delivered are either (a) assets which for any reason (including, without limitation, failure of the
relevant clearance system or due to any law, regulation, court order or market conditions or the non-receipt of any
requisite consents with respect to the delivery of assets which are loans) it is impossible or illegal to deliver on
the specified settlement date or (b) assets which the relevant Issuer and/or any Affiliate has not received under the
terms of any transaction entered into by the relevant Issuer and/or such Affiliate to hedge such Issuer's obligations
in respect of the Credit Securities. Any such determination may delay settlement in respect of the Credit Securities
and/or cause the obligation to deliver such specified assets to be replaced by an obligation to pay a cash amount
which, in either case, may affect the value of the Credit Securities and, in the case of payment of a cash amount,
will affect the timing of the valuation of such Credit Securities and, as a result, the amount payable on redemption.
Prospective purchasers should review the Conditions and the applicable Final Terms to ascertain whether and how
such provisions should apply to the Credit Securities.

The Issuer and Calculation Agent are not obliged to disclose information on Reference Entities

The relevant Issuer and the Calculation Agent are not obliged to disclose to holders of the Securities any
information which they may have at the Issue Date or receive thereafter in relation to any Reference Entity.

Risks may be compounded

Various risks relating to the Securities may be correlated or compounded and such correlation and/or
compounding may result in increased volatility in the value of the Securities and/or in increased losses for holders
of the Securities.

The Issuer is not obliged to suffer any loss as a result of a Credit Event

Where the Securities are Single Reference Entity Credit Certificates, Nth-to-Default Credit Certificates or Linear
Basket Credit Certificates, credit losses will be calculated for the purposes of the Certificates irrespective of
whether the relevant Issuer or its affiliates has suffered an actual loss in relation to the Reference Entity or any
obligations thereof. The relevant Issuer is not obliged to account for any recovery which it may subsequently
make in relation to such Reference Entity or its obligations.

The Securities do not represent an interest in obligations of Reference Entities

The Securities do not constitute an acquisition by the holders of the Securities of any interest in any obligation of
a Reference Entity and the Holders will not have any voting or other rights in relation to such obligation. The
relevant Issuer does not grant any security interest over any such obligation.
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The value of the Securities may be adversely affected by Illiquidity or Cessation of Indices

In determining the value of the Securities, dealers may take into account the level of a related credit index in
addition to or as an alternative to other sources of pricing data. If any relevant index ceases to be liquid, or ceases
to be published in its entirety, then the value of the Securities may be adversely affected.

Historical performance may not predict future performance

Individual Reference Entities may not perform as indicated by the historical performance of similar entities and
no assurance can be given with respect to the future performance of any Reference Entities. Historical default
statistics may not capture events that would constitute Credit Events for the purposes of the Securities.

Limited provision of information about the Reference Entities

This Base Prospectus does not provide any information with respect to the Reference Entities. Investors should
conduct their own investigation and analysis with respect to the creditworthiness of Reference Entities and the
likelihood of the occurrence of a Succession Event or Credit Event.

Reference Entities may not be subject to regular reporting requirements under United Kingdom securities laws.
The Reference Entities may report information in accordance with different disclosure and accounting standards.
Consequently, the information available for such Reference Entities may be different from, and in some cases less
than, the information available for entities that are subject to the reporting requirements under the United Kingdom
securities laws. None of the Issuers or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates make any
representation as to the accuracy or completeness of any information available with respect to the Reference
Entities.

None of the Issuers or the Calculation Agent or any of their respective affiliates will have any obligation to keep
investors informed as to any matters with respect to the Reference Entities or any of their obligations, including
whether or not circumstances exist that give rise to the possibility of the occurrence of a Credit Event or a
Succession Event with respect to the Reference Entities.

Prospective investors should note that in certain circumstances, there may be no requirement for the relevant
Issuer to give information which is generally publicly available in relation to the occurrence of a Credit Event. If
a Credit Event occurs in respect of an Obligation of a Reference Entity which is not public, Holders of the
Securities may not be able to verify the occurrence of such Credit Event.

Cash settlement (whether by reference to an auction or a dealer poll) may be less advantageous than physical
delivery of assets

Payments on the Credit Securities following the occurrence of an Event Determination Date may be in cash and
will reflect the value of relevant obligations of the affected Reference Entity at a given date. Such payments may
be less than the recovery which would ultimately be realised by a holder of debt obligations of the affected
Reference Entity, whether by means of enforcement of rights following a default or receipt of distributions
following an insolvency or otherwise.

Conflicts of Interest — Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees

The relevant Issuer or any of its affiliates may act as a member of a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committees. In such case, the interests of the relevant Issuer or its affiliates may be opposed to the interests of
Holders and they will be entitled to and will act without regard to the interests of Holders.
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Rights Associated with Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees

The institutions of the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee owe no duty to the Holders and have the
ability to make determinations that may materially affect the Holders, such as the occurrence of a Credit Event or
a Succession Event. A Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee may be able to make determinations without
action or knowledge of the Holders.

Holders may have no role in the composition of any Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee. Separate
criteria apply with respect to the selection of dealer and non-dealer institutions to serve on a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee and the Holders may have no role in establishing such criteria. In addition, the
composition of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee will change from time to time in accordance with
the Rules, as the term of an institution may expire or an institution may be required to be replaced. The Holders
may have no control over the process for selecting institutions to participate on a Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee and, to the extent provided for in the Securities, will be subject to the determinations
made by such selected institutions in accordance with the Rules.

Holders may have no recourse against either the institutions serving on a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee or the external reviewers. Institutions serving on a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee and
the external reviewers, among others, disclaim any duty of care or liability arising in connection with the
performance of duties or the provision of advice under the Rules, except in the case of gross negligence, fraud or
wilful misconduct. Furthermore, the institutions on a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee do not owe
any duty to the Holders and the Holders will be prevented from pursuing claims with respect to actions taken by
such institutions under the Rules.

Holders should also be aware that institutions serving on a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee have no
duty to research or verify the veracity of information on which a specific determination is based. In addition, a
Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee is not obligated to follow previous determinations and, therefore,
could reach a conflicting determination on a similar set of facts. If the relevant Issuer or the Calculation Agent or
any of their respective affiliates serve as a member of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee at any time,
then they will act without regard to the interests of the Holders.

Holders are responsible for obtaining information relating to deliberations of a Credit Derivatives Determinations
Committee. Notices of questions referred to the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee, meetings held to
deliberate such questions and the results of binding votes will be published on the ISDA website and neither the
relevant Issuer, the Calculation Agent nor any of their respective affiliates shall be obliged to inform the Holders
of such information (other than as expressly provided in respect of the Securities. Failure by the Holders to be
aware of information relating to deliberations of a Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee will have no
effect under the Securities and Holders are solely responsible for obtaining any such information.

Investors should read the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committees Rules as amended from time to time as
set out on the ISDA website, http://www.isda.org/credit/revisedcrules.html and reach their own views prior to
making any investment decisions. Investors should however note that the Rules may subsequently be amended
from time to time without the consent or input of the Holders and the powers of the Credit Derivatives
Determinations Committee may be expanded or modified as a result.

Multiple Auctions Following Restructuring Credit Event

Where multiple concurrent Auctions are held following a Restructuring Credit Event, the relevant Issuer may be
entitled to select a particular Auction for the purposes of settlement of the Credit Securities. The relevant Issuer
will make such election acting in its own interests and not in the interests of the Holders.

67



Credit Warrants

Credit Warrants are Securities in respect of which the relevant Issuer has effectively sold protection on one or
more Reference Entities to the Holders and payments on such Warrants will depend on the occurrence of a Credit
Event with respect to such Reference Entities.

Any deterioration in the creditworthiness of a Reference Entity will increase the likelihood of a Credit Warrant
being capable of being exercised. However, any improvement in the creditworthiness of a Reference Entity may
decrease the likelihood of a Credit Warrant being exercised and as a result such improvements may adversely
affect the value of such Warrant.

In relation to any Credit Warrants, where the Credit Derivatives Determinations Committee determines that a
Restructuring Credit Event has occurred in relation to a Reference Entity and the Calculation Agent determines
that an Auction will be or has been held in relation to Deliverable Obligations which are eligible as Valuation
Obligations under the terms of the Warrants, the Warrants will be exercised by delivery of a Credit Event Notice
by the Calculation Agent (without notice from the Holder as buyer of protection). This may result in a lower
return on the Warrants than if such Warrants had not been automatically exercised in such circumstances.
Conversely, where no such Deliverable Obligations exist, the Warrants will not be exercised and will expire
worthless.

Risks relating to deposits

Certain credit linked Certificates may be linked to the creditworthiness of a financial institution at which the
Hedge Counterparty has made a deposit. Where a Credit Event occurs with respect to the relevant financial
institution (which will be the Reference Entity in respect of the Securities) and the Conditions to Settlement are
satisfied, the amount which is paid to a Holder will depend on both the fair market value of the Security (as
determined by the Calculation Agent without taking into account the credit linked provisions of the Security) and
either the proportion of the deposit which is recovered from the Reference Entity or, alternatively, if the Hedge
Counterparty transfers its rights in respect of the deposit to a third party (which may be an affiliate of the Hedge
Counterparty), the proportion of the deposit represented by the amount which is received from a third party in
respect of such transfer, in each case less costs involved in unwinding related hedging transactions or hedging
positions and as adjusted to reflect the proportion of the Securities held by an entity in the BNP Paribas Group.

Risks Relating to the Market
Certain factors affecting the value and trading price of Securities

The trading price of the Securities is affected by a number of factors including, but not limited to, the price or
level of the relevant Underlying Reference(s), the time to expiration or redemption of the Securities and the actual
or implied volatility associated with the Underlying Reference(s) and the correlation risk of the relevant
Underlying Reference(s).

The possibility that the value and trading price of the Securities will fluctuate (either positively or negatively)
depends on a number of factors, which investors should consider carefully before purchasing, exercising (in the
case of Warrants) or selling Securities, including:

@ the trading price of the Securities;

(b) depending on the applicable payout or coupon or premium amount (if applicable), movements in the
value and/or volatility of the Underlying Reference may cause the value of the Securities to either rise or
fall;
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(© depending on the applicable payout or coupon or premium amount (if applicable), the value of the
Securities may fluctuate as the time remaining until the scheduled redemption date decreases;

(d) in the case of Cash Settled Securities the probable range of Cash Settlement Amounts;

(e) depending on the applicable payout or coupon or premium amount (if applicable), movements in interest
rates and/or dividends (if applicable) may cause the theoretical value of the Securities to either rise or
fall;

§j] any change(s) in currency exchange rates;

(9) the depth of the market or liquidity of the Underlying Reference as specified in the applicable Final
Terms; and

(h) any related transaction costs.

Such factors may mean that the trading price of the Securities is below the Cash Settlement Amount or the value
of the Entitlement, as applicable and accordingly, a Holder may receive an amount or an asset with a value
significantly lower than the amount that they invested to purchase the Securities.

A Security's purchase price may not reflect its inherent value

Prospective investors in the Securities should be aware that the purchase price of a Security does not necessarily
reflect its inherent value. Any difference between a Security's purchase price and its inherent value may be due
to a number of different factors including, without limitation, prevailing market conditions and fees, discounts or
commissions paid or accorded to the various parties involved in structuring and/or distributing the Security. Any
such difference in value could negatively affect the return an investor may receive. For further information
prospective investors should refer to the party from whom they are purchasing the Securities. Prospective
investors may also wish to seek an independent valuation of Securities prior to their purchase.

Possible illiquidity of the Securities in the secondary market

For certain issues of Securities, BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. is required to act as market-maker, in which case
it will endeavour to maintain a secondary market throughout the life of the Securities. However, during certain
periods, it may be difficult, impractical or impossible for BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. to quote bid and offer
prices, and during such periods, it may be difficult, impracticable or impossible to buy or sell these Securities.
Adverse market conditions, volatile prices or large price fluctuations, a large marketplace being closed or
restricted or experiencing technical problems such as an IT system failure or network disruption could affect BNP
Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.'s ability to maintain a secondary market.

Each Issuer may, but is not obliged to, at any time purchase Securities at any price in the open market or by tender
or private offer/treaty. Any Manager may also be a market-maker for an issue of Securities but, unless Buy-back
Provisions are specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms (in which case a Manager will be a market-
maker on certain specified terms), it is not obliged to and may cease to do so at any time. Even if a Manager is a
market-maker for an issue of Securities (including where BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. acts as market-maker),
the secondary market for such Securities may be limited.

The only means through which a Holder can realise value from their Securities prior to its Redemption Date or
Exercise Date is to sell them at the market price in an available secondary market, which may be a lower price
than a Holder's original investment. If there is no or a limited secondary market for the Securities and the Holder
is unable to sell its Securities they will have to wait until redemption or exercise of the Securities to realise any
value.
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Securities sold in the United States or to U.S. persons may be subject to transfer restrictions, which will also limit
a Holder's ability to sell their Securities prior to redemption or exercise.

Effect of credit rating reduction

The value of the Securities is expected to be affected, in part, by investors' general appraisal of the creditworthiness
of the relevant Issuer and, if applicable, the Guarantor. Such perceptions are generally influenced by the ratings
attributed to the outstanding securities of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by standard statistical rating services, such as
Moody's Investors Service Ltd. ("Moody's"), S&P Global Ratings Europe Limited (*Standard & Poor's") and
Fitch Ratings Ireland Limited ("Fitch™). A reduction in the rating, if any, attributed to outstanding debt securities
of BNPP B.V. or BNPP by one of these rating agencies could result in a reduction in the trading value of the
Securities.

Risks associated with Securities with a nexus to emerging markets

Where the value and rate of return an investor can expect to receive in respect of the Securities depends on the
performance of one or more Underlying References issued by issuers located in, or subject to regulation in,
emerging or developing countries, denominated in the currency of, or are traded in, emerging or developing
countries or where the Securities are denominated in currencies of emerging or developing countries, a Holder is
exposed to greater risks associated with political and economic uncertainty, adverse governmental policies,
restrictions on foreign investment and currency convertibility, currency exchange rate fluctuations, possible lower
levels of disclosure and regulation, and uncertainties as to the status, interpretation and application of laws
including, but not limited to, those relating to expropriation, nationalisation and confiscation. A Holder of
Securities with such a nexus to emerging or developing countries is exposed to the risk that such Securities may
be less liquid and the prices of such Securities more volatile, thus increasing the risk that such Holder may
experience a loss on their investment. In addition, settlement of trades in such markets may be slower and more
likely to be subject to failure than in markets in developed countries.

Investors in such Securities should also be aware that the probability of the occurrence of a Hedging Disruption
(or other Adjustment Event under the relevant terms of the Securities as set out further in the Security Conditions)
and consequently loss of investment or profit by an investor may be higher for certain developing or emerging
markets.

Exchange control risks

There is a risk that authorities with jurisdiction over the Settlement Currency (as specified in the applicable Final
Terms) and/or the currency in which the Underlying Reference is denominated, such as government and monetary
authorities, may impose or modify (as some have done in the past) exchange controls that could adversely affect
an applicable exchange rate or the ability to transfer of funds in and out of the relevant country. Such exchange
controls, if imposed would have a negative impact on the amount a Holder is able to realise from Securities
denominated in an affected Settlement Currency or referencing an affected Underlying Reference.

Legal Risks
Meetings of Holders

The Terms and Conditions of the Securities contain provisions for calling meetings (including by way of
conference call or by use of a video conference platform) of Holders to consider matters affecting their interests
generally (see Security Condition 9 (Meetings of Holders)). These provisions permit defined majorities to bind
all Holders including Holders who did not attend and vote at the relevant meeting, Holders who voted in a manner
contrary to the majority. General meetings or written consultations may deliberate on any proposal relating to the
modification of the conditions of the Securities and subject to the limitations provided by French law. Only
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holders of French Law Securities will, in certain circumstances, be grouped for the defence of their common
interests in a separate legal entity called "Masse" (as defined in Security Condition 9.4(b) (Meetings of Holders —
French Law Securities)). While it is not possible to assess the likelihood that the Conditions will need to be
amended during the term of the Securities by a meeting of the Holders, if a decision is adopted by a majority of
Holders and such modifications impair or limit the rights of Holders, this may negatively affect the market value
of the Securities, although the probability of such a decision being taken by Holders is considered to be low.

The Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) may be substituted by another entity

The conditions of the Securities provide (except in the case of U.S. Securities) that the Issuer may, without the
consent of the Holders, agree to the substitution of another company as the principal obligor under any Securities
in place of the Issuer, subject to the conditions set out in Security Condition 13.1 (Substitution of the Issuer or the
Guarantor). In particular, where the substitute is not BNPP, BNPP will guarantee the performance of the
substitute's obligations under the Securities.

The conditions of the Securities also provide that where the Issuer is BNPP B.V., BNPP may, without the consent
of the Holders, agree to the substitution of another company as the guarantor in respect of any Securities, subject
to the conditions set out in Security Condition 13.2 (Substitution of the Issuer or the Guarantor). In particular, the
creditworthiness of the substitute guarantor must be at least equal to that of BNPP, as determined by the
Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion by reference to, inter alia, the long term senior debt ratings
(if any) assigned by Standard & Poor's, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. and/or Moody's and/or
Fitch to the substitute guarantor or, as the case may be, to BNPP.

The Issuer will give Holders notice of such substitution in accordance with General Condition 10 (Notices).
Potential Conflicts of Interest

BNPP, BNPP B.V. and/or any of their respective Affiliates or agents may engage in activities or arrangements in
a range of capacities that may result in conflicts of interest between their own financial interests and those of any
Holder, for example, by:

(i) engaging in trading activities (including hedging activities) relating to the Underlying Reference or
Reference Entity and other instruments or derivative products based on or relating to the Underlying
Reference or Reference Entity of any Securities for their proprietary accounts or for other accounts under
their management;

(i) acting in a number of different capacities in relation to an underlying Index (including a Custom Index),
including, but not limited to, as issuer of the constituents of the Index (or Custom Index, as the case may
be), index sponsor or calculation agent;

(iii) engaging in business, such as investing in, extending loans to, providing advisory services to, entering
into financing or derivative transactions with a company that has issued shares or a debt instrument, a
fund that has issued fund shares or units, an exchange traded instrument comprising the relevant
Underlying Reference or a Reference Entity;

(iv) receiving a fee for performing any services or entering into any transactions described above;

(v) publishing research reports relating to any Underlying Reference or Reference Entity, which express
views that are inconsistent with purchasing or holding the Securities; and

(vi) making determinations regarding the occurrence of various events in respect of the Securities and the
applicable consequences in its role as Calculation Agent or Issuer, as the case may be, of the Securities.
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Any of the conflicts of interest described above could have a material adverse effect on the value of the Securities
and the return a Holder can expect to receive on their Securities, as none of BNPP, BNPP B.V. and/or any of their
respective Affiliates or agents, acting in any capacity, is required to have regard to the interests of a Holder.
Investors should also refer to the description of the role of the Calculation Agent in the "Investment
Considerations" section below.

Securities are not Collective Investment Schemes

The Securities do not constitute collective investment schemes as such term is used in CISA. Accordingly, the
Securities are not subject to supervision by FINMA and Holders of the Securities do not benefit from any
protection under CISA. As such, investors are fully exposed to the Issuer's and the Guarantor's (if applicable)
insolvency risk.

Swiss Tax Aspects

Payments or credits received by a Holder of the Securities, which are considered from a Swiss tax perspective as
dividends or interest are generally subject to income tax. Gains realised upon a sale or other disposition may,
depending on the qualification of the Securities and the Holder's individual circumstances, be subject to Swiss
income tax. The tax impact on Holders of Securities in Switzerland is described generally under the section
entitled "Swiss Taxation"; however, the tax impact on an individual Holder of Securities may differ from the
situation described for Holders generally. Investors should seek their own tax advice as to the tax impact of an
investment in the Securities.

Change of law

The Terms and Conditions of English Law Securities are based on English law in effect as at the date of this Base
Prospectus. The Terms and Conditions of French Law Securities are based on French law in effect as at the date
of this Base Prospectus. No assurance can be given as to the impact of any possible judicial decision or change
to an administrative practice or change to English law or French law, as applicable, after the date of this Base
Prospectus and any such change could materially adversely impact the value of any Securities affected by it.

Termination of Securities in the event of illegality or impracticability

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become illegal, impossible
or impracticable in whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may cancel, in the case of Warrants, or redeem, in
the case of Certificates, the Securities by paying to each Holder the fair market value of such Securities less the
cost to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements. Such
cancellation or redemption may result in an investor losing some or all of their investment in the Securities.

French Insolvency Law

As a société anonyme incorporated in France, French insolvency law applies to BNP Paribas as Issuer or
Guarantor. Under French insolvency law holders of debt securities are automatically grouped into a single
assembly of holders (the "Assembly™) in order to defend their common interests if a safeguard procedure
(procédure de sauvegarde), accelerated safeguard (procédure de sauvegarde accélérée), accelerated financial
safeguard procedure (procédure de sauvegarde financiére accélérée) or a judicial reorganisation procedure
(procédure de redressement judiciaire) is opened in France with respect to the Issuer.

The Assembly comprises holders of all debt securities issued by the Issuer (including the Securities), whether or
not under a debt issuance programme and regardless of their ranking and their governing law.

The Assembly deliberates on the proposed safeguard plan (projet de plan de sauvegarde), proposed accelerated
safeguard (projet de plan de sauvegarde accélérée), proposed accelerated financial safeguard plan (projet de plan
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de sauvegarde financiére accélérée) or proposed judicial reorganisation plan (projet de plan de redressement)
applicable to BNPP and may further agree to:

- partially or totally reschedule payments which are due and/or write-off debts and/or convert debts into
equity (including with respect to amounts owed under the Securities; and/or

- establish an unequal treatment between holders of debt securities (including the Holders) as appropriate
under the circumstances.

Decisions of the Assembly will be taken by a two-thirds majority (calculated as a proportion of the amount of
debt securities held by the holders expressing a vote). No quorum is required to hold the Assembly.

For the avoidance of doubt, the provisions relating to the Masse, the General Meeting of the Holders and Written
Resolutions set out in the Conditions will not be applicable in these circumstances.

The procedures described above (as may be amended from time to time) could have an adverse impact on any
Holder seeking repayment of the Securities in the event that the Issuer or its subsidiaries were to become insolvent.

The commencement of insolvency proceedings against the Issuer would have a material adverse effect on the
market value of Securities issued by the Issuer. Any decisions taken by the Assembly could substantially impact
a Holder of the Securities and even cause them to lose all or part of their investment, should they not be able to
recover amounts due to them from the Issuer.

The implementation of the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive could materially affect the Securities and
their Holders

Directive 2014/59/EU, as amended by Directive (EU) 2019/879 of the European Parliament and of the Council
of 20 May 2019 (the "Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive" or "BRRD") provides for the establishment of
an EU-wide framework for the recovery and resolution of credit institutions and investment firms. The BRRD has
been implemented in France by several legislative texts to provide relevant resolution authorities with, among
other powers, a credible set of tools (the "BRRD Resolution Tools") to intervene sufficiently early and quickly
in an unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of that institution’s critical financial and economic
functions, while minimising the impact of its potential failure on the economy and financial system.

Following a review of BRRD, Directive no. 2019/879/EU of the European Parliament and of the Council of 20
May 2019 amending Directive 2014/59/EU as regards the loss-absorbing and recapitalisation capacity of credit
institutions and investment firms and Directive 98/26/EC ("BRRD 2") was adopted.

BRRD 2 was transposed into French law by Ordinance n°2020-1636 of 20 December 2020 relating to the
resolution regime in the banking sector and Decree n°2020-1703 of 24 December 2020 relating to the resolution
regime in the banking sector and took effect from 28 December 2020.

In respect of Securities where BNPP is the Issuer or the Guarantor, if BNPP is determined to be failing or likely
to fail within the meaning of, and under the conditions set by the BRRD, and the relevant resolution authority
applies any, or a combination, of the BRRD Resolution Tools (including, a sale of the business, the creation of a
bridge institution, asset separation or bail-in), any shortfall from the sale of BNPP's assets may lead to a partial
reduction in the outstanding amounts of certain claims of unsecured creditors of that entity (including, as the case
may be, the Securities or the Guarantee), or, in a worst case scenario, a reduction to zero. The unsecured debt
claims of BNPP (including, as the case may be, the Securities or the Guarantee) might also be converted into
equity or other instruments of ownership, in accordance with the hierarchy of claims in normal insolvency
proceedings, which equity or other instruments could also be subject to any future cancellation, transfer or dilution
(such reduction or cancellation being first on common equity tier one instruments, thereafter the reduction,
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cancellation or conversion being on additional tier one instruments, then tier two instruments and other
subordinated debts, then other eligible liabilities). The relevant resolution authority may also seek to amend the
terms (such as varying the date for expiration, settlement or redemption) of any outstanding unsecured debt
securities (including, as the case may be, the Securities or the Guarantee) (all as further described in Condition 37
(Recognition of Bail-in and Loss Absorption)).

Public financial support to resolve the Issuer (or Guarantor, as the case may be) where there is a risk of failure
will only be used as a last resort, after having assessed and applied the resolution tools above, including the bail-
in tool, to the maximum extent possible whilst maintaining financial stability.

The exercise of any power under the BRRD by the relevant resolution authority or any suggestion that such powers
may be exercised could materially adversely affect the rights of a Holder of Securities, the price or value of their
investment in the Securities and/or the ability of the Issuer or the Guarantor, as the case may be, to satisfy its
obligations under the Securities or the Guarantee, respectively. As a result, a Holder of Securities could lose all
or a substantial part of their investment in the Securities.

The regulation and reform of "benchmarks” may adversely affect the value of Securities linked to or referencing
such "benchmarks"

A number of major interest rates (including the London Inter-Bank Offered Rate ("LIBOR") and the Euro
Interbank Offered Rate ("EURIBOR™)), other rates, indices and other published values or benchmarks are the
subject of national, international and other regulatory guidance and proposals for reform. These reforms may
cause such benchmarks to perform differently than in the past, to disappear entirely or have other consequences
which cannot be predicted. Any such consequence could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return
on Securities linked to any such value or benchmark.

The Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 on indices used as benchmarks in financial instruments and financial contracts
or to measure the performance of investment funds (the "EU Benchmarks Regulation") is a key element of
ongoing regulatory reform in the EU and has applied, subject to certain transitional provisions, since 1 January
2018. In addition to so-called "critical benchmark™ indices, such as LIBOR and EURIBOR, other interest rates,
foreign exchange rates, and indices, including equity, commodity and "proprietary" indices or strategies, will in
most cases be within scope of the EU Benchmarks Regulation as "benchmarks" where they are used to determine
the amount payable under, or the value of, certain financial instruments (including securities listed on an EU
regulated market, EU multilateral trading facility ("MTF"), EU organised trading facility ("OTF") or via a
systematic internaliser). Regulation (EU) 2016/1011 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European
Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018 (the "UK Benchmarks Regulation”) is the relevant regulatory regime applicable
to, among other things, the provision of benchmarks and the use of a benchmark in the UK.

The EU Benchmarks Regulation applies to the contribution of input data to a benchmark, the administration of a
benchmark, and the use of a benchmark in the EU. Amongst other things, the EU Benchmarks Regulation requires
EU benchmark administrators to be authorised or registered as such and to comply with extensive requirements
relating to benchmark administration. It also prohibits certain uses by EU supervised entities of (a) benchmarks
provided by EU administrators which are not authorised or registered in accordance with the EU Benchmarks
Regulation and (b) benchmarks provided by non-EU administrators where (i) the administrator's regulatory regime
has not been determined to be "equivalent” to that of the EU, (ii) the administrator has not been recognised in
accordance with the EU Benchmarks Regulation, or (iii) the benchmark has not been endorsed in accordance with
the Benchmark Regulation. Similarly, the UK Benchmarks Regulation prohibits the use of in the UK by UK
supervised entities of benchmarks of administrators that are not authorised by the Financial Conduct Authority
(the "FCA™) or registered on the FCA register (or, if not based in the UK, not deemed equivalent or recognised
or endorsed).
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The EU Benchmarks Regulation and/or the UK Benchmarks Regulation, as applicable, could have a material
adverse impact on any Securities for which a request for admission to trading on a trading venue has been made,
or which are traded on a trading venue or via a "systematic internaliser” linked to, referencing or otherwise
dependent (in whole or in part) upon a "benchmark™ for the purposes of the EU Benchmarks Regulation and/or
UK Benchmarks Regulation, as applicable.

Any of the above changes or any other consequential changes to any benchmark may result in:

. the level of the published rate or the level of the "benchmark™ or the volatility of the published rate or
level being adversely affected,;

. an increase in the costs and risks of administering or otherwise participating in the setting of a
"benchmark™ and complying with such regulations or requirements;

. the "benchmarks" (including certain currencies or tenors of benchmarks) being discontinued or otherwise
unavailable, which may result in the rate of interest in respect of the Securities (if any) being determined
based on any applicable fallback provisions;

) the methodology or other terms of the benchmark being changed in order to comply with regulatory
requirements;

. the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event (as further described under "Risks associated with
the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event"” below); or

. have other adverse effects or unforeseen consequences.

Any such consequences could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on any Securities and/or
could lead to the Securities being de-listed, adjusted, cancelled or redeemed early following the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event, subject to discretionary valuation or adjustment by the Calculation Agent or
otherwise impacted depending on the particular "benchmark™ and the applicable terms of the Securities. This
could also negatively affect the liquidity of the Securities and a Holder's ability to sell their Securities in the
secondary market.

The EU Benchmarks Regulation was further amended by Regulation (EU) 2021/168 of the European Parliament
and of the Council of 10 February 2021 which introduces a harmonised approach to deal with the cessation or
wind-down of certain benchmarks (such as EURIBOR or LIBOR) by conferring the power to designate a statutory
replacement for said benchmarks on the Commission or the relevant national authority in certain circumstances,
such replacement being limited to contracts and financial instruments (such as certain Securities) which contain
no fallback provision or no suitable fallback provisions and where certain trigger events relating to non-
representativeness or cessation or wind down of the benchmark are met. In general, parties can opt out of the
statutory replacement where all parties, or the required majority of parties, to a contract or financial instrument
have agreed to apply a different replacement for a benchmark before or after entry into force of the implementing
act. A statutory replacement benchmark could have a negative impact on the value or liquidity of, and return on,
certain Securities linked to or referencing such benchmark and may not operate as intended at the relevant time
or may perform differently from the discontinued or otherwise unavailable benchmark.

In addition Regulation (EU) 2021/168 is subject to further development through delegated regulations and the
transitional provisions applicable to third-country benchmarks are extended until the end of 2023 (and the
Commission is empowered to further extend this period until the end of 2025, if necessary). There are therefore
still details to be clarified in relation to the potential impact of these legislative developments. Accordingly, there
may be a risk that a statutory replacement benchmark may be designated if, for instance, a replacement benchmark
determined in accordance with the fallback provisions is deemed unsuitable as its application no longer reflects
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or significantly diverges from the underlying market or the economic reality that the benchmark in cessation is
intended to measure (and where certain other conditions are satisfied, including one of the parties objecting to the
contractually agreed fallback).

Risks associated with the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event

If specified as an Optional Additional Disruption Event in the applicable Final Terms, the occurrence of an
Administrator/Benchmark Event (as defined in Security Condition 15 (Additional Disruption Events and Optional
Additional Disruption Events) and more fully described in the "Investment Considerations" section below) may
lead to redemption or cancellation or adjustment of the Securities. Any such redemption or cancellation or
adjustment of the Securities following the occurrence of an Administrator/Benchmark Event may have an adverse
effect on the value and liquidity of such Securities and accordingly the amount a Holder can expect to receive on
their investment.

The implementation of SOFR Replacement Conforming Changes could adversely affect Holders

Under the fallback provisions applicable to Securities that pay a floating rate of interest or premium amount by
reference to the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") (whether a compounded rate or the SOFR Index),
if a particular SOFR Replacement or SOFR Replacement Adjustment (each as defined in General Condition
32(d)(iii)(C)IV.) cannot be determined, then the next-available SOFR Replacement or SOFR Replacement
Adjustment will apply. These replacement rates and adjustments may be selected or formulated by (i) the Relevant
Governmental Body (as defined in General Condition 32(d)(iii)(C)I1I. (Interest — Screen Rate Determination —
SOFRY)), (ii) ISDA or (iii) in certain circumstances, the Calculation Agent and/or the Replacement Rate
Determination Agent.

In addition, the fallback provisions permit the Replacement Rate Determination Agent to make certain changes
(which are defined in General Condition 32(d)(iii)(C)IV. as "SOFR Replacement Conforming Changes") with
respect to, among other things, the timing and frequency of determining rates and making payments of interest.
The application of a SOFR Replacement and SOFR Replacement Adjustment and any implementation of SOFR
Replacement Conforming Changes could reduce the amount of interest payable in respect of an interest period,
which could adversely affect the return on, value of and market for the Securities. Further, there is no assurance
that the characteristics of any SOFR Replacement will be similar to the then-current SOFR benchmark that it is
replacing or that any SOFR Replacement will produce the economic equivalent of the then-current SOFR
benchmark that it is replacing.

Future discontinuance of LIBOR or EURIBOR may adversely affect the value of the Securities

As further described in the "Investment Considerations" section below, Sterling, Euro, Swiss Franc and Japanese
Yen LIBOR, across all tenors, and U.S. dollar LIBOR 1 week and 2 month tenors, will either cease to exist
entirely, or become non-representative of the underlying market and economic reality that such rates are intended
to measure, immediately after 31 December 2021, while for U.S. dollar LIBOR overnight, 1, 3, 6 and 12 month
tenors, this will occur immediately after 30 June 2023. It is not possible to predict whether, and to what extent,
panel banks will continue to provide LIBOR submissions to the administrator of LIBOR going forwards. As a
consequence, LIBOR may perform differently than it did in the past and may have other consequences which
cannot be predicted. The future of EURIBOR is also uncertain. Amongst other developments, relevant authorities
are strongly encouraging the transition away from Interbank Offered Rates ("IBORs"), such as LIBOR and
EURIBOR, and have identified "risk free rates" to eventually take the place of such IBORs as primary
benchmarks. This includes (i) for sterling LIBOR, a reformed Sterling Overnight Index Average (*SONIA™), so
that SONIA may be established as the primary sterling interest rate benchmark by the end of 2021, (ii) for EONIA
and EURIBOR, a new Euro Short-Term Rate ("€STR") as the new euro risk free rate, (iii) for USD LIBOR, SOFR
to be established as the primary U.S. dollar interest rate benchmark and (iv) for CHF LIBOR, the daily Swiss
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Average Rate Overnight ("SARON"). The risk free rates have a different methodology and other important
differences from the IBORs they will eventually replace and have little, if any, historical track record and may be
subject to changes in their methodology. It is not known whether certain IBORs will continue long-term in their
current form. Any of these developments could have a material adverse effect on the value of and return on
Securities linked to any such rates.

The reforms and eventual replacement of IBORs with risk free rates may cause the relevant IBOR to perform
differently than in the past, to disappear entirely, or have other consequences which cannot be predicted.

Investors in Securities referencing LIBOR or EURIBOR as a floating rate of interest or premium amount face the
risk that such rate will be discontinued or otherwise unavailable during the term of their Securities, in which case
the rate of interest on the Securities will be determined for the relevant period by the fall-back provisions
applicable to the Securities. Depending on the manner in which the LIBOR or EURIBOR rate is to be determined
under the Terms and Conditions, this may in certain circumstances result in (i) the application of a backward
looking, risk free overnight rate, whereas the LIBOR or EURIBOR rate is expressed on the basis of a forward
looking term and includes a risk element based on inter bank lending, (ii) result in the effective application of a
fixed rate based on the rate which applied in the previous period when LIBOR or EURIBOR was available, or
(iii) be determined by reference to an alternative rate selected by an institution with authority consistent with
industry accepted standards or, in the absence of such alternative rate, by a third party agent appointed by the
Calculation Agent. As the replacement rate will not be identical to the original rate (and may not be comparable),
any of the foregoing circumstances could have a significant adverse effect on the value or liquidity of, and return
on, the Securities. In addition, any Holder of such Securities that enter into hedging instruments based on the
original replacement reference rate may find their hedges to be ineffective, and they may incur costs replacing
such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement reference rate.

The market continues to develop in relation to SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON as reference rates for Securities
that pay a floating rate of interest

Where the applicable Final Terms specifies that the Rate of Interest in respect of the Securities will be determined
by reference to SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON, the Rate of Interest will be determined by reference to the
Compounded Daily SONIA, Weighted Average SONIA, Compounded Daily SOFR (including on the basis of the
SOFR Index published on the NY Federal Reserve Website), SOFR Arithmetic Mean, Compounded Daily €STR
or Compounded Daily SARON, as specified in the applicable Final Terms. In each case, such rate will differ from
the relevant LIBOR or EURIBOR rate in a number of material respects, including (without limitation) that
compounded daily rates or weighted average rates are backwards-looking, risk-free overnight rates and single
daily rates are risk-free overnight non-term rates, whereas LIBOR and EURIBOR are expressed on the basis of a
forward-looking term and include a risk-element based on inter-bank lending. As such, investors should be aware
that LIBOR, EURIBOR, SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON may behave materially differently as floating rates
of interest in respect of the Securities.

The ongoing development of compounded daily SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON as reference rates in the
capital markets, as well as continued development of SONIA-, SOFR-, €STR- and SARON-based rates for such
markets and the market infrastructure for adopting such rates, could result in reduced liquidity or increased
volatility or could otherwise affect the market price of any Securities that reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR or
SARON rate, as applicable.

The market, or a significant part thereof, may adopt an application of SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON that
differs significantly from that set out in the Conditions and used in relation to Securities that pay a floating rate of
interest that reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON rate issued under this Base Prospectus. Interest on
Securities which reference a SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON rate is only capable of being determined at the
end of the relevant Interest Period and shortly prior to the relevant Interest Payment Date. It may be difficult for
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investors in Securities that reference a SONIA rate to estimate reliably the amount of interest that will be payable
on such Securities, which could adversely impact the liquidity of such Securities. In contrast to Securities that pay
a floating rate of interest referencing LIBOR or EURIBOR, if Securities referencing compounded daily or single
daily SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON are redeemed early and accrued interest is payable on such redemption in
respect of a period which is not an Interest Period, the final Rate of Interest payable in respect of such Securities
will only be determined at the due date for redemption.

In addition, the manner of adoption or application of SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON reference rates in the
Eurobond markets may differ materially compared with the application and adoption of SONIA, SOFR, €STR
and SARON in other markets, such as the derivative and loan markets. Any such mismatch between the adoption
of SONIA reference rates across these markets may adversely impact any hedging or other financial arrangements
which a Holder has in connection with any acquisition, holding or disposal of any Securities referencing a SONIA,
SOFR, €STR and SARON rate and could have a material adverse impact on such Holder's investments.

To the extent the SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON rate is not published, the applicable rate to be used to calculate
the Rate of Interest in respect of an Interest Period, will be determined using the fallback provisions set out in the
Conditions. Any of these fallback provisions may result in interest payments that are lower than, or do not
otherwise correlate over time with, the payments that would have been made on the Securities if the SONIA,
SOFR, €STR or SARON rate had been published as expected as of the Issue Date of the Securities. In addition,
application of the fallback provisions may result in the effective application of a fixed rate of interest in respect
of the Securities.

Investors will not know in advance the interest amount payable on Securities which is calculated by reference to
SOFR

The rate of interest on the Securities may be calculated by reference to SOFR. Because SOFR is an overnight
funding rate, interest on Securities that reference SOFR with Interest Periods longer than overnight will be
calculated on the basis of (a) the arithmetic mean of SOFR over the relevant Interest Period, where the SOFR is
fixed for a certain number of days prior to the end of such Interest Period or (b) a compounded SOFR (i) in respect
of the Interest Period, provided that the SOFR used as the basis for calculation is that which was observed a
specified number of days prior or (ii) in respect of a period that starts a specified humber of days prior to the
relevant Interest Period and ends the same specified number of days prior to the end of such Interest Period or (c)
calculated by reference to the SOFR Index published on the NY Federal Reserve Website. As a consequence of
these calculation methods, the amount of interest payable on each interest payment date will only be known a
short period of time prior to the relevant interest payment date. Investors therefore will not know in advance the
interest or premium amount which will be payable on such Securities and there is a possibility that such amount
could be lower than expected.

Any failure of SOFR to gain market acceptance could adversely affect a Holder of Securities that pay a floating
rate of interest referencing SOFR

A Holder of Securities that pay a floating rate of interest that references SOFR are exposed to the risk that such
rate may not be widely accepted in the market. The risk of this occurring is mitigated by the fact that SOFR was
developed for use in certain U.S. dollar derivatives and other financial contracts as an alternative to LIBOR in
part because it is considered to be a good representation of general funding conditions in the overnight U.S.
Treasury repo market. However, as a rate based on transactions secured by U.S. Treasury securities, it does not
measure bank-specific credit risk and, as a result, is less likely to correlate with the unsecured short-term funding
costs of banks. This may mean that market participants would not consider SOFR to be a suitable substitute or
successor for all of the purposes for which LIBOR historically has been used (including, without limitation, as a
representation of the unsecured short-term funding costs of banks), which may, in turn, lessen its market
acceptance. Any failure of SOFR to gain or maintain market acceptance could adversely affect the return on, value
of and market for Securities that pay a floating rate of interest referencing SOFR.
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The relationship of the United Kingdom with the European Union may affect the business (including the
Securities) of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) in the United Kingdom

The United Kingdom ("UK") left the European Union ("EU") on 31 January 2020 at 11pm and the transition
period ended on 31 December 2020 at 11pm. Therefore, the Treaty on the European Union and the Treaty on the
Functioning of the European Union have ceased to apply to the UK. The European Union (Withdrawal) Act 2018
(as amended by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020) and secondary legislation made under it
ensure there is a functioning statute book in the UK.

On 24 December 2020, an agreement in principle was reached in relation to the EU-UK Trade and Cooperation
Agreement (the "Trade and Cooperation Agreement™), to govern the future relations between the EU and the
UK following the end of the transition period. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement was signed on 30 December
2020. The Trade and Cooperation Agreement has provisional application until the EU and UK complete their
ratification procedures. The consent of the European Parliament is required before the Council of the European
Union can conclude the Trade and Cooperation Agreement. At the request of the EU, the provisional application
has been extended from 28 February 2021 to 30 April 2021 to allow time for legal-linguistic revision. The Trade
and Cooperation Agreement does not create a detailed framework to govern the cross-border provision of
regulated financial services from the UK into the EU and from the EU into the UK.

Due to the on-going political uncertainty as regards the structure of the future relationship between the UK and
the EU, the precise impact on the business of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) in the United
Kingdom is difficult to determine. As such, no assurance can be given that such matters would not adversely affect
the ability of the relevant Issuer or the Guarantor (if applicable) to satisfy its obligations under any Series of
Securities with a United Kingdom nexus and/or the market value and/or the liquidity of such Securities in the
secondary market.

Risks Relating to Secured Securities

The risk factors set out below relate to Secured Securities, which are subject to the provisions set out in "Annex
12 — Additional Terms and Conditions for Secured Securities".

Shortfall on realisation of Collateral Pool

Secured Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be secured by a pool (a "Collateral Pool™) of assets (the "Collateral
Assets"). Where a default and/or insolvency event occurs with respect to BNPP B.V. and/or the Guarantor and
the security for the Secured Securities is enforced, the value realised for the Collateral Assets in the relevant
Collateral Pool may be insufficient to pay the Security Termination Amount in respect of the relevant Secured
Security, in which case a "Shortfall" will be deemed to occur unless, Physical Delivery of Collateral and Nominal
Value Collateralisation is applicable in respect of all the Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral
Pool. Under the terms of the relevant Guarantee, the Guarantor agrees to make payment of the Shortfall in respect
of each Secured Security if BNPP B.V. fails to pay such amount; however, in the event of the insolvency of BNPP
B.V. and the Guarantor, the Guarantor may not be in a position to pay all or part of any Shortfall and investors
may lose all or a substantial portion of their investment.

Where one of "Security Value Realisation Proceeds", "Nominal VValue Realisation Proceeds" or "Partial Nominal
Value Realisation Proceeds" is specified in the applicable Final Terms as the applicable Security Termination
Amount and the amount paid to a Holder is equal to such Security Termination Amount, no Shortfall will be
calculated in respect of such Secured Securities and no other amount will be payable by BNPP B.V. in respect of
such Secured Securities. In such circumstances, the amount received by a Holder following an Enforcement Event
may not be equal to the market value of the relevant Secured Security prior to the occurrence of the Enforcement
Event and may be significantly less.
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Adjustments to Collateral Pool comprised of Collateral Assets or a cash amount

If specified in the applicable Final Terms, the Collateral Pool may be adjusted following a Collateral Valuation
Date to reflect changes in (i) the amount of cash standing to the credit of the Collateral Account (the "Deposit
Amount") and/or (ii) the marked to market value of the Collateral Assets compared to the value associated with
each series of Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral Pool. Depending on the frequency of the
Collateral Valuation Date, investors may be adversely affected as they will be exposed to credit risk on BNPP
B.V. and the Guarantor to the extent of the difference between (A) the value of the Secured Securities and (B) the
Deposit Amount and/or the marked to market value of the Collateral Assets prior to any such adjustments being
made.

No adjustments to a Collateral Pool

If there are no Collateral VValuation Dates for the Secured Securities, there will be no adjustments to the Collateral
Assets in the Collateral Pool to reflect the current market value of the relevant Secured Securities at any point in
time and, as a result, the market value of the Collateral Assets may be significantly lower than the amount due on
exercise or redemption of the Secured Securities. A Holder will therefore be exposed to the difference between
such market value and the amount due on exercise or redemption of the Securities to the extent it is necessary for
the Collateral Agent to realise such Collateral Assets in connection with the exercise or redemption of the
Securities.

Fluctuations in the value of the Collateral Assets

Investors should note that the Collateral Assets may suffer a fall in value between the time at which the relevant
Pledge Agreement(s) become enforceable and the time at which the Collateral Assets are realised in full. Any
delay in realising the relevant Collateral Assets, fluctuations in the value of the Collateral Assets and/or the costs
and expenses incurred in, or relating to, any sale of relevant Collateral Assets will expose a Holder to the difference
between the value of the Secured Securities and the Realisation Amount, which may have a negative impact on
the amount a Holder receives. In extraordinary circumstances, the Collateral Assets available at the time at which
the relevant Pledge Agreement(s) become enforceable could completely lose their value by the time of the
realisation. Any such fall in value of the Collateral Assets will mean that there is less cash available to BNPP B.V.
to make payments and increase the Holder’s risk on the Guarantor to make payments.

Lack of diversification of the Collateral Assets

The Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool may (including where Limited Diversification is specified as being
applicable in the applicable Final Terms) be limited to one or a few assets or the same or a small number of types
of asset between which there is a correlation in respect of value or risk or such assets may be issued by the same
issuer or a small number of issuers, or by the same or a small number of types of issuer which may operate in
similar or related business sectors. As a result of such limited diversification, the amount recovered in respect of
the Collateral Assets on their sale will be dependent on the then current market value of a smaller number or type
of Collateral Assets and/or Collateral Assets issued by a smaller number of issuers or type of issuers and this may
increase the risk that the proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets may be less than the sums due to the
relevant Holder under the relevant Secured Securities and accordingly, a Holder may receive less than anticipated
or may receive nothing.

Cross default

Following the occurrence of an Enforcement Event in respect of any Collateral Pool, the Collateral Agent will
realise the Collateral Assets for all Collateral Pools or will cause such Collateral Assets to be realised. Where the
Collateral Assets are securities, liquidation of all the Collateral Assets simultaneously could potentially lead to a
reduction in the market value of some or all of the Collateral Assets and this would increase the risk that the

80



proceeds of realisation of the Collateral Assets may be less than the sums due to the relevant Holder under the
relevant Secured Securities and accordingly, a Holder may receive less than anticipated or may receive nothing.

Risk of a delay in the realisation of the Collateral Assets in the event of the insolvency of BNPP B.V.

In the event of the insolvency of BNPP B.V., the realisation of the Collateral Assets may be delayed either by the
insolvency administrator appointed in relation to BNPP B.V. or by measures ordered by a competent court. Such
delay could adversely affect the position of the Holder in the event of the Collateral Assets falling in value during
such delay. In addition, as the Collateral Agent and BNPP B.V. are part of the Group, in the event of the
insolvency of BNPP B.V., it is also possible that the Collateral Agent may be insolvent. Such circumstances may
lead to an inability to realise the Collateral Assets and/or a delay in the realisation of the Collateral Assets.

Illiquid Collateral Assets

The Collateral Assets in some Collateral Pools may comprise assets which are not admitted to any public trading
market and may therefore be illiquid and not readily realisable. Where there is limited liquidity in the secondary
market relating to Collateral Assets, the Collateral Agent (or its agent) may not be able to sell such Collateral
Assets to a third party and distribute the net proceeds to the Holder. As a result, the Holder may be adversely
affected, as they may not receive payments in respect of their Secured Securities until such Collateral Assets
mature or are redeemed in accordance with their terms. The maturity date of such Collateral Assets may be after
the date of redemption or termination of the relevant Secured Securities.

Subordination of the Holder to payment of expenses and other payments

On enforcement of the relevant Pledge Agreement(s) or other applicable security agreements, the rights of the
Holder to be paid amounts from the proceeds of such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral Assets may be
subordinate to (i) any fees and expenses incurred in such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral Assets and
(ii) prior rights of the parties (if any) identified in the applicable Priority of Payments or in the applicable Collateral
Security Conditions (which may, without limitation, include the Swap Counterparty and/or Repo Counterparty
(in each case to the extent appointed or applicable to a series of Secured Securities) to be paid amounts due from
BNPP B.V. in priority to the Holder from the proceeds of such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral
Assets. Such amounts which may be paid in priority may include, without limitation, termination payments due
from BNPP B.V. to the Repo Counterparty under any Repurchase Agreement entered into with respect to such
series of Secured Securities and/or termination payments due from BNPP B.V. to the Swap Counterparty under
any Swap Agreement entered into with respect to such series of Secured Securities. Where other parties are paid
amounts in priority to the Holder from the proceeds of such enforcement and realisation of the Collateral Assets,
this will reduce the amount available to be paid to the Holder in the event of enforcement of the security and
increase the likelihood of the Holder suffering a loss.

Physical Delivery of Collateral

If Physical Delivery of Collateral is specified in respect of a series of Secured Securities upon enforcement of the
Pledge Agreement, the Collateral Agent will not sell the Collateral Assets which are subject to such physical
delivery (unless there is a Collateral Settlement Disruption Event) but will deliver the Collateral Assets in the
manner set out in the Collateral Security Conditions. In such cases, investors wishing to sell Collateral Assets
before their scheduled redemption date may not be able to realise an amount equal to the nominal amount of the
relevant Collateral Assets which they have received on the secondary market prior to the Redemption Date and
such Holder will be exposed to fluctuations in the price of the Collateral Assets according to market conditions,
which may negatively affect the return they receive.
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Collateral Settlement Disruption Event

When Physical Delivery of Collateral is applicable, if a Collateral Settlement Disruption Event occurs or exists
on the Collateral Delivery Date, settlement will be postponed until the next Business Day on which there is no
Collateral Settlement Disruption Event. If such Collateral Settlement Disruption Event continues for a period of
not more than eight Business Days after the original Collateral Delivery Date, the Collateral Agent will arrange
for the sale of such Collateral Assets instead of delivery of the relevant Collateral Assets which are due to be
delivered in accordance with the relevant Collateral Security Conditions. The amount received by a Holder
following such sale of Collateral Assets may be lower than the amount which a Holder would have received if the
relevant Collateral Assets had been delivered to it and the Holder held the relevant Collateral Assets to the maturity
date of such assets or sold such assets at a different point in time.

Credit risk on the Reference Collateral Asset Issuer

In the case of Collateral Asset Linked Securities, upon the occurrence of any Collateral Asset Default or Collateral
Default Event, the Holder may suffer significant losses at a time when losses may be suffered by a direct investor
in obligations of such Reference Collateral Asset Issuer. However, the holding of a Collateral Asset Linked
Security is unlikely to lead to outcomes which exactly reflect the impact of directly investing in the Reference
Collateral Assets, and losses borne by a Holder could be considerably greater than would be suffered by a direct
investor in the Reference Collateral Assets and/or could arise for reasons unrelated to such Reference Collateral
Assets. A Holder should also note that a Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event may occur even if
the obligations of the Reference Collateral Asset Issuer under the Reference Collateral Assets are unenforceable
or their performance is prohibited by any applicable law or exchange controls.

Consultation Period

Where a Distributor is specified in the applicable Final Terms for a series of Collateral Asset Linked Securities
and a Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event, as applicable, may have occurred, the Calculation
Agent will consult with the Distributor as to whether a Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event, as
applicable, has occurred for a period of up to five Business Days. If the Calculation Agent and the Distributor do
not agree whether a Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event, as applicable, has occurred, the
Calculation Agent will obtain the views of three participants in the relevant market for the Reference Collateral
Assets as to whether a Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event, as applicable, has occurred. If a
Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event, as applicable, has occurred, the requirement to consult with
the Distributor and, potentially, with market participants could lead to a delay in BNPP B.V. redeeming the
Collateral Asset Linked Securities and as a consequence a Holder may potentially suffer a loss if the value of the
Option and/or the Reference Collateral Assets decline in the period when the relevant consultation(s) is taking
place.

Risks associated with credit risk retention

The Secured Securities sold as part of the initial distribution of any Secured Securities may not be purchased by
any person except for persons that are not "U.S. persons™ as defined in the U.S. Risk Retention Rules, or "Risk
Retention U.S. Persons". "U.S. Risk Retention Rules" means Regulation RR (17 C.F.R Part 246) implementing
the risk retention requirements of Section 15G of the U.S. Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. It is not
certain whether the foreign transaction safe harbor exemption from the U.S. Risk Retention Rules will be
available. Failure of the offering to comply with the U.S. Risk Retention Rules (regardless of the reason for the
failure to comply) could give rise to regulatory action which may adversely affect the Secured Securities.
Furthermore, the impact of the U.S. Risk Retention Rules on the securitization markets generally is uncertain, and
a failure by a transaction to comply with the U.S. Risk Retention Rules could negatively affect the market value
and secondary market liquidity of the Secured Securities.
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Certain Additional Risk Factors associated with Warrants
Limitations on Exercise of Warrants

If so indicated in the Final Terms, the Issuer will have the option to limit the number of Warrants exercisable on
any date (other than the final exercise date) to the maximum number specified in the Final Terms and, in
conjunction with such limitation, to limit the number of Warrants exercisable by any person or group of persons
(whether or not acting in concert) on such date. In the event that the total number of Warrants being exercised on
any date (other than the final exercise date) exceeds such maximum number and the Issuer elects to limit the
number of Warrants exercisable on such date, a Holder may not be able to exercise on such date all the Warrants
that such Holder desires to exercise delaying the point at which a Holder may realise a return on the Warrants.

Minimum Exercise Amount of Warrants

If so indicated in the Final Terms, a Holder must tender or, in the case of automatic exercise, hold, a specified
number of Warrants at any one time in order to exercise. Thus, a Holder with fewer than the specified minimum
number of Warrants will either have to sell their Warrants or purchase additional Warrants, incurring transaction
costs in each case, in order to realise their investment. Furthermore, holders of such Warrants incur the risk that
there may be differences between the trading price of such Warrants and the Cash Settlement Amount (in the case
of Cash Settled Warrants) or the value of the Entitlement (in the case of Physical Delivery Warrants) of such
Warrants.

Time Lag after Exercise of Warrants

Delivery of an Exercise Notice by a Holder will constitute an irrevocable election to exercise the relevant
Warrants. After the delivery of an Exercise Notice, such Holder will not be able to transfer the Warrants that have
been exercised. there will be a time lag between the time a Holder gives instructions to exercise and the time the
applicable Cash Settlement Amount (in the case of Cash Settled Warrants) relating to such exercise is determined.
Such delay could be significantly longer, particularly in the case of a delay in the exercise of Warrants arising
from any daily maximum exercise limitation, the occurrence of a Market Disruption Event or the failure to open
of an exchange (if applicable) or following the imposition of any exchange controls or other similar regulations
affecting the ability to obtain or exchange any relevant currency (or basket of currencies) in the case of Currency
Securities. The applicable Cash Settlement Amount may change significantly during any such period, and such
movement or movements could decrease the Cash Settlement Amount of the relevant Warrants, and may result in
such Cash Settlement Amount being zero.

Risks associated with Securities denominated in Renminbi

Renminbi is not completely freely convertible at present. The PRC government continues to regulate conversion
between Renminbi and foreign currencies, including the Hong Kong dollar, although control by the PRC
government over routine foreign exchange transactions under current accounts has decreased over the years.

Remittance of Renminbi into and out of the PRC for the purposes of capital account items, such as debt financing,
capital contributions, derivative products and loans, and securities investments, is generally only permitted upon
obtaining specific approvals from, or completing specific registrations or filings with, the relevant authorities on
a case-by-case basis and is subject to strict monitoring system.

From 1 October 2016 Renminbi was added to the Special Drawing Rights basket created by the International
Monetary Fund; however, there is no assurance that the PRC government will continue to gradually liberalise the
control over cross-border Renminbi remittances in the future or that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated
in the future which have the effect of restricting or eliminating the remittance of Renminbi into or outside the
PRC. Such restrictions may negatively affect the liquidity and value of Securities denominated in Renminbi.
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As a result of the restrictions by the PRC government on cross-border Renminbi fund flows, the availability of
Renminbi outside of the PRC is limited. Currently, financial institutions in a number of financial centres and cities
(each a "RMB Clearing Bank™) have entered into settlement agreements (the "Settlement Agreements™) with
the People's Bank of China ("PBOC") to act as the RMB clearing bank.

However, the current size of Renminbi-denominated financial assets outside the PRC is limited. Renminbi
business participating banks do not have direct Renminbi liquidity support from PBOC and the relevant RMB
Clearing Bank only has access to onshore liquidity support from PBOC to square open positions of participating
banks for limited types of transactions, including open positions resulting from conversion services for
corporations relating to cross-border trade settlement. The relevant RMB Clearing Bank is not obliged to square
for participating banks any open positions resulting from other foreign exchange transactions or conversion
services and the participating banks will need to source Renminbi from the offshore market to square such open
positions.

Although it is expected that the offshore Renminbi market will continue to grow in depth and size, its growth is
subject to many constraints as a result of PRC laws and regulations on foreign exchange. There is no assurance
that new PRC regulations will not be promulgated or the Settlement Agreements will not be terminated or
amended in the future which will have the effect of further restricting availability of Renminbi offshore. The
limited availability of Renminbi outside the PRC may affect the liquidity of the Securities. To the extent the Issuer
is required to source Renminbi in the offshore market to service its Securities, there is no assurance that the Issuer
will be able to source such Renminbi on satisfactory terms, if at all. If Renminbi is not available, in certain
circumstances as described in the Conditions applicable to the Securities, the Issuer can make payments under the
Securities in the Equivalent Amount Settlement Currency, which may negatively affect the amount a Holder
receives in respect of Securities denominated in Renminbi.
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INVESTMENT CONSIDERATIONS
1. General investment considerations associated with the Securities
Securities (other than Secured Securities) are Unsecured Obligations

Unless the Securities are Secured Securities, the Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the
relevant Issuer and will rank pari passu with themselves. Each issue of Securities issued by BNPP B.V. will be
guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to the English Law Guarantee for Unsecured Securities, in the case of English Law
Securities, the French Law Guarantee for Unsecured Securities, in the case of French Law Securities or the Dutch
Law Guarantee, in the case of Dutch Law warrants, the Dutch Law Guarantee for Unsecured Securities. The
obligations of BNPP under the Guarantees are senior preferred obligations within the meaning of Article L.613-
30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier) and unsecured obligations of BNPP and will rank pari passu
with all its other present and future senior preferred and unsecured obligations, subject to such exceptions as may
from time to time be mandatory under French law.

Description of the role of the Calculation Agent

€)] The Calculation Agent may be an Affiliate of the relevant Issuer or, if applicable, the Guarantor, or the
Calculation Agent may be the Issuer itself or, if applicable, the Guarantor itself. The Calculation Agent
is under no obligation to take into account the interests of any Holder of the Securities, including with
respect to making certain determinations and judgments, such as whether an event, including a Market
Disruption Event, a Settlement Disruption Event or Credit Event (each, as defined in the Conditions),
has occurred and, in some cases, the applicable consequences.

(b) The Calculation Agent is obliged to carry out its duties and functions as calculation agent acting in good
faith and in a commercially reasonable manner.

Investors should also refer to "Potential Conflicts of Interest” in the "Risks" section.
Recognition of English court judgments at the end of the United Kingdom'’s Brexit Transition Period

On 31 January 2020, the United Kingdom (the "UK") formally left the European Union. Pursuant to a treaty
entitled "the Agreement on the withdrawal of the United Kingdom of Great Britain and Northern Ireland from the
European Union and the European Atomic Energy Community” (the "Withdrawal Agreement"), the UK and the
EU agreed to an implementation period, ending on 31 December 2020 (the "Transition Period"). The Withdrawal
Agreement was incorporated into English law by the European Union (Withdrawal Agreement) Act 2020.

As a result of leaving the EU, the UK is no longer bound by the provisions of Regulation (EU) No 1215/2012 (the
"Brussels Recast"), a formal reciprocal regime between EU Member States on the allocation of jurisdiction and
the mutual recognition and enforcement of Member State judgments. This regime is no longer applied by English
courts, save in relation to legacy cases (i.e. those cases where proceedings were initiated prior to the end of the
Transition Period). As a further consequence, English judgments will no longer be recognised and enforced in EU
Member State courts under this regime, again, save for legacy cases where English judgments are issued in
proceedings commenced prior to the end of the Transition Period.

Upon leaving the EU, the UK also ceased to be a member of another convention on the allocation of jurisdiction
and the mutual enforcement of contracting state court judgments, the Lugano Convention 2007 (the "Lugano
Convention"). The EU, Switzerland, Iceland and Norway are members of the Lugano Convention and the UK
has applied to re-join this convention. As of the date of this Base Prospectus, the UK's application is pending. As
the UK is no longer a Lugano contracting state, English judgments cannot be enforced under this regime in other
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contracting states, although Norway has put in place arrangements with the UK for the reciprocal enforcement of
judgments.

Investors should also note that on 1 January 2021 the UK re-joined the Hague Convention on Choice of Court
Agreements 2005 (the "Hague Convention™) as a sovereign state. The Hague Convention is another international
convention on the jurisdiction and the reciprocal enforcement of contracting state judgments. The Hague
Convention requires contracting states to respect exclusive jurisdiction clauses in favour of other contracting state
courts and to enforce resulting judgments. The EU, Mexico, Montenegro and Singapore are currently contracting
states.

Accordingly, English judgments issued by an English court pursuant to an exclusive jurisdiction clause entered
into after 1 January 2021 should be recognised and enforced in EU states (and Mexico, Montenegro and
Singapore) under the Hague Convention, subject to standard exceptions. It is generally considered that the Hague
Convention only covers exclusive jurisdiction clauses and resulting judgments (although, investors should note
that there are some matters, such as certain company matters that are outside the scope of the Hague Convention).
There remains uncertainty as to whether the Hague Convention would be applied by Member State courts in
respect of exclusive jurisdiction clauses entered into between 1 October 2015 (when the EU joined the
Convention) and 31 December 2020. The UK has legislated to confirm such clauses would be treated as being
with the Hague Convention. Although the grounds upon which enforcement may be refused under the Hague
Convention are in substance similar to those under the Brussels Recast, the Hague Convention is new and therefore
there may be some uncertainty as to how Member State courts apply these provisions, at least initially.

Where English jurisdiction clauses and judgments are not within the scope of the Hague Convention, it will be
necessary to consider the applicable national law rules.

2. Investment considerations associated with certain rates
Additional information on the future discontinuance of LIBOR

On 27 July 2017, the Chief Executive of the United Kingdom Financial Conduct Authority (the "FCA"™), which
regulates LIBOR, announced that it does not intend to continue to persuade, or use its powers to compel, panel
banks to submit rates for the calculation of LIBOR to the administrator of LIBOR after 2021 (the "FCA
Announcements™). The FCA Announcement indicates that the continuation of LIBOR on the current basis is not
guaranteed after 2021.

Specifically, the sustainability of LIBOR has been questioned as a result of the absence of relevant active
underlying markets and possible disincentives (including possibly as a result of benchmark reforms) for market
participants to continue contributing to such benchmarks.

On 29 November 2017, the FCA announced that its Working Group on Sterling Risk-Free Rates was to be
mandated with implementing a broad-based transition to the SONIA over the next four years across sterling bond,
loan and derivative markets, so that SONIA is established as the primary sterling interest rate benchmark and
regulators in the United Kingdom continue to seek the replacement of LIBOR by the end of 2021. On 5 March
2021, ICE Benchmark Administration Limited ("IBA"), the administrator of LIBOR, published a statement
confirming its intention to cease publication of all LIBOR settings together with the dates on which this will occur,
subject to the FCA exercising its powers to require IBA to continue publishing such LIBOR settings using a
changed methodology (the "IBA Announcement"). Concurrently, the FCA published a statement on the future
cessation and loss of representativeness of all LIBOR currencies and tenors, following the dates on which IBA
has indicated it will cease publication (the "FCA Announcement™).

Permanent cessation will occur immediately after 31 December 2021 for all Euro and Swiss Franc LIBOR tenors
and certain Sterling, Japanese Yen and U.S. dollar LIBOR settings and immediately after 30 June 2023 for certain
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other U.S. dollar LIBOR settings. In relation to the remaining LIBOR settings (1-month, 3-month and 6-month
Sterling, U.S. dollar and Japanese Yen LIBOR settings), the FCA will consult on, or continue to consider the case
for, using its powers to require IBA to continue their publication under a changed methodology for a further period
after end-2021 (end-June 2023 in the case of U.S. dollar LIBOR). The FCA Announcement states that
consequently, these LIBOR settings will no longer be representative of the underlying market that such settings
are intended to measure immediately after 31 December 2021, in the case of the Sterling and Japanese Yen LIBOR
settings and immediately after 30 June 2023, in the case of the USD LIBOR settings. Any continued publication
of the Japanese Yen LIBOR settings will also cease permanently at the end of 2022.

Separately, the euro risk free-rate working group for the euro area has published a set of guiding principles and
high level recommendations for fallback provisions in, amongst other things, new euro denominated cash products
(including bonds) referencing EURIBOR. The guiding principles indicate, amongst other things, that continuing
to reference EURIBOR in relevant contracts (without robust fallback provisions) may increase the risk to the euro
area financial system. On 11 May 2021, the euro risk-free rate working group published its recommendations on
EURIBOR fallback trigger events and fallback rates.

Investors should be aware that, if LIBOR (or EURIBOR) were discontinued or otherwise unavailable, the relevant
rate in respect of the Securities will be determined for the relevant period by the fall-back provisions applicable
to the Securities, as further described in the Conditions.

Additional information on the development of SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON as reference rates

Holders of Securities that reference SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON should be aware that the market continues
to develop in relation to SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON, respectively, as reference rates in the capital markets
and their adoption as an alternative to GBP-LIBOR, USD-LIBOR, EURIBOR and CHF-LIBOR, respectively.
For example, in the context of backwards-looking rates, market participants and relevant working groups are
currently assessing the differences between compounded rates and weighted average rates and the basis on which
to determine them, and such groups are also exploring forward-looking "term" SONIA, SOFR, €STR and SARON
reference rates; although, it is not known when these will be developed and whether they will be adopted by the
markets. The adoption of SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON may also see component inputs into swap rates or
other composite rates transferring from LIBOR, EURIBOR or another reference rate to SONIA, SOFR, €STR or
SARON, as applicable.

In connection with the development of the market in relation to SONIA as a reference rate in the capital markets
and its adoption as an alternative to Sterling LIBOR, market participants and relevant working groups are
exploring alternative reference rates based on SONIA, including term SONIA reference rates (which seek to
measure the market's forward expectation of an average SONIA rate over a designated term). The ongoing
development of Compounded Daily SONIA as an interest reference rate for the Eurobond markets, as well as
continued development of SONIA-based rates for such markets and the market infrastructure for adopting such
rates, could result in reduced liquidity or increased volatility or could otherwise affect the market price of the
Securities. The current expectation is that SONIA, which is, at present only available as an overnight rate will
replace LIBOR, which generally has a term of one, three or six months.

In the United States, the Alternative Reference Rates Committee (the "ARRC") is a group of private-market
participants convened by the Federal Reserve Board (the "FRB") and the New York Federal Reserve to oversee
the transition from U.S. dollar LIBOR to its recommended alternative, SOFR.

Separate workstreams are also underway in Europe to reform EURIBOR using a hybrid methodology and to
provide a fallback by reference to a euro risk free rate (which is expected to be €STR). The guiding principles
indicate, among other things, that continuing to reference EURIBOR in relevant contracts may increase the risk
to the euro area financial system. On 25 November 2020, the euro risk-free rate working group published
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consultations on EURIBOR fallback trigger events and fallback rates. The final recommendations are expected to
be published during the second quarter of 2021.

The market, or a significant part thereof, may adopt an application of SONIA, SOFR or €STR that differs
significantly from the methodology set out in the Conditions.

In Switzerland, the National Working Group on Swiss Franc Reference Rates has recommended a transition from
CHF LIBOR to SARON.

If LIBOR, EURIBOR or any other benchmark is discontinued, the applicable underlying interest rate may be
changed

In respect of Securities which pay a floating rate of interest, if the Issuer or the Calculation Agent determines at
any time that the relevant reference rate has been discontinued, the Calculation Agent will use, as a substitute for
the relevant reference rate, the alternative reference rate selected by the central bank, reserve bank, monetary
authority or any similar institution in the jurisdiction of the currency of the relevant rate that is consistent with
industry accepted standards. If the Calculation Agent notifies the Issuer that it is unable to determine such an
alternative reference rate, the Calculation Agent will appoint a determination agent (which may be the Issuer, the
Guarantor (if applicable) or an affiliate of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or the Calculation Agent) who
will determine a replacement reference rate, as well as any required changes to the business day convention, the
definition of business day, the determination date, the day count fraction and any method for calculating the
replacement rate including any adjustment required to make such replacement reference rate comparable to the
relevant reference rate. Such replacement reference rate will (in the absence of manifest error) be final and binding,
and will apply to the relevant Securities.

The replacement rate may perform differently from the discontinued reference rate. There can be no assurance
that any adjustment applied to any Securities will adequately compensate for this impact.

The conditions also provide for other fallbacks, such as consulting reference banks for rate quotations, which may
not be possible if the reference banks decline to provide such quotations for a sustained period of time (or at all).
If the relevant screen page for the reference rate is not available or it is not possible to obtain quotations then the
Calculation Agent will determine the relevant rate of interest for the affected Securities as the rate it determines
was last available prior to such non-availability. Investors should note that the replacement rate may be different
to the original rate.

It is possible that, if a reference rate is discontinued, a clear successor rate will not be established in the market
for some time. Accordingly, the terms of the Securities provide as an ultimate fallback that, following the
designation of a replacement rate, if the Calculation Agent or the determination agent appointed by the Calculation
Agent considers that such replacement reference rate is no longer substantially comparable to the original
reference rate or does not constitute an industry accepted successor rate, the Calculation Agent will appoint or re-
appoint a determination agent (which may or may not be the same entity as the original determination agent) for
the purposes of confirming the replacement reference rate or determining a substitute replacement reference rate
(despite the continued existence of the initial replacement reference rate). Any such substitute replacement
reference rate, once designated pursuant to the Conditions, will apply to the affected Securities. This could impact
the relevant rate in respect of the Securities. In addition, any Holder of such Securities that enter into hedging
instruments based on the original replacement reference rate may find their hedges to be ineffective, and they may
incur costs replacing such hedges with instruments tied to the new replacement reference rate.

Additional considerations associated with Securities that pay a floating rate of interest referencing SOFR

SOFR is a relatively new rate. The NY Federal Reserve began to publish SOFR in April 2018. Although the NY
Federal Reserve has published historical indicative SOFR information going back to 2014, such prepublication
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historical data inherently involves assumptions, estimates and approximations. Investors should not rely on any
historical changes or trends in SOFR as an indicator of the future performance of SOFR. Since the initial
publication of SOFR, daily changes in the rate have, on occasion, been more volatile than daily changes in other
benchmark or market rates. As a result, the return on and value of Securities that pay a floating rate of interest or
premium amount by reference to SOFR ("SOFR-Linked Securities") may fluctuate more than floating rate debt
securities that are linked to less volatile rates.

Because SOFR is a relatively new market index, SOFR-Linked Securities will likely have no established trading
market when issued, and an established trading market may never develop or may not be very liquid. Market terms
for debt securities indexed to SOFR, such as the spread over the base rate reflected in the interest rate provisions,
may evolve over time, and trading prices of SOFR-Linked Securities may be lower than those of later-issued
SOFR-linked debt securities as a result. Similarly, if SOFR does not prove to be widely used in securities like the
Securities, the trading price of SOFR-Linked Securities may be lower than those of securities linked to rates that
are more widely used. Investors may not be able to sell SOFR-Linked Securities at all or may not be able to sell
such Securities at prices that will provide a yield comparable to similar investments that have a developed
secondary market, and may consequently suffer from increased pricing volatility and market risk.

The manner of adoption or application of reference rates based on SOFR in the bond market may differ materially
compared with the application and adoption of SOFR in other markets, such as the derivatives and loan markets.
Investors should carefully consider how any potential inconsistencies between the adoption of reference rates
based on SOFR across these markets may impact any hedging or other financial arrangements which they may
put in place in connection with any acquisition, holding or disposal of the SOFR-Linked Securities.

The NY Federal Reserve notes on its publication page for SOFR that use of SOFR is subject to important
limitations, including that the NY Federal Reserve may alter the methods of calculation, publication schedule,
rate revision practices or availability of SOFR at any time without notice. There can be no guarantee that SOFR
will not be discontinued or fundamentally altered in a way that affects the value of the Securities. If the manner
in which SOFR is calculated is changed or if SOFR is discontinued, that change or discontinuance may result in
a reduction or elimination of the amount of interest payable on SOFR-Linked Securities and a reduction in the
trading prices of such Securities.

SOFR differs fundamentally from, and may not be a comparable substitute for, LIBOR.

In June 2017, ARRC convened by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System and the NY Federal
Reserve announced SOFR as its recommended alternative to the London interbank offered rate for U.S. dollar
obligations. However, because SOFR is a broad U.S. Treasury repo financing rate that represents overnight
secured funding transactions, it differs fundamentally from LIBOR. For example, SOFR is a secured overnight
rate, while LIBOR is an unsecured rate that represents interbank funding over different maturities. In addition, at
present, SOFR is calculated on a backward-looking basis, whereas LIBOR is forward-looking. Because of these
and other differences, there can be no assurance that SOFR will perform in the same way as LIBOR would have
done at any time, and there is no guarantee that it is a comparable substitute for LIBOR.

3. Investment considerations associated with adjustment, disruption and related cancellation
provisions in respect of the Securities

Description of Additional Disruption Event and Optional Additional Disruption Events

The Additional Disruption Events correspond to changes in law (including changes in tax or regulatory capital
requirements) and hedging disruptions in respect of any hedging transactions relating to the Securities. The
Optional Additional Disruption Events that may be specified in the applicable Final Terms correspond to the
occurrence of an event relating to benchmark reform (including a material change, permanent cancellation or issue
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with any official authorisation of the benchmark, administrator or sponsor) (an Administrator/Benchmark Event),
an early redemption of any Debt Instruments (a Cancellation Event), an issue converting or determining a rate for
a currency (a Currency Event), a failure to deliver assets comprising the Entitlement in the case of Physical
Delivery Securities (a Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity), a materially increased cost of hedging (an Increased
Cost of Hedging), an increase in the rate to borrow any relevant share or any component of an Index (an Increased
Cost of Stock Borrow), circumstances where it is impracticable, illegal or impossible to purchase, sell, hold or
otherwise deal in the Underlying Reference (a Jurisdiction Event), insolvency of the relevant Share Company or
Basket Company (an Insolvency Filing), an inability to borrow any relevant share (a Loss of Stock Borrow) and/or
a drop in the price of a Share below 5 per cent. (or such other value specified in the applicable Final Terms) of its
Strike Price (a Stop-Loss Event). Each of the Additional Disruption Events and Optional Additional Disruption
Events are both more fully set out in the Conditions.

Consequences of a Disrupted Day

The occurrence of a Disrupted Day may delay the determination of the final level, value, price or amount of the
index, share, ET1 interest, debt instrument, future, commodity or commodity index which could also cause a delay
in the payment of any Cash Settlement Amount, as more fully set out in the Conditions.

4, Investment considerations associated with Securities linked to the performance of one or more
Underlying References

Additional investment considerations in respect of Index Securities

In respect of Index Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case may
be, determined by reference to the value of the underlying index/indices. Such underlying index may be a well
known and widely published index or an index which may not be widely published or available. The index may
reference, among other asset types, equities, bonds, currency exchange rates, or other securities or it may be a
property index referencing certain property price data which will be subject to market price fluctuations, or
reference a number of different assets or indices. A property index may include valuations only and not actual
transactions and the property data sources used to compile the index may be subject to change.

Index Securities linked to a custom index are linked to a proprietary index which may be sponsored and/or
calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its Affiliates. Pursuant to the operational rules of the relevant custom index,
the custom index is scheduled to be calculated on a periodic basis (for example on each weekday). In the event
that one of the levels, values or prices of a component included in the custom index is not available for any reason
on a relevant day of calculation including, without limitation, (a) because such day is a non-scheduled trading day
in respect of that index component or (b) that index component is subject to a market disruption, then the
Calculation Agent of the custom index may, but will not be obliged to, calculate the level of the custom index on
a different basis (for example by taking a value for the affected index component from the first preceding day on
which a level for such affected index component was available). Such an occurrence may potentially result in a
delay in the publication of the index and the level of the index may be affected.

Components of certain custom indices may be subject to regular rebalancing in accordance with the methodology
of the index. As part of the rebalancing, components may be added to or removed from the index or their weights
adjusted. The components which are included in the index and the weight assigned to each component may be
determined either wholly or partially by reference to criteria specified in the index and/or one or more lists of
assets (including, without limitation, research lists, analytical reports or "top picks" guides), which are published
by a third party unconnected with the index. If a third party is compiling the list of assets such third party may
exercise its discretion to determine which assets are included in such list. The index methodology may apply
objective filters to these lists of assets, to determine which assets are included as components in the index and
their weight. The components which are derived from the list published by a third party may affect the
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performance of the index, and, correspondingly, the value of the Index Securities. Such third parties have no
obligation to take into account the consequences of their actions on any Holder. If the Index specified in the Final
Terms is replaced by a successor index with the same or a substantially similar method for calculating that index
or the original Index Sponsor is replaced by a successor index sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent, the
successor index or the successor index sponsor will replace the original index or original index sponsor, as
applicable. Following a modification to the methodology of the Index (an Index Modification), a permanent
cancellation of the Index (an Index Cancellation) or if the Index Sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of
the Index on a relevant date for valuation (an Index Disruption) (each, an Index Adjustment Event), (i) the
Calculation Agent may determine whether to (x) determine the level of the Index itself, or (y) replace the Index,
or (ii) the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Index Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

In addition, if the published level of an Index is subsequently corrected, the corrected level will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected level is published less than three Business Days prior
to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Futures Price Valuation

If Futures Price Valuation is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the Index Securities will
reference the performance of one or more futures or options contracts in respect of an index. A futures transaction
constitutes the contractual obligation to buy or sell a certain amount or number of the respective underlying at a
fixed price and at a predetermined future point in time. Futures contracts are traded on futures exchanges and
standardised for this purpose with respect to their contract size, the nature and quality of the underlying as well as
delivery places and dates, if any.

In the case of Index Securities where Futures Price Valuation is applicable, the Securities are exposed to a futures
or options contract relating to an index. If trading in the futures contract never commences or is permanently
discontinued on or prior to a date for valuation and the relevant price for the futures contract is not available, the
level of the underlying index shall be used for any calculation, or the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case
may be, the Index Securities.

If adjustments are made to the futures contract by the relevant exchange, the Calculation Agent will make
consequential adjustments to the Securities to account for such change. In addition, if the published price of a
futures contract is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if it is corrected within the prescribed
period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior to a due date for
payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Share Securities

In respect of Share Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case may
be, determined by reference to the value of the share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs and/or the physical
delivery of a given number of share(s) or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs.

No issuer of the underlying shares will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in
establishing the terms of the Share Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager
will make any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information
concerning any such issuer of shares contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such
information was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant
issue date (including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information
described in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the share or
Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events
or the disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of shares could affect
the trading price of the share or Stapled Shares, GDRs and/or ADRs.
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Except as provided in the Conditions, a Holder will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant shares to which such Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that
have a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the share(s). The Calculation Agent may adjust
the terms of the Share Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment Event.

An Extraordinary Event will occur upon a De-Listing, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation, Stapling,
Tender Offer (unless Tender Offer is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms) or (if specified in
the applicable Final Terms), Illiquidity, Listing Change or Listing Suspension in respect of a share.

If an Extraordinary Event occurs:

€)] the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the Share Securities (including, in
the case of Share Securities linked to a Basket of Shares, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent
shares of the Basket of Shares);

(b) the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment to any terms of the Share Securities by reference to the
corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which options
on the affected Shares are traded; or

(c) the Issuer may cancel or redeem the Share Securities in whole or (in the case of Share Securities relating
to a Basket of Shares) in part, in accordance with the Conditions.

If the Stapled Shares become de-stapled such that one or more shares comprising the Stapled Shares may be held,
owned, sold, transferred, purchased and otherwise dealt with as an individual share, the Issuer may elect to
substitute the Stapled Shares with an alternative share meeting certain criteria selected by the Calculation Agent.

In addition, if the published price of a Share is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if corrected
within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business Days prior
to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of ETI Securities

In respect of ETI Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case may
be, determined by reference to the value of an interest in one or more exchange traded instruments (an "ETI
Interest™). While ETI Interests are traded on an exchange and are therefore valued in a similar manner as a share
traded on an exchange, if ETI Share Provisions is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final Terms, certain
provisions related to ETI Securities are similar to the provisions related to funds and Fund Securities. If ETI Share
Provisions is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms, the provisions related to the ETI Securities
will be more similar to the provisions related to shares and Share Securities.

An exchange traded instrument (an "ETI") may invest in and trade in a variety of investments and financial
instruments using sophisticated investment techniques for hedging and non-hedging purposes. None of the
relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (if any) or the Calculation Agent have any control over investments made by the
relevant exchange traded instrument(s) and in no way guarantee the performance of an ETI.

In hedging the relevant Issuer's obligations under the ETI Securities, an entity providing such hedging (the "Hedge
Provider") is not restricted to any particular hedging practice. Accordingly, the Hedge Provider may hedge its
exposure using any method it, in its sole discretion, deems appropriate. The Hedge Provider may perform any
number of different hedging practices with respect to ETI Securities without taking into account any Holder's
interests.
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No entity related to the ET1 will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing
the terms of the ETI Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager will make
any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such
ETI contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information was extracted.
Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date (including events
that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described in this paragraph
or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the interests in the exchange traded instrument
will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the disclosure of or failure to
disclose material future events concerning such an exchange traded instrument could affect the trading price of
interests in the exchange traded instruments.

Except as provided in the Conditions, a Holder will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant ETIs to which such Securities relate.

A Potential Adjustment Event will occur in a number of scenarios more fully described in the Conditions that
have a diluting or concentrative effect on the theoretical value of the ETI Interest(s). The Calculation Agent may
adjust the terms of the ETI Securities as it determines appropriate to take account of such Potential Adjustment
Event.

In the case of ETI Securities where ETI Share Provisions is specified as not applicable in the applicable Final
Terms, an Extraordinary ETI Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger of the ETI Interests or
the ETI or ETI Related Party with other ETI Interests or another entity, an entity obtaining a controlling stake in
the ETI or ETI Related Party or the insolvency of the ETI or any ETI Related Party (Global Events), (b) material
litigation or allegations of criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the ETI or ETI Related Party
(Litigation/Fraudulent Activity Events), (c) the ETI Related Party ceasing to act without being replaced (Change
in ETI Related Parties/Key Person Events), (d) a material change to the ETI or the ETI Documents (Modification
Events), (e) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the Value per ETI Interest or a breach of the
Investment/AUM Level or Value per ETI Interest Trigger Percentage (Net Asset Value/Investment/AUM Level
Events), (f) a change in tax law, revocation of any required licence or compulsory redemption of the ETI Interests
required by a competent authority (Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (g) an issue affecting the hedging
associated with the ETI Securities (Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events) and (h) other events such as
an Extraordinary ETI Event affecting a portion of the basket of ETI Interests, a rating downgrade, issues obtaining
or trading ETI Interests or changes in the way dividends are paid (Miscellaneous Events), each more fully
described in the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms of the ETI
Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant ETI Interest(s) or cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the
ETI Securities.

In the case of ETI Securities where ETI Share Provisions is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms,
an Extraordinary Event will occur upon a Delisting, ETI Currency Change, ETI Modification, ETI
Reclassification, ETI Redemption or Subscription Event, ETI Regulatory Action, ETI Reporting Event, ETI
Strategy Breach, ETI Termination, Insolvency, Merger Event, Nationalisation or, if specified as applicable in the
applicable Final Terms, Illiquidity, Listing Change, Listing Suspension or Tender Offer. If an Extraordinary Event
occurs:

@ the Calculation Agent may make adjustments to any of the terms of the ETI Securities (including, in the
case of ETI Securities linked to a Basket of ETI Interests, adjustments to and/or substitution of constituent
ETI Interests of the Basket of ETI Interests);

(b) the Calculation Agent may make an adjustment to any terms of the ETI Securities by reference to the
corresponding adjustment(s) made by the relevant exchange(s) or quotation system(s) on which options
on the affected ETI Interests are traded; or
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(© the Issuer may cancel or redeem the Securities in whole or (in the case of ETI Securities relating to a
Basket of ETI Interests) in part, in accordance with the Conditions.

In addition, if the published price of an ETI Interest is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will be used if
corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than three Business
Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Debt Securities

In respect of Debt Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case may
be, determined by reference to the price or yield of the underlying debt instrument(s) and/or the physical delivery
of a given number of debt instrument(s) and/or the Debt Securities will pay interest calculated by reference to the
price or yield of the underlying debt instrument(s).

If the published reference price of a debt instrument is subsequently corrected, the corrected reference price will
be used if corrected within the specified period, provided that, if the corrected reference price is published less
than three Exchange Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Investors should be aware that if an underlying debt instrument is redeemed or cancelled by the relevant issuer of
such debt instrument (for example, following an event of default under the terms of the relevant debt instrument),
the Issuer may be entitled to cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Debt Securities in accordance with the
Conditions.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Commodity Securities

In respect of Commodity Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the
case may be, determined by reference to the value of the underlying commaodity, commodity index, commodities
and/or commodity indices.

Where the Commodity Securities are linked to a commodity index, such commodity index may be a well known
and widely available commodity index (such as the S&P GSCI®) or a commodity index which may be less well
known (such as a commodity index that is composed, sponsored and/or calculated by BNP Paribas or one of its
affiliates) in which case information on the commodity index may be less readily available. A commodity index
may be comprised of futures contracts, mono-indices, or other commodity indices, which may be proprietary.
Pursuant to the operational rules of the relevant commodity index, the commodity index is scheduled to be
calculated on a periodic basis (for example on each weekday). In the event that one of the levels, values or prices
of a component included in the commodity index is not available for any reason on a relevant day of calculation
including, without limitation, (a) where it is a not a business day in respect of that commodity index component
or (b) that commodity index component is subject to a market disruption event, then the calculation agent of the
commodity index may calculate the level of the commodity index on a different basis (for example, by taking a
value for the affected commodity index component on the first day following the end of a specified maximum
days of disruption based on the price at which it is able to sell or otherwise realise any hedge position). Such an
occurrence may potentially result in a delay in the publication of the commodity index and the level of the
commodity index may be affected.

A Market Disruption Event will occur if there is a disruption in respect of a commodity or a commodity index (a)
to the availability of any price source, (b) to the ability to trade, (c) (other than in respect of Commodity Securities
referencing Gold, Silver, Platinum or Palladium) caused by a change in composition, methodology or taxation or
(d) (in respect of a commodity index only) to the price source or calculation of a commodity index component. If
a Market Disruption Event occurs:
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@ the Calculation Agent may make any calculations in respect of the Commodity Securities using a price,
level or value that it has determined;

(b) the Calculation Agent may substitute any relevant commaodity or commodity index component (subject
to adhering to the criteria set out in the Conditions); or

(c) the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Commaodity Securities in accordance with the
Conditions.

In the case of Commaodity Securities that reference one or more commodity indices if;

@ the commodity index is replaced by a successor commodity index with the same or a substantially similar
method for calculating that commodity index or the original commaodity index sponsor is replaced by a
successor commaodity index sponsor acceptable to the Calculation Agent such successor commodity
index or successor commodity index sponsor will replace the original commodity index or the original
commodity index sponsor, as applicable; and

(b) following a modification to the methodology of the commodity index (a Commodity Index
Modification), a permanent cancellation of the commodity index (a Commodity Index Cancellation) or
if the commodity index sponsor fails to calculate or publish the level of the commodity index on a
relevant date for valuation (a Commodity Index Disruption) (each, a Commodity Index Adjustment
Event), (i) the Calculation Agent may determine whether to (x) determine the level of the commodity
index itself, or (y) replace the commaodity index, or (ii) the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case may
be, the Commodity Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

In addition, if the reference price of a commodity or commodity index is subsequently corrected, the corrected
reference price will be used if corrected within 30 calendar days of the original publication, provided that, if the
corrected level is published less than three Commaodity Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be
disregarded.

If the applicable Final Terms specifies that the Commodity Securities are linked to the performance of a futures
contract in respect of a commodity, the considerations described above will apply to such futures contract by
reference to the underlying commodity. If the applicable Final Terms specify that the Commodity Securities are
"Rolling Futures Contract Securities”, the reference price of the commodity will be valued by reference to futures
contracts with delivery months that do not match the Expiration Date of the Commodity Securities. The
Calculation Agent will select a new futures contract on each Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable
Final Terms. If itis impossible or materially impracticable to select a new futures contract and/or hedge the Issuer's
obligations in respect of the Commodity Securities, the consequences of a Market Disruption Event or a
Commodity Index Adjustment Event described above will apply.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Inflation Index Securities

In respect of Inflation Index Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the
case may be, determined by reference to the value of the underlying inflation index/indices.

The terms of the Inflation Index Securities may be adjusted by the Calculation Agent if the Calculation Agent
determines that the Index Sponsor fails to publish or announce the level of an inflation index. The Calculation
Agent will determine a substitute level for the relevant inflation index by reference to (a) a related bond specified
in the Final Terms or (b) a formula that calculates the level of the relevant inflation index based on previously
available levels. If publication of the level of the relevant inflation index is disrupted or discontinued or the
inflation index is cancelled, the Calculation Agent may determine a successor inflation index. The Calculation
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Agent may further adjust the terms of the Inflation Index Securities to take account of such substitute level or
substitute inflation index.

The Calculation Agent may also make adjustments to the terms of the Inflation Index Securities or the relevant
level of an inflation index if (a) a published level is subsequently revised within the cut-off periods described in
the Conditions, (b) there is a material change to the formula for calculating an inflation index or (c) an inflation
index is rebased, provided that, if an inflation index is rebased such that the Calculation Agent is unable to make
adjustments that would produce a commercially reasonable result, the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case
may be, the Inflation Index Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

Investors should be aware that if an inflation index is cancelled (and the Calculation Agent is unable to determine
a successor inflation index), either the Calculation Agent will calculate the level of the inflation index or the Issuer
may cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Inflation Index Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Currency Securities

In respect of Currency Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case
may be, determined by reference to the value of the currency/currencies and/or the physical delivery of a given
amount of a currency or currencies. Currency Securities reference the performance of an exchange rate between
a base currency and one or more subject currencies.

A Disruption Event will occur in respect of the base currency or any subject currency if (i) there is a disruption to
the source of the exchange rate, (ii) (unless Illiquidity Disruption is specified as not applicable in the applicable
Final Terms) it is not possible to obtain firm quotes for such currency, (iii) the currency is split into more than one
currency exchange rate, or (iv) circumstances similar to (i), (ii) (if applicable) or (iii) arise. Upon the occurrence
of a Disruption Event in respect of a date for valuation, the following consequences may apply:

€)] the Calculation Agent may postpone the relevant date for valuation until the Disruption Event is no longer
subsisting, up to a maximum number of days specified in the applicable Final Terms (or if not specified
five Scheduled Trading Days), following which the Calculation Agent may determine a level for the
subject currency as of the last such Scheduled Trading Day;

(b) the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Currency Securities in accordance with the
Conditions; or

(© the Calculation Agent may postpone any payment date until a Disruption Event is no longer subsisting.
Additional investment considerations in respect of Fund Securities

In respect of Fund Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case may
be, determined by reference to the value of fund shares or units in one or more funds (including hedge funds,
mutual funds or private equity funds) (each a "Fund"), the level of a fund index comprised of such fund shares or
units and/or the physical delivery of a given number of fund shares or units. The value of fund shares or units or
the level of a fund index may be affected by the performance of the fund service providers, and in particular the
investment adviser (each a "Fund Service Provider").

Funds may trade and invest in a broad range of investments and financial instruments using sophisticated
investment techniques. None of the relevant Issuer, the Guarantor (if any) or the Calculation Agent have any
control over investments made by a Fund and therefore in no way guarantee the performance of a Fund. Funds
may often be illiquid and may only be traded on a monthly, quarterly or even less frequent basis. The trading
strategies of Funds are often opaque. Funds, as well as the markets and instruments in which they invest, are often
not subject to review by governmental authorities, self-regulatory organisations or other supervisory authorities.
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A Fund may be established as part of a master-feeder fund structure. Generally, a master-feeder fund structure
involves the incorporation of a "master” fund company into which separate and distinct "feeder" funds invest.
Active management of any investment strategy is, generally, performed at the master fund level. In instances
where the Fund(s) underlying the relevant Fund Securities are "feeder" funds, the Extraordinary Fund Events
described below extend to include the "master" fund and its service providers. In conducting their own due
diligence of the relevant Fund(s), prospective investors should consider whether the relevant Fund(s) are
established as part of a master-feeder fund structure.

No Fund Service Provider will have participated in the preparation of the relevant Final Terms or in establishing
the terms of the Fund Securities, and none of the Issuer, the Guarantor (if applicable) or any Manager will make
any investigation or enquiry in connection with such offering with respect to any information concerning any such
issuer of fund shares or units contained in such Final Terms or in the documents from which such information
was extracted. Consequently, there can be no assurance that all events occurring prior to the relevant issue date
(including events that would affect the accuracy or completeness of the publicly available information described
in this paragraph or in any relevant Final Terms) that would affect the trading price of the fund shares or units or
the level of the fund index will have been publicly disclosed. Subsequent disclosure of any such events or the
disclosure of or failure to disclose material future events concerning such an issuer of fund shares or units could
affect the trading price of the fund shares or units or the level of the fund index and therefore the trading price of
the Fund Securities.

Except as provided in the Conditions, a Holder will not have voting rights or rights to receive dividends or
distributions or any other rights with respect to the relevant fund shares or units or the relevant fund index to
which such Securities relate.

An Extraordinary Fund Event will occur as a result of events including (a) a merger of the Fund or Fund Service
Provider another entity, an entity obtaining a controlling stake in the Fund or Fund Service Provider or the
insolvency of the Fund or any Fund Service Provider (Global Events), (b) material litigation or allegations of
criminal or fraudulent activity in respect of the Fund or Fund Service Provider (Litigation/Fraudulent Activity
Events), (c) the Fund Service Provider or its key personnel ceasing to act and not being replaced (Fund Service
Provider/Key Person Events), (d) a material change to the Fund or the Fund Documents (Modification Events),
(e) a change to or suspension of the calculation of the NAV per Fund Share or a breach of the AUM Level or
NAV Trigger Percentage (NAV per Fund Share/AUM Level Events), (f) the failure of the Fund or the Fund
Service Provider to provide required information (Reporting Events), (g) a change in tax law, revocation of any
required licence or compulsory redemption of the fund shares required by a competent authority
(Tax/Law/Accounting/Regulatory Events), (h) an issue affecting the hedging associated with the Fund Securities
(Hedging/Impracticality/Increased Costs Events), (i) a restriction or limitation on subscriptions or redemptions of
any fund shares (Dealing Events) and (j) other events such as an Extraordinary Fund Event affecting a portion of
the basket or Fund Index components, an issue with any rebate agreements, segregation of Fund portfolios,
security granted by the Fund or any Fund Service Provider or a rating downgrade (Miscellaneous Events), each
more fully described in the Conditions. The relevant Issuer may require the Calculation Agent to adjust the terms
of the Fund Securities to reflect such event, substitute the relevant Fund Shares or the Issuer may cancel or redeem,
as the case may be, the Fund Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

The Hedge Provider may not receive the proceeds of redeeming any fund shares that they hold on the date
expected, for example, if redemption is delayed or suspended by the Fund. If this occurs, the Expiration Date of
the Fund Securities may be postponed for a period of up to two calendar years (or such other period as may be
specified in the applicable Final Terms) and no additional amount shall be payable as a result of such delay.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Futures Securities
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In respect of Futures Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the case
may be, determined by reference to the value of one or more futures contracts.

In the event that the terms of a futures contract are changed or modified by the relevant exchange, the Calculation
Agent will make the equivalent adjustment, if any, to the terms of the Futures Security to account for such change
or modification. A Non-Availability of a Future Price will occur if there is no Official Settlement Price of the
relevant futures contract, subject to the occurrence of a Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of a Future. A
Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of a Future will occur if there is no Official Settlement Price of the
relevant futures contract as a result of the fact that trading in such futures contract never commences or is
permanently discontinued. Upon the occurrence of a Non-Availability of a Future Price, the Calculation Agent
may determinate the Official Settlement Price using its good faith estimate of the daily or final (as applicable)
settlement price of such futures contract. Upon (i) the occurrence of a Non-Availability of a Future Price on any
relevant date that is the delivery or expiry date of the relevant futures contract or (ii) a Non-Commencement or
Discontinuance of a Future, the Calculation Agent may substitute the futures contract for a substitute futures
contract (if applicable) or the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Futures Securities in accordance
with the Conditions..

In addition, if the Official Settlement Price of a futures contract is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will
be used if it is corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than
three Exchange Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Listed Option Securities

In respect of Listed Option Securities, a Holder will receive an amount (if any) on redemption or exercise, as the
case may be, determined by reference to the value of one or more listed option contracts.

In the event that the terms of a Listed Option Contract are changed or modified by the relevant exchange, the
Calculation Agent will make the equivalent adjustments to the terms of the Listed Option Securities to account
for such change or modification. A Non-Availability of a Listed Option Contract Price will occur if there is no
Official Settlement Price of the relevant listed option contract, subject to the occurrence of a Non-Commencement
or Discontinuance of a Listed Option Contract. A Non-Commencement or Discontinuance of a Listed Option
Contract will occur if there is no Official Settlement Price of the relevant listed option contract as a result of the
fact that trading in such listed option contract never commences or is permanently discontinued. Upon the
occurrence of a Non-Availability of a Listed Option Contract Price, the Calculation Agent may determinate the
Official Settlement Price using its good faith estimate of the daily or final (as applicable) settlement price of such
listed option contract. Upon (i) the occurrence of a Non-Availability of a Listed Option Contract Price on any
relevant date that is the expiry date of the relevant listed option contract or (ii) a Non-Commencement or
Discontinuance of a Listed Option Contract, the Calculation Agent may substitute the listed option contract for a
substitute listed option contract (if applicable) or the Issuer may cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Listed
Option Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

In addition, if the published price of an official settlement price is subsequently corrected, the corrected price will
be used if it is corrected within the prescribed period, provided that, if the corrected price is published less than
three Business Days prior to a due date for payment it will be disregarded.

Additional investment considerations in respect of Rolling Futures Contract Securities

Futures contracts have a predetermined expiration date. Holding a futures contract until expiration will result in
delivery of the physical underlying or the requirement to make or receive a cash settlement amount. Rolling
Futures Contract Securities are valued by reference to futures contracts that have a delivery or expiry month that
do not correspond with the term of the Securities. Consequently the futures contracts are "rolled" which means
that the futures contract that is nearing expiration is sold before it expires and a futures contract that has an
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expiration date further in the future is purchased, thus maintaining ongoing exposure to such underlying futures
contracts throughout the term of the Securities. The Calculation Agent will select a new futures contract on each
Futures Rollover Date specified in the applicable Final Terms. If it is impossible or materially impracticable to
select a new futures contract and/or hedge the Issuer's obligations in respect of the Securities, the Issuer may
cancel or redeem, as the case may be, the Securities in accordance with the Conditions.

5. Investment considerations associated with Securities denominated in Renminbi

Investors may be required to provide certification and other information (including Renminbi account
information) in order to be allowed to receive payments in Renminbi in accordance with the Renminbi clearing
and settlement system for participating banks in the CNY Settlement Centre(s).

All Renminbi payments to investors in the Securities will be made solely (i) for so long as the Securities are
represented by a Global Security held with the common depositary, for Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg
or any alternative clearing system, by transfer to a RMB bank account maintained in the CNYY Settlement Centre(s)
in accordance with prevailing Euroclear and/or Clearstream, Luxembourg rules and procedures, or (ii) so long as
the Securities are in definitive form, by transfer to a RMB bank account maintained in the CNY Settlement
Centre(s) in accordance with prevailing rules and regulations. The Issuer cannot be required to make payment by
any other means (including in any other currency or in bank notes, by cheque or draft or by transfer to a bank
account in the PRC).
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RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Each of BNPP B.V. (in respect of itself) and BNPP (in respect of itself and BNPP B.V.) accepts responsibility for
the information contained in this Base Prospectus. To the best of the knowledge of each of BNPP B.V. and BNPP
(who have taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained herein is in
accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information.

Information contained in this Base Prospectus which is sourced from a third party has been accurately reproduced
and, as far as the relevant Issuer is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by the relevant third
party, no facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced information inaccurate or misleading. The
relevant Issuer has also identified the source(s) of such information.

The applicable Final Terms will (if applicable) specify the nature of the responsibility taken by the relevant Issuer
and, if applicable, the Guarantor for the information relating to the underlying asset, index or other item(s) to
which the Securities relate, which is contained in such Final Terms.
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DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

This Base Prospectus should be read and construed in conjunction with the following documents which have been
previously published or are published simultaneously with this Base Prospectus and that have been filed with the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange and shall be incorporated in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

(@)

The terms and conditions of the Warrants contained in the base prospectus (the 2005 Base Prospectus")
of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 18 October 2005 (the "2005 Warrant Conditions"), the terms and
conditions of the Warrants contained in the base prospectus (the "January 2006 Base Prospectus") of
BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 18 January 2006 (the "January 2006 Warrant Conditions"), the terms
and conditions of the Warrants contained in the base prospectus (the "June 2006 Base Prospectus") of
BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 21 June 2006 (the "June 2006 Warrant Conditions"), the terms and
conditions contained in the supplement (the 2006 Supplement™) to the June 2006 Base Prospectus dated
21 December 2006 (the "December 2006 Warrant Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the
Warrants contained in the supplement (the *2007 Supplement) to the June 2006 Base Prospectus dated
1 March 2007 (the "March 2007 Warrant Conditions™), the terms and conditions of the Warrants
contained in the base prospectus (the "2007 Base Prospectus™) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 30 May
2007 (the "May 2007 Warrant Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Warrants contained in the
base prospectus (the "2008 Base Prospectus") of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 30 May 2008 (the "May
2008 Warrant Conditions "), the terms and conditions of the Warrants contained in the supplement (the
"2008 Supplement™) to the May 2008 Warrant Conditions dated 14 August 2008 (the "August 2008
Warrant Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Warrants contained in the base prospectus (the
"2009 Base Prospectus”) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 4 June 2009 (the "June 2009 Warrant
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2010
Base Prospectus”) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 3 June 2010 (the "June 2010 Securities
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the supplement (the "2011
Supplement™) to the June 2010 Base Prospectus dated 24 March 2011 (the "March 2011 Securities
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2011
Base Prospectus”) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 7 June 2011 (the "June 2011 Securities
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the supplement (the "September
2011 Supplement™) to the June 2011 Base Prospectus dated 14 September 2011 (the "September 2011
Securities Conditions") and the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the supplement (the
"April 2012 Supplement”) to the June 2011 Base Prospectus dated 4 April 2012 (the "April 2012
Securities Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the
"2012 Base Prospectus”) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 1 June 2012 (the "2012 Securities
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2013
Base Prospectus™) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 5 June 2013 (the "2013 Securities Conditions"), the
terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2014 Base Prospectus") of
BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 6 June 2014 (the "2014 Securities Conditions"), the terms and conditions
of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2015 Base Prospectus") of BNPP and BNPP
B.V. dated 10 June 2015 (the 2015 Securities Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities
contained in the base prospectus (the 2016 Base Prospectus”) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 10 June
2016 (the "2016 Securities Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the
base prospectus (the "2017 Base Prospectus™) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 9 June 2017 (the "2017
Securities Conditions™), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the
"2018 Base Prospectus™) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 8 June 2018 (the "2018 Securities
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the 2019
Base Prospectus™) of BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 6 June 2019 (the 2019 Securities Conditions"), the
terms and conditions of the Securities contained in the base prospectus (the "2020 Base Prospectus") of
BNPP and BNPP B.V. dated 5 June 2020 (the 2020 Securities Conditions") and the terms and
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(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

(f)

@

conditions of the Securities contained in the supplement (the "December 2020 Supplement™) to the 2020
Base Prospectus dated 1 December 2020 (the "December 2020 Securities Conditions" and together
with the 2005 Warrant Conditions, the January 2006 Warrant Conditions, the June 2006 Warrant
Conditions, the December 2006 Warrant Conditions, the March 2007 Warrant Conditions, the May 2007
Warrant Conditions, the May 2008 Warrant Conditions, the August 2008 Warrant Conditions, the June
2009 Warrant Conditions, the June 2010 Securities Conditions, the June 2011 Securities Conditions, the
September 2011 Securities Conditions, the April 2012 Securities Conditions, the 2012 Securities
Conditions, the 2013 Securities Conditions, the 2014 Securities Conditions, the 2015 Securities
Conditions, the 2016 Securities Conditions,the 2017 Securities Conditions, the 2018 Securities
Conditions, the 2019 Securities Conditions and the 2020 Securities Conditions, the "Warrant Previous
Conditions");

the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the 2005 Base Prospectus (the *2005 Certificate
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the January 2006 Base Prospectus
(the "January 2006 Certificate Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in
the June 2006 Base Prospectus (the "June 2006 Certificate Conditions™), the terms and conditions of
the Certificates contained in the 2006 Supplement (the “December 2006 Certificate Conditions"), the
terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the 2007 Supplement (the "March 2007 Certificate
Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the 2007 Base Prospectus (the
"May 2007 Certificate Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates contained in the 2008
Base Prospectus (the "May 2008 Certificate Conditions"), the terms and conditions of the Certificates
contained in the 2008 Supplement (the "August 2008 Certificate Conditions™) and the terms and
conditions of the Certificates contained in the 2009 Base Prospectus (the "June 2009 Certificate
Conditions" and together with the 2005 Certificate Conditions, the January 2006 Certificate Conditions,
the June 2006 Certificate Conditions, the December 2006 Certificate Conditions, the March 2007
Certificate Conditions, the May 2007 Certificate Conditions, the May 2008 Certificate Conditions, the
August 2008 Certificate Conditions, the "Certificate Previous Conditions");

the final terms for each offer made under the Base Prospectus prior to 1 December 2020 (" Offers Made
Prior to 1 December 2020");

the statutory annual reports for 2019 (the "2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report™) and 2020 (the "2020
BNPP B.V. Annual Report™) which include, respectively, the audited annual non-consolidated financial
statements of BNPP B.V. as at, and for the years ended, 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2020 (the
"BNPP B.V. 2019 Financial Statements” and the "BNPP B.V. 2020 Financial Statements"
respectively) and the respective auditors' reports thereon;

BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2019 et rapport financier annuel in
English including the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019 and the
statutory auditors' report thereon, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal
Registration Document™ and the "Table of Concordance", with filing number D.20-0097 (the "BNPP
2019 Universal Registration Document (in English)");

BNPP's Document d’Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2020 et rapport financier annuel in
English, including the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
statutory auditors' report thereon, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal
Registration Document” and the "Table of Concordance", with filing number D.21-0114 (the "BNPP
2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)");

the first amendment to BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2020 et rapport
financier annuel in English, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the Universal
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Registration Document™ and the "Table of Concordance" with filing number D.21-0114-A01 (the "First
Amendment to the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)"); and

(h) the second amendment to BNPP's Document d'Enregistrement Universel au 31 décembre 2020 et
rapport financier annuel in English, other than the sections entitled "Person Responsible for the
Universal Registration Document™ and the "Table of Concordance", with filing number D.21-0114-A02
(the "Second Amendment to the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)™),

save that any statement contained herein or in a document all or the relevant portion of which is deemed to be
incorporated by reference herein shall be deemed to be modified or superseded for the purpose of this Base
Prospectus to the extent that such statement contained in any such subsequent document all or the relative portion
of which is or is deemed to be incorporated by reference herein modifies or supersedes such earlier statement
(whether expressly, by implication or otherwise). Any statement so modified or superseded shall not be deemed,
except as so modified or superseded, to constitute a part of this Base Prospectus.

The information incorporated by reference above is available as follows:

Information Incorporated by Reference

Reference

BNP PARIBAS/BNP PARIBAS ISSUANCE B.V.

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

Warrant Previous Conditions

2005 Warrant Conditions

Pages 42 to 93 of the 2005 Base Prospectus

January 2006 Warrant Conditions

Pages 55 to 109 of the January 2006 Base
Prospectus

June 2006 Warrant Conditions

Pages 49 to 117 of the June 2006 Base
Prospectus

December 2006 Warrant Conditions

Pages 2 to 10 of the 2006 Supplement

March 2007 Warrant Conditions

Pages 3 to 12 of the 2007 Supplement

May 2007 Warrant Conditions

Pages 55 to 144 of the 2007 Base Prospectus

May 2008 Warrant Conditions

Pages 68 to 181 of the 2008 Base Prospectus

August 2008 Warrant Conditions

Pages 45 to 158 of the 2008 Supplement

June 2009 Warrant Conditions

Pages 87 to 215 of the 2009 Base Prospectus

June 2010 Securities Conditions

Pages 130 to 235 of the 2010 Base Prospectus

March 2011 Securities Conditions

Pages 20 to 54 of the 2011 Supplement

June 2011 Securities Conditions

Pages 138 to 461 of the 2011 Base Prospectus

September 2011 Securities Conditions

Pages 2 to 3 of the September 2011
Supplement

April 2012 Securities Conditions

Pages 4 to 6 of the April 2012 Supplement

June 2012 Securities Conditions

Pages 152 to 492 of the 2012 Base Prospectus

2013 Securities Conditions

Pages 140 to 487 of the 2013 Base Prospectus

2014 Securities Conditions

Pages 141 to 488 of the 2014 Base Prospectus

2015 Securities Conditions

Pages 147 to 494 of the 2015 Base Prospectus

2016 Securities Conditions

Pages 167 to 514 of the 2016 Base Prospectus

2017 Securities Conditions

Pages 176 to 523 of the 2017 Base Prospectus

2018 Securities Conditions

Pages 183 to 547 of the 2018 Base Prospectus

2019 Securities Conditions

Pages 184 to 569 of the 2019 Base Prospectus

2020 Securities Conditions

Pages 178 to 578 of the 2020 Base Prospectus

December 2020 Securities Conditions

Page 124 of the December 2020 Supplement

Certificate Previous Conditions

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/LegalDocs.aspx

2005 Certificate Conditions

Pages 94 to 135 of the 2005 Base Prospectus

January 2006 Certificate Conditions

Pages 110 to 154 of the January 2006 Base
Prospectus
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June 2006 Certificate Conditions

Pages 143 to 214 of the June 2006 Base
Prospectus

December 2006 Certificate Conditions

Page 2 of the 2006 Supplement

March 2007 Certificate Conditions

Pages 13 to 21 of the 2007 Supplement

May 2007 Certificate Conditions

Pages 171 to 254 of the 2007 Base Prospectus

May 2008 Certificate Conditions

Pages 226 to 388 of the 2008 Base Prospectus

August 2008 Certificate Conditions

Pages 207 to 369 of the 2008 Supplement

June 2009 Certificate Conditions

Pages 284 to 471 of the 2009 Base Prospectus

BNP PARIBAS

BNPP 2019 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (IN ENGLISH)

https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp2019 urd en 20 03 13.pdf

2019 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2019

Page 152 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Statement of net income and changes in assets and liabilities
recognised directly in equity

Page 153 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Balance sheet at 31 December 2019

Page 154 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2019

Page 155 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity between 1
January 2018 and 31 December 2019

Pages 156 and 157 of the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

Notes to the financial statements prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union

Pages 158 to 258 of the BNPP 2019 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors' report on the Consolidated Financial
Statements of BNP Paribas for the year ended 31 December
2019

Pages 259 and 264 of the BNPP 2019
Universal Registration Document (in English)

BNPP 2020 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (IN ENGLISH)

https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp2020 urd en_final version 21 03 12.pdf

2. Statutory auditors Page 654 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

3. Risk factors Pages 290 to 304 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

4, Information about the Issuer Pages 4, 5 and 663 to 665 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)

5. Business overview

5.1 Principal activities Pages 6 to 17, 202 to 205 and 638 to 644 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)

5.2 Principal markets Pages 6 to 17, 202 to 205 and 638 to 644 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)

5.3 History and development of the issuer Page 5 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

104




5.4 Strategy and objectives Pages 146, 147, 545, 594 to 607, 622 and 623
of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
55 Possible dependency Page 636 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
5.6 Basis for any statements made by the issuer | Pages6to 17 and 122 to 138 of the BNPP 2020
regarding its competitive position Universal Registration Document (in English)
5.7 Investments Pages 251, 252, 531, 592, 593 and 637 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)
6. Organisational structure
6.1 Brief description Pages 4, 6, 622 and 623 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
6.2 List of significant subsidiaries Pages 263 to 270, 524 to 530 and 638 to 643 of
the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)
7. Operating and financial review
7.1 Financial situation Pages 148, 164, 166 and 494 to 495 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)
7.2 Operating results Pages 122 to 138, 144, 145, 150 to 156, 164,
203 and 494 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
8. Capital resources
8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Pages 168, 169 and 519 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
8.2 Sources and amounts of cash flows Page 167 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
8.3 Borrowing requirements and funding structure | Pages 148 and 445 to 458 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
0. Regulatory environment Pages 281 and 287 to 289 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
10. Trend information Pages 146, 147 and 637 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
11. Profit forecasts or estimates N/A
12. Administrative, management, and
supervisory bodies, and senior management
12.1 Administrative and management bodies Pages 33to 45 and 102 to 104 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
12.2 Administrative and management bodies’ | Pages 49, 50, 64, 65 and 74 to 97 of the BNPP
conflicts of interest 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
13. Remuneration and benefits
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13.1 Amount of remuneration paid and benefits in | Pages 74 to 97, 241 to 247 and 259 of the BNPP

kind granted 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

13.2 Total amounts set aside or accrued by the | Pages 74 to 97, 241 to 247 and 259 of the
Issuer or its subsidiaries to provide pension, | BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
retirement, or similar benefits (in English)

14. Board practices

14.1 Date of expiry of the current terms of office Pages 33 to 44 of the BNPP 2020 Universal

Registration Document (in English)

14.2 Information  about members of the | N/A
administrative bodies’ service contracts with
the Issuer

14.3 Information about the audit committee and | Pages 53 to 60 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
remuneration committee Registration Document (in English)

14.4 Corporate governance regime in force in the | Pages 46 to 51 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
issuer’s country of incorporation Registration Document (in English)

145 Potential material impacts on the corporate | Pages 33 to 44 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
governance Registration Document (in English)

15. Employees

15.1 Number of employees Pages 4, 573, 574 and 622 of the BNPP 2020

Universal Registration Document (in English)

15.2 Shareholdings and stock options Pages 74 to 97, 189, 578 and 579 of the BNPP

2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)

16. Major shareholders

16.1 Shareholders owning more than 5% of the | Pages 18 and 19 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
issuer’s capital or voting rights Registration Document (in English)

16.2 Existence of different voting rights Page 18 of the BNPP 2020 Universal

Registration Document (in English)
16.3 Control of the Issuer Pages 18 and 19 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

16.4 Description of any arrangements, known to the | Page 19 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Issuer, the operation of which may at a | Registration Document (in English)
subsequent date result in a change of
control of the issuer

17. Related party transactions Pages 74 to 97, 260, 261, 650 and 651 of the

BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)
18. Financial information concerning the

issuer’s assets and liabilities, financial
position, and profits and losses
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18.1 Historical financial information Pages 4, 22, 121 to 271 and 493 to 531 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)

18.2 Interim and other financial information N/A

18.3 Auditing of historical annual financial | Pages 272 to 277 and 532 to 537 of the BNPP

information 2020 Universal Registration Document (in

English)

18.4 Pro forma financial information N/A

185 Dividend policy Pages 22, 25, 26, 123, 147, 522 and 623 of the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document
(in English)

18.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings Pages 250 and 251 of the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)

18.7 Significant change in the Issuer’s financial or | Page 637 of the BNPP 2020 Universal

trading position Registration Document (in English)

19. Additional information

19.1 Share capital Pages 18, 248 to 250, 513 to 515, 645 and 672
of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

19.2 Memorandum and articles of association Pages 645 to 649 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

20. Material contracts Page 636 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

21. Documents on display Page 636 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

2020 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2020

Page 164 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Statement of net income and changes in assets and
liabilities recognised directly in equity

Page 165 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Balance sheet at 31 December 2020

Page 166 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2020

Page 167 of the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration
Document (in English)

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity between
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2020

Pages 168 and 169 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Notes to the financial statements prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as adopted by the European Union

Pages 170 to 271 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)

Statutory Auditors’ report on the Consolidated
Financial Statements of BNP Paribas for the year
ended 31 December 2020

Pages 272 to 277 of the BNPP 2020 Universal
Registration Document (in English)
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FIRST AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2020 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (IN

ENGLISH)

https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp_paribas_-1st_amendment_to_2020_urd.pdf

2. Statutory auditors Page 106 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
3. Risk factors Pages 77 to 79 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
7. Operating and financial review
7.1 Financial situation Pages 3 to 66 and 69 of the First Amendment to the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
7.2 Operating results Pages 56 to 66 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
8. Capital resources
8.1 Issuer’s capital resources Pages 50, 69 and 71 to 76 of the First Amendment to
the BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
8.3 Borrowing requirements and funding | Page 15 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020
structure Universal Registration Document (in English)
10. Trend information
10.1 Main recent trends Page 80 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
10.2 Trends likely to have a material impact on | Page 80 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020
the issuer’s outlook Universal Registration Document (in English)
13. Remuneration and benefits
13.1 Amount of remuneration paid and benefits in | Pages 82 to 101 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
kind granted 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
13.2 Total amounts set aside or accrued by the | Pages 82 to 101 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
issuer or its subsidiaries to provide pension, | 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
retirement, or similar benefits
18. Financial information concerning the
issuer’s assets and liabilities, financial
position, and profits and losses
18.1 Historical financial information Pages 56 to 66 and 69 of the First Amendment to the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
18.2 Interim and other financial information Pages 56 to 66 and 69 of the First Amendment to the
BNPP 2020 Universal Registration Document (in
English)
18.6 Legal and arbitration proceedings Pages 80 and 81 of the First Amendment to the BNPP

2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
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18.6.1 Information on any governmental, legal or | Pages 80 and 81 of the First Amendment to the BNPP
arbitration proceedings during a period | 2020 Universal Registration Document (in English)
covering at least the previous 12 months

18.7 Significant change in the issuer’s financial or | Page 80 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020
trading position Universal Registration Document (in English)

21. Documents on display Page 80 of the First Amendment to the BNPP 2020

Universal Registration Document (in English)

SECOND AMENDMENT TO THE BNPP 2020 UNIVERSAL REGISTRATION DOCUMENT (IN
ENGLISH)

https://invest.bnpparibas.com/sites/default/files/documents/bnp_paribas_- 2nd_amendment_to_2020_urd.pdf

2. Statutory auditors Page 6 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2020
Universal Registration Document (in English)
21. Documents on display Page 5 of the Second Amendment to the BNPP 2020

Universal Registration Document (in English)

BNP PARIBAS ISSUANCE B.V.

2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal

Docs/index_files/20210416 BNP Paribas Issuance BV initialled annual Report 2020.pdf

Managing Director's Report

Pages 3 to 4 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Balance Sheet at 31 December 2019

Page 5 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit & loss account for the year ended 31 December
2019

Page 6 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Cashflow Statement for the year ended 31 December
2019

Page 7 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Shareholder's equity

Page 10 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Notes/Other Information

Pages 8 to 16 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Auditor's Report of the Financial Statements of BNPP
B.V. for the year ended 31 December 2019

Pages 17 to 21 of the 2019 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

https://rates-
globalmarkets.bnpparibas.com/gm/Public/AlfrescoResource.aspx?path=%2F/Legal%20Docs/index_files/BN
P_Paribas_lssuance_BV_Financial_Statements_2019.pdf

Management Board Report

Pages 3 to 4 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Balance sheet at 31 December 2020

Page 5 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Profit and loss account for the year ended 31
December 2020

Page 6 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December
2020

Page 7 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Notes to the financial statements

Pages 8 to 13 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Statutory arrangements concerning the appropriation
of profits

Page 14 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Independent Auditor's Report for the year ended 31
December 2020

Pages 15 to 20 of the 2020 BNPP B.V. Annual Report

Offers Made Prior to 1 December 2020

See appendix entitled "Offers Made Prior to 1 December 2020
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Information contained in the documents incorporated by reference other than information listed in the tables above
is for information purposes only.

In addition to the above, the following documents published or issued from time to time after the date of this Base
Prospectus shall be deemed to be incorporated in, and form part of, this Base Prospectus:

€)] the most recently published audited annual non-consolidated financial statements of BNPP B.V. together
with the respective auditors' reports thereon being available as part of the most recently published
statutory annual report of BNPP B.V. and, if published later, the interim financial statements of BNPP
B.V,;

(b) the most recently published unaudited semi-annual interim consolidated financial statements, the most
recently published audited annual consolidated financial statements together with the respective statutory
auditors' reports thereon, as contained in BNPP's most recently published document de référence et
rapport financier annuel in English and quarterly financial results of BNPP; and

(©) all supplements or amendments to this Base Prospectus circulated by the Issuer and/or the Guarantor
from time to time.

Each Issuer will provide, free of charge, to each person to whom a copy of this Base Prospectus has been delivered,
upon the oral or written request of such person, a copy of any or all of the documents which are incorporated
herein by reference and such documents will be available free of charge during normal business hours from the
specified office of the Luxembourg Listing Agent and will be published on the website of the Luxembourg Stock
Exchange (www.bourse.lu) other than the Registration Documents and each amendment thereto incorporated by
reference in () to (h) above which will only be made available by BNPP.

The Issuer will, in the event of any significant new factor, material mistake or inaccuracy relating to information
included in this Base Prospectus which is capable of affecting the assessment of any Securities, prepare a
supplement in accordance with of Part 2/Chapter 2/point 206 of the rules and regulations of the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange (the "ROI") or publish a new Prospectus for use in connection with any subsequent issue of
Securities.
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XS1167475299
XS§1190242427
X81942352086

DEOOOPZ9RKX7
DEOOOPZ9RLNG6

XS§1914739732
XS§1996185986
XS§2141469598
XS§2087036419
XS§1840290149
X§1850600047
XS2074182697
XS§2067760566
XS§2074186680
XS§2074187811
XS§1942309151
XS§2113428895
XS51338481184
XS§1338527432
XS1288724427
XS1793728947
XS§1530353348
XS1707238306
XS§1338531897
XS52013034868
XS§2191284368
XS§2191284285
XS§2191304810
XS52189862696
XS§2201063810
XS§2201064115
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XS§2007891133
X82202221367
XS§2202208935
XS80925949553
X82062261370
XS§2019029243
X8§2019037931
X§82020239161
XS§2021827808
X§2033206801
X§82033221784
XS52033994489
X§2039397109
X82039573436
XS2039574830
XS§1827498855
XS§1827499580
XS51638559333
XS§81288775098
X§1489594470
XS51489644085
XS§81673299183
XS§1831460339
XS1741938275
X§1816837832
X8§2007905966
XS52049218576
X§2052016610
XS82052017774
XS52052018400
XS82052371197
X82053622317
XS52053623554
X§82053624016
XS§2053626813
XS52053634676
XS§2062256966
XS§2062279661
XS2065824307
XS§2065824489
XS§2065824216
XS2065824562
XS§1686427508
XS§1700124453
XS1720491767
XS§1732566556
XS§1732570582
XS1754450721
XS1787655585

XS1787655312
XS1787664736
XS§1787667838
XS1787668562
XS1787692430
X81793726651
XS1793735728
XS51804819073
X§1816854761
XS51831503831
XS51840288671
X§1850617876
XS52075508841
XS2075499322
X§1878424255
XS2077101728
XS2077104821
X§1914698367
XS2077107170
XS2077760689
X§1935890498
XS2077763352
XS2077772775
XS51960404553
XS2087057845
XS2087065277
XS1964177379
XS2087070608
XS51996182454
X51996444086
XS51996447006
XS51604591823
XS51338490094
XS2039570762
XS2039571901
XS52052361636
XS2087048265
XS2087049669
XS2052380776
XS2052380859
XS§2101207772
XS52062260646
XS§2062255307
XS52062265447
XS2062271254
XS2062277962
XS52062286286
XS2065786530
XS2101167703



XS§2101169238
XS82067759121
XS2074197455
XS§82101176878
XS§2101182769
XS52101186083
XS82113431170
XS82113430958
XS52144371981
XS82113452333
XS§82121688589
XS51816859133
XS82121722941
XS52126406383
XS82127625122
XS82127655897
XS51831494742
XS2141455613
XS2141463476
XS52144393019
XS2144393365
XS51885337524
XS52141480645
XS2145691247
XS82145707423
XS§2160075904
XS§2160035270
X§2160388356
XS§2075505581
XS2074192225
XS82074195756
XS§82160747932
XS2160748070
XS§82160749714
XS§2160749805
XS1793738318
XS§2013009837
XS§2013025957
XS§2020222860
XS§2020238866
XS82174212840
XS2174197942
XS2174200324
XS82174204235
XS2160377821
XS2186720517
XS2174208905
XS2174223532
XS2160379017

XS§2160377318
XS82175253223
XS82175254031
XS82175257216
XS§2189831204
X82175268841
XS§2184624133
XS§2184631930
XS§2184633712
XS82175236723
XS§2160382748
XS§2160383985
XS§2185575383
XS§2185577918
XS§2185581274
X§2185590853
X§2185594848
XS§2185594764
XS§2185601304
XS§2186718610
XS82186727017
XS§2186732017
X§2189829562
XS52189829992
X§2189840023
XS1754446372
XS81776927359
X§1926842003
XS§1996458979
XS§2077093792
XS§2149571833
XS82175239743
XS§1947203516
XS81422229739
XS§2158780408
X52189862183
XS§2012918798
XS52062240614
X§2019026819
XS§1489548104
XS51083624566
XS§1191560926
XS§1292859078
XS52024874161
XS§1827508240
XS§1293090160
XS52052382046
XS1496213189
XS$1549026190
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XS§81914702813
X§1885253267
XS§1885256955
XS§1885257094
X82067719687
XS2067736699
X82202197476
XS§81292863260
XS82144375974
X§82149554409
X82149559465
XS§2149559895
X§82121700467
XS82075514492
XS82174192711
XS82174221833
X§82184618598
XS§2201041253
X§2201043465
XS80270454563
XS§2053639121
XS§81628335702
X§1988384209
XS51996477250
X§1988400500
X§1996185044
XS§1700141119
X§1996466485
X8§2007893188
XS2011506800
X§2013032730
XS81757245912
XS52021807289
X82024895752
XS§2024895836
XS1754476528
XS§2039407932
XS§2039573519
XS1804808035
XS§2021826669
X§2049250975
XS2065806403
XS§1914740748
XS§81549076021
XS51926852739
XS82067731542
XS§1935890738
XS1947191919
XS§2075520036

XS2074224283
XS2077760176
X§1960183447
XS2077777733
XS52101164510
XS§2126406110
XS52126406896
XS52127605108
X§2101187990
XS52101187560
XS52101188022
XS§2113434869
XS52113434943
XS52113452093
X82121701275
XS82121716620
XS82121717198
XS§2144382590
XS82145707340
XS51840312133
X§2191538300
XS52126410146
XS82175258610
XS§2175268924
XS§2184617350
XS2184617277
XS52184618325
XS52184623168
XS§2185594921
XS52189844363
XS§2191288609
XS§2191302368
XS§2191301980
XS§2191301808
XS§2191304737
XS§1997308868
XS§2202192675
XS1288817510
XS1288743641
XS52019047658
XS52019047492
XS§2024901741
XS51655697412
XS§1918900272
XS§2052530099
XS2053625096
XS2053625179
XS1489535036
XS1673287253



XS81787696852
XS81776925221
XS52033202487
XS82033203295
XS82077759244
XS1720478319
XS82113439744
XS§81926857456
XS52049218147
XS81947220361
XS§1885335072
XS2065774791
XS52013036483
XS82121712124
XS52185606360
XS51496211563
XS51496216109
XS1977466371
XS51996485196
XS52160750217
XS1496215556
XS51686397081
XS1947178494
XS2013037705
X§2013038182
XS§2013039156
XS52021805747
XS§1489574449
XS§2024922663
XS1867929637
XS§1947209802
X§1684052431
XS1741915901
XS§81732553810
XS§2052378101
XS1754439674
XS2062243808
XS§2062259804
XS52065812807
XS82065774528
XS2067722046
XS1741926262
XS§2149563145
XS§2075500434
XS2075508338
XS2077753478
XS51935901287
XS1964195199
XS1977459244

XS§1804854732
XS§1292854780
XS§2020240094
XS§2160730888
XS§2160374562
X§1885252020
XS§1741917865
XS§2020252420
XS§2174200084
XS§2174198759
XS§1827514990
X82202223140
XS§2052531576
XS§2052528788
XS§2053629759
XS82174216593
XS82174223292
XS82174223375
XS§2160379520
XS§2062255489
XS52062266338
XS§2158683628
XS§2175251011
XS82175268767
XS§2053754813
XS§2184619216
XS§2074225330
X§2160751702
XS§2184630700
XS2077097868
XS§2077106016
XS§2160368325
XS52160368598
XS82077758279
XS2077761141
XS§2077522402
XS82077773401
XS2087055120
XS2087055047
XS§2160072398
XS§2160072471
XS§2160073792
XS§2020239328
XS§2160748310
XS§2202203381
XS52185604746
XS$2101180987
XS§2174209549
XS$2101182090
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X§82101182843
X§2101193881
XS82113425446
XS82113425875
X82113426410
XS2113436997
X§82113436641
X§82186732108
XS52184615149
X82113451798
X§82121688076
XS52189846905
X§2189859122
X§82185604076
XS§2191292387
XS82127625551
X§82127631369
XS52189854248
X§2007920171
X§1804873955
XS2011497034
X§1885368594
NL0014034282
XS2144370231
XS50993361616
X§1988408669
XS51083638350
X§1840310947
XS§81700153551
XS§1222202225
X§2087071168
DEOOOPRSEVA2
XS51338562009
XS81831477572
XS§1422301512
XS2101180631
XS82065792777
XS82113446798
XS52121693589
XS82074211462
XS§2126403018
XS2145680554
XS§2185579708
XS§2020222944
XS51292845283
X§2189836005
XS82149548427
XS2020235680
X§2020235847

XS52184615651
XS52184615909
X82184615735
XS52186718966
XS52185588360
X§2185591315
XS51292860670
XS52201054157
X§2201054231
XS52201057762
XS52202196312
X82186750266
XS§2202202656
XS§2202209230
XS§1422301355
XS51194512569
XS52020204371
FR0013323771
XS51549105226
XS51586684836
XS§1422266186
XS51648653043
XS51655679949
XS1977475794
XS1977475877
XS§1673291529
XS§1707223704
XS1720470332
XS52011535494
XS1757262412
XS1754439757
XS1754471727
XS§1293132939
XS§1582788631
XS1754474408
XS1754472451
XS2049217172
XS2049220556
XS§2049220390
XS$1859565126
XS2052375933
XS1859568146
XS§1859568229
XS1859574896
XS2053623638
XS2062251736
XS2062263749
XS2065799194
XS2065798972



XS82074218806
XS82077094337
XS2077108145
XS82077106875
XS82077108491
XS2077106958
XS82077521263
XS§82121689041
XS§2127718059
XS82087047291
XS§2101166994
XS52101167026
XS2101170327
XS52113438183
XS52113439660
XS51942342525
XS52020243197
XS§2020252008
XS2113473925
XS52053647066
XS52052368300
XS82121722354
XS2077084700
XS2065807633
X82127611171
XS§2065807559
XS52065817194
X§82145684895
XS§2141480058
XS2144376196
XS§82149555042
XS§2049233880
XS52184619059
XS§1964165101
XS§2007884781
XS2011494791
X$51964182379
XS§2019030415
X51988398761
XS$1996187339
X§2189861615
XS§2201051211
XS§2052368052
XS§2201053779
XS§2201056871
XS52201062846
XS2201063901
XS§2202191784
XS52202196072

X§2202191198
X8§2202222258
XS§1804874177
XS§2145707936
XS§2012920851
XS82077757206
XS52019065395
XS§2011533952
XS§2011534174
XS§2020237389
XS§2020253824
XS§1997333031
XS§2011502486
XS§2021817759
XS§2024899747
XS§1338129890
XS§1338481937
XS§2024924875
XS§1338504142
XS§2033987277
XS§2039397018
XS§2039410217
XS§1716036253
XS51686425395
XS§1591238396
XS§2052356479
XS52052368565
XS§2053621855
XS§2053621939
XS52062265363
XS§2062265280
XS§2062266098
XS52065806668
XS§2065807393
XS§2065820735
XS2065776812
XS§2065790052
XS2067717558
XS2067735964
XS2067744107
XS2067748199
XS2067747894
XS2074183661
XS2074183745
XS2074191920
XS2074196721
XS2074203527
XS2074203444
XS2075525001

119

X82075507363
XS82075517750
X§1885324621
X82067763073
XS82077094501
XS§2077093289
XS82077772262
XS§81942311132
XS§2087040106
X§1804811252
XS§1804811179
XS§2101190945
XS82077054380
XS82113432731
XS§1840302175
X82020223322
X82020237546
XS2113464007
X§2101204084
XS82113476787
XS2174189683
XS§81827512432
XS§1926871010
XS51926876241
FR0013470994
XS82174206792
XS82121716117
XS82121716547
XS§81947184112
XS1947187131
X82053629593
X82121722198
XS1947218209
X§82160377664
XS§2126410575
FR0013481470
XS§2175249890
X§2144385189
XS2145702895
XS§2159035166
XS§2145680711
FR0013492899
X§2149558731
X§2149558814
XS2149564895
XS§2149562923
XS§2160373168
XS2158674635
XS§1338523449

XS52160382151
XS52158683461
X§2087074857
XS52020236142
XS52020237207
X§2101206378
XS§1251256548
XS0842644667
X81720465761
XS51338562264
FR0013531506
XS82174217054
XS§1793699403
XS1754424726
X§2013036640
XS82013027227
XS82175249387
X82174199484
XS2184617947
XS52184622434
X§2184638430
XS52184638356
XS52101197445
XS§2185599300
XS§2185599482
FR0014000444
XS§2185590267
XS§2185599722
XS82127623937
XS2186731639
XS52189833085
XS52189848604
XS52189852549
FR0014000DY8
XS1977464673
XS51996455959
XS52019019285
XS2019019012
XS§2019019103
XS51684023929
XS$1914720120
XS§1926847903
XS1732584294
XS1754430293
XS§1885255635
XS51926860088
XS§1926877215
XS2065792264
XS$2101181019



XS82121702596
XS82067734561
XS§2075518998
XS§2101206451
XS§2101209042
XS2144370827
XS82077766025
XS§2087021908
XS§2101197874
XS82067770441
XS81942353720
XS82127631799
XS2149577871
XS2149577954
XS51338520262
XS81222235076
XS1489572401
XS82202221441
XS52184621204
XS52184621386
XS52189831113
XS2141470257
XS51288721084
XS§2201069007
X82202221797
XS§2052360661
XS52052360745
XS82067718283
XS82075527718
XS2074209219
XS§2101206535
X82121702679
XS§2121702836
X82127719297
XS§2149569266
XS1720472544
XS82175258453
X§2160383043
XS2201042228
XS§2202221524
XS§2202197559
XS1947187644
XS§2030700632

XS§2049249530
XS§2065797651
XS82067722129
XS§1673301260
XS§1673286792
XS§2062255216
XS§2067718101
XS§2075527635
XS§2052361040
XS§2052528606
X§2202215393
X§2202208182
X82149557170
XS§2149557410
XS§2149558061
X§2149558145
XS2141484472
XS2141484555
X§1292842850
X§1988392483
X§1988392640
XS§1422301512
XS§1422299195
XS81422278785
XS§81942349967
XS§1942308930
XS§1942309151
X§1942308856
XS§1960412903
X51960413208
XS§1935893757
XS§1947182769
XS1947179468
XS§1867929637
XS51885368594
X§2020219999
FR0013455516
XS§2201053852
XS§2202192329
NL0015099474
XS§2149573706
XS52160386061
XS52065809092
XS2077090939
XS2077779515
XS2087051723
XS2141480132
XS1190475522
XS§1804792015
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XS§81831497257
X82052365629
XS§2049243251
X82049243335
X82062250928
XS§2067751490
X82067764550
X§82101175714
XS82121707710
XS§1700149286
XS81732556169
XS81732572281
XS82174201306
XS81741955105
XS§2201068025
X82186745779
X§1960414438
XS2067734306
XS82067736186
XS§81288744532
XS$1489534229
X§1288729491
XS82067737077
XS§2201040016
XS82141454137
X§2201062259
XS§2201062929
X§2201063224
X§2201063141
XS2201063067
XS§81598574843
X§1996455280
XS52024911468
X§82024912193
XS§2024912516
XS52024912516
XS82024912276
XS§2033202487
XS2033203295
XS82033202727
X§1996459274
XS2013034199
XS§2012913138
XS82127651557
XS2141466909
XS§1338128223
XS§2020232315
XS52020232232
XS82174216676

XS82175239313
XS1707218613
X82175260350
XS82175259931
XS1732585424
X§2185580979
XS1776942663
XS52185606287
X§1787693248
FR0014000J84
XS52201067308
X§1878403259
XS51885308269
XS§2202210592
X§1914710758
XS51942309078
XS52052130585
X§1964170010
XS1977469631
XS51988407695
X§1964163155
XS52030690650
XS52049236479
XS52052363848
XS§2052385650
XS2077099484
FR0013364791
XS2074192738
XS2074192654
XS51831484354
XS51831484438
XS51831484271
XS§2077100167
XS2077100084
XS2077100910
XS1942313427
XS1942313930
NL0013545601
NL0013545619
NL0013545627



GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAMME

Issuers

Guarantor
Description of the Programme

Securities

Taxation

Governing Law

BNP Paribas Issuance B.V. ("BNPP B.V.")

BNP Paribas ("BNPP" or the "Bank" and, together with its
consolidated subsidiaries, the "Group™)

BNP Paribas
Warrant and Certificate Programme

Securities may be issued as Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI
Securities, Debt Securities, Commodity Securities, Inflation Index
Securities, Currency Securities, Fund Securities, Credit Securities,
Futures Securities, Listed Option Securities, Preference Share
Certificates or open end turbo Certificates which will be redeemed
on a date determined by the Issuer, in its sole and absolute discretion,
subject as provided herein ("OET Certificates"), or any other or
further type of warrants or certificates including Hybrid Securities
where the Underlying Reference may be any combination of such
indices, shares, interests in exchange traded instruments, debt
instruments, commodities, inflation indices, currencies, funds,
futures contracts, listed option contracts or other asset classes or

types.

A Holder of Securities must pay all specified expenses relating to the
Securities.

Neither the Issuer nor the Guarantor shall be liable for or otherwise
obliged to pay any tax, duty, withholding or other payment which
may arise as a result of the ownership, transfer, exercise or
enforcement of any Security and all payments made by the relevant
Issuer or the Guarantor shall be made subject to any such tax, duty,
withholding or other payment which may be required to be made,
paid, withheld or deducted.

The Securities and any related Guarantee will be governed by
English, Dutch or French Law as specified in the applicable Final
Terms.
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DESCRIPTION OF THE SWISS STRUCTURED PRODUCTS ASSOCIATION SWISS DERIVATIVES
MAP CATEGORISATION

Product Features

In respect of FinSA Securities, the Issuer will determine which category the relevant Securities fall into pursuant
to the Swiss Derivatives Map 2021 published by Swiss Structured Products Association (the "SSPA™) (the "SSPA
Swiss Derivatives Map") (https://sspa.ch/en) depending on the particular features of the relevant Securities.

Product Types
Capital Protection Products (SSPA Category 11)

"Capital Protection Products” provide for a specific minimum redemption amount. The level of the minimum
redemption amount representing the level of capital protection indicates the percentage of the nominal or par value
of the Capital Protection Product that the investor will be entitled to receive on the Redemption Date. The
minimum redemption amount will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. The applicable Final Terms may
specify that the minimum redemption amount is less than 100% of the nominal value of the Securities (partial
capital protection). Capital protection therefore does not mean that the investor is entitled to an amount on
redemption equal to the full nominal value of the Capital Protection Products. The potential loss is limited by the
minimum redemption amount, subject to the credit risk of the Issuer and, if applicable, the Guarantor.

The product category Capital Protection Products includes the following product types:

. Capital Protection Note with Participation (SSPA Category 1100)
. Capital Protection Note with Barrier (SSPA Category 1130)

. Capital Protection Note with Twin Win (SSPA Category 1135)

. Capital Protection Note with Coupon (SSPA Category 1140)

Yield Enhancement Products (SSPA Category 12)

"Yield Enhancement Products” provide for a redemption amount that is limited to a maximum amount (a cap)
and may provide for (fixed or variable) periodic coupon payments during the term.

The product category Yield Enhancement Products includes the following product types:

. Discount Certificate (SSPA Category 1200)

. Barrier Discount Certificate (SSPA Category 1210)

. Reverse Convertible (SSPA Category 1220)

. Barrier Reverse Convertible (SSPA Category 1230)

. Conditional Coupon Reverse Convertible (SSPA Category 1255)

. Conditional Coupon Barrier Reverse Convertible (SSPA Category 1260)

Participation Products (SSPA Category 13)

"Participation Products" generally track the performance of the Underlying Reference and enable investors to
participate in the performance of the Underlying Reference. Depending on the structure of the Participation
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Product, investors participate proportionately or disproportionately in the performance of the Underlying
Reference. The return an investor may receive by investing in a Participation Product is theoretically unlimited
(unless there is a cap), but there is the risk of a total loss (unless there is a partial capital protection).

The product category Participation Products includes the following product types:

. Tracker Certificate (SSPA Category 1300)

. Outperformance Certificate (SSPA Category 1310)

. Bonus Certificate (SSPA Category 1320)

. Bonus Outperformance Certificate (SSPA Category 1330)
. Twin-Win Certificate (SSPA Category 1340)

Investment Products with Additional Credit Risk (SSPA Category 14)

"Investment Products with Additional Credit Risk" have the relevant features that are described in respect of
Capital Protection Products, Yield Enhancement Products or Participation Products, depending on the type of
product. In addition, the performance of Investment Products with Additional Credit Risk will be affected if a
defined credit event occurs in respect of a reference entity or obligation, as specified in the applicable Final Terms.
If a credit event occurs in respect of a reference entity or obligation during the term of Investment Products with
Additional Credit Risk, they will be redeemed at a value which may be significantly lower than their initial value,
and may be as low as zero, in which case, investors will bear partial or total loss. If no credit event occurs,
Investment Products with Additional Credit Risk work in the same manner as a Capital Protection Product, Yield
Enhancement Product or Participation Product, as the case may be, as described above.

The product category Investment Products with Additional Credit Risk includes the following product types:

. Credit Linked Notes (SSPA Category 1400)

. Conditional Capital Protection Note with Additional Credit Risk (SSPA Category 1410)
. Yield Enhancement Certificate with Additional Credit Risk (SSPA Category 1420)

. Participation Certificate with Additional Credit Risk (SSPA Category 1430)

Leverage Products (SSPA Category 21)

"Leverage Products" are subject to a leverage effect both in the direction of profits and losses (i.e. changes in
the value of the underlying have a disproportionate effect on the value of Leveraged Products compared to a direct
investment in the Underlying Reference(s)). The leverage effect permits investors to use less capital compared to
investing directly in the Underlying Reference.

The product category Leverage Products includes the following product types:

. Warrant (SSPA Category 2100)

. Spread Warrant (SSPA Category 2110)

. Warrant with Knock-Out (SSPA Category 2200)
. Mini-Future (SSPA Category 2210)
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. Constant Leverage Certificate (SSPA Category 2300)
Further Products
Actively Managed Certificates

"Actively Managed Certificates" reference Underlying References which are actively managed at the discretion
of one or more investment managers during the life of the Securities in accordance with the product specifications.
In addition to any one-time fees in connection with the issuance of Actively Managed Certificates, investors may
incur recurring costs embedded in the product due to active management of the Underlying References, for
example, by a third party manager. Any such fees and costs will be disclosed in the applicable Final Terms.
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SECURITY AND COLLATERAL IN RESPECT OF SECURED SECURITIES
The following shall apply to Secured Securities only.
General

Only BNPP B.V. may issue Secured Securities. In order to secure its obligations in respect of the Secured
Securities, BNPP B.V. will enter into one or more pledge agreements and/or other security arrangements with,
among others, BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited which will, unless otherwise specified in the applicable
Final Terms, be governed by Luxembourg law (each a "Security Agreement™). Under the Security Agreement,
BNPP B.V. will grant first ranking security over securities accounts or cash accounts (each a "Collateral
Account") held by BNPP B.V. with BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch or such other custodian
or account bank as is specified for the relevant Collateral Pool in the applicable Final Terms (each a "Collateral
Custodian™) in favour of BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited (the "Collateral Agent™) on behalf of itself
and the relevant Holder. In each Collateral Account, BNPP B.V. will hold sufficient securities or cash which,
upon delivery to the relevant Collateral Account, are Eligible Collateral (the "Collateral Assets™) to secure the
marked to market value of the relevant Secured Securities ("MTM Collateralisation™) or a specified proportion
of the marked to market value of the relevant Secured Securities ("Partial MTM Collateralisation™) or
alternatively (and only where the relevant Secured Securities are Certificates) to secure the nominal value of such
Secured Securities ("Nominal Value Collateralisation™) or to secure part of the nominal value of such Secured
Securities ("Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation"). Whether or not MTM Collateralisation, Partial MTM
Collateralisation, Nominal Value Collateralisation or Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable to a
series of Secured Securities will be specified in the applicable Final Terms. Multiple series of Secured Securities
may be secured by the Collateral Assets held in a single Collateral Account (each a "Collateral Pool") if so
specified in the relevant Final Terms.

Adjustments to Collateral Pool where the Collateral Assets are securities

Unless specified otherwise in the applicable Final Terms, where the Collateral Assets are securities, on such
periodic basis as is specified in the applicable Final Terms (each a "Collateral Valuation Date™), BNP Paribas
Arbitrage S.N.C (or such other party specified in the applicable Final Terms) (the "Collateral Calculation
Agent™) will determine (a) the marked to market value of the Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool (the "Collateral
Value™) and (b)(i) the sum of, in respect of each series of Secured Securities secured by the relevant Collateral
Pool, the marked to market value of such Secured Securities (where MTM Collateralisation is applicable to a
series of Secured Securities) or part of the marked to market value of such Secured Securities (where Partial MTM
Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities) and (ii) where Nominal Value Collateralisation or
Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable to a series of Secured Securities, the aggregate nominal value
or part of the aggregate nominal value of the relevant Secured Securities (such sum, the "Securities Value").
When determining the Collateral Value in respect of Collateral Assets in a Collateral Pool, the Collateral
Calculation Agent may, if so specified in the applicable Final Terms, apply a "haircut" (being a percentage by
which the market value of a Collateral Asset is discounted) which is designed to mitigate the depreciation in value
of the relevant Collateral Asset in the period between the last valuation of the Collateral Asset and the realisation
of such Collateral Asset. When determining the Securities Value on the basis of the marked to market value of
the Secured Securities (or part of such marked to market value), the Collateral Calculation Agent shall take no
account of the financial condition of (a) BNPP B.V. which shall be presumed to be able to perform fully its
obligations in respect of the Secured Securities or, (b) the Guarantor which shall be presumed to be able to perform
fully its obligations in respect of the Guarantee. Unless the applicable Final Terms specify that there will be no
adjustments to the amount of Collateral Assets or that there are no Collateral VValuation Dates, in the event that on
a Collateral Valuation Date there is a difference between the Collateral VValue and the applicable Securities Value,
BNPP B.V. will procure that further assets are delivered to the Collateral Account (or substitute existing Collateral
Assets with Collateral Assets with a greater value) if the value of the Collateral Assets is less than the Securities
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Value prior to such adjustment or will be entitled to remove Collateral Assets from the Collateral Account if the
Collateral Value is in excess of the Securities Value prior to such adjustment. Following such adjustment to the
Collateral Assets in respect of any Collateral Valuation Date, the Collateral Value is expected to be equal to the
Securities Value.

Adjustments to Collateral Pool where the Collateral Asset is a cash deposit

Where the Collateral Asset is a cash deposit, on each Collateral Valuation Date (if any) the Collateral Calculation
Agent will determine only the Securities Value. When determining the Securities Value on the basis of the marked
to market value of the Secured Securities (or part of such marked to market value), the Collateral Calculation
Agent shall take no account of the financial condition of (a) BNPP B.V. which shall be presumed to be able to
perform fully its obligations in respect of the Secured Securities or (b) the Guarantor which shall be presumed to
be able to perform fully its obligations in respect of the Guarantee. Unless the applicable Final Terms specify that
there will be no adjustments to the amount of Collateral Assets or that there are no Collateral Valuation Dates, in
the event that on a Collateral Valuation Date there is a difference between the amount of cash standing to the
credit of the Collateral Account (the "Deposit Amount") and the applicable Securities Value, BNPP B.V. will
procure that further cash is deposited in the Collateral Account if the Deposit Amount is below the Securities
Value prior to such adjustment or will be entitled to withdraw cash from the Collateral Account if the Deposit
Amount is in excess of the Securities Value prior to such adjustment. Following such adjustment in respect of
Collateral Assets on any Collateral Valuation Date, the Deposit Amount is expected to be equal to the Securities
Value.

Delivery of Collateral Assets

In the event that BNPP B.V. is required to deliver or deposit additional Collateral Assets or alternative Collateral
Assets in the Collateral Account, BNPP B.V. shall do so as soon as practicable following the relevant Collateral
Valuation Date.

Calculations

The Collateral Agent will not be required to calculate or check the valuation of the relevant Secured Securities or
the Collateral Assets prior to the enforcement of the Security Agreements. In connection with the distribution of
the realisation proceeds from the Collateral Assets, the Collateral Agent may be required to determine the Security
Termination Amount due in respect of each Secured Security and the Final Security Value in respect of such
Secured Security. The Collateral Agent will determine the Final Security Value of a Secured Security on the basis
of information obtained from the Collateral Calculation Agent.

The Final Terms applicable to a series of Secured Securities may specify that there are no Collateral Valuation
Dates and that there will be no Collateral Calculation Agent in which case the Collateral Assets in a Collateral
Pool will not be subject to adjustment as described above following their initial deposit in or delivery to the
relevant Collateral Account.

No collateralisation in respect of Secured Securities held by BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates

There will be no collateralisation in respect of any Secured Securities beneficially owned by BNPP B.V. or any
of its Affiliates. During the term of the relevant Secured Securities, where BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates is
the beneficial owner of Secured Securities, it will not provide or hold any Collateral Assets in respect of such
Secured Securities.

Following an Enforcement Event, BNPP B.V. or the Affiliate of BNPP B.V. that holds the Secured Securities will
renounce and waive all rights (including as to payment) in respect of such Secured Securities and shall submit
such Secured Securities for cancellation free of payment.
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Substitutions

In the period between Collateral VValuation Dates, BNPP B.V. may withdraw Collateral Assets from any Collateral
Account but only if it replaces them with alternative Collateral Assets which have at least the same marked to
market value (as of the previous Collateral Valuation Date) as those being replaced (where MTM Collateralisation
or Partial MTM Collateralisation is applicable) or, where Collateral Assets have been provided in an amount equal
to the nominal value of the relevant Secured Securities, the same nominal amount as those being replaced (where
Nominal Value Collateralisation or Partial Nominal VValue Collateralisation is applicable and where there are no
Collateral Valuation Dates).

Events of Default

The terms of the Secured Securities will contain events of default including non-payment or failure to deliver the
Entitlement which is not remedied within 30 days after the relevant due date, non-performance or non-observance
of the Issuer's or Guarantor's obligations in respect of the Secured Securities where such default is not remedied
within 45 days after notice of such default has been given to the Principal Security Agent by any Holder and the
insolvency or winding up of the Issuer or Guarantor.

Enforcement

Upon receipt of a notice from a Holder that an Event of Default has occurred (a "Default Notification™), BNPP
B.V. may deliver a notice to the Collateral Agent and the relevant Holder stating that, in its reasonable belief, the
relevant Event of Default has not occurred (such a notice, an "Event Dispute Notice™). If the Collateral Agent
does not receive an Event Dispute Notice at or prior to the end of the Dispute Period, the Collateral Agent will
deliver a notice to, among others, BNPP B.V. and the Collateral Custodian specifying that a Default Notification
has been delivered, that no Event Dispute Notice has been received from BNPP B.V. within the Dispute Period
with respect to such Default Notification and that, as a result, the Secured Securities are immediately due and
payable (an "Enforcement Notice"). The Holder will receive a copy of such Enforcement Notice. Following
delivery of an Enforcement Notice, the Collateral Agent will enforce the Security Agreement(s) in accordance
with the terms thereof and will liquidate or realise the Collateral Assets in all the Collateral Pools, or appoint an
agent to do so on its behalf, save where Physical Delivery of Collateral is specified as applicable to a series of
Secured Securities, in which case the portion of the Collateral Assets held in respect of series of Secured Securities
secured by the relevant Collateral Pool which are subject to Collateral Cash Settlement (if any) only will be
liquidated. In accordance with the terms of the Secured Securities, the Collateral Agent will distribute the
proceeds of such liquidation or realisation of a Collateral Pool to the Holder of the Secured Securities secured by
such Collateral Pool where such Secured Securities are subject to Collateral Cash Settlement or, where Physical
Delivery of Collateral is specified as applicable, arrange for delivery of the Collateral Assets in the relevant
Collateral Pool or the portion of the Collateral Assets held in respect of series of Secured Securities which are
subject to Physical Delivery of Collateral (where the Collateral Pool secures series of Secured Securities to which
both Collateral Cash Settlement and Physical Delivery of Collateral applies) to the relevant Holder, in each case
after payment of any costs and fees incurred in connection with the enforcement of the Security Agreement and,
where applicable, after payment of any other amount which is payable in priority thereto in accordance with the
applicable Priority of Payments set out in the applicable Final Terms or, as applicable, the applicable Collateral
Security Conditions. The Collateral Assets in one Collateral Pool and the proceeds of enforcement from that
Collateral Pool (if any) will not be available to satisfy amounts due in respect of any Secured Securities which are
not secured by that Collateral Pool.
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Collateral Asset Linked Securities

Where the relevant Secured Securities are Collateral Asset Linked Securities, the paragraphs entitled ""Adjustments
to Collateral Pool where the Collateral Assets are securities” and "Adjustments to Collateral Pool where the
Collateral Asset is a cash deposit " above will not apply.

Collateralisation

In respect of the aggregate Notional Amount of any Secured Securities held by parties other than BNPP B.V. or
any of its Affiliates (such Secured Securities, the "Placed Secured Securities") which are secured by the relevant
Collateral Pool, Nominal Value Collateralisation will apply (the "Nominal Value Collateralisation Element™).

In addition, BNPP B.V. will enter into an option with an affiliate of BNP Paribas to hedge its obligations to pay
Scheduled Underlying Reference Linked Payments in respect of the Securities (the "Option"). The Issuer will
hold in the Collateral Account sufficient MTM Adjustable Assets (not including, for the avoidance of doubt, the
Reference Collateral Assets that are held in the Collateral Account to collateralise the aggregate Notional Amount
of the Placed Secured Securities) to collateralise the marked-to-market value of the portion of the Option that
relates to the Placed Secured Securities (the "MTM Collateralisation Element™).

In respect of (i) the aggregate Notional Amount of the Secured Securities that are held by BNPP B.V. or any of
its Affiliates and (ii) the portion of the Option that relate to Securities held by BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates,
BNPP B.V. will hold no Collateral Assets. Following an Enforcement Event, BNPP B.V. or the Affiliate of BNPP
B.V. that holds the Secured Securities shall renounce and waive all rights (including as to payment) in respect of
such Securities and shall submit such Secured Securities for cancellation free of payment.

In respect of the Nominal Value Collateralisation Element, BNPP B.V. will transfer into the relevant Collateral
Account on the date specified in the Final Terms (the "Initial Posting Date") and hold in such account on any
day thereafter, an aggregate nominal amount of the Reference Collateral Assets, at least equal to the aggregate
Notional Amount of the Placed Secured Securities which are secured by the relevant Collateral Pool on such date.
Where BNPP B.V. or any of its Affiliates acquires Secured Securities after the Initial Posting Date, BNPP B.V.
will be entitled to withdraw an aggregate nominal amount of Reference Collateral Assets equal to the aggregate
Notional Amount of the Secured Securities so acquired, provided that BNPP B.V. shall always hold in the
Collateral Account an aggregate nominal amount of the Reference Collateral Assets at least equal to, at any time,
the aggregate Notional Amount of the Placed Secured Securities.

In respect of the MTM Collateralisation Element, BNPP B.V. will transfer MTM Adjustable Assets to and from
the Collateral Account (based on the valuation provided by the Collateral Calculation Agent in respect of the
immediately preceding Collateral Valuation Date) so that it will hold in respect of the relevant Collateral Pool
(excluding, for the avoidance of doubt, any Reference Collateral Assets that are held in the Collateral Account to
collateralise the aggregate Notional Amount of the Placed Secured Securities) with an aggregate marked-to-
market value (as determined by the Collateral Calculation Agent and which will take into account the relevant
Haircut (if a Haircut is specified as applicable in the applicable Final Terms) at least equal to the Securities Value.

Enforcement

Following the occurrence of an Event of Default, a Holder, or the Distributor acting on the instructions of a Holder,
may provide a Default Notification. If the Collateral Agent does not receive an Event Dispute Notice from BNPP
B.V. at or prior to the end of the Dispute Period, it shall deliver an Enforcement Notice to each of BNPP B.V.,
the Principal Security Agent and the Collateral Custodian whereupon the Secured Securities shall become
immediately due and payable at their Security Termination Amount (which will be equal to the marked to market
value of the Option), and BNPP B.V. shall be obliged to deliver the Entitlement (which will consist of a pro rata
share of the Reference Collateral Assets held by BNPP B.V. in respect of the relevant series of Collateral Asset
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Linked Securities) in respect of the Secured Securities on the relevant Collateral Delivery Date without further
action or formalities and the Security Interest granted under the Pledge Agreement shall become enforceable (as
set out in the Pledge Agreement).

Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event

BNPP B.V. shall redeem the Secured Securities as soon as reasonably practicable after the occurrence of the
Collateral Asset Default or Collateral Default Event, as the case may be, by (a) delivering the Reference Collateral
Assets in the relevant Collateral Pool to the Holder of the Secured Securities secured by such Reference Collateral
Assets and (b) payment to the Holder of Secured Securities of an amount in the Settlement Currency equal to the
pro rata share applicable to each relevant Placed Secured Security of the marked to market value, on the Collateral
Asset Default Determination Date, of the portion of the Option which relates to the Placed Secured Securities, as
determined by the Calculation Agent.

Acquisition of Collateral Assets

BNPP B.V. may acquire the Collateral Assets in a humber of ways including by entering into repurchase
agreements or swap agreements or any other agreements with BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or any
other Affiliate of the Issuer or such other entities as it deems appropriate from time to time.

Swap Agreement

In connection with one or more series of Secured Securities, BNPP B.V. may enter into a swap agreement with a
counterparty which may be BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or any other Affiliate of BNPP B.V. or
such other entities as it deems appropriate from time to time (the "Swap Counterparty™) evidenced by a 1992
ISDA Master Agreement and Schedule or a 2002 ISDA Master Agreement and Schedule thereto together with
the confirmation entered into by BNPP B.V. and the Swap Counterparty in respect of the relevant series of Secured
Securities (a "Swap Agreement").

The purpose of the Swap Agreement is to allow BNPP B.V. to perform its scheduled obligations under the relevant
Secured Securities. The Swap Agreement may provide that BNPP B.V. will pay to the Swap Counterparty the
proceeds of issue of the Secured Securities which are to be secured by the Collateral Pool. Over the term of the
relevant Secured Securities, upon scheduled settlement or redemption of the Secured Securities and, upon the
early redemption or cancellation of the Secured Securities other than following an Event of Default, the Swap
Counterparty will make payments or delivery of assets to BNPP B.V. which correspond to those which BNPP
B.V. is scheduled to make under the relevant Secured Securities. The Swap Agreement may be supplemented by
a credit support document (a "Credit Support Document™).

Credit Support Document

Under the terms of the Credit Support Document, until the redemption or exercise of the relevant Secured
Securities the Swap Counterparty shall deliver to BNPP B.V., the initial Collateral Assets in an amount determined
by the relevant Securities Value of a series and from time to time, as applicable additional Collateral Assets on
the basis of the Securities Value and Collateral Value. BNPP B.V. shall re-deliver Collateral Assets or assets
equivalent thereto to the Swap Counterparty, if applicable, on the basis of the Securities Value and Collateral
Value. The Credit Support Document may include provisions governing the calculation of the Securities Value
and the Collateral Value in respect of the relevant Secured Securities. The Swap Counterparty may at its sole
discretion substitute the Collateral Assets for other Eligible Collateral. BNPP B.V. may appoint one or more
agents to perform custodial and administrative functions relating to its obligations under the Credit Support
Document.
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Repurchase Agreement

In connection with one or more series of Secured Securities, BNPP B.V. may enter into a repurchase agreement
(a"Repurchase Agreement™) with a counterparty which may be BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C., BNP Paribas or
any other Affiliate of BNPP B.V. (the "Repo Counterparty"). The Repurchase Agreement may be substantially
in the form of a 2000 TBMA/ISMA Global Master Repurchase Agreement, a "Convention Cadre FBF aux
opérations de pensions livrées", each as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, or any
other agreement having a similar effect. Pursuant to the Repurchase Agreement, BNPP B.V. may enter into a
series of repurchase transactions (each a "Transaction™) with the Repo Counterparty in respect of Collateral
Assets. Under each such Transaction, the Repo Counterparty will be the seller of Collateral Assets and BNPP
B.V. will be the buyer.

Under a Repurchase Agreement entered into in respect of a series of Secured Securities, on the initial purchase
date and each subsequent purchase date BNPP B.V. will purchase from the Repo Counterparty Collateral Assets
with a market value equal to the outstanding aggregate nominal value of the relevant Secured Securities (or part
of such nominal value if Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation is applicable). On each repurchase date under
such Repurchase Agreement, the Repo Counterparty will repurchase securities equivalent to the Collateral Assets
sold by it in relation to such Collateral Pool on the previous purchase date for a repurchase price at least equal to
the purchase price for that Transaction.

Margin maintenance

The market value of the Collateral Assets which are the subject of the current Transaction under each Repurchase
Agreement will be determined on each Collateral Valuation Date. The Repurchase Agreement will provide that
the Repo Counterparty will transfer further Collateral Assets and, as applicable, BNPP B.V. shall re-deliver
Collateral Assets to the Repo Counterparty on the basis of the applicable Securities Value and the Collateral
Value. The Repo Counterparty may at its sole discretion substitute the Collateral Assets for other Eligible
Collateral.
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FORM OF FINAL TERMS FOR SECURITIES

[The Issuer accepts responsibility for this document in PDF dated [date] and confirms that it is the final
version (*'[Series Number] — Final*") of the Final Terms relating to the Securities with ISIN [ISIN] for the
issuance [and listing] of the Securities described herein.]

FINAL TERMS DATED [@]
[BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.

(incorporated in the Netherlands)
(as Issuer)
[Legal entity identifier (LEI):
7245009UXRIGIRYOBR48]]

BNP Paribas

(incorporated in France)
(as [Issuer]/[Guarantor])
[Legal entity identifier (LEI):
ROMUWSFPUSMPRO8K5P83]

(Warrant and Certificate Programme)
[insert title of Securities]

[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.
(as Manager)]

[These Securities are [FinSA Securities]/[FinSA Exempt Securities], as defined in the Base Prospectus]

[Insert in the case of FinSA Securities: SSPA product type: [SSPA product type]]

PART A - CONTRACTUAL TERMS

[Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions set forth in the Base
Prospectus dated 4 June 2021 [, [the][each] Supplement][s] to the Base Prospectus published and approved on or
before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and any other Supplement
to the Base Prospectus which may have been published and approved before the issue of any additional amount
of Securities] (the "Supplements™) (provided that to the extent any such Supplement (i) is published and approved
after the date of these Final Terms and (ii) provide for any change to the Conditions of the Securities such changes
shall have no effect with respect to the Conditions of the Securities to which these Final Terms relate) which
[together] constitute[s] a base prospectus for the purposes of the Luxembourg Act dated 16 July 2019 relating to
prospectuses for securities (Loi relative aux prospectus pour valeurs mobilieres) (the "Prospectus Act"). This
document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described herein and must be read in conjunction with such
Base Prospectus [as so supplemented]. Full information on [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]/[BNP Paribas] (the
"Issuer") and the offer of the Securities is only available on the basis of the combination of these Final Terms and
the Base Prospectus. [The Base Prospectus [and]] any Supplement(s) to the Base Prospectus] [and these
Final Terms]* [is/are] available for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained free of
charge at the specified offices of the Security Agents.]

Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.
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[Insert in the case of FinSA Securities: The Base Prospectus and any Supplement(s) thereto, have been approved
by SIX Exchange Regulation AG ("SIX Exchange Regulation™) in its capacity as Swiss Prospectus Office (the
"Swiss Prospectus Office™). As of 4 June 2021, the Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus pursuant to
article 45 of the Swiss Financial Services Act ("FinSA") for the purposes of the issuance of FinSA Securities.

For the purpose of public offering in Switzerland [and/or the admission to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange], these
Final Terms have been or will be registered with the Swiss Prospectus Office and are or will be published pursuant
to FinSA prior to the public offering of the Securities in Switzerland [and/or the admission to trading of the
Securities on SIX Swiss Exchange] and the Base Prospectus, any Supplement thereto and these Final Terms
together will constitute the prospectus pursuant to FinSA.]]

[The following alternative language applies if the first series of an issue which is being increased was issued
under a Base Prospectus with an earlier date.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the "Conditions")
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated [original date] [, [the][each] Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus published
and approved on or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described below) and
any other Supplement to the Base Prospectus which may have been published and approved before the issue of
any additional amount of Securities] (the "Supplements™) (provided that to the extent any such Supplement (i) is
published and approved after the date of these Final Terms and (ii) provide for any change to the Conditions of
the Securities such changes shall have no effect with respect to the Conditions of the Securities to which these
Final Terms relate) which are incorporated by reference in the Base Prospectus dated [current date] [and any
Supplement][s] to the Base Prospectus] and are attached hereto. This document constitutes the Final Terms of the
Securities described herein and must be read in conjunction with the Base Prospectus dated [original date] [and
the Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus], the Base Prospectus dated [current date] [and any Supplement[s] to
the Base Prospectus] to obtain all relevant information. Full information on [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]/[BNP
Paribas] (the "lIssuer™) and the offer of the Securities is only available on the basis of the combination of these
Final Terms, the Base Prospectus dated [original date] [and the Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus] and the
Base Prospectus dated [current date] [and any Supplement|[s] to the Base Prospectus]. [The Base Prospectus is
available for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].

[Insert in the case of FinSA Securities: The Base Prospectus dated [original date] and any Supplement(s) thereto,
have been approved by SIX Exchange Regulation AG ("SIX Exchange Regulation™) in its capacity as Swiss
Prospectus Office (the "Swiss Prospectus Office"). As of 4 June 2021, the Base Prospectus dated [current date]
constitutes a base prospectus pursuant to article 45 of the Swiss Financial Services Act ("FinSA") for the purposes
of the issuance of FinSA Securities.

For the purpose of public offering in Switzerland [and/or the admission to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange], these
Final Terms have been or will be registered with the Swiss Prospectus Office and are or will be published pursuant
to FinSA prior to the public offering of the Securities in Switzerland [and/or the admission to trading of the
Securities on SIX Swiss Exchange] and the Base Prospectus dated [original date], any Supplement thereto and
these Final Terms together will constitute the prospectus pursuant to FinSA.]]

[The following alternative language applies in respect of issues of Securities where the offer period spans a
supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the Base Prospectus or where the public offer period concludes
prior to the publication of a supplement to the Base Prospectus or an update to the Base Prospectus, but the Issue
Date of the Securities occurs after such publication.

Terms used herein shall be deemed to be defined as such for the purposes of the Conditions (the " Conditions")
set forth in the Base Prospectus dated 4 June 2021 [,][and][the][each] Supplement[s] to the Base Prospectus
published and approved on or before the date of these Final Terms (copies of which are available as described
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below)] [notwithstanding the publication and approval of any [other] Supplement to the 2021 Base Prospectus
(each a "2021 Future Supplement™) which may have been published and approved after the date of these Final
Terms and before the [issue] [end of the public offer period] of any additional amount of Securities (provided that
to the extent any 2021 Future Supplement (i) is published and approved after the date of these Final Terms and
(ii) provides for any change to the Conditions of the Securities such changes shall have no effect with respect to
the Conditions of the Securities to which these Final Terms relate)] ([together,] the "2021 Base Prospectus")
[and/or] an updated Base Prospectus (and any Supplement(s) thereto, each a "2022 Future Supplement"), which
will replace the 2021 Base Prospectus (the 2022 Base Prospectus™)] (the date of any such publication and
approval, each a "Publication Date"). This document constitutes the Final Terms of the Securities described
herein and [(i) prior to any Publication Date, must be read in conjunction with the 2021 Base Prospectus, or (ii)]
[on and after any Publication Date must be read in conjunction with the 2021 Base Prospectus, as supplemented
by any 2021 Future Supplement as at such date [or, as applicable,] [the 2022 Base Prospectus, as supplemented
by any 2022 Future Supplement as at such date],] save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the
2021 Base Prospectus as supplemented. Full information on [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]/[BNP Paribas] (the
"Issuer™) [, BNP Paribas (the "Guarantor™)] and the offer of the Securities is only available on the basis of the
combination of these Final Terms and [(i) prior to any Publication Date, the 2021 Base Prospectus, or (ii)] [on or
after any Publication Date, [the 2021 Base Prospectus, as supplemented by any 2022 Future Supplement as at
such date] [or, as applicable,] [the 2022 Base Prospectus, as supplemented by any 2022 Future Supplement as at
such date], save in respect of the Conditions which are extracted from the 2021 Base Prospectus. The 2021 Base
Prospectus, as supplemented, [and these Final Terms]? are available[, and the 2022 Base Prospectus will be
available] for viewing at [address] [and] [website] and copies may be obtained from [address].

[Insert in the case of FinSA Securities: The 2021 Base Prospectus and any Supplement(s) thereto have been
approved by SIX Exchange Regulation AG ("SIX Exchange Regulation™) in its capacity as Swiss Prospectus
Office (the "Swiss Prospectus Office"). As of 4 June 2021, the 2021 Base Prospectus constitutes a base prospectus
pursuant to article 45 of the Swiss Financial Services Act ("FinSA™) for the purposes of the issuance of FinSA
Securities.

For the purpose of public offering in Switzerland [and/or the admission to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange], these
Final Terms have been or will be registered with the Swiss Prospectus Office and are or will be published pursuant
to FinSA prior to the public offering of the Securities in Switzerland [and/or the admission to trading of the
Securities on SIX Swiss Exchange] and, prior to the Publication Date, the 2021 Base Prospectus or the 2022 Base
Prospectus, together with these Final Terms will constitute the prospectus pursuant to FinSA.]]

[Include whichever of the following apply or specify as "Not applicable”. Note that the numbering should remain
as set out below, even if "Not applicable" is indicated for individual paragraphs or sub paragraphs. Italics denote
directions for completing the Final Terms. However, such numbering may change where individual paragraphs
or sub-paragraphs are removed.]

References herein to numbered Conditions are to the terms and conditions of the relevant series of Securities and
words and expressions defined in such terms and conditions shall bear the same meaning in these Final Terms in
so far as they relate to such series of Securities, save as where otherwise expressly provided.

[When completing any final terms, or adding any other final terms or information, consideration should be given
as to whether such terms or information constitute "significant new factors™ and consequently trigger the need
for a supplement to the Base Prospectus under article 10.2 of Part 2, Chapter | of the rules and regulations of the
Luxembourg Stock Exchange]

2 Include in respect of issues of Securities that are listed.
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These Final Terms relate to the series of Securities as set out in "Specific Provisions For Each Series" below.
References herein to "Securities" shall be deemed to be references to the relevant Securities that are the subject
of these Final Terms and references to "Security" shall be construed accordingly.

[Insert in the case of FinSA Securities: The Securities may be considered structured products in Switzerland
pursuant to article 70 FinSA and do not constitute collective investment schemes in the meaning of the Swiss
Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes ("CISA"). Accordingly, holders of the Securities do not benefit
from protection under the CISA or supervision by the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority ("FINMA™").
Further, investors are exposed to the Issuer's and the Guarantor's insolvency risk.

The Securities may be offered, sold or advertised, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland to retail clients
(Privatkundinnen und -kunden) within the meaning of FinSA ("Retail Clients") in accordance with FinSA.]

[Insert in the case of FinSA Exempt Securities: None of the Base Prospectus, these Final Terms or any other
offering or marketing material relating to the Securities constitutes a prospectus pursuant to FinSA, and such
documents may not be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in Switzerland, unless the
requirements of FinSA for such public distribution are complied with.

The Securities are not being offered, sold or advertised, directly or indirectly, in Switzerland to retail clients
(Privatkundinnen und -kunden) within the meaning of FinSA ("Retail Clients"). Neither these Final Terms nor
any offering materials relating to the Securities may be available to Retail Clients in or from Switzerland. The
offering of the Securities directly or indirectly, in Switzerland is only made by way of private placement by
addressing the Securities solely at investors classified as professional clients (professionelle Kunden) or
institutional clients (institutionelle Kunden) within the meaning of FinSA ("Professional or Institutional
Clients™).]

SPECIFIC PROVISIONS FOR EACH SERIES

SERIES [TRANCHE NO.OF NO OF ISIN/ [ ]3 [COMMON [MNEMONIC [CFI [FISN [TYPE OF INDEX
NUMBER NUMBER SECURITIES SECURITIES CODE CODE
ISSUED

[®] [®] [®] [Up to] [@] [®] [®] [®] [®] (o] [®]
[®] [e]] [®] [Up to][@] [®] [e1] [o1* [®]] [e]] [e1]
SERIES ISSUE [CALL/PUT  [[SCHEDULED]] [RELEVANT [SHARE [PARITY [SPECIFIED [Insert other
NUMBER PRICE® PER REDEMPTION JURISDICTIO AMOUNT/DEB SECURITIES identifier

SECURITY DATE N T SECURITY PURSUANT TO  code or

AMOUNT SECTION variable]
871(m)°

[®] [[insert [call/put] [®]/[Open End]” [®] [®] [®] [Yes/No] [®]

currency]

[®]/[[®]% of

the Notional

Amount]
[®] [[insert [call/put]] [®)/[Open End]]®  [®]] [®]] [®]] [Yes/No]] [®1]

currency]

[®]/[[®]% of

the Notional

Amount]

GENERAL PROVISIONS

The following terms apply to each series of Securities:

1. Issuer: [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]J/[BNP Paribas]
8 DTC: CUSIP —include for U.S. Securities.
4 Only applies where the Securities are listed on Euronext Paris.
5 For Preference Share Certificates, the Issue Price is required to be par.
6 Specify ""Yes" if the Securities are Specified Securities for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue Code
of 1986.
7 Include for Open Ended Securities.
8 Include for Credit Securities and Fund Securities.
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[Guarantor: BNP Paribas]

Trade Date: [specify]

Issue Date [and Interest Commencement  [specify]

Date]®:

(N.B. For Preference Share Certificates, the relevant
Preference Shares should be in issue on or prior to the
Issue Date)

Consolidation: The Securities are to be consolidated and form a single
series with the [insert title of relevant series of Securities]
issued on [insert issue date]/[Not applicable]

Type of Securities: (@) [Warrants/Certificates]

(b) The Securities are [Index Securities/Share
Securities/ETI Securities/Debt

Securities/Commodity  Securities'%Inflation
Index Securities**/Currency Securities*?/Fund
Securities'*/Futures Securities/Credit
Securities'*/Preference Share Certificates/Listed
Option Securities/Hybrid Securities'®/[specify
other type of Security]].

(N.B. In respect of Market Access Securities, specify
"Index Securities”, "Share Securities" or "Debt
Securities" as applicable)

[The Warrants are [European/American/(specify other)]
Style Warrants. (N.B. Finnish and Swedish
Dematerialised Warrants may only be European Style
Warrants)

The Warrants are [Turbo/Quanto/Digital/[Bull/Bear/
Capped] Spread] Call Warrants or
[Turbo/Quanto/Digital/ [Bull/Bear/Floored] Spread] Put
Warrants/[specify other].]

10

11

12

13

14

15

In the case of Certificates which bear interest.

Commodity Securities or Hybrid Securities containing a commodity component cannot be U.S. Securities unless offered
pursuant to any applicable U.S. Wrapper to this Base Prospectus.

Inflation Index Securities or Hybrid Securities containing an inflation component cannot be U.S. Securities unless offered
pursuant to any applicable U.S. Wrapper to this Base Prospectus.

Currency Securities or Hybrid Securities containing a currency component cannot be U.S. Securities unless offered
pursuant to any applicable U.S. Wrapper to this Base Prospectus.

Fund Securities or Hybrid Securities containing a fund component cannot be U.S. Securities unless offered pursuant to any
applicable U.S. Wrapper to this Base Prospectus.

Credit Securities or Hybrid Securities containing a fund component cannot be U.S Securities unless offered pursuant to
any applicable U.S. Wrapper to this Base Prospectus.

Hybrid Securities that contain a currency, commodity or inflation component cannot be U.S. Securities unless offered
pursuant to any applicable U.S. Wrapper to this Base Prospectus.
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16
17
18

Include for Warrants.
Include for Certificates.

Automatic Exercise [applies/does not apply]. (N.B.
Automatic Exercise may only apply in relation to Cash
Settled Warrants/Automatic Exercise will always apply to
Swedish Registered Warrants, Finnish Dematerialised
Warrants and Italian Dematerialised Warrants).]*¢

[[The  Certificates are  [Reverse  Convertible
Certificates/Athena Certificates/Plus
Certificates/[Call/Put] Certificates/Turbo[Call/Put]
Certificates/Turbo Pro [Call/Put] Certificates]/[Open End
Certificates]/[Open End Turbo Certificates [and are OET
[Call/Put]]/[specify other].]

[Exercise of Certificates applies to the Certificates.
[Multiple Exercise applies to the Certificates.] The
Exercise Date[s] is [are] [specify]] or, if [any] such day is
not a Business Day, the immediately
[preceding/succeeding] Business Day].]

[The Exercise Settlement Dates are [@].]]%

[The provisions of Annex 1 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Index Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 2 (Additional Terms and Conditions
for Share Securities) shall apply.] [The provisions of
Annex 3 (Additional Terms and Conditions for ETI
Securities) shall apply.] [The provisions of Annex 4
(Additional Terms and Conditions for Debt Securities)
shall apply.] [The provisions of Annex 5 (Additional
Terms and Conditions for Commaodity Securities) shall
apply.] [The provisions of Annex 6 (Additional Terms
and Conditions for Inflation Index Securities) shall
apply.] [The provisions of Annex 7 (Additional Terms
and Conditions for Currency Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 8 (Additional Terms and Conditions
for Fund Securities) shall apply.] [The provisions of
Annex 1/2/4'® (Additional Terms and Conditions for
[Index/Share/Debt] Securities) and Annex 9 (Additional
Terms and Conditions for Market Access Securities) shall
apply.] [The provisions of Annex 10 (Additional Terms
and Conditions for Futures Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 11 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Credit Securities) shall apply.] [The
provisions of Annex 13 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Preference Share Certificates) shall apply.]

For Market Access Securities include relevant Annex and complete relevant section for Index/Share/Debt Securities and
include Annex 9 and complete paragraph 30 as appropriate.
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7. Form of Securities:
8. Business Day Centre(s):
9. Settlement:
10. Variation of Settlement:
€)] Issuer's option to vary
settlement:

(b) Variation of Settlement of
Physical Delivery Securities:

19

20
21
22

For OET Certificates include

[The provisions of Annex [1/2/3/5/7/10%°] (Additional
Terms and Conditions for
[Index/Share/ET1/Commodity/Currency/Futures]
Securities) and Annex 14 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for OET Certificates) shall apply.][The
provisions of Annex 15 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Listed Option Securities) shall apply.]

[Clearing System Global Security]/[Registered Global
Security] [Dematerialised bearer form (au porteur)®]
[Rule 144A Global Security]** [Private Placement
Definitive Security]?* [Regulation S Global Security]
[Swedish Dematerialised Securities] [Finnish
Dematerialised  Securities] [Italian Dematerialised
Securities] [Swiss Materialised Securities] [Swiss
Dematerialised Securities] (N.B.: Only Swiss Securities
may be admitted to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange.)

The applicable Business Day Centre[s] for the purposes
of the definition of "Business Day" in Condition 1 [is/are]

[®].

Settlement will be by way of [cash payment (Cash Settled
Securities)] [and/or] [physical delivery (Physical Delivery
Securities)]. (N.B. Swedish Dematerialised Securities,
Finnish  Dematerialised  Securities and Italian
Dematerialised Securities may only be Cash Settled
Securities)

The Issuer [has/does not have] the option to vary
settlement in respect of the Securities.?? (N.B. the Issuer's
option to vary settlement is not applicable to Swedish
Dematerialised Securities, Finnish Dematerialised
Securities or Italian Dematerialised Securities)

(N.B. If the lIssuer does not have the option to vary
settlement in respect of the Securities, delete the sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph 10)

[Notwithstanding the fact that the Securities are Physical
Delivery Securities, the Issuer may make payment of the
Cash Settlement Amount on the Settlement Date (in the
case of Warrants) or on the Redemption Date (in the case
of Certificates), and the provisions of Condition 5 will

relevant Annex and complete relevant section for

Index/Share/Commodity/Currency/Fund/Futures/Listed Option Securities and include Annex 14 and complete paragraph

34 as appropriate.
If French law-governed.
If U.S. Securities.

Not applicable for U.S. Securities, unless Physical Delivery can be in compliance with U.S. securities laws.
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11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Relevant Asset(s):

Entitlement:

[Exchange Rate]?/[Conversion Rate]?*:

Equivalent Amount
Currency:

Settlement

Equivalent Amount Settlement Price

Source:

Equivalent Amount
Valuation Time:

Settlement Currency:

23

Settlement

apply to the Securities/The Issuer will procure delivery of
the Entitlement in respect of the Securities and the
provisions of Condition 5 will not apply to the Securities.
Any Physical Delivery for U.S. Securities must be made
in compliance with the Securities Act and the Exchange
Act]

The relevant asset to which the Securities relate [is/are]
[®]. (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Physical
Delivery Securities that are not Credit Securities)

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(@) [The Entitlement (as defined in Condition 1) in
relation to each Security is [@].]

(b) [The Entitlement will be evidenced by [insert
details of how the Entitlement will be
evidenced].]

(c) [The Entitlement will be [delivered] [Delivered]
[insert details of the method of delivery of the
Entitlement].]

(N.B. Only applicable in relation to Physical Delivery
Securities)

The applicable rate of exchange for conversion of any
amount into the relevant settlement currency for the
purposes of determining the Settlement Price (as defined
in the relevant Annex to the Terms and Conditions) or the
Cash Settlement Amount (as defined in Condition 1) is
[insert rate of exchange and details of how and when such
rate is to be ascertained]/[specify]/[As specified in the
OET Certificate Conditions]/[Not applicable].

[specify]

[specify]

[As per Condition/[specify]]

The settlement currency for the payment of [the Cash
Settlement Amount] (in the case of Cash Settled
Securities)/[the Disruption Cash Settlement Price] (in the
case of Physical Delivery Securities) is [®].

Applicable for Securities other than OET Certificates.

Applicable for OET Certificates.
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18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

(i CNY Payment
Disruption Event:

(i) Postponement:

(iii) Payment of
Equivalent Amount:

(iv) CNY Settlement
Centre:

Syndication:

Minimum Trading Size:

Principal Security Agent:

Registrar:

Calculation Agent:

Governing law:

[Insert in the case of Dual Currency Certificates:

The Settlement Currency is as specified in Currency
Security Condition 7 for the payment of the Cash
Settlement Amount [Insert if Dual Currency Condition 1
is specified as applicable: and [Interest]/[Premium]
Amount] below, subject to paragraph [32(n)] [Insert if
Dual Currency Condition 1 is specified as applicable: and
45(n)(xiii)] below.

The Settlement Currency other than in respect of the Cash
Settlement Amount [Insert if Dual Currency Condition 1
is specified as applicable: or the [Interest]/[Premium
Amount] is [®]]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[specify]]

The Securities will be distributed on a [non-]syndicated
basis.

[if syndicated, specify names of the Managers]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[BNP  Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg
Branch]/[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.]/ [BNP Paribas
Securities Services]/[specify other]®

[BNP  Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg
Branch]/[BNP Paribas Securities (Japan)
Limited][Address][Not applicable]?

[BNP Paribas]/[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.]/[specify
other][Address].

[English/Dutch/French] law

Any local agent shall be specified in Part B of the Final Terms.

Include in the case of Registered Securities.
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24.

25.

Special conditions or other modifications  [specify]/[Not applicable] /[The additional provisions for

to the Terms and Conditions: Actively Managed Certificates are set out in Part C
hereto]
Masse provisions?’ (Condition 9.4): [Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse]? [Full

Masse]?® / [Contractual Masse]® / [Not Applicable]® [If
Condition 9.4(b)(ii) (Full Masse) or Condition 9.4(b)(iii)
(Contractual Masse) applies, insert below details of
Representative and alternate Representative and
remuneration, if any:

[Name and address of the Representative: [@®]
Name and address of the alternate Representative: [®]]

[The Representation will receive no remuneration/The
Representative will receive a remuneration of [@®]].

PRODUCT SPECIFIC PROVISIONS (ALL SECURITIES)

26.

Index Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]
(a) Index/Basket of Indices/Index [[insert type of Index/Indices (e.g. total return, price
Sponsor(s): return, etc.) and] specify name of Index/Indices]

[specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]

[The [®] Index is a [Component Security]/[Multi-
Exchange] Index.]*

[The [®] Index is a Custom Index

[Asset Class Type: [Equity]/[Commodity] Custom

Index]®
(b) Index Currency: [specify]
(c) Exchange(s): [specify]

27
28

29

30

31

32
33

If French law-governed.

Apply "Contractual representation of Holders/No Masse'" pursuant to Condition 9.4(b)(i) of the Terms and Conditions in
respect of French Law Securities which constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code
monétaire et financier and are traded in amounts or have a notional amount of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in
the relevant currency as of the Issue Date).

Apply "Full Masse™ pursuant to Condition 9.4(b)(ii) of the Terms and Conditions in respect of French Law Securities which
constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier and (i) are traded in
amounts or have a notional amount of less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date)
and (ii) are issued inside France.

Apply "Contractual Masse" pursuant to Condition 9.4(b)(iii) of the Terms and Conditions in respect of French Law
Securities which constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et financier and
(i) are traded in amounts or have a notional amount of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as
of the Issue Date) or (ii) are issued outside France (*'a I'étranger™), within the meaning of Article L.228-90 of the French
Code de commerce.

Select ""Not Applicable™ if the Securities are (i) English-law governed or (ii) Dutch-law governed or (iii) French Law
Securities which do not constitute obligations within the meaning of Article L.213-5 of the French Code monétaire et
financier.

Specify each Component Security Index and/or Multi-Exchange Index (if any).

Specify each Custom Index (if any).
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(d) Related Exchange(s): [specify]/[All Exchanges]

(e) Exchange Business Day: [Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis]
[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

) Scheduled Trading Day: [Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis]
[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]
(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

(9) Weighting: [The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket of Indices to ascertain the Settlement Price is [®].
Each such Weighting shall be subject to adjustment in
accordance with  Annex 1]/[specify other].]/[Not
applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Securities
relating to a Basket of Indices)]

(h) Settlement Price: The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 1]3*

(i) Disrupted Day: [If the relevant Settlement Price Date or an Averaging
Date, as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the
Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method]. (N.B. Only applicable in the case of the Indices
other than Custom Indices]

[If the Valuation Date (in the case of Warrants) or
Redemption Valuation Date (in the case of Certificates),
or Observation Date or an Averaging Date is a Disrupted
Day, the Settlement Price will be calculated in accordance
with Annex 1] [insert Calculation Method.] (N.B. Only
applicable in the case of Custom Indices)

) Specified Maximum Days of [As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled Trading
Disruption: Days].

[Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to
[®]/[twenty]] (N.B. Only applicable in the case of Custom
Indices. If no Specified Maximum Days of Disruption
are stated, Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will
be equal to twenty))

(k) Valuation Time: [Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the relevant
time on the relevant Settlement Price Date or Averaging
Date, as the case may be, is [Scheduled Closing Time (in
the case of Warrants) or the Valuation Time (in the case

i Where Index is managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. (or another entity with which Borsa Italiana S.p.A. has entered into an
agreement in respect of the Index) include within definition valuation by reference to "'official opening level" calculated by
Index Sponsor or Related Exchange as applicable.
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U]

(m)
(n)

(0)

Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an Index
Adjustment Event (in the case
of Certificates only):

Index Correction Period:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Additional provisions
applicable to Custom Indices:

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

Screen Page:

[Custom Index
Business Day:

[Scheduled Custom
Index Business Day:

[Custom Index
Correction Period:

Delayed Redemption
on Occurrence of a
Custom Index
Adjustment Event [or

of Certificates)] each as defined in Condition 1.]

[specify] ]

(N.B. If no Valuation Time is specified, the Valuation
Time will be the Scheduled Closing Time as defined in
Condition 1. Not applicable in the case of Custom
Indices).

[As per the Conditions]/[[®], being the time specified on
the last Valuation Date or an Averaging Date or
Observation Date as the case may be, for the calculation
of the Settlement Price (N.B. Only applicable in the case
of Custom Indices).]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Not applicable/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]
[All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis/Single Index Basis]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

[All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis/Single Index Basis]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

(N.B. Must match election made for Custom Index
Business Day)

[As per Conditions/specify]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

[Applicable/Not applicable]
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Commodity Custom
Index Market
Disruption Event]:

(P) Additional provisions
applicable to Futures Price

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs

Valuation: )
of this paragraph)
(i) Exchange-traded [specify]/[If the Index Securities are Rolling Futures
Contract: Contract Securities: Condition 9.2 applies]
(ii) Delivery or expiry [specify]/[Not applicable]
month: . . .
(Not applicable in the case of Index Securities that are
Rolling Futures Contract Securities)
(iii) Period of Exchange-  [specify]/[Not applicable]
traded Contracts: . ] o
(Only applicable in case of Index Securities that are
Futures Rollover Securities)
(iv) Futures or Options [specify]
Exchange:
(v) Rolling Futures [Yes/No]
Contract Securities:
(vi) Futures Rollover [Not applicable]/[specify]
[Date/Period]:
27. Share Securities/ETI Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]

[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[ETI Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(In the case of Hybrid Securities which are Share
Securities and ETI Share Securities, repeat sub-
paragraphs (a) to (f) below for Share Securities and ETI
Securities to which the ETI Share Provisions apply, as
required)

[insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket

@ Share(s)/Share

Company/Basket Companies/ETI Interest(s) and ETI(s)]
Company/GDR/ADR/ETI )
Interest/Basket of ETI [Insert details of GDR/ADR]®
Interests:
[Stapled Shares applicable]
3 Specify each GDR or ADR (if any). In the case of Share Securities relating to a GDR/ADR, complete Share Securities Final

Terms as applicable for GDR/ADR reference asset(s).
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(b)

(©)
(d)
(€)
()

(9)

(h)

(i)

)

(k)

(0

Relative Performance Basket:

Share/ETI Interest Currency:
Exchange(s):
Related Exchange(s):

Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Weighting:

Settlement Price:

Disrupted Day:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Valuation Time:

36

37

[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]®

[Not applicable/specify]

(Always specify as "Not applicable” where ETI Share
Securities is specified as applicable)

[specify]
[specify]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]

[Single [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/All [Shares/ETI
Interests] Basis/Per [Share/ETI Interest] Basis]

[Single [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/All [Shares/ETI
Interests] Basis/Per [Share/ETI Interest] Basis]

(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket of [Shares/ETI Interests] to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [®]. Each such Weighting shall be
subject to adjustment [in accordance  with
Annex [2]/[3]])/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B.
Only applicable in relation to Securities relating to a
Basket of Shares or a Basket of ETI Interests)]

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 2]. (N.B. If Settlement
Price includes formula incorporating initial closing price,
use term "Initial Price" for relevant definition.)¥’

If the relevant Settlement Price Date or an Averaging
Date, as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the
Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method].

[As defined in Condition Annex 2]/[[specify] Scheduled
Trading Days].

[Continuous monitoring]/[specify other] and the relevant
time on the relevant Settlement Price Date or Averaging
Date, as the case may be, is the Scheduled Closing Time
as defined in Condition Annex 2.] [specify] (N.B. If no
Valuation Time is specified, the Valuation Time will be

Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled
Shares, complete Share Securities Final Terms as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).

Where a Share is traded on an ltalian regulated market managed by Borsa Italiana S.p.A. include within definition
valuation by reference to "official reference price' calculated by Borsa Italiana S.p.A.
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28.

(m) Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Event (in the
case of Certificates only):

(n) Share/ETI Interest Correction

the Scheduled Closing Time as defined in Condition

Annex 2)]

[Not applicable/Applicable]

[As per Conditions/specify]

Period
(o) [Dividend Payment:
(p) Listing Change:
@) Listing Suspension:
(n liquidity:
(s) Tender Offer:

® Other terms or special
conditions:

ETI Securities

@ ETI/ETI Basket:
(b) ETI Interest(s):
(c) ETI Related Party:
(d) ETI Documents:
(e Exchange(s):

f Related Exchange:

(9) Scheduled Trading Day:

38
39

Not applicable in respect of ETI Securities.
Only to be disapplied for Tokyo EQD Securities.

[Applicable/Not applicable]]*®
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]*

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[ETI Share Provisions: [Applicable — see item 27 (Share
Securities/ET1 Share Securities) above]/[Not applicable]]

(If applicable and sub-paragraphs (a) to (ff) are not
required for Hybrid Securities, delete sub-paragraphs (a)
to (ff) and complete item 27 (Share Securities/ETI Share
Securities) above.)

[specify]

[insert type of ETI Interest(s)]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[All Exchanges]/[Not applicable]

[AIl ETI Interests Basis/Per ETI Interest Basis/Single ETI
Interest Basis]
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(h)

(i)
)
(k)
(0
(m)
(n)

(0)

(9)
(@

(s)

(t)

(u)
v)

(W)

)

v)

Exchange Business Day:

Calculation Date(s):
Initial Calculation Date:
Final Calculation Date:
Hedging Date:
Investment/AUM Level:

Value per ETI Interest Trading
Price Barrier:

Number of Value Publication
Days:

Value Trigger Percentage:
Value Trigger Period:
Basket Trigger Level:

Settlement Price:

Weighting:

Valuation Time:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Additional Extraordinary ETI
Event(s):

Maximum Stock Loan Rate:

ETI Interest Correction Period:

[AILETI Interests Basis/Per ETI Interest Basis/Single ETI
Interest Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[[®] calendar days] [[®] Value Business Days]

[\Value Business Day Centre(s): [specify]

(Only applicable if Number of Value Publication Days is
calculated by reference to Value Business Days)]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 3]

[Official closing price]/[Value per ETI Interest]

[The Weighting to be applied to each ETI Interest
comprising the ETI Basket is [specify]]/[Not applicable]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each relevant ETI Interest] is [®].]

[specify]
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29.

2 Termination Amount:

(aa) Simple Interest Spread (in the
case of Certificates only):

(bb) Termination Date:

(cc) Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an
Extraordinary ETI Event (in
the case of Certificates only):

(dd) Delayed Payment Cut-off
Date:

(ee) Protected Amount (in the case
of Certificates only):

(f) Other terms or special
conditions:

Debt Securities:

€)] Debt Instruments:

(b) Nominal Amount:

(c) Settlement Price:

(d) Redemption of Underlying
Debt Instruments:

(e) Exchange Business Day:

U Valuation Time:

(9) Specified Maximum Days of

Disruption:

[Principal  Protected Termination Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[As per
Conditions]/[specify]

(N.B. Principal Protected Termination Amount and
Non-Principal Protection Termination Amount are
applicable to Certificates only)

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]

[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]

The nominal amount which is to be used to determine the
Cash Settlement Amount is [®] and the relevant screen
page ("Relevant Screen Page") is [®].

[As per Debt Security Condition 1]

Where one or more of the relevant Debt Instruments is
redeemed (or otherwise ceases to exist) before the
expiration of the relevant Securities, [insert appropriate
fall back provisions].

"Exchange Business Day" means [®].
[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] Scheduled Trading
Days.]
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(h) Other terms or special [Not applicable]/[specify]
conditions:
30. Commodity Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]
(a) Commodity/Commodities/ [specify Commaodity/Commaodities/Commaodity
Commodity Index/Commodity  Index/Commodity Indices]
Indices: . .
[The Sponsor[s] of the Commodity [Index/Indices]
[is/are] [®]]
(b) Pricing Date(s): [specify]
() Initial Pricing Date: [specify]
(d) Final Pricing Date: [specify]
(e) Commodity Reference Price: [specify]
The Price Source is/are [@]*°
) Delivery Date: [specify]/[Not applicable]
(9) Nearby Month: [specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
(h) Specified Price:
(i) Exchange: [specify]/[Not applicable]
) Disruption Fallback(s): [specify]/[As per Conditions]
(k) Valuation Time: [Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the relevant
time on [insert relevant date(s)].]/[specify]
(I Specified Maximum Days of [specify] [[®] Commodity Business Days]*/[As per
Disruption: Conditions]
(m) Weighting: [The Weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Commaodity Basket is [specify]]/[Not applicable]
(n) Rolling Futures Contract [Yes/No]
Securities: . o
(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)
Futures Rollover [Not applicable]/[specify]
[Date/Period]:
40 Delete if using automated Commodity Reference Prices
4 Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commaodity.
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31.

32.

(0)

Other terms or special
conditions:

Inflation Index Securities:

(@)

(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)

()

(9)

(h)
(i)

)

Inflation Index/Inflation
Indices/Inflation Index
Sponsor:

Related Bond:
Issuer of Related Bond:
Fallback Bond:

Related Bond Redemption
Event:

Substitute Inflation Index
Level:

Cut-off Date:

Valuation Date:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Reference Month:

Currency Securities:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)
(€)

(f)

Relevant Screen Page:

The relevant base currency (the
"Base Currency") is:

The relevant subject
[currency/currencies]
([the]/[each a] "Subject
Currency") [is/are]:

Weighting:

Price Source:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify name of inflation index/indices]

[specify name of inflation index sponsor(s)]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable] [If applicable, specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable] [If applicable, specify]

[As determined in accordance with Annex 6] [specify].

In respect of a [Valuation Date], the day that is [specify]
Business Days prior to such [Valuation Date].

[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]
[specify]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Insert in the case of Dual
Certificates: Not applicable]

Currency

[specify]/[five] Scheduled Trading Days
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33.

@)
(h)

@)
(k)
(1

(m)

(n)

(0)

Strike Date:
Averaging Date(s):
Observation Dates:
Settlement Price:
Valuation Time:

Valuation Date (in the case of
Warrants)/Redemption
Valuation Date (in the case of
Certificates only):

Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of a Disruption
Event (in the case of
Certificates only):

[Dual Currency Certificates:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Fund Securities:

(@)

(b)
(©)

Fund/Fund Basket:

Fund Share(s):

Fund Documents:

[specify]
[specify]
[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[Dual Currency Condition [1]/[2]: [Less than]/[Less than
or equal to]/[Greater than]/[Greater than or equal to]]

[Dual Currency Determination Date(s): [specify]/[each
Valuation Date]]

[Strike Rate: [[specify set exchange rate], expressed as the
number of units (or part units) of the Subject Currency for
which one unit of the Base Currency can be exchanged]]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]

[The [®] Fund is a Mutual Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Hedge Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Private Equity Fund]
[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
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(d)

()
()
)
(h)
(i)
)
(k)
V)
(m)

(n)

(0)

(p)

(@)
(n

(s)

(t)
(u)

Fund Business Day:

Fund Service Provider:
Calculation Date(s):
Initial Calculation Date:
Final Calculation Date:
Hedging Date:

AUM Level:

NAYV Trigger Percentage:
NAV Trigger Period:

Number of NAV Publication
Days:

Basket Trigger Level:

Extraordinary Fund Event(s)
(in the case of a Private Equity
Fund only):

Additional Extraordinary Fund
Event(s):

Fee:

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest Spread (in the
case of Certificates only):

Termination Date:

Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of an
Extraordinary Fund Event (in
the case of Certificates only):

[All Fund Share Basis/Per Fund Share Basis/Single Fund
Share Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Principal ~ Protected Termination ~ Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[As per
Conditions]/[specify]

(N.B. Principal Protected Termination Amount and
Non-Principal Protection Termination Amount are
applicable to Certificates only)

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
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34.

v)

(w)

)

v)

Delayed Payment Cut-off

Date:

[Weighting:

Protected Amount (in the case

of Certificates only):

Other terms or special
conditions:

Market Access Securities:

(@)
(b)

(©)

(d)

()

()

()]

(h)

(i)

@)

[Share Security/Debt Security]:

[Share Amount/Debt
Instruments Amount]:

Market Access Security

Condition 1 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 2 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 3 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 4 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 5 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 6 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 7 of Annex 9:

Market Access Security

Condition 8 of Annex 9 (in the

case of Warrants only):

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[The Weighting to be applied to each Fund Share

comprising the Fund Basket is [specify]]/[Not applicable]

[specify] per Security

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]
[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
The Coupon Payment Dates are [®]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

An "Early Exercise Event" shall occur if the Calculation
Agent determines that on a day during the period from and
including the Issue Date to and excluding the Expiration
Date, the [official closing price of the [Share/Debt
Securities]/[closing level of the Index] is [equal to or]
[above/below] the [Threshold Price/Threshold Level]
[specify as applicable]; and
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35.

(k)

(1

Other terms or special
conditions:

Market Access Security
Condition 9 of Annex 9:

Futures Securities:

(@)

(b)
(©
(d)

(€)

(f)

()]

(h)

Future(s):

Future Currency:
Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Weighting:

Settlement Price:

Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

Valuation Time:

The [Threshold Price/Threshold Level] is [@®]]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
(i) Expected Listing Date is [specify]

(i) The amount payable in respect of each Security
so redeemed shall be [specify amount or manner
of determination].

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[insert type of Future(s)]

[specify underlying asset(s) or basis (or bases) of
reference]

[specify contract size]
[specify delivery or expiry date]
Futures Exchange(s): [specify]

[specify]
[Single Future Basis/All Futures Basis/Per Futures Basis]

[Single Future Basis/All Futures Basis/Per Futures Basis]
(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket to ascertain the Settlement Price is [®]. Each such
Weighting shall be subject to adjustment [in accordance
with Annex 10]/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B.
Only applicable in relation to Securities relating to a
Basket)

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 10]. (N.B. If Settlement
Price includes formula incorporating initial closing price,
use term "Initial Price" for relevant definition.)

[As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled Trading
Days].

[Continuous monitoring [specify other] and the relevant
time on the Valuation Date, Observation Date or
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36.

(i)
)

(k)

Futures Correction Period:

Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of a Non-
Availability of a Future Price
or Non-Commencement or
Discontinuance of a Future (in
the case of Certificates only):

Other terms or special
conditions:

Listed Option Securities:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

(f)

@

Listed Option Contract(s):

Options Exchange(s):

Exchange Business Day:

Scheduled Trading Day:

Weighting:

Settlement Price:

Disrupted Day:

Averaging Date, as the case may be, is the Scheduled
Closing Time as defined in Condition 1.] [specify] (N.B.
If no Valuation Time is specified, the Valuation Time will
be the Scheduled Closing Time as defined in Condition 1)]

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify underlying asset(s) or basis (or bases) of
reference]

[specify contract size]
[specify option style]
[specify tenor and expiry date]

[specify]

[Single Listed Option Contract Basis/All Listed Option
Contracts Basis/Per Listed Option Contract Basis]

[Single Listed Option Contract Basis/All Listed Option
Contracts Basis/Per Listed Option Contract Basis]

(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket to ascertain the Settlement Price is [®]. Each such
Weighting shall be subject to adjustment [in accordance
with Annex 15]/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B.
Only applicable in relation to Securities relating to a
Basket)

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 15]. (N.B. If Settlement
Price includes formula incorporating initial closing price,
use term "Initial Price" for relevant definition.)

If the Strike Date, the Valuation Date, an Observation
Date or an Averaging Date (each as defined in Condition
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(h) Specified Maximum Days of
Disruption:

(i Valuation Time:

()] Correction Period:

(k) Delayed Redemption on
Occurrence of a Non-
Availability of a Listed Option
Contract Price or a Non-
Commencement or
Discontinuance of a Listed
Option Contract (in the case of
Certificates only):

U] Other terms or  special
conditions:

37. Credit Securities:

€)] Type of Security:

(b) Transaction Type:

(c) Redemption Date:

1), as the case may be, is a Disrupted Day, the Settlement
Price will be calculated [insert calculation method].

[As defined in Condition 1]/[[specify] Scheduled Trading
Days].

[specify]
[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not Warrant/Credit

Certificate]

applicable] [Credit

[If Credit Warrant, Notional Amount per Credit Warrant
= [currency] [amount]]

[Part A]/[Part B] of the Credit Security Conditions Shall
apply.

[Single Reference Entity Credit Certificate]/[Single
Reference Entity Credit Warrant]

[Nth-to-Default Credit Certificate

N: [@®]

Substitution: [Not Applicable] [Applicable]]
[Linear Basket Credit Certificate]
[Nth-to-Default Credit Warrant

N: [@®]

Substitution: [Not Applicable/Applicable]]
[Linear Basket Credit Warrant]

[Other]

[®]

[®]
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(d)

(€)
()

()]

(h)

)
(k)

(0
(m)

(n)

Party responsible for making

calculations and determinations
pursuant to the Credit Security

Conditions (if no Calculation
Agent):

Reference Entity:

Reference Entity Notional
Amount:

Reference Obligation(s):

The obligation identified as
follows (the "Underlying
Bond"):

Primary Obligor:
Guarantor:
Maturity:
Coupon:

ISIN:

Original Issue Amount;

Settlement Method:

Fallback Settlement Method:
Settlement Currency:

Merger Event:

LPN Reference Entities:
Terms relating to Cash

Settlement:

Terms relating to Physical
Settlement:

(®]

[®]

[®]/[As per the Credit Security Conditions]

[®]
[®]
[®]
[®]
[®]
[®]

[Auction Settlement] [Physical Settlement] [Cash
Settlement]

[Physical Settlement] [Cash Settlement]
[®] [As per the Credit Security Conditions]
[Applicable] [Not Applicable]

(If Applicable):

[Merger Event Redemption Date: [®]]
[Applicable] [Not Applicable]

[As per the Credit Security Conditions] [Not Applicable]
[Specify variations or additions to Credit Security
Conditions]

[As per the Credit Security Conditions] [Not Applicable]
[Specify variations or additions to Credit Security
Conditions]
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38.

39.

(0)

(9]
(@
(n

(s)

Accrual of Interest upon Credit
Event:

Additional provisions:
Interest:

Additional Credit Linked
Security Disruption Events:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Preference Share Certificates:

@ Preference Share:

(b) Preference Share Redemption
Valuation Date:

(© Other terms or special
conditions:

OET Certificates:

(@) Final Price:

(b) Valuation Date:

(© Exercise Price:

(d) Capitalised Exercise Price:

[As per Credit Security Condition 3(a)(a)] [As per Credit
Security Condition 3(a)(b)]

[®] [Not Applicable]
[®]

[The following Additional Credit Linked Security
Disruption Events apply to the Notes:][Not Applicable]

(Specify each of the following of which applies)
[Change in Law]

[Hedging Disruption]

[Increased Cost of Hedging]

[®] [Not Applicable]]

[Applicable/Not Applicable]

[insert class, series number, ISIN and description of
preference shares]

[specify]

[Not Applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]/The Final Price will
be calculated [insert calculation method if different from
the OET Certificate Conditions]]

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]/[specify]
[specify]

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]/[specify]
OET Website(s):

[www.produitsdebourse.bnpparibas.fr]/[www.listedprod
ucts.cib.bnpparibas.be]/[www.educatedtrading.bnppariba

s.se]/[specify]

Local Business Day Centre(s): [specify]
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40.

41.

(e Dividend Percentage:

) Financing Rate:

@) Automatic Early Redemption:

0] Observation Price:

(i) Observation Time(s):

(iii) Security Threshold:

(iv) Security  Threshold
Rounding Rule:

(v) Security Percentage:
(vi) Minimum Security
Percentage:

(vii) Maximum  Security
Percentage:

(viii)  Reset Date:

(h) Other provisions:

Additional Disruption Events:

Optional Additional Disruption Events:

[specify]/[Not applicable]

(N.B. Not applicable in respect of Commodity OET
Certificates, Currency OET Certificates or Futures OET
Certificates)

[specify rate] [+/-] [specify margin]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[Official level]/[Opening price]/[Closing price]/[Purchase
price]/[Sale price]/[Traded price]/[Bid price]/[Asked
price]/[Last price]/[specify]

[At any time during the opening hours of the
Exchange]/[specify]

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]/[specify]

The Security Threshold in respect of a Relevant Business
Day will be published as soon as practicable after its
determination on the OET Website(s), as set out in
paragraph 39(d)

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[As per OET Certificate Conditions]/[specify]]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]/[Change in Law/Hedging
Disruption] does not apply to the Securities]

(a) The following Optional Additional Disruption
Events apply to the Securities:

(Specify each of the following which applies.
N.B. Optional Additional Disruption Events are
applicable to certain Index Securities, Share
Securities, ETI Securities and Commaodity
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(b)

159

Securities.  Careful consideration should be
given to whether Optional Additional Disruption
Events would apply for Debt Securities,
Currency Securities and Fund Securities and, if
so, the relevant definitions will require
amendment. Careful consideration should be
given to any Additional Disruption Events
and/or Optional Additional Disruption Events in
the case of U.S. Securities)

[Not applicable]
[Administrator/Benchmark Event]
[Increased Cost of Hedging]
[Increased Cost of Stock Borrow]
[Insolvency Filing]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Share
Securities)

[Cancellation Event]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Debt
Securities)

[Loss of Stock Borrow]

[[Stop-Loss Event]

[Stop-Loss Event Percentage: [5] per cent.]]
[Currency Event]

[Force Majeure Event]

[Jurisdiction Event]

[Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Physical
Delivery Securities that are not U.S. Securities —
Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity is applicable
to certain Share Securities. Careful
consideration should be given to whether
Failure to Deliver due to Illliquidity would apply
to other Physical Delivery Securities)

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of
[specify in relation to each relevant
Share/Security] is [®].



42. Knock-in Event*?:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

(f)
(¢))

Knock-in Level/Knock-in
Range Level:

Knock-in Period Beginning
Date:

Knock-in Period Beginning
Date Day Convention:

Knock-in Determination
Period:

Knock-in Determination
Day(s):

Knock-in Period Ending Date:

Knock-in Period Ending Date
Day Convention:

42

(N.B. Only applicable if Loss of Stock Borrow is
applicable)]

[The Initial Stock Loan rate in respect of [specify
in relation to each relevant Share/Security] is

[®].

(N.B. Only applicable if Increased Cost of Stock
Borrow is applicable)]

(c) Delayed Redemption on Occurrence of an
Additional Disruption Event and/or Optional
Additional Disruption Event (in the case of
Certificates): [Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[If applicable:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"less
than"/"less than or equal to"/"within"]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]/[[From and
excluding][specify][to and
excluding][specify]]

including/From but
including/to but

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Condition 16]

[specify]/[Each Scheduled Trading Day in the Knock-in
Determination Period]/[Each Scheduled Custom Index
Business Day in the Knock-in Determination
Period]/[Each Commodity Business Day in the Knock-in
Determination Period]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities, Commodity Securities, Currency
Securities, Futures Securities and Listed Option Securities.
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43.

(h)

Knock-in Valuation Time:

Knock-out Event*3:

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

(€)

(f)
()]

(h)

Knock-out Level /Knock-out
Range Level:

Knock-out Period Beginning
Date:

Knock-out Period Beginning
Date Day Convention:

Knock-out Determination
Period:

Knock-out Determination
Day(s):

Knock-out Period Ending Date:

Knock-out Period Ending Date
Day Convention:

Knock-out Valuation Time:

PROVISIONS RELATING TO WARRANTS

44,

Provisions relating to Warrants:

(@)

Units:

43

[specify/See definition in Condition 16]/[Valuation
Time]/[Any time on a Knock-in Determination Day]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
[If applicable:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"less
than"/"less than or equal t0"]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Condition 16]

[specify]/[Each Scheduled Trading Day in the Knock-out
Determination Period]/[Each Scheduled Custom Index
Business Day in the Knock-out Determination Period]/
[Each Commodity Business Day in the Knock-out
Determination Period]

[specify]

[Not applicable/Applicable]

[specify]/[See definition in Condition 16] [Any time on a
Knock-out Determination Day]/[Valuation Time]

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

Warrants must be exercised in Units. Each Unit consists
of the number of Warrants set out in "Specific Provisions
For Each Series" above. (N.B. This is in addition to any

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities, Commodity Securities, Currency
Securities, Futures Securities and Listed Option Securities.
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(b)

(©)

(d)

(€)

()

()]

(h)

(i)

Minimum Exercise Number:

Maximum Exercise Number:

Exercise Price(s):

Exercise Date:

Exercise Period:

Valuation Date:

Strike Date:

Averaging:

requirements relating to "Minimum Exercise Number" or
"Maximum Exercise Number" as set out"" below).

The minimum number of Warrants that may be exercised
(including automatic exercise) on any day by any Holder
is [®] [and Warrants may only be exercised (including
automatic exercise) in integral multiples of [@®] Warrants
in excess thereof].

The maximum number of Warrants that must be exercised
on any day by any Holder or group of Holders (whether
or not acting in concert) is [®]. (N.B. not applicable for
European Style Warrants [and therefore generally not
available for Finnish and Swedish Dematerialised
Warrants])

The exercise price(s) per [Warrant/Unit] (which may be
subject to adjustment in accordance with Annex 2 in the
case of Share Securities, Annex 1 in the case of Index
Securities and Annex 5 in the case of Commodity
Securities) is set out in "Specific Provisions For Each
Series” above. (N.B. This should take into account any
relevant Weighting and, in the case of an Index Security,
must be expressed as a monetary value).

The exercise date of the Warrants is set out in "Specific
Provisions For Each Series" above, provided that, if such
date is not an Exercise Business Day, the Exercise Date
shall be the immediately succeeding Exercise Business
Day. (N.B. Only applicable in relation to European Style
Warrants).

The exercise period in respect of the Warrants is set out in
"Specific Provisions For Each Series" above, [inclusive
of the dates specified] [, or if either day specified is not an
Exercise Business Day, the immediately succeeding
Exercise Business Day]. (N.B. Only applicable in relation
to certain American Style Warrants).

[As defined in Condition 20]/[The Valuation Date shall
be the Actual Exercise Date of the relevant Warrant,
subject to adjustments in  accordance  with
Condition 20]/[specify]. (N.B. specify if different from the
definition in Condition 20.)

[specify] (N.B. Only relevant for certain Index, Share, and
Currency Securities)

Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Warrants. [The
Averaging Dates are [specify].] (Not applicable to
Inflation Index Securities)
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)

(k)
U]

(m)

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:

Cash Settlement Amount:

Settlement Date:

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] (as
defined in Condition 20) will apply.] (N.B. Not applicable
to Index Securities relating to a Custom Index or
Commaodity Securities)]

[In the event of Modified Postponement applying, the
Averaging Date will be determined [specify relevant
provisions] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Debt
Securities, Currency Securities or Fund Securities).]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day,
the provisions of Annex 1 will apply] (N.B. Only
applicable in the case of Index Securities relating to a
Custom Index)

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.] (N.B. Not applicable to Index Securities relating
to a Custom Index or Commodity Securities)

[In the event of Modified Postponement applying, the
Observation Date will be determined] [specify relevant
provisions] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Debt
Securities, Currency Securities or Fund Securities).]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day,
the provisions of Annex 1 will apply] (N.B. Only
applicable in the case of Index Securities relating to a
Custom Index)

[specify]

A Holder, upon due exercise, will receive from the Issuer
on the Settlement Date, in respect of each Warrant, a Cash
Settlement Amount calculated by the Calculation Agent
(which shall not be less than zero) equal to:

[insert formula]
[insert definitions]
(N.B. Specify if provisions of Condition 5 not appropriate)

[specify] (N.B. Applicable for Physical Delivery
Warrants, Inflation Index Warrants and Commodity
Warrants. Only applicable for Cash Settled Warrants
(other than Inflation Index Warrants or Commodity
Warrants) if Settlement Date is different from the
definition in Condition 20)
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['Settlement Business Day" for the purposes of
Condition 5 means [specify].

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Physical Delivery
Warrants)]

PROVISIONS RELATING TO CERTIFICATES

45, Provisions relating to Certificates:
@ Notional Amount of each
Certificate:
(b) Partly Paid Certificates:
(© Interest:
(d) Fixed Rate Provisions:

0] Fixed Rate[(s)] of
Interest
([including/excluding]
on overdue amounts
after Redemption
Date or date set for
early redemption):

(i) Interest Period End
Date(s):

(iii) Business Day
Convention for
Interest Period End
Date(s):

[Applicable][Not Applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[[currency][amount]/[Not applicable]].

The Certificates [are/are not] Partly Paid Certificates.

[specify details of the amount of each payment comprising
the Issue Price and date on which each payment is to be
made and consequences of failure to pay, including any
right of the Issuer to forfeit the Certificates and interest
due on late payment]

(N.B. A new form of Global Certificate may be required
for Partly Paid Certificates)

[Applicable/Not Applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable[ - Dual Currency Condition 1 applies (see
paragraph 45(n)(xiii) below]/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify] per cent. [per annum] [payable [annually/semi-
annually/quarterly/monthly] in arrear].

[specify] in each year.

[Following/Modified Following/Preceding/None/Not
applicable]
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(€)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

Interest Payment
Date(s):

Business Day
Convention for
Interest Payment
Date(s):

Fixed Coupon
Amount[(s)]:

Broken Amount[(s)]:

Day Count Fraction:

Determination Dates:

Other terms relating
to the method of
calculating interest for
Fixed Rate
Certificates:

Floating Rate Provisions

(i)
(i)

(iii)

Interest Period(s):

Interest Period End
Date(s):

Business Day
Convention for
Interest Period End
Date(s):

[specify] in each year [adjusted in accordance with
[specify Business Day Convention and any applicable
Business Centre(s) for the definition of "Business
Day"]/not adjusted.]

[Following/Modified Following/Preceding/None/Not
applicable]

(If a Business Day Convention is specified for Interest
Period End Date(s), unless Interest Payment Date(s) is
(are) expressed to be a number of Business Days after the
relevant Interest Period End Final Date, Interest Payment
Date(s) must be subject to the same Business Day
Convention)

[specify] per Certificate

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify] [30/360/Actual/Actual
[ISDA])/Actual/365
([Fixed/Sterling])/Actual/360/360/360/30E/360/[other]

(-[ICMAJ/-

[specify] in each year [insert regular interest payment
dates, ignoring issue date or redemption date in the case
of a long or short first or last coupon.] (N.B. only relevant
where Day Count Fraction is Actual/Actual (ICMA))

[Not applicable/give details]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

[specify]

[Following/Modified
Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]

(A Business Day Convention must be specified where the
Reference Rate is SONIA, SOFR, €STR or SARON)
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(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Interest Payment
Date(s):

Business Day
Convention for
Interest Payment
Date(s):

Manner in which Rate
of Interest and Interest
Amount to be
determined:

Party responsible for
calculating the Rate(s)
of Interest and Interest
Amount(s) (if not the
Calculation Agent):

Screen Rate
Determination:

(A) [Reference
Rate:

(B) Interest
Determinatio
n Date(s):

[specify]

[Following/Modified
Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]

(If a Business Day Convention is specified for Interest
Period End Date(s), unless Interest Payment Date(s) is
(are) expressed to be a number of Business Days after the
relevant Interest Period End Final Date, Interest Payment
Date(s) must be subject to the same Business Day
Convention)

[Screen Rate Determination/ISDA Determination/[FBF
Determination]/other (give details)]

[specify]

[Applicable -
[IBOR]/[SONIA]/[SOFR]/[ESTR]/[SARONT]]/[Not
applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

(Either LIBOR, EURIBOR, SONIA, SOFR, €STR, SARON
or other, although additional information is required if
other — [including fall back provisions])

[specify]

(Second London business day prior to the start of each
Interest Period if LIBOR and second TARGET2 day prior
to the start of each Interest Period if EURIBOR)

[[®] London Business Days prior to each Interest Period
End Final Date]

(Include where the Reference Rate is SONIA)
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(©)

(D)

(E)

(F)

(G)

Specified
Time:

Relevant
Screen Page:

[Calculation
Method:

[Observation
Method:

[Lookback
Period:

[[®] U.S. Government Securities Business Days prior to
each Interest Period End Final Date]

(Include where the Reference Rate is SOFR)

[[®] TARGET2 Business Days prior to each Interest
Period End Final Date]

(Include where the Reference Rate is €STR)

[[®] Zurich Banking Days prior to each Interest Period
End Final Date]

(Include where the Reference Rate is SARON)

[specify]/[Not Applicable] (which will be 11:00 am,
London time, in the case of LIBOR, or 11:00 am, Brussels
time, in the case of EURIBOR)

[specify]/[The SOFR Screen Page]/[ECB Website]

(In the case of EURIBOR, if not Reuters EURIBORO1
ensure it is a page which shows a composite rate or
amend the fall back provisions appropriately)]

[Include where the Reference Rate is SONIA:
[Compounded Daily]/[Weighted Average]]

[Include where the Reference Rate is SOFR: [SOFR
Arithmetic Mean]/[SOFR Compound: [SOFR Compound
with Lookback]/[SOFR Compound with Observation
Period Shift]/[SOFR Index with Observation Shift]]]

[Include where the Reference Rate is SONIA:
[Lag]/[Lock-out]/[Shift]/[SONIA Index with Observation
Shift]]]

[Include where the Reference Rate is €STR:
[Lag)/[Shift]]]

[[specify] [London Business Days]/[U.S. Government
Securities  Business  Days]/[TARGET2  Business
Days]/[Zurich ~ Banking  Days]]/[As  per the
Conditions]/[Not applicable]]

(Include where the Reference Rate is SONIA, SOFR
(where the Calculation Method is SOFR Compound:
SOFR Compound with Lookback), €STR or SARON and
ensure that any Early Redemption Amounts include
amounts in respect of accrued interest.)
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(ix)

)
(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(H)

0

()

(K)

[Observation
Shift Days:

[SOFR Cut-
Off Date:

[SOFR
Replacement
Alternatives
Priority:

[Rate  Cut-
Off Time:

ISDA Determination:

(A) [Floating
Rate Option:
(B) Designated
Maturity:
© Reset Date:
Margin(s):

Minimum Interest

Rate:

Maximum Interest

Rate:

Day Count Fraction:

[[specify] U.S. Government Securities Business

Days]/[As per the Conditions]/[Not applicable]]

(Include where the Reference Rate is SOFR and the
Calculation Method is SOFR Compound: SOFR with

Observation Period Shift or SOFR Index with
Observation Shift)
[As per Conditions]/[[specify] U.S. Government

Securities Business Days]/[ Not applicable]]

(Include where the Reference Rate is SOFR. Must apply
where the Calculation Method is SOFR Arithmetic Mean)

[As per Conditions]/[specify order of priority of SOFR
Replacement Alternatives listed in Security Condition
32(d)(ii)(C)IV.]

[specify]/[Not applicable]]

(Include where the Reference Rate is €STR)
[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]]

(N.B. The fall-back provisions applicable to ISDA
Determination under the 2006 ISDA Definitions are
reliant upon the provision by reference banks of offered
quotations for LIBOR and/or EURIBOR which,
depending on market circumstances, may not be available
at the relevant time)

[+/-1[specify] per cent. per annum

[specify] per cent. per annum

[specify] per cent. per annum

[specify]/[unadjusted]
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()

(xiv)

Fallback provisions,
day count fraction,
rounding provisions
and any other terms
relating to the method
of calculating interest
on Floating Rate
Certificates if
different from those
set out in the
Conditions:

Linked Interest Certificates

(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

Party responsible for
calculating Rate(s) of
Interest and Interest
Amount(s) (if not the
Calculation Agent):

Provisions for
determining coupon
where calculation by
reference to Formula
is impossible or
impracticable:

Interest Period(s):

Interest Period End
Date(s):

Business Day
Convention for
Interest Period End
Date(s):

Interest Payment
Date(s):

Business Day
Convention for
Interest Payment
Date(s):

[specify]

[Applicable — see [Index/Share/ETI/Debt/Commodity/
Inflation Index/Currency/Fund/Futures] Linked Interest
Certificates below/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]
[specify]

[Following/Modified
Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]

[specify]

[Following/Modified
Following/Preceding/FRN/None/Not applicable]
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(viii)  Day Count Fraction:

(9) Payment of Premium
Amount(s):

0] [Premium Amount(s)

(i) Linked Premium
Amount Certificates:

(iii) Premium Amount
Payment Date(s):

(iv) Premium Amount
Record Date(s):

(h) Index Linked
[Interest/Premium Amount]
Certificates:

(i) Index/Basket of
Indices/Index
Sponsor(s):

(i) Formula:

(iii) Averaging:

44 Specify each Composite Index (if any).
* Specify each Custom Index (if any).

(If a Business Day Convention is specified for Interest
Period End Date(s), unless Interest Payment Date(s) is
(are) expressed to be a number of Business Days after
the relevant Interest Period End Final Date, Interest
Payment Date(s) must be subject to the same Business
Day Convention)

[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[specify]

[Applicable - see [Index/Share/ETI/Debt/Commodity/
Inflation Index/Currency/Fund/Futures] Linked Premium
Amount Certificates below/Not applicable]

[specify]

[specify]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[[Insert type of Index/Indices (e.g. total return, price
return, etc.) and] specify name of Index/Indices]

[specify name of Index Sponsor(s)]
[The [®] Index is a Composite Index]*
[The [®] Index is a Custom Index

[Asset Class Type: [Equity]/[Commodity] Custom
Index]*®

[specify]

Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The Averaging
Dates are [@®].]
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(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Time:

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Date(s):

Index Correction
Period

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

Exchange(s):

Related Exchange(s):

Exchange Business
Day:

Scheduled Trading
Day:

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] [the
provisions of Annex 1] will apply.]

[Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to
[®]/[twenty]]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Custom Indices; if no
Specified Maximum Days of Disruption are stated,
Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to
twenty)

[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions/specify]

[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified  Postponement][the
provisions of Annex 1] will apply.]

[Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to
[®@]/[twenty]]

(N.B. Only applicable in the case of Custom Indices; if no
Specified Maximum Days of Disruption are stated,
Specified Maximum Days of Disruption will be equal to
twenty)

[specify]

[[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled Trading
Days]]

[specify]

[specify]/[All Exchanges]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis]
[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]

[Single Index Basis/All Indices Basis/Per Index Basis]

171



(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

Weighting:

Settlement Price:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Additional provisions
applicable to Custom
Indices:

(A) Screen Page:

(B) Disrupted
Day:

© Strike Date:

(D) Strike Price:

(E) [Custom
Index
Business
Day:

(F) [Scheduled
Custom
Index
Business
Day:

[Exchange/Related Exchange: Applicable]
(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket of Indices to ascertain the Settlement Price is [®].
Each such Weighting shall be subject to adjustment in
accordance with Annex 1 [specify other].]/[Not
applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Securities
relating to a Basket of Indices)

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 1]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[®]

If an Interest Valuation Date, Observation Date or
Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day, the Settlement Price
will be calculated [insert calculation method]

[®]

The Strike Price will be calculated as per Conditions/[®]
[insert calculation method]

[(All Indices Basis)/(Per Index Basis)(Single Index
Basis)]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

[(All Indices Basis)/(Per Index Basis)(Single Index
Basis)]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

(must match election made for Custom Index Business
Day)
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(G)

(H)

(1

)

Valuation
Time:

[Custom
Index
Correction
Period:

Delayed
Redemption
on
Occurrence
of Custom
Index
Adjustment
Event [or
Commodity
Custom
Index Market
Disruption
Event] (in
the case of
Certificates

only):

Other terms
or special
conditions:

(i) Share Linked/ETI Share Linked

[Interest/Premium

Certificates:

(i)

Amount]

Share(s)/Share
Company/Basket
Company/GDR/ADR/
ETI Interest/Basket of
ETI Interests:

[As per the Conditions]/[[®], being the time specified on
the Valuation Date or an Averaging Date or an
Observation Date, as the case may be, for the calculation
of the Settlement Price.] (N.B. if no time is specified, the
Valuation Time will be as per the Conditions)]

[As per Conditions]/[[®]specify]]

(Delete this sub-paragraph in the case of Equity Custom
Index Securities or Commodity Custom Index Securities)

[Applicable with a rate of [®] per cent. per annum/Not
applicable]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

[ETI Share Securities: [Applicable/Not applicable]]

(In the case of Hybrid Securities which are Share
Securities and ETI Share Securities, repeat sub-
paragraphs (i) to (xxii) below for Share Securities and
ETI Securities to which the ETI Share Provisions apply,
as required)

[insert type of Share(s) and Share Company/Basket
Companies/ETI Interest(s) and ETI(s)]
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[ISIN][Screen Page][Exchange Code]
[insert GDR/ADR]*
[Stapled Shares applicable]

[Insert details of Stapled Shares and Stapled Share
Constituents]*’

(i) Relative Performance  [Not applicable/specify]
Basket:
(Always specify as "Not applicable™ where ETI Share
Securities is specified as applicable)
(iii) Formula: [specify]
[N.B If Formula includes an initial closing price use term
"Initial Price" for relevant definition]
(iv) Averaging: Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The Averaging
Dates are [@].]
[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.]
(v) [Interest/Premium [specify]
Amount] Valuation
Time:
(vi) [Interest/Premium [specify]
Amount]Valuation
Date(s):
(vii) Observation Dates: [specify]
[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.]
(viii)  Observation Period: [specify]
(ix) Specified Maximum [[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled Trading
Days of Disruption: Days]]
(x) Exchange(s): [specify]
(xi) Related Exchange(s):  [specify]/[All Exchanges]

46

In the case of Share Linked Interest Certificates relating to a GDR/ADR, complete Share Linked Interest Certificates Final
Terms as applicable for GDR/ADR references asset(s).

Specify each Stapled Share Constituent comprising the Stapled Shares. In the case of Share Securities relating to Stapled
Shares, complete Share Securities Final Terms as applicable for Stapled Shares reference asset(s).
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(xii) Exchange Business
Day:

(xiii) ~ Scheduled Trading
Day:

(xiv)  Weighting:

(xv) Settlement Price:

(xvi)  Share/ETI Interest
Correction Period:

(xvii)  [Dividend Payment:
(xviii)  Listing Change:
(xix)  Listing Suspension:
(xx) Hliquidity:

(xxi)  Tender Offer:

(xxii)  Other terms or special
conditions:

()] ETI Linked [Interest/Premium
Amount] Certificates:

48 Not applicable in respect of ETI Securities.
4 Only to be disapplied for Tokyo EQD Securities.

[Single [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/All [Shares/ETI
Interests] Basis/Per [Share/ETI Interest] Basis]

[Single [Share/ETI Interest] Basis/All [Shares/ETI
Interests] Basis/Per [Share/ETI Interest] Basis]

(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket of [Shares/ETI Interests] to ascertain the
Settlement Price is [specify]. Each such Weighting shall
be subject to adjustment [in accordance with Annex
[2)/[3])/[specify other].]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only
applicable in relation to Securities relating to a Basket of
Shares or a Basket of ETI Interests)

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 2]. (N.B. If Settlement
Price includes formula incorporating initial closing price,
use term "Initial Price™ for relevant definition.)

[As per Conditions/specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]]*®
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]
[Applicable/Not applicable]*®

[Not Applicable/[specify]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[ETI Share Provisions: [Applicable — see item 44(i)
(Share Linked/ETI Share Linked [Interest/Premium
Amount] Certificates) above /Not applicable]]

(If applicable and sub-paragraphs (i) to (xxxvi) are not
required for Hybrid Securities, delete sub-paragraphs (i)
to (xxxvi) and complete item 44.(i) (Share Linked/ETI
Share Linked [Interest/Premium Amount] Certificates)
above.)
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(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)

(v)
(vi)
(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
(x)
(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

ETI/ETI Basket:
ETI Interest(s):
Formula:

Averaging:

Exchange(s):
Related Exchange:

Exchange Business
Day:

Scheduled Trading
Day:

ETI Related Party:
Calculation Date(s):

Initial Calculation
Date:

Final Calculation
Date:

Hedging Date:

Investment/AUM
Level:

Value per ETI Interest
Trading Price Barrier:

Number of Value
Publication Days:

Value Trigger
Percentage:

Value Trigger Period:

Basket Trigger Level:

[specify]
[Insert type of ETI Interest(s)]
[specify]

Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The Averaging
Dates are [®].]

[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[All Exchanges]/[Not applicable]

[All ETI Interests Basis/Per ETI Interest Basis/Single ETI
Interest Basis]

[AILETI Interests Basis/Per ETI Interest Basis/Single ETI
Interest Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[specify]

[As per Conditions][specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[[®] calendar days] [[®] Value Business Days]
[\Value Business Day Centre(s): [specify]

(N.B. Only applicable if Number of Value Publication
Days is calculated by reference to Value Business Days)]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
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(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(xxiv)

(xxv)

(xxvi)

(xxvii)

(xxviii)

(xxix)

(xxx)

(xxxi)

(xxxii)

Settlement Price:

Valuation Time:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

[Interest/ Premium
Amount] Valuation
Time:

[Interest/ Premium
Amount] Valuation
Date:

Additional
Extraordinary ETI
Event(s):

Maximum Stock Loan
Rate:

ETI Interest
Correction Period:

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest
Spread (in the case of
Certificates only):

Termination Date:

Weighting:

ETI Documents:

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 3]

[Official closing price]/[Value per ETI Interest]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[The Maximum Stock Loan Rate in respect of [specify in
relation to each relevant ETI Interest] is [®].]

[specify]
[Principal ~ Protected Termination ~Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[As per

Conditions]/[specify]

(N.B. Principal Protected Termination Amount and
Non-Principal Protection Termination Amount are
applicable to Certificates only)

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

The Weighting to be applied to each ETI Interest
comprising the ETI Basket is [specify]]/[Not applicable]

[As per Conditions][specify]
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(k)

(xxxiii)

(xxxiv)

(xxxv)

(xXxxvi)

Protected Amount (in
the case of
Certificates only):

Delayed Redemption
on Occurrence of an
Extraordinary ETI
Event (in the case of
Certificates only):

Delayed Payment
Cut-off Date:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Debt Linked [Interest/Premium
Amount] Certificates:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Debt Instruments:
Formula:

Averaging:

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Time:

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Date:

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]
[specify]

Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The Averaging
Dates are [@].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will

apply.]
[specify]

[As defined in Condition 1/[[specify] Scheduled Trading
Days]
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(ix)

)

(xi)

Redemption of
underlying Debt
Instruments:

Exchange Business
Day:

Other terms or special
conditions:

M Commodity Linked
[Interest/Premium Amount]
Certificates:

(i)

(i)
(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

)
(xi)

Commaodity/
Commodities/fCommo
dity
Index/Commodity
Indices:

Formula:

Interest Pricing
Date(s):

Initial Interest Pricing
Date:

Final Interest Pricing
Date:

Commodity
Reference Price:
Delivery Date:
Nearby Month:
Specified Price:
Exchange:

Disruption
Fallback(s):

50

Where one or more of the relevant Debt Instruments is
redeemed (or otherwise ceases to exist) before the
expiration of the relevant Certificates, [insert appropriate
fall back provisions].

"Exchange Business Day" means [specify].

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify Commodity/Commodities/Commodity
Index/Commodity Indices]

[The Sponsor[s] of the Commodity Index/Indices is [®]]
[specify]
[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

The Price Source is/are [@]%°
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

Delete if using automated Commodity Reference Prices
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(xii) [Interest/Premium
Amount]Valuation
Time:

(xiii)  Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

(xiv)  Weighting:

(xv) Rolling Futures
Contract Securities:

(xvi)  Futures Rollover
[Date/Period]:

(xvii)  Other terms or special
conditions:

(m) Inflation Index Linked
[Interest/Premium Amount]
Certificates:

(M Inflation
Index/Sponsor:
(i) Formula:

(iii) Related Bond:

(iv) Issuer of Related
Bond:

(v) Fallback Bond:

(vi) Related Bond
Redemption Event:

(vii) Substitute Inflation
Index Level:

(viii)  Cut-off Date:

[specify]

[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify]>!

[The Weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Commodity Basket is [specify]]/[Not applicable]
[Yes/No]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify name of inflation index/indices]

[specify name of inflation index sponsor(s)]

[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable] [if applicable, specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable] [if applicable, specify]

[As determined in accordance with Annex 6] [specify]

In respect of a [Valuation Date], the day that is [specify]
Business Days prior to such [Valuation Date].

51 Only applicable in respect of Commodity Securities linked to a single Commodity.
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(n)

(ix)

(x)
(xi)
(xii)

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Date:

Valuation Time:
Reference Month:

Other terms or special
conditions:

Currency Linked
[Interest/Premium Amount]
Certificates:

(i)

(i)

(iii)
(iv)
(V)

(vi)

(vi)
(viii)
(ix)
(x)
(xi)

The relevant base
currency (the "Base
Currency") is:

The relevant subject
[currency/currencies]
([the]/[each a]
"Subject Currency")
[is/are]:

Formula:
Weighting:

Price Source:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

Averaging Date(s):
Observation Date(s):

Strike Date:

Relevant Screen Page:

Valuation Time:

[specify]

[specify]
[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If the Certificates are Dual Currency Certificates where
the Settlement Currency of the Interest Amount is
dependent on whether the Dual Currency Condition has
been satisfied, specify "Applicable™" and complete relevant
prompts below.)

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]
[specify]

[specify]/[Insert in the case of Dual Currency Certificates:
Not applicable]

[specify]/[five] Scheduled Trading Days

[specify]/[Not Applicable]
[specify]/[Not Applicable]
[specify]/[Not Applicable]
[specify]
[specify]
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(0)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

Fund Linked [Interest/Premium

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Date:

[Dual Currency
Certificates:

Other terms or special

conditions:

Amount] Certificates:

(i)

(ii)
(iii)
(iv)
(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

Fund/Fund Basket:

Fund Share(s):
Formula:

Fund Documents:

Fund Business Day:

Fund Service
Provider:

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Date:

Calculation Date(s):

[specify]/[Not Applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

[Dual Currency Condition [1]/[2]: [Less than]/[Less than
or equal to]/[Greater than]/[Greater than or equal to]]

[Dual Currency Determination Date(s): [specify]/[each
Valuation Date]]

[Strike Rate: [[specify set exchange rate], expressed as the
number of units (or part units) of the Subject Currency for
which one unit of the Base Currency can be exchanged]]

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]

[The [®] Fund is a Mutual Fund]

The [®] Fund is a Hedge Fund]

[The [®] Fund is a Private Equity Fund]
[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions][specify]

[All Fund share Basis] [Per Fund share Basis][Single
Fund share Basis]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]
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(ix)

)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)
(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

(xxii)

(xxiii)

(xxiv)

Initial Calculation
Date:

Final Calculation
Date:

Hedging Date:
AUM Level:

NAV Trigger
Percentage:

NAV Trigger Period:

Number of NAV
Publication Days:

Basket Trigger Level:
Fee:

Extraordinary Fund
Event(s) (in the case
of a Private Equity
Fund only):

Additional
Extraordinary Fund
Event(s):

Termination Amount:

Simple Interest
Spread (in the case of
Certificates only):

Termination Date:

Weighting:

Delayed Redemption
on Occurrence of an

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[specify]
[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify][Not applicable]

[specify]
[specify]
[Principal ~ Protected Termination ~Amount]/[Non-
Principal Protected Termination Amount]/[As per

Conditions]/[specify]

(N.B. Principal Protected Termination Amount and
Non-Principal Protection Termination Amount are
applicable to Certificates only)

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify]

[The Weighting to be applied to each Fund Share
comprising the Fund/Fund Basket is [specify]]/[Not
applicable]

[Applicable/Not applicable]
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(p)

(xxv)

(xxvi)

(xxvii)

Extraordinary Fund
Event (in the case of
Certificates only):

Delayed Payment
Cut-off Date:

Protected Amount (in
the case of
Certificates only):

Other terms or special
conditions:

Futures Linked
[Interest/Premium Amount]
Certificates:

(i)
(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)
(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
)

Futures:

Formula:

Averaging:

[Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Time:

Valuation Date:

Observation Dates:

Observation Period:

Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

Exchange(s):

Exchange Business
Day:

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[specify] per Security

[Not applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[insert type of Futures]

[specify] (N.B If Formula includes an initial closing price
use term "Initial Price™ for relevant definition)

Averaging [applies/does not apply].
Dates are [@].]

[The Averaging

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.]

[specify]

[specify]
[specify]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disruption Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will

apply.]
[specify]

[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled Trading
Days]

[specify]

[Single Future Basis/All Futures Basis/Per Futures Basis]
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(@)

(xi) Scheduled Trading
Day:

(xii) Weighting:

(xiii)  Settlement Price:

(xiv)  Other terms or special
conditions:

Listed Option Linked
[Interest/Premium Amount]
Certificates:

0] Listed Option
Contract(s):

(i) Options Exchange(s):

(iii) Formula:

(iv) Averaging:

(v) [Interest/Premium
Amount] Valuation
Time:

(vi) Valuation Date:

(vii) Observation Dates:

[Single Future Basis/All Futures Basis/Per Futures Basis]
(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket to ascertain the Settlement Price is [specify]. Each
such Weighting shall be subject to adjustment [in
accordance with Annex 10/[specify other].]/[Not
applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Securities
relating to a Basket)

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 10]. (N.B. If Settlement
Price includes formula incorporating initial closing price,
use term "Initial Price" for relevant definition.)

[Not applicable]/[specify]]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify underlying asset(s) or basis (or bases) of
reference]

[specify contract size]

[specify option style]

[specify tenor and expiry date]
[specify]

[specify] (N.B If Formula includes an initial closing price
use term "Initial Price" for relevant definition)

Averaging [applies/does not apply]. [The Averaging
Dates are [@®].]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will

apply.]

[specify]

[specify]
[specify]
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(r)

(s)

(viii)  Observation Period:

(ix) Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption:

(x) Exchange Business
Day:

(xi) Scheduled Trading
Day:

(xii) Weighting:

(xiii)  Settlement Price:

(xiv)  Valuation Time:

(xv) Other terms or special
conditions:

Instalment Certificates:
(1) Instalment Amount(s)
(i) Instalment Date(s):

Issuer Call Option:

(1) Optional Redemption
Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption
Valuation Date(s):

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disruption Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will

apply.]
[specify]

[As defined in Condition 1]/[specify] [Scheduled Trading
Days]

[Single Listed Option Contract Basis/All Listed Option
Contracts Basis/Per Listed Option Contract Basis]

[Single Listed Option Contract Basis/All Listed Option
Contracts Basis/Per Listed Option Contract Basis]

(must match election made for Exchange Business Day)

[The weighting to be applied to each item comprising the
Basket to ascertain the Settlement Price is [specify]. Each
such Weighting shall be subject to adjustment [in
accordance with Annex 15/[specify other].]/[Not
applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Securities
relating to a Basket)

The Settlement Price will be calculated [insert calculation
method if different from Annex 15]. (N.B. If Settlement
Price includes formula incorporating initial closing price,
use term "Initial Price" for relevant definition.)

[specify]

[Not applicable]/[specify]]

The Certificates [are/are not] Instalment Certificates.
[specify]

[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

(N.B. If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)
[specify]

[specify]
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(iii) Optional Redemption  [specify]
Amount(s) and
method, if any, of
calculation of such
amount(s):

(iv) Notice Period (if [specify]
different from those
set out in the
Conditions):

® Holder Put Option: [Applicable/Not applicable]

(N.B. If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-
paragraphs of this paragraph)

(N.B. For Preference Share Certificates, Holder Put
Option should be "Not applicable™)

0] Optional Redemption  [specify]
Date(s):

(i) Optional Redemption  [specify]
Valuation Date(s):

(iii) Optional Redemption  [specify]
Amount(s) and
method, if any, of
calculation of such
amount(s):

(iv) Notice Period (if [specify]
different from those
set out in the
Conditions):

2

(v) Automatic Early Redemption®?:  [Applicable/Not applicable]

[If applicable:

[specify]/["greater than"/"greater than or equal to"/"less
than"/"less than or equal t0"]]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs
of this paragraph)

(1) Automatic Early [specify/See definition in Condition 34.9]

Redemption Amount:
[Accrual to Automatic Early Redemption: Applicable]

Only applicable in relation to Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities, Commodity Securities, Currency
Securities, Futures Securities and Listed Option Securities. In respect of OET Certificates, refer to § 34(g) above.
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(i)

(iii) Automatic Early
Redemption Level:

(iv) Automatic Early
Redemption Rate:

(v) Automatic Early
Redemption
Valuation Date(s):

(v) Cash Settlement Amount:

0] Bonus Level:

(i) Knock-in Window:

(iii) Lower Level:

(iv) Observation Level:

(v) Participation
Coefficient:

(vi) Reference Threshold:

(vii) Reverse Level:

(viii)  Security Barrier:

(ix) Strike Price:

(x) Upper Level:

(xi) Other:

Automatic Early
Redemption Date(s):

(w) Strike Date:

53

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[specify]

[insert details of Cash Settlement Amount and how it is to
be calculated for Cash Settled Certificates]/[As specified
in Preference Share Condition 6]%%/[As per OET
Certificate Conditions]

(N.B. Delete each remaining sub-paragraph of this
paragraph that is not applicable)

[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[specify]

[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[specify]
[specify]/[Not applicable]

(N.B. Only relevant for certain Index and Share
Securities)

Only applicable in respect of Preference Share Certificates.
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(x) Redemption Valuation Date: [specify]/[As specified in Condition [®] in relation to
Open End Certificates] /[Not applicable]

(y) Averaging: Averaging [applies/does not apply] to the Securities. [The
Averaging Dates are [specify].] (Not applicable to
Inflation Index Securities)

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] (as
defined in Condition 28) will apply.] (N.B. Not applicable
to Index Securities relating to a Custom Index or
Commodity Securities)

[In the event of Modified Postponement applying, the
Averaging Date will be determined [specify relevant
provisions] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Debt
Securities, Currency Securities or Fund Securities).]

[In the event that an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day,
the provisions of Annex 1 will apply] (N.B. Only
applicable to Index Securities relating to a Custom Index)

(2 Observation Dates: [specify]/[Not applicable]

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day
[Omission/Postponement/Modified Postponement] will
apply.] (N.B. Not applicable to Index Securities relating
to a Custom Index or Commaodity Securities)

[In the event that an Observation Date is a Disrupted Day,
the provisions of Annex 1 will apply] (N.B. Only
applicable to Index Securities relating to a Custom Index)

[In the event of Modified Postponement applying, the
Observation Date will be determined] [specify relevant
provisions] (N.B. Only applicable in relation to Debt
Securities, Currency Securities or Fund Securities).]

(aa) Observation Period: [specify]/[Not applicable] (Not applicable to Inflation
Index Securities)

(bb) Settlement Business Day: "Settlement Business Day" for the purposes of Condition
5 means [specify]. (N.B. Only applicable in the case of
Physical Delivery Securities)

(cc) Cut-off Date: [specify]/[Not applicable] (N.B. Only applicable in the
case of Physical Delivery Securities and if provisions in
Conditions not applicable)

DISTRIBUTION AND U.S. SALES ELIGIBILITY (ALL SECURITIES)
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46.

Selling Restrictions:

(@)

(b)

(@)

Eligibility for sale of Securities
in the United States to Als
(N.B. Only US Securities
issued by BNPP can be so
eligible):

Eligibility for sale of Securities
in the United States to QIBs
within the meaning of Rule
144A (N.B. except as provided
in (c) below only U.S.
Securities issued by BNPP can
be so eligible):

[Insert any additional selling restrictions]

The Securities are [not] eligible for sale in the United
States to Als.

[Where Securities are eligible for sale in the United States
to Als, include the following:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

V)
(vi)

(vii)

The Securities will be issued in the form of
Private Placement Definitive Securities;

The Securities may [not] be issued concurrently
outside the United States to non-U.S. persons
[(such Securities to be represented by a
Regulation S Global Security)];

The Securities may [not] be transferred to QIBs
(N.B. Securities may only be transferred to QIBs
if eligible for sale to QIBs as provided in
paragraph (b) below);

The Securities may [not] be transferred to non-
U.S. persons;

The Securities may [not] be transferred to Als;

[insert applicable U.S. federal and state legends
and selling restrictions and specify details of any
transfer  restrictions and any necessary
certifications, if different from those set out in
the Conditions (N.B. Such restrictions may be
necessary, inter alia, in relation to Commaodity
Securities)]; and

[specify any amendments to the form of Exercise
Notice (the form of which is set out in a schedule
to the Agency Agreement)].]

The Securities are [not] eligible for sale in the United
States under Rule 144A to QIBs.

[Where Securities are eligible for sale in the United States
under Rule 144A to QIBs, include the following:
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(©

(@)

Eligibility for sale of Securities
in the United States to QIBs
within the meaning of Rule
144A who are also QPs within
the meaning of the Investment
Company Act (N.B. All U.S.
Securities issued by BNPP
B.V. must include these
restrictions in lieu of
restrictions in (a) or (b) above)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

The Rule 144A Global Security will be
deposited with [a custodian for DTC]/[a
common depositary on behalf of Clearstream,
Luxembourg/Euroclear/Iberclear/other relevant
clearing system];

The Securities may [not] be issued concurrently
outside the United States to non-U.S. persons
[(such securities to be represented by a
Regulation S Global Security)];

The Securities may [not] be transferred to QIBs;

The Securities may [not] be transferred to non-
U.S. persons;

The Securities may [not] be transferred to Als
(N.B. Securities may only be transferred to Als if
eligible for sale to Als as provided for in
paragraph (a) above);

[insert applicable U.S. federal and state legends
and selling restrictions and specify details of any
transfer restrictions and any necessary
certifications, if different from those set out in
the Conditions (N.B. Such restrictions may be
necessary, inter alia, in relation to Commodity
Securities)]; and

[specify any amendments to the form of Exercise
Notice (the form of which is set out in a schedule
to the Agency Agreement)].]

The Securities are [not] eligible for sale in the United
States to persons who are QIBs and QPs

[Where Securities issued by BNPP B.V. are eligible for
sale in the United States, include the following:

(i)
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47.

Additional U.S. Federal
considerations:

income tax

(i) [The Securities will be issued in the form of
Private Placement Definitive Securities] [The
Rule 144A Global Security will be deposited
with [a custodian for DTC]/[a common
depositary on  behalf of Clearstream,
Luxembourg/Euroclear/Iberclear/other relevant
clearing system]];

(iii) The Securities may [not] be issued concurrently
outside the United States to non-U.S. persons
[(such Securities to be represented by a
Regulation S Global Security)];

(iv) The Securities may only be transferred to
persons who are QIBs and QPs;

v) The Securities may [not] be transferred to non-
U.S. persons;

(vi) The Securities may not be transferred to Als;

(vii) [insert applicable U.S. federal and state legends
and selling restrictions and specify details of any
transfer  restrictions and any necessary
certifications, if different from those set out in
the Conditions (N.B. Such restrictions may be
necessary, inter alia, in relation to Commodity
Securities)]; and

(viii)  [specify any amendments to the form of Exercise
Notice (the form of which is set out in a schedule
to the Agency Agreement)].]

[[The Securities are [not] Specified Securities for the
purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S. Internal Revenue
Code of 1986.] [The Securities may be Specified
Securities for the purpose of Section 871(m) of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as stated in specific
provisions for each series above. If the Securities are
Specified Securities, then the following provisions will
apply.] [Additional information regarding the application
of Section 871(m) to the Securities will be available at
[give name(s) and address(es) of Issuer contact].] [The
Issuer will arrange for withholding under Section 871(m)
to be imposed on any dividend equivalent payment at a
rate of 30 per cent.]]

[As at the date of these Final Terms, the Issuer has not
determined whether the Securities are Specified
Securities for purposes of Section 871(m) of the U.S.
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Internal Revenue Code of 1986; however, indicatively it
considers that they will [not] be Specified Securities for
these purposes. This is indicative information only
subject to change and if the Issuer's final
determination is different then it will give notice of
such determination. Please contact [give name(s) and
address(es) of Issuer contact] for further information
regarding the application of Section 871(m) to the
Securities.]]

(The Securities will not be Specified Securities if they (i)
are issued prior to 1 January, 2023 and are not "delta-
one" Securities for U.S. tax purposes or (ii) do not
reference any U.S. equity or any index that contains any
component U.S. equity or otherwise provide direct or
indirect exposure to U.S. equities. If the Securities
reference a U.S. equity or an index that contains a
component U.S. equity or otherwise provide direct or
indirect exposure to U.S. equities and (i) are issued prior
to 1 January 2023 and provide a return that does not
differ significantly from the return on an investment in the
underlying, or (ii) are issued on or after 1 January 2023,
further analysis would be required.)

[Payments on the Specified Securities are calculated by
reference to [Net Dividends/Net Total Returns/Estimated
Dividends]. By purchasing a Specified Security, the
parties agree that in calculating the relevant payment
amount the Issuer has withheld, and the purchaser is
deemed to have received 30 per cent. of any dividend
equivalent payments (as defined in Section 871(m) of the
Code) in respect of the relevant [U.S. securities/U.S.
dividend paying index components]. The Issuer will not
pay any additional amounts to the holder on account of
the Section 871(m) amount deemed withheld.

[For this purpose, "Net Dividends™ means the dividends
paid by an issuer of a security net of 30 per cent. U.S.
federal withholding tax.]

[For this purpose "Net Total Returns" means the net total
return of the U.S. source dividend paying components, as
calculated by the Index Sponsor, of an index that reinvests
U.S. source dividends paid by an issuer of a security that
is a component of the index net of 30 per cent. U.S.
withholding tax on such U.S. source dividends.]]

[For this purpose "Estimated Dividends" means the per-
share dividend for each anticipated dividend as disclosed
by the Issuer in these Final Terms.]
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[For the purpose of determining the amount of
withholding required under Section 871(m) of the U.S.
Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the Estimated Dividends
on the Securities are [[list the estimated amount for each
anticipated dividend]/determined using the following
formula: [@].]

48. TEFRA C or TEFRA Not applicable: [TEFRA C/TEFRA Not applicable]
49, Registered broker/dealer: [BNP Paribas Securities Corp./[specify other]>*/[Not
applicable]]

([If syndicated, specify names of the Manager(s)])

PROVISIONS RELATING TO COLLATERAL AND SECURITY

50. Collateral Security Conditions: [Applicable - Annex 12 (Additional Terms and
Conditions for Secured Securities) will apply/Not
applicable]

(If not applicable, delete the remaining sub-paragraphs of
this paragraph)

@) Collateral Pool: [specify]
(b) Type of Collateral Pool: [Single Series Pool/Multiple Series Pool]
(c) Initial Collateral Assets: [specify]/[See table in Part B for a description of the

characteristics applicable for assets to constitute Initial
Collateral Assets]/[Not applicable]

(d) Eligible Collateral: [specify]/[See table in Part B for a description of the
characteristics applicable for assets to constitute Eligible
Collateral] [Cash denominated in an Eligible Currency
[Eligible Currency(ies)-[ 1] [specify eligible currencies if
Eligible Collateral consists of cash] [The MTM
Adjustable Assets and Reference Collateral Assets set out
in paragraph (w) below)] [Include where Certificates are
Collateral Asset Linked Securities]

(e) Type of collateralisation: [MTM Collateralisation]/[Partial MTM
Collateralisation]/[Nominal Value Collateralisation] /
[Partial Nominal Value Collateralisation] [- Partial
Collateralisation Level is equal to [specify]][NB - where
Partial MTM Collateralisation or Partial Nominal Value
Collateralisation is applicable, specify level]

f Type of enforcement; [Collateral Cash Settlement]/[Physical Delivery Of
Collateral] /[See Collateral Security Condition 9][Specify

54 If U.S. Securities [N.B. if U.S. Securities are issued by BNPP B.V, the [broker/dealer] shall be BNP Paribas Securities Corp.]
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()
(h)

(i)

1)

(k)
0
(m)

(n)

(0)
(p)
(a)

Q)
(©)

(®)

Haircut

Security Termination Amount:

Priority of Payments:

Additional or Alternative
Security Agreement(s):

Limited Diversification:

Collateral Valuation Dates:

Collateral Calculation Agent:

Collateral Custodian:

Collateral Agent:
Swap Agreement:

Swap Counterparty:

Repurchase Agreement:

Repo Counterparty:

Terms for realisation of
Collateral Assets if different
from as set out in Collateral
Security Conditions:

where the Certificates are Collateral Asset Linked
Certificates]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[Security Value Termination Amount]/[Security Value
Realisation Proceeds]/[Nominal Value Realisation
Proceeds]/[Partial Nominal Value Realisation
Proceeds]/[Nominal Value Amount]/[Shortfall Value
Amount]/[specify]/[Security MTM Termination Amount]
[NB: Nominal Value Realisation Proceeds, Partial
Nominal Value Realisation Proceeds or Nominal Value
Amount should not be specified as the Security
Termination Amount if MTM Collateralisation or Partial
MTM Collateralisation have been specified in paragraph
(e) above] [Only specify Security MTM Termination
Amount where Collateral Security Condition 9 applies]

[Not applicable]/[specify] [NB Only applicable where the
relevant Collateral Pool secures a single series of Secured
Securities]

[None]/[Specify details including governing law]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[specify]/[None]

[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.J/[BNP
Paribas]/[specify]/[Not applicable]

[BNP Paribas Securities  Services, Luxembourg

Branch]/[specify]
[BNP Paribas Trust Corporation UK Limited]/[specify]
[Applicable/Not applicable]

[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.J/[BNP Paribas] [Not
Applicable]/[specify]

[Applicable/Not applicable]

[BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C.J/[BNP Paribas] [Not
Applicable]/[specify]

[specify]/[Not applicable]
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(u)

v)

(w)

Collateral Asset Default:

Collateral Security Credit
Certificates:

() Redemption Date:
(i) Reference Entity:

(iii) Terms relating to
Settlement:

(iv) Accrual of Interest
upon Credit Event:

(V) Other terms or special
conditions:

Collateral Asset Linked
Securities:

0] Initial Posting Date:
(i) Distributor:

(iii) MTM Adjustable
Assets:

(iv) Reference  Collateral
Assets:

(v) Reference  Collateral
Assets Issuer:

(vi) Reference  Delivery
Amount:
(vii) Security MTM

Termination Amount:

[Applicable]/[Not  applicable]/[Collateral Physical
Settlement: [Applicable/Not Applicable]] [NB Delete
Collateral Physical Settlement if Collateral Asset Default
is Not Applicable][specify Collateral Early Settlement
Amount if other than as specified in Collateral Security
Condition 7.3][Disruption Cash Settlement Price: specify
if Collateral Physical Settlement is applicable]

[Collateral Security Condition 8 is applicable and the
Secured Securities are Collateral Security Credit
Certificates]/[Not Applicable] [If not applicable delete the
remaining sub paragraphs of this paragraph]

[specify]
[specify]

[As per Collateral Security Condition 8]/[Specify
variations or additions to Collateral Security
Condition 8]

[As per Collateral Security Condition 8.3(a)(i)]/[As per
Collateral Security Condition 8.3(a)(ii)]/[Not applicable]

[specify]/[Not applicable]

[Collateral Security Condition 9 is applicable and the
Secured Securities are Collateral Asset Linked
Securities]/[Not applicable] [If not applicable delete the
remaining sub paragraphs of this paragraph]

[Issue Date]/[specify]
[specify]/[None]

[specify]

[specify]/[Include ISINs where applicable]

[specify]

[As per Conditions]/[specify]

[Realisation Proceeds Share]/[specify]
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(viii)  Scheduled Underlying [Premium Amounts]/[specify]/[Not applicable]
Reference Linked
Payment(s):

(x) Other terms or special [Not applicable]/[specify]
conditions:

Responsibility

The Issuer accepts responsibility for the information contained in these Final Terms. To the best of the knowledge
of the Issuer (who has taken all reasonable care to ensure that such is the case), the information contained herein
is in accordance with the facts and does not omit anything likely to affect the import of such information. [The
information included in [the Annex] (the "[®] Information™) consists of extracts from or summaries of
information that is publicly available in respect of [®]. The Issuer confirms that such information has been
accurately reproduced and that, so far as it is aware and is able to ascertain from information published by [®], no
facts have been omitted which would render the reproduced inaccurate or misleading.]®

[Signed on behalf of [BNP Paribas Issuance B.V.]/[BNP Paribas]
As Issuer:
BY:

Duly authorised]

55 Include only if such information has been included.
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PART B - OTHER INFORMATION

Listing and Admission to trading — [De-listing]

[The Securities are unlisted.]/[Application [has been/will be] made to list the Securities on the Official
List of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange and to admit the Securities described herein for trading on the
[professional segment of the] Luxembourg Stock Exchange's Euro MTF Market. J/[Application has been
made by the Issuer (or on its behalf) for the Securities to be admitted to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange
with effect from [®]. Application for listing on SIX Swiss Exchange will be made by the Issuer (or on
its behalf) for the Securities as soon as possible thereafter. The last day of trading is expected to be [®].]]
(N.B. Only Swiss Securities may be admitted to trading on SIX Swiss Exchange.)

[The de-listing of the Securities on the exchange market specified above shall occur on [specify], subject
to any change to such [date/period] by such exchange/ market] or any competent authorities, for which
the Issuer [and the Guarantor] shall under no circumstances be liable].

[Estimate of total expenses related to admission to trading: [ ®]]?

(Where documenting a fungible issue need to indicate if original Securities are already admitted to
trading)

[Additional information required for FinSA Securities to be listed on SIX Swiss Exchange

Listing/Trading  First Trading Day: [first trading day]

information:
Last Trading Day and Time: [last trading day as well as the time of day at

which trading shall cease]®

Capital Protection: [Capital protection [specify] /no capital protection]

Type of quoting: [the Securities are traded or quoted including accrued interest
(dirty trading)] [accrued interest is shown separately (clean trading)]]

Information [insert the information on the underlying instruments required by section 3.3 of
relating to annex 3 of the Swiss Financial Services Ordinance ("FinSO") and the tax
underlyings: information in relation to a purchase of underlying instruments required by section

3.11 of annex 3 FinSO, to the extent such information is not already included
elsewhere in the Final Terms.]

Additional Name and address of the representative for purposes of Article 43 of the Listing
information: Rules of SIX Exchange Regulation: BNP Paribas (Suisse) SA, [Selnaustrasse 16,
CH-8022 Zurich,] Switzerland.

Two SIX Swiss Exchange trading days prior to the [Redemption Date]/[Settlement Date].

Delete if minimum denomination is less than EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant currency as of the Issue Date)
or if the Securities are Derivative Securities.

Two SIX Swiss Exchange trading days prior to the [Redemption Date]/[Settlement Date].
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No Material Adverse Change: Save as disclosed in the Base Prospectus, there has
been no material adverse change, nor any event involving a prospective material
adverse change in the financial and trading position of [the Issuer] [and/or] [the
Guarantor] since [insert date of the most recently published audited financial
statements].]

[Ratings

[The Securities to be issued [[have been]/[are expected to be]] rated [insert details] by [insert credit
rating agency name(s)].]

[Need to include a brief explanation of the meaning of the ratings if this has previously been published
by the rating provider:

[®]

(The above disclosure should reflect the rating allocated to Securities of the type being issued under the
Programme generally or, where the issue has been specifically rated, that rating.)]]

EITHER [[Insert credit rating agency] is established in the European Union and is registered under
Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended). [As such [insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity]
is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets
Authority on its website in accordance with such Regulation.]]

OR [[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in the European Union and is not registered in
accordance with Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended). [[Insert the legal name of the relevant
non-EU CRA entity] is therefore not included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the
European Securities and Markets Authority on its website in accordance with such Regulation.]]

OR [[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in the European Union and has not applied for
registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA Regulation"). The ratings
have been endorsed by [insert the name of the relevant EU-registered credit rating agency] in accordance
with the CRA Regulation. [Insert the name of the relevant EU-registered credit rating agency] is
established in the European Union and registered under the CRA Regulation.] [As such [insert the legal
name of the relevant EU CRA entity] is included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the
European Securities and Markets Authority on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulation]. The
European Securities Markets Authority has indicated that ratings issued in [Japan/Australia/the
USA/Canada/Hong Kong/Singapore/Argentina/Mexico/Brazil/the United Kingdom (delete as
appropriate)] which have been endorsed by [insert the legal name of the relevant EU CRA entity that
applied for registration] may be used in the EU by the relevant market participants.]

OR [[Insert credit rating agency] is not established in the European Union and has not applied for
registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA Regulation"), but it [is/has
applied to be] certified in accordance with the CRA Regulation [[EITHER:] and it is included in the list
of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website in
accordance with the CRA Regulation] [ [OR:] although notification of the corresponding certification
decision has not yet been provided by the relevant competent authority European Securities and Markets
Authority and [insert the legal name of the relevant non-EU CRA entity] is not included in the list of
credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website in
accordance with the CRA Regulation].]
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OR [[Insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity] is established in the European Union and has
applied for registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended), although notification of the
corresponding registration decision has not yet been provided by the European Securities and Markets
Authority [ and [insert the legal name of the relevant CRA entity] is not included in the list of credit
rating agencies published by the European Securities and Markets Authority on its website in accordance
with such Regulation].]

OR [[Insert the legal name of the relevant non-EU CRA entity] is not established in the European Union
and has not applied for registration under Regulation (EC) No. 1060/2009 (as amended) (the "CRA
Regulation™). However, the application for registration under the CRA Regulation of [insert the legal
name of the relevant EU CRA entity that applied for registration], which is established in the European
Union disclosed the intention to endorse credit ratings of [insert the legal name of the relevant non-EU
CRA entity][, although notification of the corresponding registration decision has not yet been provided
by the European Securities and Markets Authority and [insert the legal name of the relevant EU CRA
entity] is not included in the list of credit rating agencies published by the European Securities and
Markets Authority on its website in accordance with the CRA Regulation].] The European Securities
Markets Authority has indicated that ratings issued in [Japan/Australia/the USA/Canada/Hong
Kong/Singapore/Argentina/Mexico/the United Kingdom (delete as appropriate)] which have been
endorsed by [insert the legal name of the relevant EU CRA entity that applied for registration] may be
used in the EU the relevant market participants.

[Risk Factors

[Include any product specific risk factors which are not covered under "Risks™" in the Base Prospectus
or in relation to U.S. Securities. If any such additional risk factors need to be included consideration
should be given as to whether they constitute "significant new factors" and consequently trigger the need
for either (i) a supplement to the Base Prospectus under article 10.2 of Part 2, Chapter | of the rules and
regulations of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange or (ii) a Prospectus.]]

[Interests of Natural and Legal Persons Involved in the [Issue/Offer]

[Need to include a description of any interest, including conflicting interest, that is material to the
issue/offer, detailing the persons involved and the nature of the interest. May be satisfied by the inclusion
of the following statement]:

"Save [for the fees [of [insert relevant fee disclosure]] payable to [insert name of Manager] and] as
discussed[ in the "Potential Conflicts of Interest" paragraph in the "Risks" Section in the Base
Prospectus], so far as the Issuer is aware, no person involved in the [issue/offer] of the Securities has an
interest material to the [issue/offer]."]

[Reasons for the Offer, Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses*
(@) Reasons  [See "Use of Proceeds" in the Base Prospectus][®]

for the
offer:

Disclosure in respect of Estimated Net Proceeds and Total Expenses is only required if reasons for the offer are disclosed
and the Securities are derivative securities to which Annex XII of the Prospectus Regulation applies. Please note that the
Regulation EC 809/2004 (the "'Prospectus Regulation™) is not applicable to this Base Prospectus, however, the Luxembourg
Stock Exchange permits a prospectus to be drafted on the basis of the Prospectus Regulation.
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(See "Use of Proceeds" wording in Base Prospectus — if reasons for
offer different from making profit and/or hedging certain risks will
need to include those reasons here.)

(b) Estimated [uUp to] [@]

net

proceeds:
(If proceeds are intended for more than one use will need to split out
and present in order of priority. If proceeds insufficient to fund all
proposed uses state amount and sources of other funding.)

() Estimated [®] [Include breakdown of expenses]?]
total
expenses:

Performance of Underlying/Formula/Other Variable, Explanation of Effect on Value of
Investment and Associated Risks and Other Information concerning the Underlying

[Need to include details of where past and future performance and volatility of the index/formula/other
variables can be obtained and a clear and comprehensive explanation of how the value of the investment
is affected by the underlying and the circumstances when the risks are most evident.]

[Where the underlying is an index need to include the name of the index and a description if composed
by the Issuer and if the index is not composed by the Issuer need to include details of where the
information about the index can be obtained]

[Where the underlying is a security need to include the name of the issuer of the security and the ISIN
(International Security Identification Number) or other such security identification code, and if the
underlying share is not admitted to trading on a regulated market or equivalent market, or not admitted
to trading at all, also include a full description of the issuer underlying security according to Appendix
I of the Rules and Regulations of the Luxembourg Stock Exchange.]

[If the Securities are FinSA Securities where the underlying is a Share or Debt Instrument, specify the
place where the annual reports of the Share Company/Basket Company or the issuer of the Debt
Instrument are available free of charge if the documents are not uploaded on the website of the Share
Company/Basket Company or the issuer of the Debt Instrument.]

[The Certificates relate to the Series [®] Preference shares of the BNP Paribas Synergy Limited relating
to [insert reference asset].

The performance of the Preference Shares depends on the performance of the relevant underlying asset(s)
or basis of reference to which the Preference Shares are linked (the "Preference Share Underlying").
The Preference Share Underlying is [insert reference asset]. Information on the Preference Share
Underlying (including past and future performance and volatility) is published on Reuters page [ ®].

The Preference Share Value will be published on [each] Business Day on [Reuters] page [®].]°

Not required for debt securities with a denomination per unit of at least EUR 100,000 (or its equivalent in the relevant
currency as of the Issue Date).
Include for Preference Share Certificates.
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[Insert where the Securities reference SOFR: The Issuer is not affiliated with the Federal Reserve Bank
of New York. The Federal Reserve Bank of New York does not sanction, endorse or recommend any
products or services offered by the Issuer.]

The Issuer [intends to provide post-issuance information [specify what information will be reported,
when and where it can be obtained]] [does not intend to provide post-issuance information].

Operational Information

Relevant Clearing System(s): [Euroclear and Clearstream, Luxembourg/DTC/Euroclear
France/Euroclear Netherlands/Iberclear/Euroclear
Sweden/Euroclear Finland/Monte Titoli/SIX SIS Ltd/other]

[if Iberclear add: [Insert relevant entity] will act as link entity
[Entidad de Enlace]/Paying Agent (Entidad de Pago)/Depositary
Entity (Entidad Depositaria)/Liquidity Entity/Entidad
Especialista)]

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities have been appointed and
formalities complied with in accordance with the rules and
regulations of the relevant clearing system]

[N.B. For Swiss Securities to be admitted to trading on SIX Swiss
Exchange, SIX SIS Ltd must be specified as the applicable clearing
system.]

If other than Euroclear Bank [ldentification number(s):]
S.A/N.V., Clearstream Banking,
société  anonyme,  Euroclear
France, Euroclear Netherlands,
[Iberclear], [Monte Titoli] include

the relevant identification
number(s) [and in the case of
Swedish Dematerialised

Securities, the Swedish Security
Agent] [and in the case of Finnish
Dematerialised ~ Securities, the
Finnish Security Agent]:

[N.B. Ensure all relevant entities
have been appointed and
formalities complied with in
accordance with the rules and
regulations of the relevant
clearing system]

[Swedish Security Agent;
[Nordea Bank Abp, Swedish Branch/other]

Address: [ 11
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10.

11.

[Additional information relating to

[Contact details of the Finnish Security Agent will be included in

the applicable Final Terms.]

Swiss Securities] (N.B. Delete for

Securities other than  Swiss

Securities.)

[Yield (in the case of Certificates)

[Fixed Rate Certificates only]

[Swiss security number(s): [®]

Swiss Paying Agent: [@]]

[An indication of yield. Describe the method whereby that yield is calculated in summary form.]

Performance of Rates (in the case of Certificates)

Details of the performance of [LIBOR/EURIBOR/SONIA/SOFR/€ESTR/SARON/other rate as specified
in the Conditions] rates can be obtained, [but not] free of charge, from [Reuters/Bloomberg/give details
of electronic means of obtaining the details of performance].]

[Description of Collateral Assets

Assets meeting the criteria in the table set out below under the headings "Eligible Collateral” and "Other
information” shall constitute Eligible Collateral:]

Eligible Collateral’

Other information

[(A)]

[A pool of] [D]/d]ebt securities [issued and
guaranteed by [ ] with a minimum eligible rating
of [specify] whose issuer or guarantor must be
incorporated in [specify] and which must be traded on
[specify relevant regulated markets]

[(B)]

A pool of equity securities with a minimum eligible
rating of [specify] the issuer or guarantor of which
must be incorporated in [specify] and which must be
traded on [specify relevant regulated markets]

(&)

A pool of shares, units or interests in Collective
Investment Schemes the issuer of which must be
incorporated in [specify], the regulatory authority of
which must be [specify] and which have minimum
assets under management of [specify]

[(D)]

Cash deposit denominated in [specify currency] (the
"Eligible Currency")

[(B)]

[Specify details of other Collateral Assets where
applicable]

Delete as applicable.
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12.

13.

[[Additional  provisions for [If the FinSA Securites are secured by a pledge agreement, specify
FinSA Securities which are the governing law of the applicable pledge agreement.]]
Secured Securities]

[MIFID I PRODUCT Solely for the purposes of [the/each] manufacturer's product
GOVERNANCE/TARGET approval process, the target market assessment in respect of the
MARKET ASSESSMENT Securities, taking into account the five categories in item 18 of

the Guidelines published by [the European Securities and
Markets Authority]/[ESMA] on 5 February 2018, has led to the
conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Securities is eligible
counterparties[,] [and] professional clients [and retail clients],
each as defined in [Directive 2014/65/EU (as amended, "MiFID
IM][MIFID H1]; [and (ii) all channels for distribution of the
Securities are appropriate[, including investment advice,
portfolio management, non-advised sales and pure execution
services]]/[(ii) all channels for distribution to eligible
counterparties and professional clients are appropriate; and (iii)
the following channels for distribution of the Securities to retail
clients are appropriate — [investment advice][,/ and] [portfolio
management][,/ and][ non-advised sales ]J[and pure execution
services][, subject to the distributor's suitability and
appropriateness obligations under MiFID 11, as applicable]].
[Consider any negative target market]. Any person subsequently
offering, selling or recommending the Securities (a
"distributor")  should take into  consideration the
manufacturer['s/s'] target market assessment; however, a
distributor subject to MiFID 11 is responsible for undertaking its
own target market assessment in respect of the Securities (by
either adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s'] target market
assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels],
subject to the distributor's suitability and appropriateness
obligations under MiFID I1, as applicable]].]

[UK MiFIR product governance/target market assessment

Solely for the purposes of [the/each] manufacturer's product approval process, the target market
assessment in respect of the Securities, taking into account the five categories in item 18 of the Guidelines
published by [the European Securities and Markets Authority]/[ESMA] on 5 February 2018 (in
accordance with the FCA's policy statement entitled "Brexit our approach to EU non-legislative
materials™), has led to the conclusion that: (i) the target market for the Securities is eligible
counterparties, as defined in the FCA Handbook Conduct of Business Sourcebook ("COBS")[,] [and]
professional clients, as defined in Regulation (EU) No 600/2014 as it forms part of domestic law by
virtue of the EUWA ("UK MIiFIR") [and retail clients, as defined in point (8) of Article 2 of Regulation
(EU) No 2017/565 as it forms part of domestic law by virtue of the European Union (Withdrawal) Act
2018 ("EUWA™M)]; [and (ii) all channels for distribution of the Securities are appropriate[, including
investment advice, portfolio management, non-advised sales and pure execution services]]/[(ii) all
channels for distribution to eligible counterparties and professional clients are appropriate; and (iii) the
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following channels for distribution of the Securities to retail clients are appropriate — [investment
advice][,/ and] [portfolio management][,/ and][ non-advised sales ][and pure execution services][, subject
to the distributor's suitability and appropriateness obligations under COBS, as applicable]]. [Consider
any negative target market]. Any person subsequently offering, selling or recommending the Securities
(a "distributor™) should take into consideration the manufacturer['s/s'] target market assessment;
however, a distributor subject to the FCA Handbook Product Intervention and Product Governance
Sourcebook (the "UK MiFIR Product Governance Rules") is responsible for undertaking its own target
market assessment in respect of the Securities (by either adopting or refining the manufacturer['s/s'] target
market assessment) and determining appropriate distribution channels[, subject to the distributor's
suitability and appropriateness obligations under COBS, as applicable]].]
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[PART C - OTHER APPLICABLE TERMS

[specify]

[If the Securites are Certificates that reference an actively managed certificates ("Actively Managed
Certificates"), include additional information in this Part C. The following information must be included:

Actively Managed Certificates:

(@) Investment strategy: The Actively Managed Certificates shall be managed by the
investment advisor(s) specified below in accordance with the
following investment strategy: [Insert key description of the
investment strategy/ies, in particular the Underlying References
that may be part of the investment strategy, rebalancing process,
criteria selection]

Further details on the investment strategy/ies and on the current
composition of the Underlying References in the basket (including
the percentage allocation to each underlying) is available on each
Business Day at the following address: [Specify address]

[The investment strategy [includes] [does not include] a leverage
effect. [If the investment strategy includes a leverage effect, give
details.]]

[Investment restrictions: [give details, if applicable]]
[Diversification rules: [give details, if applicable]]
(b) Investment advisor(s): [Specify name and address of each investment advisor]

[Specify license and supervisory authority of investment
advisor]/[The investment advisor is not subject to prudential
supervision.]

(c) Fees: [Specify fees in connection with the Actively Managed Certificates,
in particular the amount of fees, calculation method, how the fees
are charged to investors, who receives the fees and which service is
covered by the fees.]

(d) Roles and responsibilities of [give details]]
the Issuer and the investment
advisor:
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THE SECURITIES

The following is the text of the Terms and Conditions of the Securities which will include the additional terms
and conditions contained in Annex 1 in the case of Index Securities, the additional terms and conditions
contained in Annex 2 in the case of Share Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex
3 in the case of ETI Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 4 in the case of Debt
Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 5 in the case of Commodity Securities, the
additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 6 in the case of Inflation Index Securities, the additional
terms and conditions contained in Annex 7 in the case of Currency Securities, the additional terms and
conditions contained in Annex 8 in the case of Fund Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained
in Annex 9 in the case of Market Access Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 10
in the case of Futures Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 11 in the case of
Credit Securities, the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 12 in the case of Secured Securities,
the additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 13 in the case of Preference Share Certificates, the
additional terms and conditions contained in Annex 14 in the case of OET Certificates, the additional terms
and conditions contained in Annex 15 in the case of Listed Option Securities or any other Annex (each, an
"Annex"" and, together the ""Annexes'") which may be added from time to time, in the case of any other security
linked to any other underlying reference (the "Terms and Conditions™) which, in the case of Dutch Law
Warrants or English Law Securities (as defined in Condition 1 below), will be incorporated by reference into
each Clearing System Global Security, Private Placement Definitive Security or Registered Global Security
(each as defined below), or in the case of Italian Dematerialised Securities (as defined below) will apply to such
Securities. The applicable Final Terms in relation to any issue of Securities may specify other terms and
conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with the Terms and Conditions,
replace or modify the Terms and Conditions for the purpose of such Securities. In the case of Dutch Law
Warrants or English Law Securities (other than Swedish Dematerialised Securities, Finnish Dematerialised
Securities, Italian Dematerialised Securities or Swiss Dematerialised Securities), the applicable Final Terms
(or the relevant provisions thereof) will be attached to each Clearing System Global Security, Private Placement
Definitive Security or Registered Global Security, as the case may be. In the case of Swedish Dematerialised
Securities, Finnish Dematerialised Securities, Italian Dematerialised Securities and Swiss Dematerialised
Securities, the applicable Final Terms in respect of such Securities will be available at the specified office of
the relevant Issuer and at the office of the Swedish Security Agent, Finnish Security Agent, Italian Security
Agent or Swiss Security Agent, as applicable, in each case specified in the applicable Final Terms. The
provisions in respect of Registered Securities and U.S. Securities (each as defined below) relate to English Law
Securities only.

The series of Securities described in the applicable Final Terms (in so far as it relates to such series of Securities)
(such Securities being hereinafter referred to as the "Securities™) are issued by whichever of BNP Paribas Issuance
B.V. ("BNPP B.V.") or BNP Paribas ("BNPP") is specified as the Issuer in the applicable Final Terms (the
"Issuer™) and references to the Issuer shall be construed accordingly. Securities will be either warrants
("Warrants") or certificates ("Certificates"), as specified in the applicable Final Terms, and references in these
Terms and Conditions to "Security”, "Securities", "Warrant", "Warrants", "Certificate" and "Certificates" will be
construed accordingly.

The Securities are issued pursuant to an Agency Agreement dated on or around 4 June 2021 (as amended and/or
supplemented from time to time, the "Agency Agreement™) between, inter alios, BNPP B.V. as issuer, BNPP as
issuer and (where the Issuer is BNPP B.V.) as guarantor (in such capacity, the "Guarantor"), BNP Paribas
Securities Services in Amsterdam as Dutch issuing and paying agent (if specified in the applicable Final Terms
as Agent in respect of the Securities, the "Amsterdam Security Agent™), BNP Paribas Securities Services, Branch
in Spain as agent (if specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent in respect of the Securities, the "Madrid
Security Agent™), BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch as principal agent (if specified in the
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applicable Final Terms as Agent in respect of the Securities, the "Principal Security Agent"), BNP Paribas
Securities Services as French issuing and paying agent (if specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent in
respect of the Securities, the "French Security Agent"), BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. as principal agent,
calculation agent and collateral calculation agent (if specified in the applicable Final Terms as Agent in respect of
the Securities, the "Principal Security Agent™), BNP Paribas Securities Services, Milan Branch as Italian agent
(the "Italian Security Agent") (each a "Security Agent" and collectively, the "Security Agents"), BNP Paribas
Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch, and BNP Paribas Securities (Japan) Limited as registrar (if specified in
the applicable Final Terms as Registrar in respect of the Registered Securities, the "Registrar"), as supplemented
in the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities by an issuing and paying agency agreement to be executed (as
amended and/or supplemented from time to time, the "Swedish Agency Agreement") between BNPP B.V. and
Nordea Bank Abp, Swedish Branch (or any successor thereto) as Euroclear Sweden security agent (the "Swedish
Security Agent™) and as supplemented in the case of Finnish Dematerialised Securities by an issuing and paying
agency agreement to be executed (and which may be amended and/or supplemented from time to time, the
"Finnish Agency Agreement") between BNPP B.V., BNPP and the Euroclear Finland security agent specified
in the applicable Final Terms, which shall be such account operator specifically authorised by Euroclear Finland
and appointed by the relevant Issuer as an issuing and paying agent (the "Finnish Security Agent™). The
expression "Security Agent” shall include (i) in respect of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, the Swedish
Security Agent and (ii) in respect of Finnish Dematerialised Securities, the Finnish Security Agent, and shall
include any additional or successor security agent(s) in respect of the Securities.

BNP Paribas or BNP Paribas Arbitrage S.N.C. (as specified in the applicable Final Terms) shall undertake the
duties of calculation agent (the "Calculation Agent™) in respect of the Securities as set out below and in the
applicable Final Terms unless another entity is so specified as calculation agent in the applicable Final Terms.
The expression "Calculation Agent” shall, in relation to the relevant Securities, include such other specified
calculation agent.

The Agency Agreement will be governed by (i) English Law in the case of English Law Securities (the "English
Law Agency Agreement"), (ii) Dutch Law in the case of Dutch Law Warrants (the "Dutch Law Agency
Agreement”) and (iii) by French Law in the case of French Law Securities (the "French Law Agency
Agreement”). The Swedish Agency Agreement will be governed by Swedish Law.

The applicable Final Terms for the Securities supplements these Terms and Conditions and may specify other
terms and conditions which shall, to the extent so specified or to the extent inconsistent with these Terms and
Conditions, supplement, replace or modify these Terms and Conditions for the purposes of the Securities. Except
in the case of French Law Securities, Swedish Dematerialised Securities, Finnish Dematerialised Securities,
Italian Dematerialised Securities or Swiss Dematerialised Securities, the applicable Final Terms for the Securities
will be attached to each Global Security, each Private Placement Definitive Security and any Registered
Certificates in definitive form.

References herein to the "applicable Final Terms" are to the Final Terms or two or more sets of Final Terms (in
the case of any further Securities issued pursuant to Condition 12 and forming a single series with the Securities)
(which, for the avoidance of doubt, may be issued in respect of more than one series of Securities) insofar as they
relate to the Securities.

Subject as provided in Condition 4 and in the relevant Guarantee (as defined in Condition 1), where the Issuer is
BNPP B.V., the obligations of BNPP B.V. with respect to physical delivery (if applicable) and/or the payment of
amounts payable by BNPP B.V. are guaranteed by BNPP pursuant to the Guarantee. The original of each
Guarantee is held by BNP Paribas Securities Services, Luxembourg Branch on behalf of the Holder at its specified
office.
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Copies of the Agency Agreement, the Guarantees and the applicable Final Terms may be (i) obtained from the
specified office of the relevant Security Agent and the Registrar (in the case of Registered Securities) or (ii)
provided by email to a Holder following their prior written request to the relevant Security Agent and the Registrar
(in the case of Registered Securities) and provision of proof of holding and identity (in a form satisfactory to the
relevant Security Agent and the Registrar (in the case of Registered Securities)), save that if the Securities are
unlisted, the applicable Final Terms will only be obtainable by a Holder and such Holder must produce evidence
satisfactory to the relevant Security Agent as to identity. Copies of the Swedish Agency Agreement and the
English Law Guarantee will (i) be available for inspection or collection at the office of the Swedish Security Agent
specified in the applicable Final Terms or (ii) may be provided by email to a Holder following their prior written
request to the Swedish Security Agent and provision of proof of holding and identity (in a form satisfactory to the
Swedish Security Agent). Copies of the Finnish Agency Agreement and the English Law Guarantee will (i) be
available for inspection or collection at the office of the Finnish Security Agent specified in the applicable Final
Terms or (ii) may be provided by email to a Holder following their prior written request to the Finnish Security
Agent and provision of proof of holding and identity (in a form satisfactory to the Finnish Security Agent).

Words and expressions defined in the Agency Agreement or used in the applicable Final Terms shall have the
same meanings where used in these Terms and Conditions unless the context otherwise requires or unless
otherwise stated.

The Holders are entitled to the benefit of and are deemed to have notice of and are bound by all the provisions of
the Agency Agreement (insofar as they relate to the Securities) and the applicable Final Terms, which are binding
on them.

1. DEFINITIONS
For the purposes of these Terms and Conditions, the following general definitions will apply:
"Account Holder" is as defined in Condition 2.2;
"Accrual Period" is as defined in Condition 32(c);
"Actual/Actual (ICMA)" is as defined in Condition 32(c);
"Actual Exercise Date" is as defined in Condition 20 and Condition 24.1(a);
"Additional Disruption Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Adjustment Date" is as defined in Condition 17(b);

"Affected Item" is as defined in this Condition 1 under the definition of Strike Date and in Condition 20
(in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case of Certificates);

"Affected Relevant Assets" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Affected Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

"Affiliate" means in relation to any entity (the "First Entity"), any entity controlled, directly or
indirectly, by the First Entity, any entity that controls, directly or indirectly, the First Entity or any entity
directly or indirectly under common control with the First Entity. For these purposes "control” means
ownership of a majority of the voting power of an entity;

"Agency Agreement" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
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"Als" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Alternate Cash Amount" is as defined in Condition 5.4;

"American Style Warrants" is as defined in Condition 22;

"Amsterdam Business Day" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(viii);

"Amsterdam Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Annex" is as defined in paragraph 1 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Asset Transfer Notice™ is as defined in Condition 35.2(a);

"Automatic Early Redemption Amount™ is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Event™ is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Date" is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Level" is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Rate" is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Automatic Early Redemption Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Automatic Exercise" is as defined in Condition 22;

"Averaging" is as defined in Condition 22 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 30 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Averaging Date" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Basket Company" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

"Basket Price" is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);

"Basket of Underlying References" is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"BNPP" is as defined in paragraph 2 of these Terms and Conditions;
"BNPP B.V." is as defined in paragraph 2 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Business Day" means (a) a day (other than a Saturday or Sunday) on which commercial banks are open
for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the
relevant Business Day Centre(s) (other than TARGET2 System), (b) if TARGET2 System is specified
as a Business Day Centre in the applicable Final Terms, a day on which the Trans-European Automated
Real-Time Gross Settlement Express Transfer (TARGET2) System (the "TARGET2 System") is open
(a "TARGET?2 Settlement Day"), (c) for the purposes of making payments in CNY, a day on which
commercial banks and foreign exchange markets settle payments and are open for general business
(including dealing in foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in the CNY Settlement Centre(s)
and (d) for the purposes of making payments in euro, any TARGET2 Settlement Day, and
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M where the Securities are Clearing System Securities, Registered Certificates or Italian
Dematerialised Securities, a day on which the relevant Clearing System is open for business;

(i) where the Securities are Private Placement Definitive Securities, a day (other than a Saturday
or a Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for general business (including dealings in
foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in New York;

(iii) where the Securities are Registered Warrants, a day (other than a Saturday or a Sunday) on
which commercial banks are open for general business (including dealings in foreign exchange
and foreign currency deposits) in Tokyo;

(iv) where the Securities are Swedish Dematerialised Securities, a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for general business (including dealings in
foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in Stockholm; or

(v) where the Securities are Finnish Dematerialised Securities, a day (other than a Saturday or a
Sunday) on which commercial banks are open for general business (including dealings in
foreign exchange and foreign currency deposits) in Helsinki and on which Euroclear Finland
and the relevant system in which the Finnish Dematerialised Securities are registered are open
for business in accordance with the rules of Euroclear Finland;

"Calculated Additional Disruption Amount" is as defined in Condition 15.2(c)(ii);

"Calculated Additional Disruption Amount Determination Date" is as defined in
Condition 15.2(c)(ii);

"Calculation Agent" is as defined in paragraph 4 of these Terms and Conditions and Condition 32(b);
"Call Warrants" is as defined in Condition 22;

"Cancellation Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Cash Settled Certificates™ is as defined in Condition 30;

"Cash Settled Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Cash Settled Warrants and (b) in
the case of an issue of Certificates, Cash Settled Certificates;

"Cash Settled Warrants" is as defined in Condition 22;

"Cash Settlement Amount" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in
the case of Certificates);

"Certificates" is as defined in paragraph 2 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Change in Law" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Chinese QFII" means an entity outside the People's Republic of China which meets the requirements
of the Measures and is approved by the China Securities Regulatory Commission to invest in Chinese
securities markets and has obtained the quota from the State Administration of Foreign Exchange
("Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors") where "Measures" means the Measures on the
Administration of Qualified Foreign Institutional Investors Investing in Domestic Securities;

"CFTC" means the Commaodity Futures Trading Commission;
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"Clearing System" means Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear and/or Euroclear France and/or
Euroclear Netherlands and/or Euroclear Sweden and/or Euroclear Finland and/or DTC and/or Iberclear
and/or Monte Titoli and/or any additional or alternative clearing system approved by the Issuer and the
relevant Security Agent(s) from time to time and specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Clearing System Certificates" is as defined in Condition 29;
"Clearing System Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 29;

"Clearing System Global Security" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, the Clearing System
Global Warrant representing such Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, the Clearing
System Global Certificate representing such Certificates;

"Clearing System Global Warrant" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Clearing System Securities" means () in the case of an issue of Warrants, Clearing System Warrants
and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Clearing System Certificates;

"Clearing System Warrants" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Clearstream, Luxembourg" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29
(in the case of Certificates);

"Commodity Exchange Act" means the United States Commodity Exchange Act of 1936, as amended;
"Commodity OET Certificate" means a Commodity Security that is an OET Certificate;
"Commodity Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Common Depositary" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the
case of Certificates);

"Credit Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Currency Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Currency OET Certificate" means a Currency Security that is an OET Certificate;
"Currency Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Custodian" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Cut-off Date" is as defined in Condition 25.9(c) (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Day Count Fraction" is as defined in Condition 32(c);
"Debt Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Definitive Security Agent" means the definitive security agent to be appointed (if applicable) in respect
of the relevant series of Securities;

"Delivery Date" is as defined in Condition 35.2(c);

"Designated Account" is as defined in Condition 35.1;
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"Designated Bank" is as defined in Condition 35.1;

"Designated Maturity" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii);
"Determination Date(s)" is as defined in Condition 32(c);
"Determination Period" is as defined in Condition 32(c);
"Disqualified Transferee" is as defined in Condition 2.4(c);
"Disruption Cash Settlement Price" is as defined in Condition 5.1;
"Documents" is as defined in Condition 13.2(b);

"DTC" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"due exercise" is as defined in Condition 24.4;
"Dutch Law Agency Agreement” is as defined in paragraph 5 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Dutch Law Guarantee” means the guarantee dated on or around 4 June 2021 executed by BNPP in
respect of Dutch Law Warrants issued by BNPP B.V.;

"Dutch Law Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;
"English Law Agency Agreement" is as defined in paragraph 5 of these Terms and Conditions;
"English Law Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"English Law Guarantee" means a deed of guarantee dated on or around 4 June 2021 executed by
BNPP in respect of English Law Securities issued by BNPP B.V.;

"English Law Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, English Law Warrants and
(b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, English Law Certificates;

"English Law Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Entitlement" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Established Rate" is as defined in Condition 17(b);

"ETI OET Certificate" means an ETI Security that is an OET Certificate;
"ETI Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"EURIBOR" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii)(C);

"eura" is as defined in Condition 17(b);

"Euroclear" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Euroclear Finland" means Euroclear Finland Ltd. (the Finnish Central Securities Depository);
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"Euroclear Finland Register" means the register opened in the Euroclear Finland System for Finnish
Dematerialised Securities issued or to be issued by the Issuer;

"Euroclear Finland System" means the technical system at Euroclear Finland for the registration of
securities and the clearing and settlement of securities transactions;

"Euroclear France Certificates" is as defined in Condition 35.1;

"Euroclear France Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.2;

"Euroclear France Warrants" is as defined in Condition 24.1;

"Euroclear Netherlands" means Nederlands Centraal Instituut voor Giraal Effectenverkeer B.V.;
"Euroclear Netherlands Certificates" is as defined in Condition 35.1;

"Euroclear Netherlands Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.2;

"Euroclear Netherlands Warrants" is as defined in Condition 24.1;

"Euroclear Sweden" means Euroclear Sweden AB (the Swedish Central Securities Depository
authorised as such under the SFIA Act);

"Euroclear Sweden Register” means the register opened in the Euroclear Sweden System for Swedish
Dematerialised Securities issued or to be issued by the Issuer;

"Euroclear Sweden System" means the technical system at Euroclear Sweden for the registration of
securities and the clearing and settlement of securities transactions;

"European Style Warrants" is as defined in Condition 22;

"EuroTLX" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Exchange Event" is as defined in Condition 29;

"Exercisable Certificates" is as defined in Condition 34.7;

"exercise" is as defined in Condition 24.4;

"Exercise Business Day" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Exercise Notice" is as defined in Condition 24.1(a), Condition 25.1, Condition 25.2 and Condition 25.3;
"Exercise Notice Delivery Date" is as defined in Condition 25.9(c);

"Exercise Price" is as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Expenses" is as defined in Condition 11.2;

"Expiration Date" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Failure to Deliver Settlement Price" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

214



"FBF Agreement" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iv);

"FBF Rate" is as defined in Condition 32(b);

"Finnish Agency Agreement" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Finnish Dematerialised Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Finnish Dematerialised Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Finnish
Dematerialised Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Finnish Dematerialised
Certificates;

"Finnish Dematerialised Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Finnish Record Date" is as defined in respect of Finnish Dematerialised Warrants in Condition 25.6
and in respect of Finnish Dematerialised Certificates in Condition 35.1;

"Finnish Security Agent™ is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions and is an account
operator specifically authorised by Euroclear Finland and to be appointed by the Issuer in respect of any
series of Finnish Dematerialised Securities to process and register issues in the Euroclear Finland System
and identified in the applicable Final Terms and acting solely as the agent of the Issuer not assuming any
obligation to, or relationship or agency of trust with the Holders;

"Fixed Rate Certificates" is as defined in Condition 32;

"Floating Rate" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii);

"Floating Rate Certificates" is as defined in Condition 32;

"Floating Rate Option" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii);

"Force Majeure Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"freely tradable" is as defined in Condition 5.4;

"French Law Agency Agreement" is as defined in paragraph 5 of these Terms and Conditions;
"French Law Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"French Law Guarantee" means the garantie dated on or around 4 June 2021 executed by BNPP in
respect of French Law Securities issued by BNPP B.V.;

"French Law Securities" means (a) in the case of Warrants, French Law Warrants and (b) in the case
of Certificates, French Law Certificates;

"French Law Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"French Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Fund Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Futures OET Certificate" means a Futures Security that is an OET Certificate;
"Futures Securities"” is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"GDR/ADR" is as defined in Condition 2.1;
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"General Meeting" is as defined in Condition 9.4(b);
"Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 29;

"Global Security" means (a) in the case of Warrants, the Global Warrant and (b) in the case of
Certificates, the Global Certificate;

"Global Warrant" is as defined in Condition 21;
"Government Authority" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Guarantee" means (a) in the case of English Law Securities, the English Law Guarantee, (b) in the case
of Dutch Law Warrants, the Dutch Law Guarantee and (c) in the case of French Law Securities, the
French Law Guarantee;

"Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount” is as defined in Condition 4;
"Guarantor" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Hedge" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Hedging Disruption” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Hedging Shares" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Holder" is as defined in Condition 2.2, Condition 23 (in the case of Registered Warrants) and Condition
31 (in the case of Registered Certificates);

"holder of Certificates" is as defined in Condition 31;
"Holder of Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.2;
"Hybrid Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Iberclear" means "Sociedad de Gestion de los Sistemas de Registro, Compensacion y Liquidacion de
Valores, S.A. Unipersonal” whose commercial name is Iberclear;

"Increased Cost of Hedging" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Increased Cost of Stock Borrow" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Index OET Certificate" means an Index Security that is an OET Certificate;
"Index Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Indian FPI" means an institution established or incorporated outside India and registered with the
Securities and Exchange Board of India ("SEBI") under the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019 as a foreign portfolio investor;

"Inflation Index Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;
"Initial Stock Loan Rate" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Insolvency Filing" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Interest Amount" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(vi);
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"Interest Determination Date" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(vi);
"Interest Period End Date" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(i);
"Interest Period End Final Date" is as defined in Condition 32(a) and Condition 32(b)(i);

"Intermediary" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Intervening Period" is as defined in Condition 35.2(d);

"Investor Representation Letter" is as defined in Condition 2.4;
"ISDA Definitions" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii);

"Issuer” is as defined in paragraph 2 of these Terms and Conditions;
"lItalian Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"ltalian Dematerialised Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Italian Dematerialised Securities” means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Italian Dematerialised
Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Italian Dematerialised Certificates;

"Italian Dematerialised Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"lItalian Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Italian Warrants and (b) in the case of
an issue of Certificates, Italian Certificates;

"Italian Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"ltalian Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Jurisdiction Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Knock-in Determination Day" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-in Determination Period™ is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-in Event" is as defined in Condition 16.6;

"Knock-in Level" is as defined in Condition 16.6;

"Knock-in Period Beginning Date" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-in Period Ending Date" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-in Range Level" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-in Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-out Determination Day" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-out Determination Period" is as defined in Condition 16.6;

"Knock-out Event" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
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"Knock-out Level" is as defined in Condition 16.6;

"Knock-out Period Beginning Date" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-out Period Ending Date" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-out Range Level" is as defined in Condition 16.6;
"Knock-out Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 16.6;

"Korean Investor ID Holder" means an entity incorporated outside the Republic of Korea that is
holding an investment identity card issued by the Financial Supervisory Service of the Republic of Korea;

"Level" is as defined in Condition 16.6;

"LIBOR" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii)(C);

"Linked Interest Certificates" is as defined in Condition 32;

"Linked Premium Amount Certificates" is as defined in Condition 33.2;
"Listed Option Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Local Currency” is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Local Time™ means local time in the city of the relevant Clearing System;
"Loss of Stock Borrow" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Luxembourg or Brussels time" is as defined in Condition 24.4;
"Madrid Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Maximum Stock Loan Rate" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Modified Postponement” is as defined in Condition 28;

"Monte Titoli" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"National Currency Unit" is as defined in Condition 17(b);

"New York Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"New York time" is as defined in Condition 24.4;

"Notice Period" is as defined in Conditions 34.3 and 34.4

"Observation Date" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and 28 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Observation Period" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and 28 (in the case of
Certificates);

"OET Certificate" means Securities specified as Open End Turbo Certificates in the applicable Final
Terms;
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"Omission" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Open End Certificate" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Optional Additional Disruption Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;
"Optional Redemption Amount” is as defined in Conditions 34.3 and 34.4;
"Optional Redemption Date" is as defined in Conditions 34.3 and 34.4;
"Optional Redemption Valuation Date" is as defined in Conditions 34.3 and 34.4;
"Original Currency" is as defined in Condition 17(a)(ii);

"Paris Business Day" is as defined in Condition 9.4;

"Payment Date" is as defined in Condition 35.1;

"Permanent Global Warrant" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Physical Delivery Certificates™ is as defined in Condition 30;

"Physical Delivery Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Physical Delivery Warrants
and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Physical Delivery Certificates;

"Physical Delivery Warrants" is as defined in Condition 22;

"Postponement™ is as defined in Condition 28;

"Premium Amount” is as defined in Condition 33.5;

"Premium Amount Payment Date" is as defined in Condition 33.5;

"Principal Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Private Placement Definitive Certificates" is as defined in Condition 29;

"Private Placement Definitive Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Private
Placement Definitive Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue, of Certificates, Private Placement
Definitive Certificates;

"Private Placement Definitive Warrant" is as defined in Condition 21;
"Private Placement Register" is as defined in Condition 2.2;
"Proceedings" is as defined in Condition 14.2;

"Put Notice" is as defined in Condition 34.4;

"Put Warrants" is as defined in Condition 22;

"QIBs" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);
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"Qualified Investor" means, where the Relevant Jurisdiction is Republic of Korea, Taiwan, India,
People's Republic of China or Socialist Republic of Vietnam, a Korean Investor ID Holder, a Taiwan
FINI, an Indian FPI, a Chinese QFII and a Vietnamese QI, respectively;

"Quota" is as defined in Condition 26.1(b);

"Record Date" is as defined in Condition 35.1 (in the case of Certificates);
"Redemption Date" is as defined in Condition 34.1;

"Reference Banks" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Reference Rate Fallback Event" means, in relation to any of the following, as determined by the
Calculation Agent:

0] the Screen Page Reference Rate ceasing to exist or ceasing to be published for a period of at
least 6 consecutive Business Days or having been permanently or indefinitely discontinued;

(i) the making of a public statement or publication of information (provided that, at the time of any
such event, there is no successor administrator that will provide the Screen Page Reference
Rate) by or on behalf of (i) the administrator of the Screen Page Reference Rate, or (ii) the
supervisor, insolvency official, resolution authority, central bank or competent court having
jurisdiction over such administrator stating that (x) the administrator has ceased or will cease
permanently or indefinitely to provide the Screen Page Reference Rate, (y) the Screen Page
Reference Rate has been or will be permanently or indefinitely discontinued, or (z) the Screen
Page Reference has been or will be prohibited from being used or that its use has been or will
be subject to restrictions or adverse consequences, either generally, or in respect of the
Securities, provided that, if such public statement or publication mentions that the event or
circumstance referred to in (x), (y) or (z) above will occur on a date falling later than six (6)
months after the relevant public statement or publication, the Reference Rate Fallback Event
shall be deemed to occur on the date falling six (6) months prior to such specified date (and not
the date of the relevant public statement);

(iii) it has or will prior to the next Interest Determination Date (as applicable), become unlawful for
the Calculation Agent or any other party responsible for determining the Screen Page Reference
Rate to calculate any payments due to be made to any Holder using the Screen Page Reference
Rate (including, without limitation, under BMR, if applicable); or

(iv) the making of a public statement or publication of information that any authorisation,
registration, recognition, endorsement, equivalence decision, approval or inclusion in any
official register in respect of the Screen Page Reference Rate or the administrator of the Screen
Page Reference Rate has not been, or will not be, obtained or has been, or will be, rejected,
refused, suspended or withdrawn by the relevant competent authority or other relevant official
body, in each case with the effect that the use of the Screen Page Reference Rate is not or will
not be permitted under any applicable law or regulation, such that the Calculation Agent or any
other party responsible for determining the Screen Page Reference Rate is unable to perform its
obligations in respect of the Securities.

A change in the methodology of the Screen Page Reference Rate shall not, absent the occurrence of one
of the above, be deemed a Reference Rate Fallback Event.

"Register" is as defined in Condition 23;
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"Registered Certificates" is as defined in Condition 29;
"Registered Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 29;

"Registered Global Security" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, a Registered Global Warrant
and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, a Registered Global Certificate;

"Registered Global Warrant" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Registered Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Registered Warrants and (b) in
the case of an issue of Certificates, Registered Certificates;

"Registered Warrants" is as defined in Condition 21;
"Registrar" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Regulation S" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Regulation S Global Certificate™ is as defined in Condition 29;

"Regulation S Global Security” means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, a Regulation S Global
Warrant and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, a Regulation S Global Certificate;

"Regulation S Global Warrant” is as defined in Condition 21;
"Related Expenses" is as defined in Condition 11.2;
"Relevant Adjustment Provisions™ is as defined in Condition 16.6 and 34.9(b);

"Relevant Jurisdiction™ means the country in which (as the case may be) the Shares, the Shares relating
to the depositary receipts, the ETI Interests, the Debt Instruments, the Fund or the Fund Units are issued
(or in which the issuer of such Shares, ETI Interests, Debt Instruments or Fund Units is incorporated) or
the Index is based, as specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Reset Date" is as defined in Condition 32(b)(iii);

"Rolling Futures Contract Securities” means a Security that is specified as such in the applicable Final
Terms;

"Rule 144A" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Rule 144A Certificates" is as defined in Condition 29;
"Rule 144A Global Certificate" is as defined in Condition 29;

"Rule 144A Global Security" means (a) in the case of an issue of Rule 144A Warrants, the Rule 144A
Global Warrant representing such Rule 144A Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Rule 144A
Certificates, the Rule 144A Global Certificate representing such Rule 144A Certificates;

"Rule 144A Global Warrant" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Rule 144A Warrants" is as defined in Condition 21;
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"Scheduled Averaging Date" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28
(in the case of Certificates);

"Scheduled Closing Time" means, in respect of an Exchange or Related Exchange and a Scheduled
Trading Day, the scheduled weekday closing time of such Exchange or Related Exchange on such
Scheduled Trading Day, without regard to after hours or any other trading outside of the regular trading
session hours subject, in respect of Index Securities, to sub-paragraphs (b) and (c) of the definition of
Valuation Time, and subject, in respect of Share Securities, to sub-paragraph (c) of the definition of
Valuation Time;

"Scheduled Strike Date" means any original date that, but for the occurrence of an event causing a
Disrupted Day, would have been the Strike Date;

"Scheduled Valuation Date" means any original date that, but for the occurrence of an event causing a
Disrupted Day, would have been a Valuation Date;

"Secured Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;
"Securities" is as defined in paragraph 2 of these Terms and Conditions;

"Securities Act" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Security Agent"” and "Security Agents" are as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Security Expenses" is as defined in Condition 11.1 and Condition 25.3(a)(iv);

"Settlement Business Day" is as defined in Condition 5.1;

"Settlement Date" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Settlement Disruption Event" is as defined in Condition 5.1;

"SFIA Act" is as defined in Condition 21 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 29 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);
"Share OET Certificate” means a Share Security that is an OET Certificate;
"Share Securities" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Specified Maximum Days of Disruption” means (other than with respect to Commodity Securities
and Currency Securities) eight Scheduled Trading Days or such other number of Scheduled Trading Days
specified in the applicable Final Terms, with respect to Currency Securities, five Scheduled Trading Days
and with respect to Commodity Securities, five Commodity Business Days;

"Stop-Loss Event" is as defined in Condition 15.1;

"Strike Date" means, in the case of Index Securities, Share Securities, ETI Securities, Futures Securities
or Listed Option Securities, the Strike Date specified in the applicable Final Terms, or, if such date is not
a Scheduled Trading Day, the next following Scheduled Trading Day unless, in the opinion of the
Calculation Agent such day is a Disrupted Day. If any such day is a Disrupted Day, then:
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(@)

(b)

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a single Index, Share Securities relating to
a single Share, ETI Securities relating to a single ETI Interest, Futures Securities relating to a
single Future or Listed Option Securities relating to a single Listed Option Contract, the Strike
Date shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a Disrupted Day, unless
each of the number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days equal to the Specified Maximum
Days of Disruption immediately following the Scheduled Strike Date is a Disrupted Day. In
that case, (i) the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed to be the Strike
Date, notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day and (ii) the Calculation Agent
shall determine the relevant level or price in the manner set out in the applicable Final Terms
or, if not set out or practicable, determine the relevant level or price:

M in the case of Index Securities, by determining the level of the Index as of the Valuation
Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the
formula for and method of calculating the Index last in effect prior to the occurrence
of the first Disrupted Day using the Exchange traded or quoted price as of the Valuation
Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each security comprised
in the Index (or, if an event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of
the relevant security on the last such Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate
of the value for the relevant security as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day); or

(ii) in the case of Share Securities, ETI Securities, Futures Securities or Listed Option
Securities, in accordance with its good faith estimate of the relevant price as of the
Valuation Time on the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; or

where the Securities are Index Securities relating to a Basket of Indices, Share Securities relating
to a Basket of Shares, ETI Securities relating to a Basket of ETI Interests, Futures Securities
relating to a Basket of Futures or Listed Option Securities relating to a Basket of Listed Option
Contracts, the Strike Date for each Index, Share, ETI Interest, Future or Listed Option Contract,
as the case may be, not affected by the occurrence of a Disrupted Day shall be the Scheduled
Strike Date and the Strike Date for each Index, ETI Interest, Share, Future or Listed Option
Contract affected, as the case may be (each an "Affected Item"), by the occurrence of a
Disrupted Day shall be the first succeeding Scheduled Trading Day that is not a Disrupted Day
relating to the Affected Item unless each of the number of consecutive Scheduled Trading Days
equal to the Specified Maximum Days of Disruption immediately following the Scheduled
Strike Date is a Disrupted Day relating to the Affected Item. In that case, (i) the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day shall be deemed to be the Strike Date for the Affected Item,
notwithstanding the fact that such day is a Disrupted Day, and (ii) the Calculation Agent shall
determine the relevant level or price using, in relation to the Affected Item, the level or price as
applicable, determined in the manner set out in the applicable Final Terms or, if not set out or
if not practicable, using:

(1) in the case of an Index, the level of that Index as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day in accordance with the formula for and method of
calculating that Index last in effect prior to the occurrence of the first Disrupted Day
using the Exchange traded or quoted price as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day of each security comprised in that Index (or, if an
event giving rise to a Disrupted Day has occurred in respect of the relevant security on
the last such consecutive Scheduled Trading Day, its good faith estimate of the value
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for the relevant security as of the Valuation Time on the last such consecutive
Scheduled Trading Day); or

(i) in the case of a Share, ETI Interest, Future or Listed Option Contract, its good faith
estimate of the price for the Affected Item as of the Valuation Time on the last such
consecutive Scheduled Trading Day; or

(© in the case of Commodity Securities, the Initial Pricing Date;
"Strike Price" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Substitute™ is as defined in Condition 13.1;

"Substitute Asset” and "Substitute Assets" is as defined in Condition 5.4;
"Substitute Guarantee” is as defined in Condition 13.2(b);

"Substitute Guarantor” is as defined in Condition 13.2;

"Substitute Share" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

"Substitution Date" is as defined in Condition 15.2(e);

"sub-unit” is as defined in Condition 32(a);

"Successor Index" is as defined in Condition 15.2(d);

"Swedish Agency Agreement” is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Swedish Dematerialised Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Swedish Dematerialised Securities” means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Swedish
Dematerialised Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Swedish Dematerialised
Certificates;

"Swedish Dematerialised Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Swedish Record Date" is as defined in Condition 35.1;

"Swedish Security Agent" is as defined in paragraph 3 of these Terms and Conditions;
"Swiss Dematerialised Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Swiss Dematerialised Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Swiss Dematerialised
Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Swiss Dematerialised Certificates;

"Swiss Dematerialised Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;
"Swiss Materialised Certificates" is as defined in Condition 28;

"Swiss Materialised Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, Swiss Materialised
Warrants and (b) in the case of an issue of Certificates, Swiss Materialised Certificates;

"Swiss Materialised Warrants" is as defined in Condition 20;

"Swiss Securities" means Swiss Materialised Securities and Swiss Dematerialised Securities;
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"Swiss Security Agent" means the entity specified in the applicable Final Terms;

"Taiwan FINI" means an entity incorporated outside Taiwan with Foreign Institutional Investor (FINI)
status in Taiwan or with FINI sub-account status in Taiwan;

"Taxes" is as defined in Condition 11.2;

"Transfer Certificate" is as defined in Condition 23;

"Treaty" is as defined in Condition 17(b);

"Underlying Reference" is as defined in Condition 16.6 and 34.9(b);
"Underlying Reference Level™ is as defined in Condition 34.9(b);
"Underlying Share" is as defined in Condition 2.1;

"Units" is as defined in Condition 22;

"U.S. Certificates" is as defined in Condition 29;

"U.S. person” means a person that is (i) a "U.S. person™ as defined in Regulation S under the Securities
Act; or (ii) a person other than a "Non-United States Person" as defined in Rule 4.7 under the Commaodity
Exchange Act; or (iii) a "U.S. person™ as defined in (a) the Interpretive Guidance and Policy Statement
Regarding Compliance with Certain Swap Regulations promulgated by the CFTC or (b) the final rule
relating to Cross-Border Application of the Registration Thresholds and Certain Requirements
Applicable to Swap Dealers and Major Swap Participants promulgated by the CFTC, in each case as
amended, modified or supplemented from time to time, pursuant to the Commodity Exchange Act; or
(iv) any other "U.S. person™ as such term may be defined in Regulation S or in regulations or guidance
adopted under the Commodity Exchange Act;

"U.S. Securities" means (a) in the case of an issue of Warrants, U.S. Warrants and (b) in the case of an
issue of Certificates, U.S. Certificates;

"U.S. Warrants" is as defined in Condition 21;

"Valid Date" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case of
Certificates);

"Valuation Date" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Valuation Time" is as defined in Condition 20 (in the case of Warrants) and Condition 28 (in the case
of Certificates);

"Vietnamese QI" means a corporation that both (a) incorporated outside the Socialist Republic of
Vietnam and (b) does not have any permanent establishment in the Socialist Republic of Vietnam; and

"Warrants" is as defined in paragraph 2 of these Terms and Conditions.
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2.1

TYPE, TITLE AND TRANSFER

Type

The Securities relate to a specified index or basket of indices ("Index Securities"), a specified share
(including Stapled Shares (as defined in Share Security Condition 1)) basket of shares, or a specified
depositary receipt (a "GDR/ADR") referencing a share (an "Underlying Share") or basket of GDRs
and/or ADRs ("Share Securities"), a specified interest in an exchange traded fund, an exchange traded
note, an exchange traded commaodity or any other exchange traded product (each an "exchange traded
instrument™) or basket of interests in exchange traded instruments ("ETI Securities"), a specified debt
instrument or basket of debt instruments (" Debt Securities"), a specified commodity or commaodity index
or hasket of commaodities and/or commodity indices ("Commodity Securities™), a specified inflation
index or basket of inflation indices ("Inflation Index Securities"), a specified currency or basket of
currencies ("Currency Securities"), a specified fund share or unit or basket of fund shares or units
("Fund Securities"), a specified futures contract or basket of futures contract(s) ("Futures Securities"),
a specified listed option contract or basket of listed option contracts ("Listed Option Securities"), the
credit of a specified reference entity or reference entities ("Credit Securities"), a specified preference
share issued by BNP Paribas Synergy Limited ("Preference Share Certificates")or any other or further
type of Securities as is specified in the applicable Final Terms including Securities issued by BNPP B.V.
in respect of which BNPP B.V. grants security over certain of its assets ("Secured Securities™) and/or
Securities which relate to any combination of such indices, shares, interests in exchange traded
instruments, debt instruments, commodities, inflation indices, currencies, fund shares or units, futures
contract(s), the credit of a specified reference entity or reference entities and other asset classes or types
("Hybrid Securities").

If Averaging is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, the applicable Final Terms will state
the relevant Averaging Dates and, if an Averaging Date is a Disrupted Day, whether Omission,
Postponement or Modified Postponement (each as defined in Condition 20 in the case of Warrants or
Condition 28 in the case of Certificates) applies.

References in these Terms and Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, to Cash Settled
Securities shall be deemed to include references to (a) Physical Delivery Securities, which include an
option (as set out in the applicable Final Terms) at the Issuer's election to request cash settlement of such
Security pursuant to Condition 5.3 and where settlement is to be by way of cash payment, and (b) Physical
Delivery Securities where settlement is to be automatically varied to be by way of cash payment pursuant
to Condition 5.3. References in these Terms and Conditions, unless the context otherwise requires, to
Physical Delivery Securities shall be deemed to include references to Cash Settled Securities which
include an option (as set out in the applicable Final Terms) at the Issuer's election to request physical
delivery of the relevant underlying asset in settlement of such Security pursuant to Condition 5.3 and
where settlement is to be by way of physical delivery. Unless otherwise specified in the applicable Final
Terms, the Issuer does not have the option to vary settlement in respect of the U.S. Securities pursuant
to Condition 5.3.

Securities may, if specified in the applicable Final Terms, allow Holders to elect for settlement by way
of cash payment or by way of physical delivery or by such other method of settlement as is specified in
the applicable Final Terms. Those Securities where the Holder has elected for cash payment will be
Cash Settled Securities and those Securities where the Holder has elected for physical delivery will be
Physical Delivery Securities. The rights of a Holder as described in this paragraph may be subject to the
Issuer's right to vary settlement as indicated in the applicable Final Terms and will be subject to the
Issuer's right to substitute assets or pay the Alternate Cash Amount (as defined below) in lieu of physical
delivery in accordance with these Conditions.
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2.2

Title to Securities other than Registered Securities

In the case of Securities represented by a Clearing System Global Security held by a Common Depository
on behalf of a relevant Clearing System or held by a relevant Clearing System or by Euroclear France
and French Law Securities, each person who is for the time being shown in the records of the relevant
Clearing System (in the case of Dutch Law Warrants or English Law Securities other than English Law
Securities held through Euroclear France) or whose name appears in the account of the relevant Account
Holder (in the case of French Law Securities or English Law Securities held through Euroclear France,
together "Euroclear France Securities” or in the case of French Law Securities held by Euroclear
Netherlands "Euroclear Netherlands Securities") as the holder of a particular amount of such Securities
(in which regard any certificate or other document issued by the relevant Clearing System or, as the case
may be, Account Holder as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any person shall be
conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall (except as otherwise
required by law) be treated by the Issuer, the Guarantor, if any, and the relevant Security Agent as the
holder of such amount of Securities for all purposes (and the expressions "Holder" and "Holder of
Securities™ and related expressions shall be construed accordingly).

In the case of Swedish Dematerialised Securities, the person for the time being shown in the Euroclear
Sweden Register as the holder of a particular amount of Securities shall (except as otherwise required by
law) be treated for all purposes by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Security Agents, Euroclear Sweden and
all other persons dealing with such person as the holder thereof and as the person entitled to exercise the
rights represented thereby notwithstanding any notice to the contrary (and the expressions "Holder" and
"Holder of Securities" and related expressions shall be construed accordingly). The Issuer shall cause
such Securities to be accepted by Euroclear Sweden for clearing and registration in the Euroclear Sweden
System in accordance with the SFIA Act and Euroclear Sweden Rules. The Issuer shall have the right
to obtain extracts from the debt register of Euroclear Sweden.

In the case of Finnish Dematerialised Securities, the person in whose name the Finnish Dematerialised
Security is registered in the book-entry account in the Euroclear Finland Register (including a nominee
account holder, as the case may be) shall (except as otherwise required by law) be treated for all purposes
by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the Security Agents, Euroclear Finland and all other persons dealing with
such person as the holder thereof and as the person entitled to exercise the rights represented thereby
(and the expressions "Holder" and "Holder of Securities" and related expressions shall be construed
accordingly). Where a nominee is so evidenced it shall be treated as the holder of the relevant Finnish
Dematerialised Securities. The Issuer shall cause such Securities to be accepted by Euroclear Finland for
clearing and registration in the Euroclear Finland System in accordance with Finnish laws, rules,
regulations and operating procedures applicable to, and/or issued by Euroclear Finland. Notwithstanding
any secrecy obligation, the Issuer shall be entitled to obtain information (including but not limited to
information on Holders) from the Euroclear Finland Register maintained by Euroclear Finland as
registrar on behalf of the Issuer in accordance with the rules of Euroclear Finland, and Euroclear Finland
shall be entitled to provide such information to the Issuer notwithstanding any secrecy obligation.
Furthermore, the Issuer shall, subject to regulations of Euroclear Finland and applicable laws, be entitled
to acquire from Euroclear Finland a list of the holders of Finnish Dematerialised Securities, provided
that it is technically possible for Euroclear Finland to maintain such a list. The Issuer shall be entitled to
pass such information to the Finnish Security Agent or to authorize such agent to acquire such
information from Euroclear Finland directly. Except as ordered by a court of competent jurisdiction or
as required by law, the Holder of any Finnish Dematerialised Securities shall be deemed to be and may
be treated as its absolute owner for all purposes, whether or not it is overdue and regardless of any notice
of ownership, trust or an interest in it, any writing on it or its theft or loss and no person shall be liable
for so treating the Holder.
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In the case of Italian Dematerialised Securities, the person who is for the time being shown in the records
of Monte Titoli as the holder of a particular amount of Securities (in which regard any certificate, record
or other document issued by Monte Titoli as to the amount of Securities standing to the account of any
person shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes save in the case of manifest error) shall (except
as otherwise required by applicable law) be treated for all purposes by the Issuer, the Guarantor, the
Italian Security Agent and all other persons dealing with such person as the holder thereof and as the
person entitled to exercise the rights represented thereby notwithstanding any notice to the contrary (and
the expressions "Holder" and "Holder of Securities" and related expressions shall be construed
accordingly, except where Italian law is applicable, in which case "Holder" and "Holder of Securities"
will be exclusively deemed to be the beneficial owner of the Securities). The Issuer shall cause Italian
Dematerialised Securities to be dematerialised and centralised with Monte Titoli, pursuant to Italian
legislative decree no. 58/1998 as amended and integrated by subsequent implementing provisions.

Title to French Law Securities held through Euroclear France will be evidenced in accordance with
Article L.211-3 of the French Code Monétaire et Financier by book-entries (inscription en compte). No
document of title (including certificats représentatifs pursuant to Article R.211-7 of the French Code
Monétaire et Financier) will be issued in respect of such Securities. The French Law Securities held
through Euroclear France will, upon issue, be inscribed in the books of Euroclear France which will
credit the accounts of the relevant Account Holders.

Title to OET Certificates cleared through Euroclear Netherlands is established by account entry in
accordance with the Dutch Act on Giro Transfers of Securities ('Wet giraal effectenverkeer’). No
physical document or certificate will be issued in respect of such OET Certificates.

Once issued, OET Certificates that are Euroclear France Securities or Euroclear Netherlands Securities
shall be deposited with Euroclear France or Euroclear Netherlands, as the case may be, acting as central
depositary and registered in an account in the books of Euroclear France or Euroclear Netherlands, as
the case may be, which shall credit the accounts of the Account Holders (including Euroclear and
Clearstream, Luxembourg).

However, the Issuer reserves the right, if such option is provided in the Final Terms, to have OET
Certificates transferred from Euroclear France or Euroclear Netherlands, as the case may be, at any time
(in the case of OET Certificates already issued) to, or to deposit the OET Certificates of a particular issue
(in the case of OET Certificates yet to be issued) with, another depositary whose registered office is
situated within a European Economic Area country. In the event of a change of depositary, the Issuer
shall comply with all laws, regulations and tax rules applicable to the functions of such depositary.

For the purpose of these Conditions, "Account Holder" means any authorised financial intermediary
institution entitled to hold accounts, directly or indirectly, on behalf of its customers with Euroclear
France or Euroclear Netherlands, and includes Euroclear and the depositary bank for Clearstream,
Luxembourg and/or any other relevant Clearing System.

In the case of Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Security held by a Custodian on behalf of
DTC, the Rule 144A Global Security will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC,
but this does not confer any rights or benefits on Cede & Co. or any other nominee of DTC in whose
name a Rule 144A Global Security may be registered. Transfers of such Rule 144A Global Security by
such nominee of DTC shall be limited to transfers of such Rule 144A Global Security, in whole but not
in part, to another nominee of DTC or to a successor of DTC or such successor's nominee. Rights
conferred by the Rule 144A Global Security are only enforceable by the Holders (as defined below) as
provided therein. Subject as set forth in Condition 2.4 below, each person who is for the time being
shown in the records of DTC as the Holder of a particular number (in the case of Warrants) or amount
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2.3

24

(in the case of Certificates) of Securities shall (except as otherwise required by law) be treated by the
Issuer and the New York Security Agent as the Holder of such number or amount, as the case may be,
of Securities for all purposes (and the expressions "Holder of Securities" and related expressions shall
be construed accordingly).

In the case of Private Placement Definitive Securities, the Issuer shall cause to be kept at the principal
office of the Definitive Security Agent, a register (the "Private Placement Register™) on which shall be
entered the names and addresses of all holders of Private Placement Definitive Securities, the number or
amount, as the case may be, and type of Private Placement Definitive Securities held by them and details
of all transfers of Private Placement Definitive Securities. Subject as set forth in Condition 2.4 below,
the persons shown in the Private Placement Register (each a "Holder") shall (except as otherwise
required by law) be treated as the absolute owners of the relevant Private Placement Definitive Securities
for all purposes (regardless of any notice of ownership, trust, or any interest in it, any writing on it, or its
theft or loss) and no person will be liable for so treating such person.

Title to Registered Securities
Provisions relating to title to Registered Warrants are set out in Condition 23.

Provisions relating to title to Registered Certificates are set out in Condition 31.

Transfers of Interests in Clearing System Securities and Private Placement Definitive Securities
Transfers of Warrants may not be effected after the exercise of such Warrants pursuant to Condition 25.

Transfers of Certificates may not be effected after the redemption of such Certificates pursuant to
Condition 34.

Subject as set forth in this Condition, all transactions (including permitted transfers of Securities) in the
open market or otherwise must be effected, in the case of Securities represented by a Clearing System
Global Security held by a Common Depository on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear
and/or any other relevant Clearing System, Euroclear Netherlands or Euroclear France, through an
account at Clearstream, Luxembourg or Euroclear, as the case may be, and/or any other relevant Clearing
System, or in the case of Euroclear France Securities or Euroclear Netherlands Securities as the case may
be, through Account Holder(s), or in the case of Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Security
held by a Custodian on behalf of DTC, through a direct or indirect participant of DTC, subject to and in
accordance with the rules and procedures for the time being of the relevant Clearing System(s). Transfers
in respect of Clearing System Securities governed by French Law must be effected through Account
Holders(s). Title will pass upon registration of the transfer in the books of the relevant Clearing System.

Any reference herein to Clearstream, Luxembourg and/or Euroclear and/or DTC and/or Monte Titoli
and/or any other relevant Clearing System shall, whenever the context so permits, be deemed to include
a reference to any additional or alternative clearing system approved by the Issuer and the Principal
Security Agent from time to time and notified to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

Subject as set forth in this Condition, Private Placement Definitive Securities may be transferred by the
then current Holder surrendering its Private Placement Definitive Security for registration of transfer at
the specified office of the Definitive Security Agent, duly endorsed by, or accompanied by a written
instrument of transfer (in the form satisfactory to BNPP and the Definitive Security Agent), and duly
executed by the Holder or its duly authorised agent. Private Placement Definitive Securities may only
be issued and transferred in minimum nominal amounts of U.S. $250,000 or more.
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(@)

Transfers of Securities to a person who takes delivery in the form of Securities represented by
a Regulation S Global Security or Rule 144A Global Security may be made only in accordance
with the following provisions:

(i) (A)

(B)

©)

(D)

(E)

(F)

in the case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of Securities
represented by a Regulation S Global Security, from a Holder of Securities
represented by a Regulation S Global Security, to a person that is not a U.S.
person in an offshore transaction pursuant to Regulation S;

in the case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of Securities
represented by a Regulation S Global Security, from a Holder of Private
Placement Definitive Securities, upon certification (in the form from time to
time available from any Security Agent) to the Principal Security Agent by
the transferor thereof that such transfer is being made to a person that is not a
U.S. person in an offshore transaction pursuant to Regulation S;

in the case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of U.S.
Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Security, from a Holder of
Private Placement Definitive Securities, upon certification (in the form from
time to time available from any Security Agent) to the New York Security
Agent by the transferor thereof that such transfer is being made to a person
whom the transferor reasonably believes is (x) a QIB, in the case of U.S.
Securities issued by BNPP or (y) a QIB and a QP, in the case of U.S.
Securities issued by BNPP B.V., and, in either case, acquiring such Securities
in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A,;

in the case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of U.S.
Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Security, from a Holder of U.S.
Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Security, in a transaction
meeting the requirements of Rule 144A and, in the case of U.S. Securities
issued by BNPP B.V. in accordance with paragraph (d) below;

in the case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of U.S.
Securities represented by a Regulation S Global Security, from a Holder of
U.S. Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global Security, upon
certification (in the form from time to time available from any Security
Agent) to the Principal Security Agent by the transferor thereof that such
transfer is being made to a person that is not a U.S. person in an offshore
transaction pursuant to Regulation S; and

in each case, in accordance with any applicable rules and regulations of the
Principal Security Agent, the New York Security Agent, the Definitive
Security Agent, the relevant Clearing System and/or as specified in the
applicable Final Terms.

(i) The Holder must send:

(A)

in the case of transfers of Private Placement Definitive Securities, a free of
payment instruction to the Definitive Security Agent, not later than 5.00 p.m.,
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(iii)

(B)

(©)

New York City time, at least two Business Days in New York prior to the
date on which the transfer is to take effect;

in the case of transfers of Securities represented by a Regulation S Global
Security or Rule 144A Global Security held by a Common Depositary on
behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any other relevant
Clearing System, a free of payment instruction to Clearstream, Luxembourg
or Euroclear and/or any other relevant Clearing System, as the case may be,
not later than 10.00 a.m. local time in the city of the relevant Clearing System,
one Business Day in the city of the relevant Clearing System prior to the date
on which the transfer is to take effect; and

in the case of transfers of Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global
Security held by a Custodian on behalf of DTC, a free of payment instruction
to DTC, not later than 5.00 p.m. New York City time, at least two Business
Days in New York prior to the date on which the transfer is to take effect.

Separate payment arrangements are required to be made between the transferor and the
transferee.

On the transfer date:

(A)

(B)

(1) in the case of transfers of Securities represented by a Regulation S Global
Security or a Rule 144A Global Security, the relevant Clearing System will
debit the account of its participant and (I1) in the case of transfers of Private
Placement Definitive Securities, the Holder must deliver the Private
Placement Definitive Securities the subject of the transfer to the Definitive
Security Agent and instruct the Definitive Security Agent to cancel the
transferred Private Placement Definitive Securities; and

the relevant Clearing System or the Holder, as the case may be, will instruct
() in the case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of
Securities represented by a Regulation S Global Security or a Rule 144A
Global Security held by a Common Depositary on behalf of Clearstream,
Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any other relevant Clearing System, the
Principal Security Agent to instruct Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear
and/or any other relevant Clearing System, as the case may be, to credit the
relevant account of the relevant Clearing System participant, and (I1) in the
case of transfers to a person who takes delivery in the form of Securities
represented by a Rule 144A Global Security held by a Custodian on behalf of
DTC, (a) the New York Security Agent (in the case of transfers of Securities
represented by a Rule 144A Global Security held by a Custodian on behalf of
DTC) to credit the relevant account of the DTC participant, (b) the Definitive
Security Agent (in the case of transfers of Private Placement Definitive
Securities) to credit the relevant account of the DTC participant, or (c) the
Principal Security Agent (in the case of transfers of Securities represented by
a Regulation S Global Security or a Rule 144A Global Security held by a
Common Depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear
and/or any other relevant Clearing System) to instruct DTC to credit the
relevant account of the relevant Clearing System at DTC and thereafter DTC
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(iv)

will debit such account of the relevant Clearing System, and will credit the
relevant account of the DTC participant.

Upon any such transfers, on the transfer date:

(A)

(B)

the Principal Security Agent, in the case of transfers to and/or from a person
who takes delivery in the form of Securities represented by a Regulation S
Global Security or a Rule 144A Global Security held by a Common
Depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any
other relevant Clearing System, will increase or decrease, if appropriate, the
number of Securities represented by such Regulation S Global Security or
Rule 144A Global Security, whereupon the number of Securities represented
by such Regulation S Global Security or Rule 144A Global Security, as the
case may be, shall be increased or decreased, as applicable, for all purposes
by the number so transferred and endorsed; or

the New York Security Agent, in the case of transfers to and/or from a person
who takes delivery in the form of Securities represented by a Rule 144A
Global Security held by a Custodian on behalf of DTC, will increase or
decrease, as applicable, the number of Securities represented by such Rule
144A Global Security, whereupon the number of Securities represented by
such Rule 144A Global Security shall be increased or decreased, as
applicable, for all purposes by the number so transferred and endorsed.

(b) Transfers of Securities to a person who takes delivery in the form of Private Placement
Definitive Securities may be made only in accordance with the following provisions:

(i)

(A)

(B)

in the case of transfers from a Holder of Private Placement Definitive
Securities, upon (1) delivery of a duly executed investor representation letter
from the relevant transferee in accordance with paragraph (c) below and
(1) certification (in the form from time to time available from any Security
Agent) to the Definitive Security Agent by the transferor thereof that such
transfer is being made to (x) a person whom the transferor reasonably believes
is an Al acquiring such Securities in a transaction exempt from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act, in the case of U.S. Securities
issued by BNPP or (y) a person whom the transferor reasonably believes is a
QIB and a QP in a transaction meeting the requirements of Rule 144A, in the
case of U.S. Securities issued by BNPP B.V.;

in the case of transfers from a Holder of U.S. Securities represented by a Rule
144A Global Security, upon (I) delivery of a duly executed investor
representation letter from the relevant transferee in accordance with
paragraph (c) below and (ll) certification (in the form from time to time
available from any Security Agent) to the Definitive Security Agent by the
transferor thereof that such transfer is being made to a person whom the
transferor reasonably believes is an Al who is acquiring such Securities in a
transaction exempt from the registration requirements of the Securities Act;
and
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(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(©)

in each case, in accordance with any applicable securities laws of any state of
the United States and any applicable rules and regulations of the New York
Security Agent, the Definitive Security Agent, the relevant Clearing System
and/or as specified in the applicable Final Terms.

The Holder must send:

(A)

(B)

(©)

in the case of transfers of Private Placement Definitive Securities, a free of
payment instruction to the Definitive Security Agent not later than 5.00 p.m.
New York City time, at least two Business Days in New York prior to the
date on which the transfer is to take effect;

in the case of transfers of Securities represented by a Regulation S Global
Security or a Rule 144A Global Security held by a Common Depositary on
behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and Euroclear and/or any other relevant
Clearing System, a free of payment instruction to Clearstream, Luxembourg
or Euroclear and/or any other relevant Clearing System, as the case may be,
not later than 10.00 a.m. local time in the city of the relevant Clearing System,
one Business Day in the city of the relevant Clearing System prior to the date
on which the transfer is to take effect; and

in the case of transfers of Securities represented by a Rule 144A Global
Security held by a Custodian on behalf of DTC, a free of payment instruction
to DTC, not later than 5.00 p.m. New York City time, at least two Business
Days in New York prior to the date on which the transfer is to take effect.

Separate payment arrangements are required to be made between the transferor and the
transferee.

On the transfer date:

(A)

(B)

in the case of transfers of Securities represented by a Clearing System Global
Security, the relevant Clearing System will debit the account of its participant
and, in the case of transfers of Private Placement Definitive Securities, the
Holder must deliver the Private Placement Definitive Securities the subject of
the transfer to the Definitive Security Agent and instruct the Definitive
Security Agent to cancel the transferred Private Placement Definitive
Securities; and

the relevant Clearing System or the Holder, as the case may be, will instruct
the Definitive Security Agent to deliver or procure the delivery of new Private
Placement Definitive Securities, of a like number to the number of Securities
transferred, to the transferee at its specified office or send such new Private
Placement Definitive Securities, by uninsured mail, at the risk of the
transferee, to such address as the transferee may request.

Upon any such transfer, on the transfer date:

(A)

the Principal Security Agent will, in the case of transfers of Securities
represented by a Regulation S Global Security or Rule 144A Global Security
held by a Common Depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and

233



(©

(d)

Euroclear and/or any other relevant Clearing System, decrease the number of
Securities represented by such Regulation S Global Security or Rule 144A
Global Security, if applicable, whereupon the number of Securities
represented by such Regulation S Global Security or Rule 144A Global
Security shall, if applicable, be reduced for all purposes by the number so
transferred or exchanged and endorsed; or

(B) the New York Security Agent will, in the case of transfers of Securities
represented by a Rule 144A Global Security held by a Custodian on behalf of
DTC, decrease the number of Securities represented by such Rule 144A
Global Security, if applicable, whereupon the number of Securities
represented by such Rule 144A Global Security shall, if applicable, be
decreased for all purposes by the number so transferred and endorsed.

In the case of transfers of Securities to a person who takes delivery in the form of a Private
Placement Definitive Security, the delivery of a duly executed investor representation letter in
the form set out in the Agency Agreement (an "Investor Representation Letter") from the
relevant transferee to the Definitive Security Agent is a condition precedent to the transfer of
such Private Placement Definitive Security or any beneficial interests therein. The Investor
Representation Letter must be duly executed by such proposed transferee or such proposed
transferee's attorney duly authorised in writing, at least three Business Days in New York prior
to the date the transfer of such Private Placement Definitive Security is desired. Any attempted
transfer in which the Investor Representation Letter and the proposed transfer was not effected
in accordance with the foregoing procedures shall not be valid or binding on BNPP.

If (i) the Principal Security Agent (in relation to Regulation S Global Securities or Rule 144A
Global Securities held by a Common Depositary on behalf of Clearstream, Luxembourg and
Euroclear and/or any other relevant Clearing System) or (ii) the New York Security Agent (in
relation to Rule 144A Global Securities held by a Custodian on behalf of DTC) or (iii) the
Definitive Security Agent (in relation to Private Placement Definitive Securities) subsequently
determines or is subsequently notified by BNPP that (A) a transfer or attempted or purported
transfer of any interest in a Private Placement Definitive Security was consummated in
compliance with the provisions of this paragraph on the basis of an incorrect form or
certification from the transferee or purported transferee as set forth in the relevant Investor
Representation Letter, or (B) the Holder of any interest in any Security was in breach, at the
time given, of any representation or agreement given by such Holder (including, but not limited
to, in the case of Private Placement Definitive Securities, any such representation or agreement
set forth in the relevant Investor Representation Letter) or (iii) a transfer or attempted transfer
of any interest in any Security was consummated that did not comply with the transfer
restrictions set forth in this Condition 2.4, the purported transfer shall be absolutely null and
void ab initio and shall vest no rights in the purported transferee (such purported transferee,
a "Disqualified Transferee") and the last preceding Holder of such interest that was not a
Disqualified Transferee shall be restored to all rights as a Holder thereof retroactively to the
date of transfer of such interest by such Holder.

In the case of transfers of Securities to a person who takes delivery in the form of Securities
represented by a Rule 144A Global Security issued by BNPP B.V., the transferor shall have
agreed in an Investor Representation Letter to certain restrictions on transfer and, the transfer
shall be subject to the delivery of a duly executed Investor Representation Letter from the
relevant transferee to BNPP B.V. Any attempted transfer that is not in accordance with the
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2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

procedures set forth in the transferor's Investor Representation Letter and with any procedures
set forth in any applicable U.S. wrapper to the Base Prospectus shall not be valid or binding on
BNPP B.V. or BNPP.

Transfer of Registered Securities
Provisions relating to the transfer of Registered Warrants are set out in Condition 23.

Provisions relating to the transfer of Registered Certificates are set out in Condition 31.

Transfer of Swedish Dematerialised Securities

Title to Swedish Dematerialised Securities will pass upon entry in the Euroclear Sweden Register (or, if
applicable, notice to a nominee under the terms of the SFIA Act) in accordance with the SFIA Act.

Transfer of Finnish Dematerialised Securities

Title to Finnish Dematerialised Securities shall pass by transfer from a Holder's book-entry account to
another person's, whether a legal person or an individual, book-entry account within Euroclear Finland
(except where the Finnish Dematerialised Securities are nominee-registered and are transferred from one
account to another account with the same nominee). Finnish Dematerialised Securities will be
transferable only in accordance with the legislation, rules and regulations applicable to, and/or issued by,
Euroclear Finland.

Transfer of Italian Dematerialised Securities

Title to Italian Dematerialised Securities will pass upon registration of the transfer in the records of
Monte Titoli.

Transfer of Swiss Securities

As long as Swiss Securities constitute intermediated securities pursuant to the Swiss Federal
Intermediated Securities Act (the "FISA™) (Bucheffektengesetz), they may solely be transferred and
otherwise disposed of in accordance with the Swiss Federal Intermediated Securities Act. The
intermediated securities are transferred and otherwise disposed of by instruction of the account holder to
his depositary to transfer such intermediated securities and crediting them to the account of the
transferee's depositary.

The Holders of Swiss Securities shall at no time have the right to demand the conversion of intermediated
securities pursuant to FISA (Bucheffektengesetz) or uncertificated securities into, or the delivery of, a
global warrant or certificate (Globalurkunde) or, as the case may be, individual certificated securities
(Wertpapiere).

STATUS OF THE SECURITIES AND GUARANTEE

The Securities are unsubordinated and unsecured obligations of the relevant Issuer and rank pari passu
among themselves.

Where the Issuer is BNPP B.V., the Guarantee is a senior preferred obligation (within the meaning of
Article L.613-30-3-1-3° of the French Code monétaire et financier) and an unsecured obligation of
BNPP and will rank pari passu with all its other present and future senior preferred and unsecured
obligations subject to such exceptions as may from time to time be mandatory under French law.
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5.1

The potential impact on the Securities (or, if applicable, on the Guarantee) in the event of the resolution
of BNPP is detailed in Condition 37 (Recognition of Bail-in and Loss Absorption).

GUARANTEE

Where the Issuer is BNPP B.V., subject as provided below and in the relevant Guarantee, BNPP has
unconditionally and irrevocably (a) guaranteed to each Holder all obligations of the Issuer in respect of
such Holder's Securities as and when such obligations become due and (b) agreed that if and each time
that the Issuer fails to satisfy any obligations under such Securities as and when such obligations become
due, BNPP will not later than five Paris Business Days (as defined in the relevant Guarantee) after a
demand has been made on BNPP pursuant thereto (without requiring the relevant Holder first to take
steps against the Issuer or any other person) make or cause to be made such payment or satisfy or cause
to be satisfied such obligations as though BNPP were the principal obligor in respect of such obligations
provided that (i) in the case of Physical Delivery Certificates and, in the case of Physical Delivery
Warrants that are Call Warrants, notwithstanding that the Issuer had the right to vary settlement in respect
of such Physical Delivery Securities in accordance with Condition 5.3 and exercised such right or failed
to exercise such right, BNPP will have the right at its sole and unfettered discretion to elect not to deliver
or procure delivery of the Entitlement to the Holders of such Physical Delivery Securities, but in lieu
thereof, to make payment in respect of each such Physical Delivery Security of an amount determined
by BNPP in its sole and absolute discretion equal to the Cash Settlement Amount that would have been
payable upon exercise (in the case of Warrants) or redemption (in the case of Certificates) of such
Securities assuming they were Cash Settled Securities calculated pursuant to the terms of the relevant
Final Terms, or in the case of lack of liquidity of the underlying, the fair market value of such Security
less the costs of unwinding any underlying related hedging arrangements (the "Guaranteed Cash
Settlement Amount™) and (ii) in the case of Securities where the obligations of the Issuer which fail to
be satisfied constitute the delivery of the Entitlement to the Holders, the Guarantor will as soon as
practicable following the failure by the Issuer to satisfy its obligations under such Securities deliver or
procure delivery of such Entitlement using the method of delivery specified in the applicable Final Terms
provided that, if in the opinion of BNPP, delivery of the Entitlement using such method is not practicable
by reason of (A) a Settlement Disruption Event (as defined in Condition 5.1) or (B) if "Failure to Deliver
due to Hliquidity" is specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, a Failure to Deliver due to
Iliquidity (as defined in Condition 15.1), in lieu of such delivery BNPP will make payment in respect of
each such Security of, in the case of (A) above, the Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount or, in the case
of (B) above, the Failure to Deliver Settlement Price (as defined in Condition 15.2). Any payment of the
Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount or the Failure to Deliver Settlement Price, as the case may be, in
respect of a Security shall constitute a complete discharge of BNPP's obligations in respect of such
Security. Payment of the Guaranteed Cash Settlement Amount as the Failure to Deliver Settlement Price,
as the case may be, will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Holders in accordance with
Condition 10.

GENERAL PROVISIONS RELATING TO PHYSICAL SETTLEMENT IN RESPECT OF
SECURITIES

Settlement Disruption

If, (i) in the case of Warrants following the exercise of Physical Delivery Warrants, and (ii) in the case
of Securities, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent, delivery of the Entitlement using the method of
delivery specified in the applicable Final Terms or such commercially reasonable manner as the
Calculation Agent has determined is not practicable by reason of a Settlement Disruption Event (as
defined below) having occurred and continuing on any Settlement Date (in the case of Warrants) or
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Delivery Date (in the case of Certificates), then such Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the case may
be, for such Securities shall be postponed to the first following Settlement Business Day in respect of
which there is no such Settlement Disruption Event, provided that the Issuer may elect in its sole
discretion to satisfy its obligations in respect of the relevant Security or in the case of Warrants, if
applicable, Unit, as the case may be, by delivering the Entitlement using such other commercially
reasonable manner as it may select and in such event the Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the case
may be, shall be such day as the Issuer deems appropriate in connection with delivery of the Entitlement
in such other commercially reasonable manner. For the avoidance of doubt, where a Settlement
Disruption Event affects some but not all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement, the
Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the case may be, for the Relevant Assets not affected by the
Settlement Disruption Event will be the originally designated Settlement Date or Delivery Date, as the
case may be.

In the case of Warrants, in the event that a Settlement Disruption Event will result in the delivery on a
Settlement Date of some but not all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement, the Calculation
Agent shall determine in its discretion the appropriate pro rata portion of the Exercise Price to be paid
by the relevant Holder in respect of that partial settlement.

For so long as delivery of the Entitlement is not practicable by reason of a Settlement Disruption Event,
then in lieu of physical settlement and notwithstanding any other provision hereof, except in the case of
U.S. Securities (in which case another price or prices will be specified in the applicable Final Terms),
the Issuer may elect in its sole discretion to satisfy its obligations in respect of the relevant Security or in
the case of Warrants, if applicable, Unit, as the case may be, by payment to the relevant Holder of the
Disruption Cash Settlement Price (as defined below) on the fifth Business Day following the date that
notice of such election is given to the Holders in accordance with Condition 10. Payment of the
Disruption Cash Settlement Price will be made in such manner as shall be notified to the Holders in
accordance with Condition 10. The Calculation Agent shall give notice as soon as practicable to the
Holders in accordance with Condition 10 that a Settlement Disruption Event has occurred. No Holder
shall be entitled to any payment in respect of the relevant Security or in the case of Warrants, if
applicable, Unit, as the case may be, in the event of any delay in the delivery of the Entitlement due to
the occurrence of a Settlement Disruption Event and no liability in respect thereof shall attach to the
Issuer or the Guarantor (if any).

For the purposes hereof:

"Disruption Cash Settlement Price” means, in respect of any relevant Security or in the case of
Warrants, if applicable, Unit, as the case may be, the fair market value of such Security or in the case of
Warrants, if applicable, Unit, as the case may be (disregarding, where the Settlement Disruption Event
affected some but not all of the Relevant Assets comprising the Entitlement and such non-affected
Relevant Assets have been duly delivered as provided above, the value of such non-affected Relevant
Assets), less the cost to the Issuer and/or its Affiliates of unwinding any underlying related hedging
arrangements (unless otherwise provided in the applicable Final Terms), all as determined by the Issuer
in its sole and absolute discretion, plus in the case of Warrants, if applicable and if already paid, the
Exercise Price (or, where as provided above some Relevant Assets have been delivered, and a pro rata
portion thereof has been paid, such pro rata portion);

"Settlement Business Day" has the meaning specified in the applicable Final Terms; and

"Settlement Disruption Event" means, in the opinion of the Calculation Agent or, if the proviso to
Condition 4 applies, BNPP, an event beyond the control of the Issuer or, if the proviso to Condition 4
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5.2

5.3

5.4

applies, BNPP as a result of which the Issuer or BNPP, as the case may be, cannot make delivery of the
Relevant Asset(s) using the method specified in the applicable Final Terms.

Failure to Deliver due to Illiquidity

"Failure to Deliver due to llliquidity", if specified as applying in the applicable Final Terms, will be
an Optional Additional Disruption Event, as described in Condition 15.1 below.

Variation of Settlement

@ If the applicable Final Terms indicate that the Issuer has an option to vary settlement in respect
of the Securities (which, unless otherwise specified, will not apply to U.S. Securities), and
subject in the case of Warrants to a valid exercise of the Warrants in accordance with these
Conditions, the Issuer may at its sole and absolute discretion in respect of each such Security or
in the case of Warrants, if applicable, Unit, elect not to pay the relevant Holders the Cash
Settlement Amount or to deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement to the relevant Holders,
as the case may be, but, in lieu thereof to deliver or procure delivery of the Entitlement or make
payment of the Cash Settlement Amount on the Settlement Date (in the case of Warrants) or
Redemption Date (in the case of Certificates) to the relevant Holders, as the case may be.
Notification of such election will be given to Holders in accordance with Condition 10.

(b) If specified in the applicable Final Terms, and subject in the case of Warrants to a valid exercise
of Warrants in accordance with these Conditions, the Issuer shall, in respect of each such
Security or in the case of Warrants, if applicable, each Unit, in lieu of delivering or procuring
the delivery of the Entitlement to the relevant Holders, make payment of the Cash Settlement
Amount on the Settlement Date (in the case of Warrants) or Redemption Date (in the case of
Certificates) to the relevant Holders.

Issuer's Option to Substitute Assets or to pay the Alternate Cash Amount

Following a valid exercise or redemption, as the case may be, of Securities in accordance with these
Conditions, the Issuer may, in its sole and absolute discretion in respect of such Securities, if the
Calculation Agent determines (in its sole and absolute discretion) that the Relevant Asset or Relevant
Assets, as the case may be, comprise(s) shares or interests in ETIs which are not freely tradable, elect
either (a) to substitute for the Relevant Asset or the Relevant Assets, as the case may be, an equivalent
value (as determined by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion) of such other shares or
interests in ETIs which the Calculation Agent determines, in its sole and absolute discretion, are freely
tradable (the "Substitute Asset" or the "Substitute Assets", as the case may be) or (b) not to deliver or
procure the delivery of the Entitlement or the Substitute Asset or Substitute Assets, as the case may be,
to the relevant Holders, but in lieu thereof to make payment to the relevant Holders on the Settlement
Date of an amount equal to the fair market value of the Entitlement on the Valuation Date as determined
by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion by reference to such sources as it considers
appropriate (the "Alternate Cash Amount"). Notification of any such election will be given to Holders
in accordance with Condition 10.

For the purposes hereof, a "freely tradable" share or interest in an ETI shall mean (i) with respect to the
United States, a share or interest in an ETI, as the case may be, which is registered under the Securities
Act with respect to which an exemption from such registration is available, in each case, as determined
by the Calculation Agent in its sole and absolute discretion or (ii) with respect to any other jurisdiction,
a share or interest in an ETI, as the case may be, not subject to any legal restrictions on transfer in such
jurisdiction.

238



5.5

7.1

7.2

Commodity Securities shall not be Physical Delivery Securities.

GENERAL

None of the Issuers, the Guarantor, the Calculation Agent and any Security Agent shall have any
responsibility for any errors or omissions in the calculation of any Cash Settlement Amount or of any
Entitlement.

The purchase of Securities does not confer on any Holder of such Securities any rights (whether in respect
of voting, distributions or otherwise) attaching to any Relevant Asset.

ILLEGALITY AND FORCE MAJEURE

Illegality

If the Issuer determines that the performance of its obligations under the Securities has become illegal in
whole or in part for any reason, the Issuer may, in the case of Warrants, cancel, or in the case of
Certificates, redeem all but not some only of the Securities by giving notice to Holders in accordance
with Condition 10.

If the Issuer cancels or redeems, as the case may be, the Securities then the Issuer will, if and to the extent
permitted by applicable law, and except as may be limited in the case of U.S. Securities, pay an amount
to each Holder in respect of each Security, or in the case of Warrants, if